
 

 
 
Notice of meeting of  
 

Decision Session -  Executive Member for City Strategy 
 
To: Councillor Steve Galloway (Executive Member) 

 
Date: Tuesday, 11 May 2010 

 
Time: 4.00 pm 

 
Venue: The Guildhall, York 

 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 
Notice to Members – Calling In 
  
Members are reminded that, should they wish to call in any item on 
this agenda, notice must be given to Democracy Support Group by: 
  
10.00 am on Monday, 10 May 2010 if an item is called in before a 
decision is taken, or 
  
4.00pm on Thursday, 13 May, 2010 if an item is called in after a 
decision has been taken. 
  
Items called in will be considered by the Scrutiny Management 
Committee.  
  
Written representations in respect of items on this agenda should be 
submitted to Democratic Services by 5.00pm on Friday 7 May 2010. 
 
 
 
1. Declarations of Interest    
 At this point Members are asked to declare any personal or 

prejudicial interests they may have in the business on this 
agenda. 
 
 



 
2. Minutes   (Pages 3 - 10) 
 To approve and sign the minutes of the last City Strategy Decision 

Session held on 6 April 2010. 
 

3. Public Participation - Decision Session    
  

At this point in the meeting, members of the public who have 
registered their wish to speak at the meeting can do so. The 
deadline for registering is 5:00pm on Monday 10 May 2010.                
  
Members of the public may register to speak on:-  

• an item on the agenda;  
• an issue within the Executive Member’s remit;  
• an item that has been published on the Information Log 

since the last session.  Information reports are listed at the 
end of the agenda. 

Note: No items have been published on the Information log 
since the last Decision Session. 
  

 
  
 

 

4. Public Rights of Way - Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 - 
Preparation of Definitive Map former County Borough of 
York (Guildhall, Fishergate, Micklegate Wards)   
(Pages 11 - 34) 

 The Executive Member deferred a decision on this report at the 
last Decision Session on 6 April 2010, to allow Officers time to 
prepare a response to each of the representations made in 
writing by Councillors Merrett, D’Agorne and the Ramblers 
Association.  
 
[A copy of the report presented to the Decision Session on 6 April 
is attached to this item on-line, for information] 
 

5. Public Rights of Way - Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 - 
Preparation of Definitive Map former County Borough of 
York (Holgate, Clifton, Heworth, Hull Wards)  
(Pages 35 - 254) 

 

 This report seeks to assist the Executive Member in determining 
whether or not to make a number of Definitive Map Modification 
Orders to record public rights of way on the Definitive Map for the 
former County Borough of York within the Clifton, Heworth, 
Holgate and Hull Road Wards. 
 



 
6. Blossom Street Multi Modal Scheme - Consultation 

Results; Analysis of Network Implications and Option 
Selection  (Pages 255 - 290) 

 

 This report informs the Executive Member of the results of the 
public consultation undertaken on the proposed improvements to 
the Blossom Street area, advises of road network implications of 
any alterations made and presents potential options for altering 
the layout to improve safety for all users. 
 

7. Bus Corridor Works on A59 Boroughbridge Road and 
B1363 Wigginton Road  (Pages 291 - 302) 

 

 This report provides background information about various 
elements of the proposed works on the public highway as part of 
the Access York Phase 1 project and examines the consultation 
process requirements 
 

8. Operation of City of York Council's Dial and Ride Service  
(Pages 303 - 314) 

 

 This report sets out the arrangements for the day to day 
operation of the Council’s Dial and Ride service, which is 
currently delivered by the charity York Wheels. 
 

9. An Update on the Progress Made Toward the 
lntroduction of Integrated Bus Ticketing and the 
'Yorcard' Scheme  (Pages 315 - 322) 

 

 This report updates the Executive Member on the current 
position concerning the introduction of an integrated ticket for 
York and regional progress on the delivery of the ‘Yorcard’. 
 

10. City of York's Local Transport Plan 3 - Amended 
consultation/preparation strategy for LTP3  
 (Pages 323 - 332) 

 

 This report presents and seeks approval of the revised approach 
for progressing the preparation of LTP3, due to the calling in of 
the Executive Members (provisional) decision on 2 March 2010, 
for undertaking the LTP3 Stage 2 Consultation. 
 

11. Any other business which the Chair considers urgent 
under the Local Government Act 1972   

 

 



 
Democracy Officer: 
 
Name: Jill Pickering 
Contact details: 

• Telephone – (01904) 552061 
• E-mail – jill.pickering@york.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 

For more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democracy Officer responsible for servicing this meeting   
 

• Registering to speak 
• Business of the meeting 
• Any special arrangements 
• Copies of reports 

Contact details are set out above 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



About City of York Council Meetings 
 

Would you like to speak at this meeting? 
If you would, you will need to: 

• register by contacting the Democracy Officer (whose name and contact 
details can be found on the agenda for the meeting) no later than 5.00 
pm on the last working day before the meeting; 

• ensure that what you want to say speak relates to an item of business on 
the agenda or an issue which the committee has power to consider (speak 
to the Democracy Officer for advice on this); 

• find out about the rules for public speaking from the Democracy Officer. 
A leaflet on public participation is available on the Council’s website or 
from Democratic Services by telephoning York (01904) 551088 
 
Further information about what’s being discussed at this meeting 
All the reports which Members will be considering are available for viewing 
online on the Council’s website.  Alternatively, copies of individual reports or the 
full agenda are available from Democratic Services.  Contact the Democracy 
Officer whose name and contact details are given on the agenda for the 
meeting. Please note a small charge may be made for full copies of the 
agenda requested to cover administration costs. 
 
Access Arrangements 
We will make every effort to make the meeting accessible to you.  The meeting 
will usually be held in a wheelchair accessible venue with an induction hearing 
loop.  We can provide the agenda or reports in large print, electronically 
(computer disk or by email), in Braille or on audio tape.  Some formats will take 
longer than others so please give as much notice as possible (at least 48 hours 
for Braille or audio tape).   
 
If you have any further access requirements such as parking close-by or a sign 
language interpreter then please let us know.  Contact the Democracy Officer 
whose name and contact details are given on the order of business for the 
meeting. 
 
Every effort will also be made to make information available in another 
language, either by providing translated information or an interpreter providing 
sufficient advance notice is given.  Telephone York (01904) 551550 for this 
service. 

 

Agenda AnnexPage 1



 
Holding the Executive to Account 
The majority of councillors are not appointed to the Executive (40 out of 47).  
Any 3 non-Executive councillors can ‘call-in’ an item of business from a 
published Executive (or Executive Member Decision Session) agenda. The 
Executive will still discuss the ‘called in’ business on the published date and will 
set out its views for consideration by a specially convened Scrutiny 
Management Committee (SMC).  That SMC meeting will then make its 
recommendations to the next scheduled Executive meeting in the following 
week, where a final decision on the ‘called-in’ business will be made.  
 
Scrutiny Committees 
The purpose of all scrutiny and ad-hoc scrutiny committees appointed by the 
Council is to:  

• Monitor the performance and effectiveness of services; 
• Review existing policies and assist in the development of new ones, as 

necessary; and 
• Monitor best value continuous service improvement plans 

 
Who Gets Agenda and Reports for our Meetings?  

• Councillors get copies of all agenda and reports for the committees to 
which they are appointed by the Council; 

• Relevant Council Officers get copies of relevant agenda and reports for 
the committees which they report to;  

• Public libraries get copies of all public agenda/reports.  
 

Page 2



����������	
�����
��� ������������������

�������� ����������������������������������� �!� �
������� "�����

�"��� #�"$ �%�&'('�

$ ������ ������%%� ��������"%%�)"��*����������
����� +�

�
���� ����	
	��
���
������
�����

�
���,�	��-�	����.���/����/�
�0	��0���1���2���������1��������3�0���2�	���0��
�	�2	�4�/�
�0������	������1�����31��10.������1��,������������1��03��/05��
�
����
����	���		���6�/�
�0	�/�0�2�	���0������2	�4�/�
�0������	�������	��2�
�����
"3��/0� �����#� *"/�2��������7�31-0��������-����0����8��2/0��� �2�	�+�
0��1����.�/����0�	�0/��10��-0����0/�2��/5�
�

���� ���������
�
�1�� �9�
���.�� ���,�	� ��0��/� �10�� 1�� 10/� 	�
��.�/� 0� 	�:����� �	��� ���	�
��		������	��1����
����������0//�����0������	�0���������1��2	�0�,�������������
;<�*����������	
=��%�
0���	0��2�	��$�0��>�8���03��(��������0����� �������
0�/� $	�20	0������ ��	� ��03�� &� *�2������ 0�/� ��20
��+� �������0����+5� ���	�
��		����������10���1���������/�/�����0/�:�0�����	����
���1��
��
�	���1��10/�
	0���/5��1���9�
���.�����,�	�
����	��/� �10��1��-0��1022�� ��	� �1���� ���
,����
�	2�	0��/�������1���������5�
�
 ���%���?� �10�� �1�� �������� ��� �1�� �0��� ��
������ �������� 8�

�9�
���.�����,�	���	��������	0��3�6�1��/����&��0	
1�
&'('� ,�� 022	�.�/� 0�/� ��3��/� ,�� �1�� �9�
���.��
���,�	�0��0�
�		�
��	�
�	/6���,4�
�����0���/��������
�1��2	�0�,��� ���20	03	021�#�����������;<�0����������
,���-?�

�
����
����	���		����	���		�/�����1��
��
�	����2�
����/�����1��	�0�������	��1��

0����������1���	�2�	�5�7��:��������/�1�-��1��	�����������1���	0���
�
���3�������"/�7�
��
	����������������-���/�,���0
��������0

�����0�����
0

��-��/3������ -0�� �0/�� ��� �1��	� -�	
� ��� �1�� %�$>� ��	0��3�� �� ����
����	����
�
����� ����
	��� ����� ��������
��	��
���
�����������
� ����
�����
� ���� 
�� �
� ����� ����
� ��� ������ 	���� �������� ���� ��
���� �����
�������� ������
� ��� ���� ������	��� ���� 
���� ���
���� 7�� 0���� ����� �10��
	���/����� -���/� ���/� "���9� �� 
�������3� -��1� �1�� �.�	�02� ��� �1�	�� 0�/�
���3�	� ��	���2�����5�7�� ��0��/� �10���0	���	� 03	������� 10/�,���� 	�0
1�/�
�10�� �1���	0���
����3�������0�/� �1��%$�>���	.����-���/������.�	�02�0�/�
�10�� �1�	��-���/� ,�� 
��0	� /�����
������ ,��-���� �1�� �-�5� !��0���� 1�� ��0��/�
�10��1�� ����� �1���:��������0�	��-0����	������� ��0-�/� ��� 	��0����� ��� �1�� ���	�
�2������ ���
�� ���������
� ����� ����� 
������� ��� �� 
�������� ��
� ��� ���
�����2��� 
1��
�5���� ��
� ��������
� ��� �1�� ����
��� ��� ��	
� ��� ���� ��������
���	
	������ �0
1���	�����	��� �� �����	��������������������
�����
������
�����

�

������������������
������������	���������������������

Agenda Item 2Page 3



���� ��������	
�����	��
����������
�������
���
�
��� -0�� 	�2�	��/� �10�� �1�	�� 10/� ,���� ���� 	�3���	0����� ��� �2�0
� 0�� �1��
������3� ��/�	� �1�� ����
��=�� $�,��
� $0	��
�20����� �
1���5� ���0���� ��� �1��
�2�0
�	�0	������������/�	��1����/�.�/�0��03��/0������5�
�

���� ������
����

���������������������
��
��������	��

	������
�

���
�
�1�� �9�
���.�� ���,�	� 
����/�	�/� 0� 	�2�	�6� -1�
1� 0/.���/� 1��� ���
2	�3	������-0	/��2	��	����0��������0����,�	����2���������0�/�	�:��������	�&'�
�21��2��/�������5�
�
����
�	���2/0��/��10�����
���1��	�2�	��10/�,����
��2���/��1�	��10/�,����

10�3��� ��� �1��%�$>�
������0�����2	�
���6�-1�
1���0��� �10�6� 	0�1�	� �10��

������0��������&'�21��2��/�����������	���/����0����	�����,���3���/�	�0
���
���"2	����1���-���/���-��0
��2�0
������1�������	5��1��0����
����	��/��10��
-1�����0����,�	����20�1��10/�����,������
��/�/�0���1���������1���-0�������
�1����	�����03����-0	/���1��2	�/�
��������0���������.���02�0�/��1����20�1��

���/�,��2�

�/��2���	���	�1�	���.����30�����0��0��0��	���03�5�
�
���	���		����-��
���/��1��	�2�	��0�/��1����
�����������1������1��0�
�0	�0�
��	���2������0��������0�&'�21��
1���5�7��/�/�1�-�.�	��92	����
��
�	��
0�� �1�� 	�:��	������ ��	� 0� 	��2����� 	0��� ��� @'A� ,��� ��0��/� �10�� 1�� -0��
2��0��/� ��� ��0	�� �10�� �1�� @'A� 1����1��/� ��22�	�� 	0��� -0�� ��� 	��0����� ���
2	��	����0����� ��� �1�� 	�:������ 0�/� 2��������� 0�/� �10�� �
1����� -���/� ,��
2	�3	����/����0���-�	�2�	
���03��	���	��2	�.�/�/��10��0����0���@'A�����1��
	���	���-�	������0.��	5��
�
�1���9�
���.�����,�	� 
����	��/� �10��"���9�"� ��� �1�� 	�2�	�� �������� �1��
�0�����2	��	�����/�2��������,0��/����
�		���� ����	�0�����0�/��10�� �1���-���/�
����
��.����,�
����0�-�	
�2	�3	0���6� �1��1�31����2	��	����,���3�3�.��� ���
�1����	�
�	/��-��1�0�	�
�	/����0

�/����5�7��	���		�/��������
�	��	���	��
��
���0

�/������.�������0����,�	����	�0/��-1�	��0��������	
�/�&'�21�������

���/�����,�� ���	�/�
�/�0�/� �10��1��-0��2	�2����3� �10�� �1�����1���/�,��
��.����30��/���/�	��1������
��=���9�����3��2��/��0�03������0�/�0

�/����
	�/�
�����2���
���5�
�
�1���9�
���.�����,�	��0����
����	��/��10�6����.��-�����1��/��0�����2�����3�
	���/���������1�����	�/�
��������0�
���-�/��&'�21�B���6�1����������0/.��0,���
�������0��1�	����0���21���
0��-�	
�����&'�21��������2��/��3�	�
��2������1��
	�����������1��
������0����5�
����
�����/�	0�����-0���1���3�.�������1�������-��3��2�����?�
�
�2���������8�"3	����1���0�����2	��	�����/�2��������0�/�03	������2	�3	�����1��
�
1��������20	03	021�((��1	��31��1��&'('C((�
02��0��2	�3	0���5���
�
�2������-��8�"3	����1��2	��	����0�����,���/������2	�
��/�-��1���	�1�	�
/���.�	���������1��	�����������1��%�$>���	.���0	��
��-�5�

�
�2������1	���8��������03	����1��
�		����2	��	����0������	���2������0��������
��	�1�	�&'�21��
1����5�

Page 4



 ���%���?� �10���1���9�
���.�����,�	���	��������	0��3��03	���?�

�+� �1��2	��	�����/���������2���������0�/�	�:������0���1�-��
0��*	�.���/+�"���9�"D�

��+� ���2	�3	�����1����9�����	��
1���������1��������1	��31�
�1�� &'('C((� 
02��0�� 2	�3	0���6� -1�
1� 0	�?� 7�����
�0�
�0	�06�)���������	� �0/6�%�-�$�22������ �0/�
0�/���������/�%0��5�

���+� ���������10���1����9��%�$>�
������0�����-����
���0���0�
:�������� ��� &'�21� �2��/� ������� 0�/� �10�� ���
�92��/���	�����21���
0��-�	
�6����0//�����0��&'��21�
������6�,�� ��
�		�/������� �1��	���������� �10����	.���0	��

��-�5�

�.+� �10�� �1�� E���  ����� 	�0/�� �1�-�� ��� �1�� "���9� ,��

����/�	�/�0��20	����� �1������
�������3���3�0

�/����
	�/�
�����2	�
�����5�(5�

�
 �"���?� ��� ��0,��� 0� 	��2����� ��� 2��������� ��� ,�� 2	�3	����/�

0�/� 0� ���,�	� ��� &'�21� �2��/� ������ �
1����� ��� ,��
/�.���2�/� ��	� ��2������0�����/�	��3� &'('C((�0��20	��
����1��
02��0��2	�3	0���5�

�
"
����� �:��	�/��
(5�������
��-�	
�����
1�����0�/�����	��
���	�����	�0/��
0	��
����/�	�/�0��20	������1��0

�/����	�/�
�����2	�
���5���

�
�
 ���

�
���� �

�
�����	


���������	����
�	������������

��
��������	���
�����	���������	����
�
�1�� �9�
���.�� ���,�	� 
����/�	�/� 0� 	�2�	�6� -1�
1� 0/.���/� 1��� ���
���/,0

� �	���
������0��������2	�2��0��� ��� ���	�/�
���0		�-�
�
��� �0����
��� ������� ��	���C%��/0�� �	�/3�� 0�/� �����30��5� �1�� 2	�2��0��� -�	��
�����/�/� ��� ��2	�.�� �0
�������� ��	� 
�
������ ��� �1���� �0		�-� 	�0/�6� -1�	��
:�����3� �	0���
� ������ �,��	�
��/� �1�� 2	�3	���� ��� 
�
������ 	�/��3� ��� �1��	�
��0	��/�5����-0�������/�/�������	�/�
��2	�2��0������0��	�0��,0��������	/�	����
�.0��0����1��	�����
��.�����5�

�
���	���		������0��/��10��1��-��
���/��1���	�0����3�����1���0		�-�
�
����0����
0�/� �10�� 1�� 1�2�/� �1��� -���/� ,�� 
������� ������	�/6� 0�� ��� -���/� 10.��
��3����
0��� ,�������� ��	� 
�
�����5�7�� 	���		�/� ��� �1�� 2	�2��0��� ��	������30���
-1�	���1�	��-0��	������	�0��0		�-�
�
���-0����,���/�,���1��������1�	��-0��
�������
�����	��������1��
���	0����
���������1���	����5�7��0����	���		�/�����1��
2	�2��0�����	�0��0/.0�
�/����2������,�9�0�����%���0	/=��$�0
�6�-1�
1�/�/�
����022�0	�.�	���0	3��0�/�1����33����/��09������3��������3�15�
�
����
�	��
����	��/��10���1���-���/�
�	�0������90������1������������	���		����
10/�	0���/�-1�����2��������3��1���
1���5��
�
�1�� �9�
���.�� ���,�	� 
����	��/� �10�� 1�� -0�� 1022�� ��	� ����
�	�� ���
�90����� �1�� 2������ 	0���/� 0�/� ��	� �1��� ��� 10.�� /���30��/� 2�-�	�� ���
��2�������-10��.�	�-0���0���0�/�2	0
��
0�����	��0���������1�����
1����5�(5�

Page 5



7��-���������	���	�����1���0
���10�����
���������10/�,����	�0
1�/����1�-�

�
���3��2��/�0�/��0�����
���/�,����2	�.�/�����1�����������	���C%��/0��
�	�/3�� 
�		�/�	� 0�/� �1�	���	�� 1�� ����� ��� 0/.��0,��� ��� /���	� ��	�1�	�

����/�	0���������1���2��/��3�0�	�.��-�����1���	�0�����������30��5��
�
�����/�	0�����-0��0����3�.�������1�������-��3��2�����?�
�2�����(� 8� ��2������� �1�� 2	�2��0��� 0�� �1�-�� ���"���9���"� *��	�%��/0��
�	�/3�C���������	���+�0�/���*��	������30��+6�0��
�������/��2��D�
�
�2����� &� 8� ��2������� �1�� 	�.���/� 2	�2��0��� 	�������3� �	��� 
������0�����
���/,0

6�0���1�-�����"���9�����	����������	���C%��/0���	�/3�6�0�/��1��
�	�3��0��2	�2��0����	������30���0���1�-�����"���9��D�
�
�2����� >� 8� ��2������� 0� .0	�0����� ��� �1�� 2	�2��0��� ��� ��
�	2�	0��� 0���

10�3����10���0��,��/����/���
���0	�5�
�
�2�����F�8��0
�����0���	0����������1��
�		��������0�����
�

 ���%���?��10���1���9�
���.�����,�	�03	���?�

�+� ��� 0� �	�0�� ,0���6� ��� ��2������� �1�� 2	�2��0�� ��	�
�����30����1�-��0��"���9�������1��	�2�	�D�

��+� ��� 2	�.�/�� /�	�
����� ��3�03�� ��� �1��"/.0�
�/����2�
%���� *"�%�+� ,�9��� ��� ��� %���0	/=�� $�0
�� 0�/�
���������	���D�

���+� ���/���	�
����/�	0��������0�����1�	�
10�3��� ���	�0/�
�0	
��3�� ��� �1�� %��/0�� �	�/3�� 
�		�/�	� ������ �1��
	�����������1���	�0������1����������0		�-�
�
����0�������
�����30���10.��,�����.0��0��/D�

�.+� �10��
�
����0	3���
0		�03�-0���0�����0�
��-�	
6���	�
�1���
�		�/�	6�,��3�.���0�1�31�2	��	���5�&5�

�
�
 �"���?� ����
�	�� 
����/�	� �10�� �1���� 2	�2��0��� -���� ,�������


�
�����6� 0�� �1���-���� ��2	�.�� �1��20��03�� ��	� 
�
������
��� �1�� ��0	��/�� ��� :�����3� .�1�
���5� �1�� 2	�2���/�
��0��	��� -���/� 0���� 
���	�,���� ��-0	/�� �1�� 0���� ���
�1������
���0��0���
���3�����5�

�
�
"
����� �:��	�/��
��
(C&5���2������������30����
1�������0��	�0��,0���5���
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
G$�

Page 6



� �� 	�
���
��
�������	���
���������	���������	���
��

���
�
�1�� �9�
���.�� ���,�	� 
����/�	�/� 0� 	�2�	�6� -1�
1� 2	�.�/�/� 0�� ����	���
2	�3	����	�2�	�����1�31-0��0/�2�����6�
��2����/6���3��1�	�-��1��1��
�		����
-�	
�2	�3	0����0�/�3���	0��/�.���2�����0
��.���5�
�
���	���		���� 	0���/� 
��
�	��� 0�� �1�� ���0����0
��	�� ���3�1� ��� ����� �0
��� ���
	��0����� ��� �1�� 0/�2����� ��� 1�31-0��5� 7�� :��������/� �1�� 2����,������ ���
�0
��3�	�2	�����0����������1��	���.0���03��
�������0

���	0����1��2	�
���5�
�
����
�	�� 
����	��/� �10�� �1��� 10/� 2	����/� ��	� /��
�������� -��1� ��	
�1�	��
)0��	� 	�30	/��3� ��-�	� 0/�2������ 0�/� �10�� �1��� ��22�	��/� �1���0
��3����
0//�����0��	�2	�����0������0���1���-0��0����0���3����
0�����������	�����
�	�5�
�
�1���9�
���.�����,�	�
����	��/��10���0�������1���������022�0	�/����,��
��������1��
���	�������1��0��1�	���5�7��
����	��/��10��1����22�	��/�����
�	��
/	0����3� 0� �����	� ��� 	�2	�����0����� ��� �1�� ��
0�� �$� ��� 	�:����� �1��� ���
�90���������1�	��-�	��0�����3���0��.��
10�3����10��
���/�,����2�������/����
0������	������92�/�����1����������5�(5�
�
�����/�	0�����-0��3�.�������1�������-��3��2�����?�
�2�����"���������1��
�����������1���2/0���	�2�	��0�/�	�:������10������
�	��
2	�20	���1����,��:�����"���0��	�2�	������1��0�����5�
�
�2���������)��1�	���	��
�����$0	03	021�(F6��1�	�����0���22�	����������

����/�	�	�.����3��1��!���	0���2�	
���03�6�����1��	0�3�����(A�8�>A6���	��1��
0�/����3������
1��
0����,���������0�/���2�	.���������-�	
�5�
�
 ���%���?� �10�� �1���9�
���.�����,�	������� �1��2	�3	����,���3�

�0/�� -��1� �0��� 0/�2����� �
1����� ��� �1�� ����� 0�/�
03	���� �10�� 0� 	0
�/� 2�	
���03�� ���� ���
�/� ��� �1��

�����
������ ��� 	�0/� ,���/��3� ,�� ��.����30��/� 0��
/��0���/���/�	��2������5�&5�

�
 �"���?� ���-����2	�.�/�� �1������� ����	�0��.��0�0�����6� ��
��/��3�

0�� ��3���3� 	�.��-� ��� -�	
� 2	�3	0���� 0�/� ��	.�
��
2�	��	�0�
�6� ��3��1�	� -��1� ��303������ -��1�
/�.���2�	�����2	�.�/����2	�.�/���/�	��0�/��3�����1��	�

����	
�0�� 2	�
�����6� 0�/� �/������� �22�	��������� ��	�
��2	�.�����6���	��1���.�	0���,����������	���/����� �

�
"
����� �:��	�/��
(5�����
�	��2	�20	�������	�0���������/5��
&5�����
�	�������.����30����1��	�.�������������5���

�
 ���
 ���

�
�!�� �������
������
���	�������������	����
���
������	�������"�

�
��	
	��
��
����������#���	���

��
��
������


����

���

��$�����
�	��"�������	���	����������	����	
��%��
�
�����/�	0�����-0��3�.������0�	�2�	�6�-1�
1����31�����0�������1���9�
���.��
���,�	����/���	�����3�-1��1�	��	���������0
��0����,�	������������.���02�
��/���
0������	/�	�����	�
�	/�2�,��
�	�31������-0������1����������.���02���	�

Page 7



�1�� ��	��	� ������� ��	��31� ��� ��	
� -��1��� !��1�	30��6� ����/10��� 0�/�
��

��30���)0	/�5�
�
�1�� ��������.�� �02� ����
�	� �2/0��/� 0�/� 
�	
��0��/� /��0���� ��� ����
�	��

�����������	��2�
�����0����,�	�����������	�
������	0���/�,������
����	��
�="3�	���0�/���		����0�/� �	����0.�/������6����,�10��� ��� �1�� 0�,��	��
"���
�0����5��1����0��/��10��0����,�	�����1��2������	0���/�,���0.�/�������
������ 	�:��	�/� ��	�1�	� �90���0����5� �1�� 0���� 
����	��/� �10�� 0� ���,�	� ���
20�1��10/�����,�����/�������/���	���	�1�	���.����30�����0�/��10��0��1��31��1���
-0��������1����	�����03���1����20�1��
���/�,��2�

�/��2�0��0��0��	���03�5�
�
���	���		���� 
����	��/� �10�� 1��-0�� ������ ��
��0	� ��� 	��0����� ��� �1�� 2	�
����
��.��.�/����	�
�	/��3��1���9�����
����� �1����20�1��0�/�����1��
������0�����
,���3���/�	�0
��5�7��	�:�����/�
�0	���
0�����0�/�	�0���	0�
��� ���	��2�
��
��� �1�� 2	�
�����5� 7�� 	���		�/� ��� �1�� �0	3�� ���,�	� ��� 20�1�6� -1�
1�-�	��
�����/� ��	���� ��	�1�	�0
�����0�/� ���0����,�	����20�1��,���3�
���������� �1��
2�0��� 0��0
1�/� ��� �1�� 	�2�	�5� 7�� ��0��/� �10�� 1�� 10/� ����/� ��� /����
���� ���
����	2	����1���02��20	��
��0	������	��0���������1��
����	�/�20�1�5�
�
�0.�/������6��0/��	�2	�����0���������,�10�������1�� 0�,��	��"���
�0�����
0�/�1��
����	��/��10��1��-0��2��0��/�-��1�2	�3	��������1����������.���02�
��/���
0����� �	/�	=�5� 7�� 1�2�/� �10�� �1�� 2�,��
���� ��		���/��3� �1��� -�	
�
-���/�2	�������1����������1����20�1����	�	���/����6�3�.��3�1�0��1�,��������
0�/�	�������3���������
0	�����0�/�2��������5�7��0�
�/���	�
�0	���
0���������1��
��	�� H��� ��	�1�	�0
�����0�� �1��� ����=�0�/�0�
�/� ��	�
����	�0����� �10�� �1����
20�1��-���/� ,�� ��
��/�/� 0�� 0� �0��	� ��03�5� 7��-���� ����� ��33���� �10�� 0��
0���0�� ���2�
����� ��� �1���� 20�1�� �1���/� ,�� ��/�	�0
��� ,�� .�������	�� ���
	�/�
��
����5�
�
����
�	��
����	��/��10��0����������1��	������2	�2���/���	��90���0���������1��
����	�� -���/� ,�� 2	�20	�/� 0�/� �10�� ����
�	�� -���/� 	���90����� �1��
2	�
������0�/�
����/�	��1���������)0	/���-������	�����30���2�,��
���5�
�
�1���9�
���.�����,�	���0��/��10��0��0����,�	�����������10/������	�
������
,�� 	0���/� 0�/� ��� ��0,��� �1���� ��� ,�� 2�,��
���/� 0�/� 3�.��� 022	�2	�0���

����/�	0�����1��2	�2���/����/���	���	�1�	�
����/�	0���������1���	�2�	��������
�1����9��������35�7��
����	��/��10���1���-���/���0,���0����1��2������	0���/�
���,�������/�����1��	�2�	��0�/���	�����
�	��������������1��	�
������������0
15�
�
 ���%���?� �10�� �1���9�
���.�����,�	� /���	�� 0� /�
������ ��� �1��

2	�2��0��� ������ �1�� ��9�� ������3� ��� �	/�	� ��� 0���-�
����
�	����������2	�20	��0��0,��0	�	��2���������0
1����
�1�� 	�2	�����0������-1�
1�10.��,�����0/�� ���-	����3�
,�� ����
����	�� ��		���6� �="3�	��� 0�/� �1��  0�,��	��
"���
�0����5�(5�

� �
 �"���?� �����0,��� �1���9�
���.�����,�	� ���,�������� ����	��/�

-1��� �0
��3� /�
������� ��� �1�� 0//������ ��� �1����
����20�1�����0���������.���02�0�/�����0
��3���������.��
�02� ��/���
0����� �	/�	�� ��� 	�3����	� �1�� �9�����
�� ���
2�,��
�	�31������-0������10��0	�05�

�
�

Page 8



"
����� �:��	�/��
(5���
��/�����!�	-0	/�$�0����	��0����
�������������5���
�
�

�
����

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
���	����.���0���-0�6��9�
���.�����,�	���	��������	0��3��
I�1��������3���0	��/�0��F5''�2��0�/������1�/�0��F5@@�2�J5�

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



PROW – Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York (Fishergate, Guildhall and Micklegate Wards) 

Representations made after April report was published (26th March – 6th April 2010) 

 

Date of 
representation Originator Nature of presentation Officer comments Proposed course 

of action 

10 March 2010 Cllr 
D’Agorne 

I’ve marked the paths that I’m aware of in 
Fishergate ward that you didn’t have and 
sent it in internal post to you. If you need 
clarification or more detail please get in 
touch. Andy” 
 

It is acknowledged that there are many 
routes that have not been identified 
and included within Batches 1 –3 
which represent the first stage in the 
production of a Definitive Map for the 
Former County Borough.  The duty 
upon the Council following the 
production of a Definitive Map is to 
keep the map under continuous 
review.  Any public rights that are in 
existence but not recorded, and were 
not investigated at the first stage can 
be identified and investigated as part 
of the continuous review and included 
at a later time. 
 

 

Routes to be 
investigated at 
later stage in the 

process 

  

 

Paths detailed as follows: 

Map 1: FCB204 should extend to adopted 
highway at Fulford Cross. 

As above As above 

  Map 1: To add commencing from FCB204 
proceeding westerly to the Playing Field. As above As above 

A
genda Item

 4
P

age 11



PROW – Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York (Fishergate, Guildhall and Micklegate Wards) 

Representations made after April report was published (26th March – 6th April 2010) 

 

Date of 
representation Originator Nature of presentation Officer comments Proposed course 

of action 

  Map 1: Pursue cycle access along route 
abutting Steiner School and Home York. 

Cycle routes are not recorded on the 
Definitive Map, therefore, they are not 
part of the Definitive Map process.  
Cycle Tracks are recorded on the List 
of Streets.  This is shown as an 
adopted highway maintainable at 
public expense. 

No further action 

  

Map 1: To add various routes on the ‘Mast’ 
field. 
 
 

 

Any public rights that are in existence 
but not recorded, and were not 
investigated at the first stage can be 
identified and investigated as part of 
the continuous review and included at 
a later time. 
 
 

Routes to be 
investigated at 
later stage in the 

process. 

  Map 1: To add routes abutting the wood, 
located to the west of Redman Close. As above. As above 

  Map 1: To add route from FCB 205 to river. As above. As above 

  

 
Map 2: To add cycle track from FCB 200 
proceeding easterly crossing Micklegate 
Stray to enter the University campus. 

Cycle routes are not recorded on the 
Definitive Map, therefore, they are not 
part of the Definitive Map process.  
Cycle Tracks are recorded on the List 
of Streets. 
 

No further action 

  

Map 3: To add path from Lesley Avenue to 
Army housing area at Moorlands Field. 
 
 

 
Part of the route is adopted.  The 
remainder of the route can be 
identified and investigated as part of 
the continuous review and included at 
a later time. 

 

Routes to be 
investigated at 
later stage in the 

process. 
     

P
age 12



PROW – Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York (Fishergate, Guildhall and Micklegate Wards) 

Representations made after April report was published (26th March – 6th April 2010) 

 

Date of 
representation Originator Nature of presentation Officer comments Proposed course 

of action 
Map3: To add cycle track adjacent to 
Heslington Lane to enter University campus 
located at southern end of Micklegate Stray. 

Cycle routes are not recorded on the 
Definitive Map, therefore, they are not 
part of the Definitive Map process.  
Cycle Tracks are recorded on the List 
of Streets. 
 

No further action. 
 
 

  

Map 4: To add path between St Ann’s Court 
and Horsman Avenue. 
 
 
 
 

Any public rights that are in existence 
but not recorded, and were not 
investigated at the first stage can be 
identified and investigated as part of 
the continuous review and included at 
a later time. 
 

Routes to be 
investigated at 
later stage in the 
process. 
 

  
 
Map 4: Add cycle route through road closure 
at end of Regent Street. 

 
Route adopted. 

 
No further action 

  
Map 5: To add back alley to Melbourne 
Street linking Winterscale Street to Cemetery 
Road. 

Any public rights that are in existence 
but not recorded, and were not 
investigated at the first stage can be 
identified and investigated as part of 
the continuous review and included at 
a later time. 
 

Routes to be 
investigated at 
later stage in the 
process. 

  

Map 5: To add snicket from end of Howard 
Street alongside playground to Cemetery 
Road. 
 

As above As above 

  
Map 6: Links from riverside path/cycleway 
via steps to the adjoining Streets: Hartoft, 
Farndale, Alma Terrace, Frances, Ambrose. 

Hartoft Street to the riverside path is 
adopted.  The remaining paths can be 
identified and investigated as part of 
the continuous review and included at 
a later time. 

As above 

P
age 13



PROW – Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York (Fishergate, Guildhall and Micklegate Wards) 

Representations made after April report was published (26th March – 6th April 2010) 

 

Date of 
representation Originator Nature of presentation Officer comments Proposed course 

of action 
 

11th April 2010 Cllr 
D’Agorne 

I am now working on detailed descriptions for 
the missing Fishergate paths. Could you 
please clarify if there is any special status 
related to riparian towpaths ie the River 
Ouse and Foss at Castle Mills Lock 

See comments above in response to 
information shown on Maps 1 to 6.  A 
towpath is legally a part of the 
navigation of a canal or navigable 
river.  It may or may not also be a 
public right of way.  Routes such as 
these will be investigated at a later 
stage in the Definitive Map process. 
 
 

See comments 
above in 
response to 
information 
shown on Maps 
1 to 6. 
 

  

Also note that the access points to New Walk 
from adjoining streets are not shown. Should 
these be designated as part of the path 205 
for simplicity or individually as separate 
paths?”  
 

Comments noted, and the access 
points will be treated as separate 
paths and will be investigated at a later 
stage in the Definitive Map process. 
 

Routes to be 
investigated at 
later stage in the 
process. 

31st March 
2010 

Cllr 
Merrett 

Joanne, Have now seen the papers going to 
City Strategy, and whilst thanking you for 
reporting my detailed comments on the 
footpaths/PROWS in my ward, am 
concerned that they, with one exception, 
they appear to have been completely 
ignored. Can I ask why? What is the point of 
us being asked to make a submission on the 
proposals for our ward? 
 

The routes identified for the first phase 
of the Definitive Map project have 
been subject to formal consultation 
process, we cannot add any further 
routes at this stage. 
 
 
 
   

Routes to be 
investigated at 
later stage in the 
process. 

  

Additionally having looked at the plans and 
your proposals, I would like to flag a couple 
of extra thoughts that have come to me. 
1. Footpath/PROW between Scarcroft Hill 
and Mill Mount. This path is extensively used 

The route has been adopted, see 
Paragraph 8 for further details. No further action 

P
age 14



PROW – Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York (Fishergate, Guildhall and Micklegate Wards) 

Representations made after April report was published (26th March – 6th April 2010) 

 

Date of 
representation Originator Nature of presentation Officer comments Proposed course 

of action 
by children, parents and visitors going to and 
from All Saint's Upper School and was 
previously designated as part of the Safe 
Route between the Upper and Lower 
schools. It has certainly been used by me for 
over twenty years.  
 

  

Besides mentioning the Millennium cycle / 
walking path down the side of the west end 
of Knavesmire road and across the Little 
Knavesmire to Albemarle Road, I should also 
have mentioned the Millennium Bridge and 
its approach paths as additionally 
deliberately provided paths / rights of way, 
albeit not having been there the twenty 
years. 

The Highways Act 1980, section 31(9) 
allows for those routes that do not 
have a minimum period of 20 years 
use but have been used ‘as of right 
(without force, without secrecy and 
without permission)’, to give rise to the 
presumption of dedication. 
 

 
Routes to be 
investigated at 
later stage in the 
process. 

  

 
 
The ward map does not reflect the corrected 
routing of footpath 31 that I identified to you. 

The Ward Map was used purely to 
provide an approximate location of the 
routes proposed.  The individual map 
included within the report provides the 
detail, and this shows the path 
extended to emerge onto Tadcaster 
Road opposite St George’s Place.  It is 
acknowledged that there appears a 
number of paths crossing this area 
and further investigations of these 
paths in this locale will be researched 
at a later stage. 
 

Amend Order 
map. 

  
Footpath 6. The marked route misses the 
last few yards at the north end taking the 
route out onto Custance Walk. 

The path exits onto an adopted route. No further action 

P
age 15



PROW – Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York (Fishergate, Guildhall and Micklegate Wards) 

Representations made after April report was published (26th March – 6th April 2010) 

 

Date of 
representation Originator Nature of presentation Officer comments Proposed course 

of action 
 

  

Footpaths 16-18 over Scarcroft Allotments. 
Why are you recommending no action. 
Theses have certainly been in existence for 
many decades without let or hindrance. They 
were discussed and agreed with the then 
ward Councillors when the last effort was 
made eight or so years back to identify the 
basic PROW network in the ward, and when 
we put in secondary gates within the 
allotments to reduce damage within the 
allotments. 
 

The evidence on file would suggest 
that these paths may prove to be 
contentious.  Those routes that are 
potentially contentious have been 
removed from this the first stage of the 
Definitive Map process.  

Routes to be 
investigated at 
later stage in the 
process 

  

Footpath 23. Again, why no action, it's stiled 
and I'm sure this one actually used to be 
waymarked, although I’ve checked on 
Saturday and there's only battered nails on 
the post now. 
 

 
It is the opinion of the consultant that 
at this stage there is insufficient 
evidence to reasonably alleged that 
public rights exist.   
 

As above 

  

Footpath 24. I think your reason for no action 
is in error. I think the reference to closed 
gates referred to the access of the path into 
the back of the law college, not to being 
across the path itself. From recollection the 
path was built by Sustrans circa the late 
1980s using City Council funding and there 
have never been any barriers across it since 
that time. 
 

Comments noted.  However, the 
decision is not to include the route at 
this time and further investigations will 
be carried out at a later stage of the 
Definitive Map process. 

Routes to be 
investigated at 
later stage in the 
process 

  
Footpaths 27-9. Again why no action? I recall 
exploring these paths when the Sustrans 
route first opened, so again they've been in 

It is the opinion of the consultant that 
at this stage there is insufficient 
evidence to reasonably alleged that 

Routes to be 
investigated at 
later stage in the 

P
age 16



PROW – Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York (Fishergate, Guildhall and Micklegate Wards) 

Representations made after April report was published (26th March – 6th April 2010) 

 

Date of 
representation Originator Nature of presentation Officer comments Proposed course 

of action 
existence over twenty years, and probably a 
lot more. 
 

public rights exist.   
 

process 

  

Footpath 30. This is another long established 
route - I remember discussing additionally 
making it part of the original cycle network 
circa 1988, so again it's certainly been in 
existence over twenty years. 
 
 

As above. 

Routes to be 
investigated at 
later stage in the 
process 
 

28 March 2010 Ramblers 

There are a few instances where the 
Location Maps differ from the individual 
proposed DMMO maps. 
 

The location maps are purely to give a 
general indication of where routes are 
located.  The individual maps form the 
basis of the Order maps. 

No further action 

  

Walmgate Stray, Fishergate – Paths 201, 
202 & 203 on the Location Plan differ from 
those on pages 84, 86 & 88, but no action is 
proposed to be taken at this time. 
 

 
There is occasionally discrepancy 
between the information held on paper 
format and the information held on 
CAMS database.  CAMS is the most 
up to date, therefore this is the 
alignment that has been followed. 

No further action 
 

  

Butcher Terrace, Micklegate – Path 21 on 
the Location Plan differs from that on page 
155, as already pointed out by David Merrett.  
We assume the Location Plan is incorrect. 

Noted. 

The individual 
maps form the 
basis of the 
Order 

  

Foss Navigation Towpaths, Guildhall – 
Pleased to see you are going ahead with 
207, as the RA had to go to Magistrates 
Court many years ago to prove that it was a 
PROW and Walkers had to provide a cover 
under their new crane, but we can not see 
any reference to the link to Navigation Road, 

 
Noted. 

Routes to be 
investigated at 
later stage in the 
process 

P
age 17



PROW – Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York (Fishergate, Guildhall and Micklegate Wards) 

Representations made after April report was published (26th March – 6th April 2010) 

 

Date of 
representation Originator Nature of presentation Officer comments Proposed course 

of action 
which predates the path alongside the 
warehouse.  We are  sorry you have not felt 
able to include 208 at the present time, but 
wish to point out that the description of the 
path on p.104 starts at the steps nearer to 
Monk Bridge se SE 6087 5256 than your 
map on p.105. 

  

Micklegate Stray, Micklegate – Originally 
Robin Carr was of the opinion that there 
were no PROW over the Strays, as people 
had open access to them, but subsequently 
changed his opinion.  We believe there are 
other routes over the Stray, as well as those 
listed by the Ward Councillors.  One in 
particular, not in your present proposals, is 
the N-S route shown on the OS maps, which 
was admitted to by the Council when the 
Southern By-pass was built.  This resulted in 
the steps being provided at GR SE 5965 
4845, so the route could be followed 
alongside the by pass bridge and past the 
old trees on what was a field boundary at the 
time.  The Racecourse subsequently 
changed its ‘straight’ and since then the 
farmer has maintained the route from the 
steps a short way across his field and 
alongside the shorter straight track to meet 
Path 26 at GR SE 5968 486. 
 

 
It is acknowledged that there are many 
routes that have not been identified for 
investigation.  This is the first phase 
and there is a lot more work yet to 
come. 
 

Routes to be 
investigated at 
later stage in the 
process 

  
We do not understand why you are taking no 
action at present re Path 24, the well used 
shared use cycle route, as the reference to 

 
It is the opinion of the consultant that 
at this stage there is insufficient 

Routes to be 
investigated at 
later stage in the 

P
age 18



PROW – Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York (Fishergate, Guildhall and Micklegate Wards) 

Representations made after April report was published (26th March – 6th April 2010) 

 

Date of 
representation Originator Nature of presentation Officer comments Proposed course 

of action 
the existence of regularly locked gates 
through allotments on your file note has no 
relevance whatsoever to public use of the 
adjacent path. 
 

evidence to reasonably alleged that 
public rights exist.   
 

process 

  
We also query why no action is being taken 
at the present time re Path 30. 
 

As above As above. 

  

There are at least 2 or 3 paths where the 
Grid References for one of the ends of the 
paths differ from the length shown on the 
related maps. Which we would expect to be 
resolved before any Orders are made.  An 
example is Path 5 (Bishopthorpe Road end). 
 

Comments noted. Orders will be 
rechecked. 

  

The Plan for Path 31 shows a link to part 
way along to Tadcaster road, which is not 
recorded in the description, but not a link to 
Tyburn. 

The OS base map shows a physical 
feature at this location.  At a larger 
scale the base map indicates two 
parallel solid lines.  However at the 
scale of the individual map included 
within the report the feature is 
distorted to give the impression of a 
dashed line representing a possible 
path. 

No further action 

  

On Path 25, we note there are gates at both 
ends, which you do not record, with just 
about enough space for a hand-bike (trike) to 
get through.  Perhaps the gates are 
unauthorised? 
 

Noted. 
Further 
investigation 
required. 

  Whilst your Location Maps are supposed to 
be helpful, they do not appear to include all Comments noted. Routes to be 

investigated at 

P
age 19



PROW – Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York (Fishergate, Guildhall and Micklegate Wards) 

Representations made after April report was published (26th March – 6th April 2010) 

 

Date of 
representation Originator Nature of presentation Officer comments Proposed course 

of action 
the routes on the the Council's List Of 
Streets.  They appear to include most (but 
not all) of those routes that were admitted to 
be PROW, when considering Gating Orders, 
but several others seem to be missing.  I 
suppose it is an ongoing exercise, with Cllrs. 
comments suggesting some of the possible 
omissions.  My printer does not pick out 
your Yellow colour very well. 
 

later stage in the 
process 

  

I note Cllr. Merrett's reference to Rougier 
Street was in fact the road between the 2 
Railway Offices.  Although shown in Red, 
you have not included these paths in this 
proposal.  These may be deemed 
'permissive', in view of the HA Notices on 
display. 

 

It is acknowledged that these routes 
are permissive. No further action. 

  

Re para. 36 of your report, we note HMS are 
seeking additional funding, but we do not 
recall them seeking additional funding for 
those alleys they accepted as PROW for 
Alleygating purposes - I don't believe they 
always conducted annual surveys on them, 
as some were in a pretty poor state of 
maintenance. 
 

Noted. 
Additional 
funding to be 
identified. 

6 April 2010  

Fishergate : 
201/202/203 - Whilst NFA at this time, the 
Location Plan shows their historic routes, 
prior to the Allotments, whereas your 

There is occasionally discrepancy 
between information held on paper 
format and the information held on 
CAMS database.  CAMS is the most 

No further action 

P
age 20



PROW – Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York (Fishergate, Guildhall and Micklegate Wards) 

Representations made after April report was published (26th March – 6th April 2010) 

 

Date of 
representation Originator Nature of presentation Officer comments Proposed course 

of action 
descriptions and Plans show their current 
routes. 
 

up to date, therefore this is the 
alignment that has been followed 

  

206 - Start GR on Plan SE 6104 5105, not ... 
5106.  Should your Structure GR refer to 
each end?  
 

Revise Statement as required. 

 
All schedules to 
be rechecked. 
 
 

P
age 21



PROW – Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York (Fishergate, Guildhall and Micklegate Wards) 

Representations made after April report was published (26th March – 6th April 2010) 

 

Date of 
representation Originator Nature of presentation Officer comments Proposed course 

of action 

  

  
211 - Stone archway GR given is that of the 
arch under Scarborough Railway Bridge.  
The rest of the Description & Plan finishes at 
Marygate, where there is a stone archway 
nearby. 

Noted. Route to be 
checked on site. 

6 April 2010  
Micklegate: 
3 - Plan suggests end GR is SE 6017 5143. 
 

Noted. Route to be 
checked on site. 

  

4 - We assume only part of the footway on 
Bishopthorpe Road forms part of the public 
highway, the rest being shop frontages, 
hence your Plan shows the FP running over 
the frontage to GR SE 6017 5105. 
 

Route claimed links St Benedict 
(adopted) to Bishopthorpe Road 
(adopted). 

No further action. 

  

5 - We are not sure where this footpath goes 
in view of the various items of furniture in the 
area, but note your Start GR SE 6013(or 4?) 
5096 is on Bishopthorpe Road whereas your 
Plan shows the start as GR SE 6011 5097.  

Noted. Amend map. 

  

10 - Start on Plan is at GR 5967 5099, rather 
than SE 5967 5100, but of little 
significance.  We presume the End point is 
the Footway of Nunthorpe Road, rather than 
the Carriageway, but again of little 
significance. 

Start of the route commences at 
adopted highway at Grid Reference 
given and ends at its junction with 
adopted highway. 

No further action. 

  12 - Both the GRs shown do not relate to the 
Plan. Noted.   Amend GRs 

  

21 - The Location Plan shows this starting 
from under the Millennium Bridge, rather 
than the end of Terry Avenue as shown 
correctly on your Description and Plan. 

Location plan is merely indicative.  

The individual 
maps form the 
basis of the 
Order 

P
age 22



PROW – Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York (Fishergate, Guildhall and Micklegate Wards) 

Representations made after April report was published (26th March – 6th April 2010) 

 

Date of 
representation Originator Nature of presentation Officer comments Proposed course 

of action 

  24 - The Start GR is a mix of 'SE' & '44' - 
should be SE 5998 4964. Noted. Amend GRs 

  

26 - The End GR refers to where the Lane 
meets the Vehicle gate and barrier, adjacent 
to the Carriageway, whereas the Plan shows 
the End at the edge of the Highway land at 
GR SE 5880 4828.  Near this latter point 
there is access both up the embankment for 
pedestrians and a shared use cycle route 
under it, both within the Highway land. 

Noted. 

Amend plan as 
required.  Further 
investigation 
required. 

  

30 - Whilst NFA at this time, Description 
starts at GR SE 5903 4950, whereas Plan 
starts around 40m further W at GR SE 5899 
4950. 

Amend as required. Site visit required 
at later stage. 

  
 31 - There are multiple access points along 
Tadcaster Road that provide links onto this 
path, particularly at Tyburn 

Noted. Investigate at 
later stage. 

 
AN/GE 
26 April 2010 
L:\DOCUMENT\WORDDOC\CORRES\DEV & TRAN\PROW table-1.doc 

P
age 23



P
age 24

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34

This page is intentionally left blank



`  

  
 

   

 
Decision Session 
Executive Member for City Strategy 

11 May 2010 

 
Report of the Director of City Strategy 
  
Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981,   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York 
(Clifton, Heworth, Holgate and Hull Road Wards) 
 

 Summary 

1.  This report seeks to assist the Executive Member in determining whether or not 
to make a number of Definitive Map Modification Orders to record public rights 
of way on the Definitive Map for the former County Borough of York within 
Clifton Ward (Annex 1), Heworth Ward (Annex 2), Holgate Ward (Annex 3) and 
Hull Road Ward (Annex 4).   This is a continuation of the work so far carried out 
to prepare a Definitive Map for the former County Borough of York (a statutory 
requirement).   

  
 Recommendation 
 
2.   It is recommended that the Executive Member approves Option 1, which is 

inclusive of the following: 
 

i) Authorise the Head of Civic, Democratic and Legal Services to make 
and advertise the required Definitive Map Modification Orders to add 
all those paths to the Definitive Map, where it is recommended, 
based on the evidence available, to make an Order (see bottom of 
page of each Schedule (Annexes 1-4) for recommended action).   

ii) If no objections are received, or any objections received are 
subsequently withdrawn, the Orders referred to in i) above be 
confirmed; or 

iii) If objections are received, and not withdrawn, the Orders, or relevant 
parts thereof, be referred to the Secretary of State for determination. 

  
 Reason 

3.  As surveying authority for the area, the City of York Council has a statutory duty 
(Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, section 55(3)), to produce a Definitive Map 
and Statement for the former County Borough of York; and in doing so is 
obliged to make Definitive Map Modification Orders to register the existence of 
all public rights of way in that area. 

 

Agenda Item 5Page 35



 Background 

4. Part IV of the National Parks and Access to the Countryside Act 1949 (NPACA 
49) required every County Council to carry out a survey of ‘all lands in their 
area over which a right of way is alleged to exist’ and to produce a Definitive 
Map and Statement (hereafter referred to as the Definitive Map).  The survey 
was not compulsory in every local authority in England and Wales, with some 
densely populated areas being excluded. The London Boroughs, County 
Boroughs (such as York) and ]other large urban conurbations (subject to 
application) were excluded from the compulsory survey under the NPACA 49. 
As a result of the provisions of the NPACA 49 the former County Borough of 
York was excluded and no Definitive Map produced. 

 
5. The Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 removed the majority of the exclusion 

provisions provided by the 1949 Act and replaced them by introducing a 
statutory duty to produce Definitive Maps for the previously excluded areas. 
This is achieved by first producing a blank map, which when modified, by 
making a Definitive Map Modification Order becomes the Definitive Map for the 
area. The Definitive Map is then further compiled by making additional 
Definitive Map Modification Orders. 

 
6. In order to achieve this, each of the Ward areas has been surveyed to identify 

potential routes for inclusion on the Definitive Map, followed by the investigation 
and consultation described below. 

 
 Identification of Routes for Inclusion 
7. Initially a desk based mapping survey was undertaken in order to identify all 

routes within the area that had the physical characteristics of a public right of 
way (i.e. they physically existed as a through route between two other 
highways).  

 
8. The results of this survey were then compared against the Council’s List of 

Streets Maintainable at Public Expense (List of Streets), which is held pursuant 
to Section 36 of the Highways Act 1980.  Those routes that were recorded on 
the List of Streets as being publicly maintainable were temporarily removed 
from the survey with a view to them being included in a second phase of 
Definitive Map Modification Orders at a later date.  The reason for this being 
that as these temporarily excluded routes are already shown on one set of 
highway records (ie the List of Streets), their recording on the Definitive Map 
could take a slightly lower priority than those routes not recorded at all.  

 
9. Those routes remaining within the survey, of which there are 204 

(approximately 45.5 km) in total, form the basis of the first phase of proposed 
Definitive Map Modification Orders which, due to the number of paths involved, 
are being administered in three batches (see table below).  

 
10. Batch 1 (Acomb, Dringhouses and Woodthorpe, and Westfield) was considered 

at the Executive Member Decision Session on 2nd March 2010 and approval 
was given to make and advertise Definitive Map Modification Orders to record  
87 paths on the Definitive Map.  The Definitive Map Modification Orders for 
these 87 paths have been made and advertised.  The period of advertisement 

Page 36



ie the statutory consultation period, commenced on the 31st March and expires 
on the 19th May 2010. 

 
11. Batch 2 (Fishergate, Guildhall and Micklegate Wards) was considered at the 

Executive Member Decision Session on 6th April 2010, but deferred to the 
EMDS meeting on the 11th May, to enable Officers to respond to the individual 
comments received prior and post advertisement of the report. 

 
12. This report considers the available evidence for the third batch of paths ie those 

so far identified in the Clifton, Heworth, Holgate and Hull Road Wards. 
 
 

Batch  Wards Included Number of 
paths 

Length of 
paths 
(approx) 

1 Acomb,  Dringhouses and Woodthorpe,  
Westfield 

       88   14 km 
 

2 Fishergate (Annex 1), Guildhall (Annex 
2) and Micklegate (Annex 3) 

       52   14.5km 

3 Clifton, Heworth, Holgate and Hull 
Road 

       59    11.5 km 

 
13. Details of those routes that are included in this third batch (Clifton, Heworth, 

Holgate and Hull Road Wards) are included in the attached Schedules at 
Annexes 1 - 4 of this report. 

 
14. Eventually, as is required by law, all those public rights of way that are recorded 

on the List of Streets will be added to the Definitive Map, and all those routes 
recorded on the Definitive Map that are found to be highways maintainable at 
the public expense ie in existence prior to the 1959 Highways Act, will be added 
to the List of Streets.   

 
Evidence 

15. Section 53(3)(c)(i) of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 places a duty upon 
the Authority to promote a Definitive Map Modification Order upon ‘the 
discovery by the authority of evidence which shows that a right of way which is 
not shown in the map and statement subsists or is reasonably alleged to 
subsist’. 

 
16. Each of the routes concerned has been surveyed (survey 2000/01 and 2006), 

use observed and photographed. In addition a search of old maps etc has been 
undertaken to ascertain approximately how long each route has physically 
existed. Consultations also invited the submission of user evidence, although 
little was forthcoming.  The evidence in respect of each individual path is 
summarised in the individual schedules located in the Annexes.  At the bottom 
of each schedule there is a recommendation, based on the evidence produced, 
on whether or not to proceed with a definitive map modification order. 

 
17. By and large the paths included in this report are set out, and have the general 

appearance of public rights of way; they are also generally in use on a daily 
basis by members of the public, and have been for a number of years. They are 

Page 37



generally accepted by the public as being public rights of way although in some 
cases there is a lack of evidence to progress a definitive map modification order 
at this stage.  

 
18. Where there is prima facie evidence of the existence of a public right of way, 

and no evidence to the contrary, the “reasonably alleged” test set out above will 
be satisfied.  A summary of the number of paths under consideration, and those 
recommended for further action is set out below: 

 
 

 
Ward 

 
No of Paths 
under 
consideration 

 
No. of paths 
recommended 
for DMMOs 

No. of paths 
where no further 
action is 
recommended at 
this time 

Clifton 19 14 5 
Heworth 19 11 8 
Holgate 10 9 1 
Hull Road 11 8 3 

 
 

 Consultation 
 
19. In an effort to reduce the potential for disputes a significant amount of 

consultation has been undertaken. This has included writing to all adjacent 
property holders and posting maps and notices on site. There has only been a 
minimal response to the consultations, principally because the routes in 
question are obviously public rights of way (paths maintained by the Council).  

 
20. Whilst substantial consultations have been undertaken, there is no guarantee 

that all landowners have been identified. In recognition of this, special 
dispensation from serving notices direct on landowners is being sought from 
the Secretary of State.  

 
21. The aim, within this part of the project is to record as many undisputed public 

rights of way on the Definitive Map as possible. So as not to delay progress, 
any disputed paths, or contentious issues, have been removed from the project 
and will be dealt with separately.  

 
Consultation 
 

22. Ward Members and Group Spokesperson(s) have been consulted.  Their 
comments, verbatim, are: 

 
 Ward Councillors 
 
23. Clifton  

 
Cllr Helen Douglas – No comments received. 
 
Cllr Ken King – No comments received. 

Page 38



 
Cllr David Scott – No comments received. 

 
24. Heworth  

 
Cllr Barbara Boyce – No comments received. 
 
Cllr Tina Funnell – No comments received. 
 
Cllr Ruth Potter – Comments received 31st March 2010, “The two paths near 
Hempland are technically in Heworth Without.  I think this should have gone to 
Cllr Ayre?” 

 
25. Holgate 
 

Cllr James Alexander – No comments received. 
 
Cllr Denise Bowgett – No comments received. 
 
Cllr Sonja Crisp – No comments received. 
 

26. Hull Road 
 
Cllr Richard Cregan – No comments received. 
 
Cllr Roger Pierce – Comments received 30th March 2010, “I’ve no objections to 
the proposed modifications in Hull Road.  However, I am concerned that the 
entrances to many of the ginnels are effectively obstructed by excessive, 
council-provided barriers which do constrain access by larger pushchairs and 
people pushing their bicycles.  I have spoken to our cycling team without 
outcome”. 
 

27.   Group Spoke(s)person 
 Cllr Steve Galloway – No comments received. 
 

Cllr R Potter – See above. 
 
Cllr I Gillies – No comments received. 
 
Cllr A D’Argone –No comments received. 
 

28. Officer’s Comments 
 

The boundary for the Former County Borough of York was revised in 2001 
resulting in two areas previously included within Heworth Ward being reasigned 
to Heworth Without Ward.  The two areas concerned are located in the vicinity 
of Hempland Primary School and Stockton Lane.  The paths identified in both 
the areas will not now be included within the Former County Borough project 
but will remain on file to be investigated at a later date. 
 

Page 39



Public Rights of Way are an asset that should be accessible to all people.  
Where it is identified that barriers restrict access the reasoning for the barrier 
will be investigated, and where possible, subject to consultation, existing 
legislation, funding and human resources, improvements to the point of access 
will be sought. 
 
It is acknowledged that there are many routes that have not been identified and 
included within Batches 1 –3 which represent the first stage in the production of 
a Definitive Map for the Former County Borough.  The duty upon the Council 
following the production of a Definitive Map is to keep the map under 
continuous review.  Any public rights that are in existence but not recorded, and 
were not investigated at the first stage can be identified and investigated as 
part of the continuous review and included at a later time. 
 

 Options 

29 Two options are available to the Executive Member: 
 

30. Option 1: Make the necessary DMMOs to add those paths to the Definitive Map 
that are recommended in the Schedules.  This option is recommended; or 

31. Option 2:  Do not make the DMMOs to add the paths to the Definitive Map. 
 
 Analysis 
 
32. Making the Orders as recommended (Option 1) represents compliance with the 

Authority’s statutory duty (Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, section 55(3) to 
produce a Definitive Map for the area.  Once the Orders are confirmed the 
paths will be added to the Definitive Map which will safeguard the publics’ use 
of them. 

 
33. Failure to make the required Orders is contrary to the Authority’s statutory 

duties in this respect.  Additionally, if the Authority decides not to make the 
Orders the paths concerned will not enjoy the same level of protection as those 
paths that are recorded on the Definitive Map and Statement.   

 
 Corporate Priorities 
 
34. A public right of way is sustainable, car free and provides access to health and 

recreation opportunities thus contributing to the priorities of making York a 
Sustainable and a Healthy City.  If it is determined that rights of way subsist or 
is reasonably alleged to subsist and the Orders made to add the paths to the 
definitive map the benefits of doing so would link into the Council’s Corporate 
priorities.   

 
Implications 

 Financial 
35. The cost of advertising the making of the required Definitive Map Modification 

Orders will be approximately £12,000.  If no objections are received then the 
Orders will require to be confirmed, again at a cost of approximately £12,000.  
The funding of this batch and batch 3 of the project will be met from existing 

Page 40



PROW budgets as and when resources allow. The current annual PROW 
budget for Definitive Map work is £20,000.  There is a statutory duty to keep the 
definitive map under continuous review, therefore in light of the current and 
future workload associated with definitive map work it will be necessary to 
formulate and pursue a growth bid for funding. 

 
36. City of York Council as the highway authority has an existing and significant 

responsibility to maintain all publicly maintainable highways whether shown on 
its records such as the List of Streets and the Definitive Map, or not.  Therefore 
the recording of the paths identified in the schedules (Annex 1-4) on the 
Definitive Map will not theoretically result in any increase in the maintenance 
liability for the Council.  The process of recording the rights of the public and 
producing a Definitive Map provides the authority with an increased knowledge 
and a continuing accurate record of paths that are publicly maintainable.  The 
funding that will be required to provide continued maintenance of the paths 
identified is not currently reflected in any of the council’s highway maintenance 
budgets.   

 
37. The recording of 40 km (ie the total length of batches 1, 2 and 3) of path to the 

Definitive Map, for this first phase in the production of a Definitive Map for the 
former County Borough, will mean that there will be increased pressure put 
upon the existing PROW Maintenance and Highway Maintenance Services 
budgets.  This is the first stage of the process and the subsequent stages to 
come will involve an investigation of the information held on the List of Streets 
(routes that are publicly maintainable); a thorough investigation of any 
contenscious routes identified and excluded in the first phase (ie batches 1, 2 
and 3) and the investigation of Definitive Map Modifications Order applications 
that have been received by the Council.  The potential outcome of the statutory 
requirement to produce a Definitive Map could significantly increase the total 
recorded length of public rights of way within the City of York boundary. 

 
38. The paths under consideration within this report have either natural, crushed- 

stone (or similar), or hard surfaces (eg tarmac, rosemary sets).  In accordance 
with a decision made by Members in September 2004 (where it was 
determined that those paths recorded on the Definitive Map, but which lie within 
the more urban areas of York, be maintained out of the Highways Maintenance 
Services budget), it is proposed that those paths that currently have a hard 
surface be maintained by Highways Maintenance Services and those that have 
natural or crushed stone surface be maintained by PROW.   

 
39. Highway Maintenance Services has provided the following comments, ‘The 

inclusion of these footways and the resultant maintenance liability on the 
metalled surfaces where that exists will introduce further demands on our 
maintenance budget. On this basis we recommend that Members allocate 
increased funds to cover this. Also we would be faced with the annual 
inspections of these areas where they are metalled. Again this is going to 
involve further demands on existing resources.’  

 
 Human Resources  
40. The addition of a further 40 km of path to the Definitive Map will increase the 

current work-load of both PROW and Highway Maintenance Services as all 

Page 41



those paths added to the Definitive Map and which are maintainable at the 
public expense will be required to be included within Highway Maintenance 
Services’ annual inspection of highways and also the PROW Team’s routine 
maintenance checks.   

 
 Equalities  
41. There are no equality issues 
 
 Legal  
42. Section 53(3)(c)(i) of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 places a duty upon 

the Authority to promote a Definitive Map Modification Order upon the discovery 
of evidence that a public right of way subsists or is reasonably alleged to 
subsist. 

 
43. Section 55 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 places a statutory duty on 

the Authority to produce a Definitive Map for the former County Borough of 
York.  This is not a discretionary matter. 

 
44. Making the proposed Orders contributes, in part, towards the Authority meeting 

these statutory requirements. 
 
 Crime and Disorder  
45. In view of the fact that Definitive Map Modification Orders only seek to register 

public rights of way that already exist, and do not create any new rights, there 
are no crime and disorder issues. The registration of routes may however assist 
in identifying “Relevant Highways” for the purposes of the Gating Order 
legislation. 

 
 Information Technology  
46. There are no information technology issues.  
 
 Property  
47. Although some of the paths under consideration in this report run over council 

owned land, there are no property issues as actual ownership of land will not 
change.   

 
 Other   
48. There are no other known issues for consideration. 
 
 Risk Management 

49. In compliance with the Council’s Risk Management Strategy, there is a low 
financial risk identified which is linked to the fact that the funding, that will be 
required to provide continued maintenance of the paths identified, is not 
currently reflected in any of the council’s highway maintenance budgets.  This 
will inevitably put pressure on the existing PROW maintenance budget and 
Highways Maintenance Service budget.   

50. So far Definitive Map Modification Orders have been made and advertised to 
add 87 paths to the Definitive Map (Batch 1).  The determination of Batches 1, 
2 and 3, ie the first phase of a programme of work to produce a Definitive Map 

Page 42



for the Former County Borough will necessitate a review of the budget situation 
to evaluate the costs incurred so far and to determine a future strategy to fund 
the continued process of compiling a Definitive Map for the former County 
Borough and then to keep it up to date. 

Contact Details 

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 
 
Joanne Coote 
Definitive Map Officer 
Network management 
City Development & Transport 
Tel No. 01904 551442 

 
Richard Wood 
Assistant Director 
City Development & Transport 
Report 
Approved 

ü Date 26 April 2010 

 
 
Wards Affected:   
Clifton, Heworth, Holgate and Hull Road Wards 
 

All  
 

 
For further information please contact the author of the report. 
 
 
Background Papers: 
Evidence evaluated and background analysis which forms the basis of the report 
prepared by consultant: Robin Carr Associates, 2 Friarage Avenue, Northallerton, 
North Yorkshire. 
 
Annexes: 
Annex 1 - Clifton Ward location plan, path schedules and path plans 
Annex 2 – Heworth Ward location plan, path schedules and path plans 
Annex 3 – Holgate Ward location plan, path schedules and path plans 
Annex 4 – Hull Road Ward location plan, path schedules and path plans 
Annex 5  - Decision Making Guidance for Definitive Map Modification Orders 

Page 43



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Annex 1 

 
 
 
 
Public Rights of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981, 
Preparation of Definitive Map for Former County Borough  
 
Clifton Ward 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Index 
 
Location Plan 
 
Schedules & Path Plans 
Path Nos 136-154 
   
 
 
Summary of Recommendations 
 
DMMO Recommended Path Nos 
136, 137, 139, 140, 141, 142, 143, 144, 145, 146, 147, 148, 150, 152,   
 
No Further Action At this Time Recommended Path Nos 
138, 149, 151, 153, 154    

Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



North
Lodge

SOUTHOLM
E D

RIV
E

112

So
ut

h
C

ot
ta

ge
s

6

1

SHIPTON
ROAD

102

92

37
39

40
38

Pump House

BLUE BECK DRIVE

Verandah
Cottages

ROSECROFT WAY

FYLINGDALE AVENUE

KERRSIDE

2

8

14

10

16 22
24 30

1

5

7

11

19

21

25

T he Dorm ouse (PH)

11a 15

Hotel

38

34
32

24

15

19

21

27

25

33

2

4

7
3

1

RUSSEL
DRIVE

10

11a

11

5

26

8

14

31

9

1
2

5

10
8

7

4

3

1

Park
House

House
Maple

F R
A

Z
E

R
C

O
U

R
T

Mulberry Court

El Sub Sta

18

Ashtree House

1
3

El Sub Sta

Zenith House

Eboracum

House

Equinox

House

CLIFTON PARK AVENUE

46

48

16

2

21

7

MALTON WAY

12 8

FLA
V

IA
N

G
R

O
V

E

FAIRWAY

2
4

1

5

1

29
31

33

3

SHIPTON
ROAD

60

53

43

48

46

34

1a

Clif
to

n
W

ith
ou

t

Ju
ni

or
Sc

ho
ol

RAW
C

LI
FF

E
D

RIV
E

2

74

72

73

63

68

66

3

1

4

RAW
CLIFFE

LANE

62

60

64

13

25
39

40

28

14

2

8

RAW
CLIF

FE
AV

ENUE

80

1

82

88

6

11

East Cotta
ges

1

1

2

82

70

80

LAW
NSWOOD

DRIV
E

30

17

16

2

11

23

18

34

1

31
MELT

O
N

AVENUE

THE
CLOSE

30

48

5

11

SOUTHOLM
E

DRIV
E

2

14

3 6

35

33

31

3

26

19

BYRON DRIV
E

Library

24

14

23

11

1

KEATS CLOSE

100

11

31

90

4
2

15

16

30

33

REIG
HTON

AVENUE

15

27

39

36

34

M
ELTO

N
DRIVE

49

47

1

45

4

2

30a

44

32

36

Sta
Ppg

Ppg Sta

11a
15

BROUGHAM
CLOSE

LANDAU CLOSE

SHOTEL CLOSE

SU
R

RE
Y

W
AY

1

5

11 16

14

8

2

1

5

7

9

4

2

6

12

2

4

6

3

7

1a

8

15

17

1

3

2

8

73
a

7

9

1

4

8

6

12

2

3

73
b

12

10

14

20

CLIFTON PARK AVENUE

2

R
A

W
CLIF FE

LAN
E

14

FAIRWAY

24

34

56 12
1

44

11
1

71

57
45

1 28

140

154

S
T

P
H

I L
I P

'S
G

R
O

V
E

3 4
44

2

14 26

36

48

46

P
E

T
E

R
H

IL L
D

R
IV

E

PETER HILL DRIVE

1

1

Clifton Without

1

19

9
25 27

1 3
3

2

12

1

11
9

35
33

1
56

1
62

7

1

11

2156

14

24

34

BURDYKE AVENUE

55
53

3

10

1

10

INGS WAY

LINDEN GROVE

5

11

13

15

23

El
Sub
Sta

Ca
no

n
Le

e
Sch

oo
l

2

14

4

2 SAVILLE GROVE 28

The Clifton

(PH)

W
A

T
E

R
LA

N
E

79
77

1

23

2

1 0

18

9

13

25

RAW
CLIF

FE
DRIV

E

G
REEN

CLO
SE

45

1

2

1

6

18

35

37

16
3

17
3

18
3

13

19 40

32

11

Moorend

33

52

66

78

53

65

M
ELT

ON
AVENUE

THE GARLANDS

55

30

29

16

1

11

26

20

10

O
RIEL

GRO
VE

43

44

63

18
5

18
7

31
32

49

2

County Junior School

E
LST

O
N

C
L O

S
E

11
15

23

18

8

2

10

47

21

Pavilion

57-59

51

49

41-43

95

71

61
-6

3

89-93

73
-7

7

125

117-119

131-133

2

BRAILSFORD
CRESCENT

33

12

14

115

107-109

BRA
IL

SFO
RD

CRESC
ENT

83

27

21

25

11

29

15

LlLBOURNE DRlVE

1

7

9-13

19

27-31

21

13

RAINSBOROUGH W
AY

Rainsborough House

11

1

2

1 2

1 to 6

103-105

M
A

R
T

E
N

C
L O

S
E

1
5

24

19

7

36

44

54

16

34

24

2

14

26

29

12

LOCKYER
CLOSE

52

54

58

44

16

10

9

7

3

1

15

13

17

22

26

28

36

38

17

19
27

72
71

55

43
41

18

31 to 41

The Acorns

10

13

Bur Dike

LITTLE AVENUE

SU
T

TO
N

W
A

Y

El Sub Sta

Church

Hall

Church of
St Joseph

Presbytery

BURTON
GREEN

BURTON
GREEN

I NGRAM
AVENUE

ASHTO
N

AVENUE

W
AVENEY

GROVE

BURRILL AVENUE

CRICHTON
AVENUE

CROMBIE
AVENUE

W
IL

B
ER

FO
R

C E
AV

EN
UE

BE
D

E
A

VE
N

U
E

EV
ELY

N
CR

ESC
EN

T

CR
O

M
BI

E
AV

EN
U

E

KI
N

G
SW

AY
NO

R
TH

KI
N

G
SW

AY
N

O
RT

H

SP
ALD

IN
G

AV
E

NU
E

TCB

PETER
DRIVE

45

55

65

75

6458

50

25

33
39

77 79

91

10
3

72
70

60

50

38

91
89

107105

127
125

143
141 145

155

167

152

140

128

116

104

94

82

70

71

83

95

10
7

11
7

12
9

13
9

14
1

88

86

74

9
13

15 17

23 25

20

12

2

1

6

12

1

13

25

35

45

57

69

42

32

22

10

2

1

5

10

11
12

1

13

23

35

15

36

28

20

10

1

11

19

29

40

28

14

2

8

2

68

58

48

36

26

14

5

2

10

1

11
11a

15

18

12

2

9

21

31

84

74

64

52

40

89

95
97

10
9

11
9

129

140

146

141

33

39

39
a

41

49

154b154a

154

148

132

120

110

98

88

19

14

11

HILL

BURDYKE AVENUE

138

Marjorie Waite Court

La
dy

M
i ll

G
ar

th

Community

Centre

1t
o3

0

18to43

7

TAMWORTH ROAD

612

10

12

18

52

58to
68

46-50

38

45
-4

7

53

BRAILSFORD CRESCENT

22

24-28

36

71

41

3426

61

31

51

84

76

LILBOURNE DRlVE

73

7 2

62

52

36

46

79

BLATCHFORD
COURT

Blatchford M
ews

1

8

4

28

25

21

18

4

3

26

6 66 8

20

24

23

13

9

1
2

5

7

56

74

1

2

5to
10

20

19

11
to

17
(n

o 13
)

Imperial Court

CRICHTON
AVENUE

24
1

2

8

2 4
3

244

256

2 5
3

INTAKE AVENUE

9

2 3

22

10

1 2

3 4

1

35

37

268

278

26
5

2 7
7

3 5

47

44

34

El Sub Sta

B
U

R
T

O
N

S
TO

N
E

L A
N

E

11

290

292

28
9

2 9
9

L U
C

A
S

A
V

E
N

U
E

LINK AVENUE

PO

El Sub Sta

5 14 9

6 36 1

56

58

70

65

ASHTON
AVENUE

INGRAM
AVENUE

42

54

4541

1

31
1

32
3

304

316

77

8 9

BURTON
GREEN

BURTON

GREEN

46

60

3 4
5

3 3
5

342
340

338

328

220

216

11
1

99

53

50

El Sub Sta

B
U

R
TO

N
S

TO
N

E
LA

N
E

S
he

lt e
r

CRICHTON AVENUE

H
A

U
G

H
TO

N
R

O
A

D

TE
N

N
Y

SO
N

A
VE

N
U

E

FIELD VIEW

A
LL

A
N

ST
RE

ET

HILLSBOROUGH TERRACE

HA
UG

HT
O

N
R

O
AD

C
R

ES
C

EN
T

RATCLIFFE STREET

F
IL

E
Y

TE
R

R
A

C
E

U
PP

E
R

N
EW

BO
R

O
U

G
H

ST
R

E
ET

El
Sub
Sta

B
A

KE
R

S
TR

E
ET

HUDSON STREET

SHIPTON STREET

Sh
ip

to
n

St
re

et
In

fa
nt

s
S

ch
oo

l

N
E

W
B

O
R

O
U

G
H

S
TR

E
E

T

S
C

AR
B

O
R

O
U

G
H

TE
R

R
AC

E

27

21 19 25

18
16

12

14

10

2

16

30

29

1

7

15

1

8

2

220

232

242

23
9

22
9

21
9

5

19

33

47

2

14

53

65
63

59

61

57

15

14

1

2

30

16

2

3

15

29

1

41

47

61

75

30

62

50

38

26

1412a

12

8

47

30

42

83

73

61

49

37

4

10

12

24

36

50

62

74

63

51

39

27

13

1

2

14

28

40

52

64

24

21

14

7

1
1a

42

96

95

5
1

77 80

36

31

66

65

57

47 52

24

5

FAL
SG

RA
VE

7

13
17

67

ABBEY
STREET

41

11

47

7

42

Home
The Thomas Fothergill

16

21
22 to 27

28

57

56
55

51 to 54

50

27

13

46

LUMLEY ROAD

75
77

1

79

2

8

2

10

Gr
an

d
St

an
d

2

1

121

7

SHIPTON STREET

Shipton StreetInfants School

B
A

KE
R

S
TR

E
E

T

14

2

17

19

El

Health
Centre

59

58

60

56

Kingsway
Junior School

24

ST
LU

KE'S
GROVE

12

24

1

13

23

St
Lu

ke
's

Chu
rc

h

Hall

BU
R

TO
N

ST
O

NE
LA

N
E

BURTON AVENUE

136

148

93

10
7

1

Ba
ck

W
es

t V
ie

w

P
E

M
B

R
O

KE
 S

T
R

EE
T

GLENCOE STREET

11

2

14

28

40

52

25

35

47

1

13

27

49

8

2

160

13

25

2

14

26

LA
D

Y
R

O
AD

WHARTON AVENUE

11

1

49

2

4

14

8

6

1

7

12

18

15
5

16
1

3

15

27

37

2

14

24

34

1

13

FA
LS

G
RAV

E
CRESC

ENT

PH

22

26

1

11

23

33

43

162

174

184

196

16
9

17
5

17
7

17
9

18
1

18
3

K I
N

G
S

W
A

Y
N

O
R

TH

K
IN

G
S

W
AY

N
O

R
TH

38

48

23

37

C
R

O
M

BI
E

A
VE

N
U

E

91

58

46

34

39

49

CROMER STREET

51

61

71

81

48

60

70

80

46

7 SURTEES STREET

W
IL

B
ER

FO
R

C
E

A
VE

N
U

E

27

39

2

14

28

40

39

27

13

32

44

92
90

68
66

GARTH TERRACE

RATCLIFFE STREET

The Anchorage

208

2

1

210

216

19
1

1

20

8

19
3

19
9

20
1

20
3

20
1a

20
3a 20

520
5a

1

13

23

33

14

2

20
7

21
5

S
PA

LD
I N

G
AV

EN
U

E

51

65

44

54

64

39
41

58

70

82

61

73

85

92

60

70

EV
EL

Y
N

CR
ES

CE
N

T

2

12

22

32

HORNER STREET

43

55 44

56

40
38

59

57

63
61

22

28

32
30

36
34

60
58

64
62

34
36

El Sub Sta

B
ED

E
A

VE
N

UE

34

24

9

21

31
40

28

14

31

17Marjorie
Waite
Court

18
to

43

10
to

17

1

5

8

9

58

82a

Duncombe
Barracks

Sub Sta

10to14

Club

The W
illows

1

2

61

1

33

30

2

4

6

8 10

12 14

16

56a
56b

53a

55

53
55a

1

2

5

4

3

PR
IM

R
O

S
E

VI
L L

AS

74

80

56

62

68

79

El

Sub Sta

John Burrill
Homes

(Almshouses)

3
7

17

18

23

2

4

12
1

12
7

CLIFTON

140

134

1 28

12 6

8
7

2
1

Freemans

Court

122 6

18

30

42

1

13

11

12
14

15

ABBEY
STREET

PIN
FO

LD
CO

U
RT

Grosv
en

or 
Cou

rt

52

41

29

15

11

8

9
10

4046

47

49

33

39

3

1 to 6

24 to 28
29

31
30

32

SHIPTON ROAD

13
9

1

Bar
ley

fie
lds

135

1

2

152
150

154

4

Vicarage
Lodge

CLIFTON PLACE

14

14

11

Vicarage

St Philip and St James's
Church

Guardian

Court

1 to 41

1

8

42 to
47

Health

El

Sub Sta

2
3

45
67

1 to 12

27

14

1

Rawcliffe
Holt

11

6

15

15

29

6

16

1

4

LISTER
W

AY

65

H
U

D
S

O
N

C
R

E
S

KI
N

G
S

W
A

Y
N

O
R

TH

W
ATER

LAN
E

51

46

156

68

Shelter

7

9

13

Galtres House

40

16

20

RAW
C

LIFFE
LANE

El Sub Sta

28

14

5

2

BROMPTON ROAD

81

2

1

79

3

1

84

96

70

1

7
1

15

9

2

15

SP
A

LD
IN

G
A

VE
N

U
E

12

24

34

30

19

1

21

RAWCLIFFE GROVE

110

124

29

41

2

12

22

32

23

35

S
T

PH
I LIP'S

G
R

O
V

E

Centre

Riseborough
House

JA
C

O
B

IC
LO

S
E

2

12

20

17
15

11

1

S
urgery

BELCOMBE WAY

E
LS

TO
N

1
3

2

8
4

7

C
LO

S
EPavilion

Ebor School

Pond

Pool

Paddling

50

53

Pavilion

19a

Beverley House

Hotel

19

Pavilion Pavilion Squash Courts

Club House

ROAD

SHIPTON

27

20

31

Lime Trees GALT
RES

GROVE

1

8

32

44

30

28

5

7
8

6

7

3

26

RAWCLIFFE

GROVE

22

Pond

Pavilion

Drain

2

1

Cottages

Pavilion

Pp Ho

Pond

Pavilion

Drain

Water

Water

Tank

Cl ifton
Ings

Reach
River O

use

Water Works

Reservoir

Water

Water

Water

LANDING LANE

Clifton Short Reach

Drain

Paddling

Pool

PC

The
Homestead

Haverford
(Youth Hostel)

River Ouse

C
lif

t o
n

S
ho

rt
R

ea
ch

W
ATER

END

T
h e

E
sp la n ad e

Clif ton
Long

Reach

BA
LF

O
U

R
S

T R
E

ET

SWINERTON AVENUE

ROSEBERY
STREET

L I
N

C
O

LN
ST

R
EE

T

FORTH STREET

SALISBU
RY

ROAD

35

49

63

77

91

19

20 10

2 93

40

30

18

1

15
21

33

43

55

46

60

58

46

32

18

2

27

43

59

61

38

28

58

56

50

40

8

13

The Garden
House

42

The Esplanade

River Ouse

Clifton Long Reach Boat House

78
78

a

Swimming Bath

6

The Glen
Nursery 52

50

54

66

55

49

15

47

St Peter's
School

GOVERNM
ENTHOUSE

ROAD

1

9

5

4

12

26

W
ESTMINSTER

ROAD

33

22

55

35

43

38

13

THE
AVENUE

17

Wentworth
House

7

22

23

OUSECLIFFE
GARDENS

33

31

5

2

29

27

Clifton

2123

1

11

21

19

8

14

Croft

G
REENCLIFFE

DRIVE

10

10
a

8b

8a

13

23

33

25

18

COM
PTO

N
STREET

GROVE
VIEW

ROSSLYN
STREET

39

27

13

1

1

6

12

4

32

10

8

6

4

1

11

12

18

SKE
LT

O
N

C
OU

RT

W
ESTERDALE

COURT

Half

Sout
h

View

The
Rise

1

31

9

1

4345

4749

2

8

7

5

51

57

1

4

1

3

76

Garage

21

The

Homestead

Ouse Lea

38

36

40

75

77

WATER
END

John Burrill Homes
(Almshouses)

30
28

1

2

7

2

12
10

1
5

1

16

12
11

11a

4
CLIF

TO
N

DALE

Old Grey Mare(PH)

Hotel

PC

6

2

3

1 5

1a

1b

120

118

2

9

9

CLIFTON

Fern
Cotta

ges

HIG
HCLIF

FE
COURTABBEY

STREET

2

65a
65

63

5

1

1

7

8

2

1

2

84

86

94

96

106

110

116

14

AVENUE

TERRACE

31a

2b
2a

PO

80

Bank
The

Mews

1

3

Clifton
Holm

e Mews

Clifton Holme

Court

15

1to
2

14

2

3

6

8

9

10

3

2

12

1
3

NORTH
PARADE

BOOTHAM

2

77

67

110

108

90

84

11

1

68 to 58

The
Grange

2

Ingram
House

Q
U

EE
N

AN
NE'

S
ROAD

56 to 46

65

Pavilion

Bootham
School

Pavilion

Cha
pe

l
(P

riv
at

e)

27

St Peter's

School

Lodge

24

1

18

14

17

CLIFTON

2a

2

10

9

4

15

16

12 10

7

1

13
11

8
6

26

13

50

44
42

40

36

34

29

Sunday

School

Clifto
n

Methodist

Church Su
rg

er
y

32

2

6

20

PH

ST
PE

TE
R

'S
G

RO
VE

ST
O

LA
VE'

S
RO

AD

6.
5

1 to 817

18

5

7

4

Sykes
Close

Linton Lodge
(Old Peoples Home)

BOO
TH

AM
C

RES
C

EN
T

11

28

16

23

33

39

41

45
43

37
35

38

50

19

26

32

G
R O

S
VE

N
O

R
TE

R
RA

C
E

PETE
RSW

AY

2

7

70

64

3

11

15 17

10

4

56

Vicarage

Club

1 8
14

41

31

27

15

22

26

38

El Sub Sta

Redholme

50

42

11

13

7

St
Pe

te
r's

Co
ur

t

GROSVENOR ROAD

Ryburndene

Ryburn

House

53

43

31

27

19

66

54

42

12

6 1

47

45

39

74

Burton
Lane
Club

62

AVENUE
TERRACE

7

9

49

37

27

15

11
a

11

34

24

14

12a

12

AVENUE ROAD

The Thomas Fothergill

Home

Bu
rto

n
Co

ur
t

40

35

30

1
to

6

51
53

49

1

7
to

11

Burton

Croft

69

G
ra

nd
St

an
d

N
E

W
BO

R
O

U
G

H
S

TR
E

E
T

G
ra

nd
St

an
d

35

23

13

1

12

2

16

DE GREY COURT

D
e

G
re

y
Te

rra
ce

1

5

10

6

7

8

11

2

4

5

Duncombe
Barracks

Club

Welham
House Welwyn

House

15a

BU
RTO

N
ST

O
N

E
LA

NE

29a
29b

29c

The Coach Yard

The Coach
House

Bank

37

41

Grosvenor House

1
to

24

8

9

22

13
17

Grosvenor Park

1

7

1

2

3
to

8

9
to

14

W
hi

te
Ho

us
e

Cou
rt

16

17

24

19

Pavilion

Pavilion

Bootham Park

Hospital

Chapel(Private )

G
R

O
S

V
EN

O
R

T
ER

R
AC

E

S
C

A
R

BO
R

O
U

G
H

T
ER

R
A

C
E

45
43

46

34

24

22

15

8

1

N
E

W
BO

R
O

U
G

H
ST

R
EE

T

El Sub Sta

The
Lodge

LENDAL

MUSEUM
STREET

Library

7

5

9

13

3
5

4

2

BLA
KE

S
TR

E
ET

PH

PH

Assembly Rooms

16
14

10
8

6

1

8

1
3

5

9
11

1 3
17

1

3

Hotel

7

9

S
T

L E
O

N
A

R
D

'S
P

L A
C

E

9

5

M
u ni ci pal

O
ffices

De Grey Rooms

De Grey House

Rectory

Theatre
Royal

Red House

E
lS

ub
S

ta

C
hu

rc
h

C
at

ho
lic

S
tW

ilf
rid

's

The

PH

PH

20

16

14
12

10
8

6

4

2

17
15

13

19

City Art Gallery

23

21

Pond

9

16

2

1

5

3

7

1

1a

3

5

2a
2b

2

12

3

Bank

PC
PH

4

8

PH

BOOTHAM

BOO
TH

AM
R

OW

37

29

25

36

38

31

PER
CY

STR
EET

St Giles Court

W
or

ks
11

19

23
25

12a

24

14

5 6

41

29

37

4 to
1

24
22

23
21

Bootham
School

3
1

PORTLAND
STREET

BOOTHAM
SQUARE

Radio Station

8

15

4
2

28

22

22

St Giles Gate

1 to 5

Bootham
Place

1 to 18

Cinder Lane

Clifton Long Reach

14 13
12

5
Earlsborough Terrace

River Ouse

The Esplanade

Boat
House

14
13

16
15
12

18
17

80

The Observatory

TOWER

ALMERY TERRACE

Boat

46

56 55

45

7

13

House

R
ai

lw
ay

W
al

k

26

1

22

HETHERTON STREET

FR
E

D
E

R
IC

S
TR

E
E

T

Almery
Garth

E
sp

la
na

de
C

ou
rt

PH

15
to21

6

2

62

60

68

12

6 5

10 7

9 8

Lit
tle

G
arth

1
to

7
9

to
13

St O
lav

e's Churc
h

St

58

Tempest

Anderso
n

Hall

The
Kings
Manor

The Yorkshire

Museum

SY
C A

M
O

RE
TE

R
R

AC
E

22

34

12

LO
N

G
F I

EL
D

TE
R

R
AC

E

18
17

16
15

8
7

6

5

1

1

11

21

33

19

M
A

R
Y

G
A

TE
LAN

E

Hotel

Hall

St M
ary 's

Terrace

24

8

1
to

4

5

6

MARYGATE

36

48

6

29

PO
Social Club

Hotel

PH

Pavilion

Pavil ion

24

18 to
22

SYCAMORE PLACE

Hotel

Pavilion

19

15

2a

11

1

2

2

22

15

26

34

32

18

Hot
el

8

13

7

1

ST
M

ARY'S
LANE

37

GALMANHOE LANE

Vicara
ge

Council

Offices

42

43

46

14

Queen Anne School

Q
U

EEN
AN

N
E'

S
RO

ADNO
R

TH
PAR

AD
E

2

14

35

23

13

1

41

31

19

9

20

44

32

28

B
O

O
TH

AM
TE

R
R

AC
E

Ho te
l

1a

1b

1

8

42

Hall

El Sub Sta

66

64

62a

62

58

82

68

BOOTHAM

53

61

Bootham School

Lodge

Mary's
Lodge

ST
MARY'S

10
to

15

7

4

LEEMAN ROAD

Garage

National
Railway Museum

Boat
House

Clifton Long Reach
River Ouse

The Esplanade

School
Queen Anne

Cinder Lane

S
T

JA
M

E
S

C
O

U
R

T

12

34

40

48

50

58

70

60

ALDBOROUGH WAY

6

10

1

2

3

El Sub Sta

CINDER LANE

51

45

41

43

5

6

10

72

80

Kensington House

1to8

Cinder Mews

El Sub Sta

27

PH
O

EN
IX

BO
U

LE
VA

RD

BISHOPSFIELDS DRIVE

M
AR

T IN
S

CO
UR

T

2
to

12

124

128

15
to

25

14
to 24

26

90

98

20 to 25

14 to 19

7 to 121
to

6

26
28

28

134

29to34

91

WATER

END

SALISBURY ROAD

LI
N

C
O

L N
ST

R
E

ET

SALISBURY TERRACE

H
al

l

CARNOT STREET

BA
LF

O
U

R
S

T R
E

ET

ROSEBERYSTREET

B
IS

M
A

R
C

K
S

T R
E

E
T

W
A

LW
O

R
T

H
S

T
R

E
E

T
N

O
R

T
H

CHUDLEIGH ROAD

L I
V

IN
G

S
T

O
N

E
S

T R
E

E
T

A
LB

A
N

Y
S

T
R

E
E

T

BROMLEY STREET

St Barnabas'
C of E

School

B
R

I G
H

T
S

T
R

E
E

T

HANOVER STREET EAST

Jubilee
(PH)

JUBILEE TERRACE St Barnabas'Church

CINDER LANE Vicarage

UPPER HANOVER STREET

G
A

R
N

E
T

TE
R

R
A

C
E

STAMFORD STREET WEST

W
A

LW
O

R
TH

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
O

U
T H

El Sub Sta

HANOVER STREET WEST

STAMFORD STREET EAST

Leeman
(PH)

GARFIELD TERRACE

3

K
IN

G
S

LA
N

D
TE

R
R

A
C

E

Works

LEEMAN ROAD

Works

C
A

R
LI S

LE
S

T
R

E
E

T

PH

C
A

R
L E

T O
N

S
T

R
E

E
T

Garage

41

29

15

1

4
10

2

16

28
27

13

1

12
1 8

18a

67

6858

57

565146

4
6

109

2

12

22

36

49

37

25

13

1

30

42

28

16

2

90
84

91
99

88100

1

8

79 65
51 39 27 15 1

682032
42

42a
485062

68

7082

80

85 81 77 63 49 37 25 13 1

1b

1a21426384050607282

8084

86

2

43 35 29 24

23

22

21

20
13 7 1

2
14

24

19
11

1

39
29

17

22

14

8

1

1

7

14

21

1

11

21

31

22

10

8

2

256

244

232

222

216

200

1

13

25

35

47

59

38

26

14

2

1

13 46

36

26

16

1

8

41

34

28

22

16

10

2
1

1

7

13
20

26

32

38

20

27

35
36 2

8
1 4

1 9

The

Primary

5

4

14

95
3

10
40

4

34

The

PO

8 12

1

5

9

48

51

13
19

1

9

14

4

43

47

39

1

7

ALDBOROUGH

WAY

BRUNEL

COURT

K
IN

G
S

LA
N

D
T

E
R

R
A

C
E

9

S
T

B
AR

N
AB

AS
C

LO
SE

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

C
O

U
R

T

2

19
21

23

25

27

10
22

13
12

9 4

1

3

24

30

32

12

2

1
5

7
8

33

30

11

17

2

4

8

R
E

G
E

N
T

S
C

O
U

R
T

1

5

29 37
39

2
4

9

5
7

33

2

10
11

4

27

ST
E

PH
EN

SO
N

W
A

Y

1

6

2

7

11

19
20

13

15

16
18

46

54

to 60

4444a

H
AR

D
IS

TY
M

E
W

S

20

26
14 to 19

44 to 49

56

58

Martins Court

50 to 55
35

to

43

21

44

34

22

10

17

AMBERLY
STREET

Club

27

39

12
5

13
5

14
5

POPPLETON
ROAD

1
3

99

3

92

94

1

96

98

13

25

12

10

2

10
1

11
3

108

1

11

YARBURGH
GRO

VE

OAK
STREET

St Paul's
Mission Church

132

116

CHATSW
ORTH

TERRACE 2

16

126

30

20

10

17

29

30

Hall

11

9

ASH
STREET

SELD
ON

ROAD

33

146

158

77

15
7

14

2

25

35

45

55

65

12

22

32

POPLAR STREET

CARRINGTON
AVENUE

21

28

Poppleton Road
County Primary School

76

68

31

32

51

WATER END

SB

56
58

G
A

R
N

E
T

TE
R

R
AC

E

H
olgat e

Beck

LA
ND

IN
G

LA
N

E

Water Works

Drain

Kennels

(RSPCA)

Ppg Sta

29

D
ra

in

Garage

TH
O

M
PS

O
N

PL A
C

E

1

6

2

6

54 to

60

59
to

65

BURTON
GREENBURTON GREEN

Burdyke County
Infants School

Bu
r D

ike

Drain

Day Centre

M
orrell H

ouse

B
U

R
T

O
N

S
TO

N
E

LA
N

E

64

77

85

93

101
103

107

390408

388

348

366

346

to

to

Bur
Dike

LA
N

E
W

A
T

E
R

Pond

HEADLEY CLOSE

3

95

12

2O16

MINCHIN CLOSE

15
17

22

10a

1

3

15

19

2411

23

2

20

2

14

27

TATTON CLOSE

1

15

19

10

5
7

A
R

LI
N

G
TO

N
R

O
A

D
A

R
L I

N
G

T
O

N
R

O
A

D

2

W
O

ODLA
N

D

C
H

A
S E

4

1 3

7

11

2
4 6

12

HERDWICK CLOSE

11

REIGH
TO

N
DR

IVE

9

71

56

52

7

1

69

2

8

62

71

81

106

94

67

34
32

61

84

MELTON
AVENUE

G
A

R
T

H
H

E
N

D
O

N

2

14

26

25

11

15

1

27

15

12

15

H
AL

IF
AX

CO
UR

T

1

7

9

11

2

1

9

2

8

REIG
HTON

AVENUE

STONELANDS COURT

77

10

14

16

15

1 3

24

18

8

93

90

105

91

41

76

1

103

12
10

2

2021

15
11

H
A

S
T

I N
G

S
C

LO
S

E

LANCASTER
WAY

1 2

1

11

31

30

2

H
A

R
R

O
W

GLADE

10

15

12

20

46

46a

1

16

2

2

1

11

CALDBECK
CLOSE

BELM
O

NT
CLO

SE

58

12

27

15

11

B
O

W
LAN

D
W

AY

W
A

T E
R

L A
N

E

60

1

Pp Ho

GREEN
LANE

Store

El
Sub Sta

20

17

R
E

D
M

I R
E

S
C

L O
S

E

EBSAY DRIVE

14
16

17
11

2 3

Victoria

Victoria
Farm
Estate

Hope House

Store

D
rain

44

38

28

36

33

36

44

34

37

35

41

39

52 50

48 46

LIN
DLE

Y
ROAD

W
A

TE
R

LAN
E

Farm House

26
24

22
20

18

51

49

52 50 48

44

34

30

31
33

2 7

37

2
4

1 0

7

1

42

40

36

38

24

22

41

33

31

29

27

25

6

2

23

14

8
10

21

4

8

1 0

1 4

2

10

TAMWORTH ROAD

LUNDY CLOSE

AR
LI

N
G

TO
N

R
O

AD

1 1
5

3

2

2
4

WIMPOLE CLOSE

1

3

11

ARLINGTON ROAD

7 9

3

A
R

L IN
G

T O
N

R
O

A
D

1

1

3

8

24

8

10

9

PENTIRE CLOSE

2

4
6

1
3

9

24

12

3

7

1 5

3
3a

5

61

ELDWICK
CLOSE

LA
NSH

AW

C
O

U
R

T

SW
INSTY

A
N

G
R

A
M

C
L O

S
E

LEIGHTON CROFT

KENTMERE DRIVE

BORROW
DALE

DRIV
E

B
E

A
V

E
R

D
Y

K
E

BEAVERDYKE

DRIVE

FEWSTON

BELM
ONT

CLO
SE

GREEN LANE

WAY

C
HE

LK
AR

GRASM
ERE

GROVE

NORTHOLME DRIVE

EASTHOLME
DRIVE

Police Station

BARDEN
CO

URT

El
Sub Sta

Hall

REIG
HTO

N
DR

IVE

REIG
HTON

AVENUE

CAYLEY CLOSE

MILTON CARR

KEATS
C

LOSE

R
A

W
CL

IF
FE

LA
N

E

Drain

PO

SOUTHOLME
DRIV

E

SHELLE
Y

GROVE

3

13

27

37

38

26

14

2

46

40

1

11

21

29

30

22

12

2

15

11

35

39

5

38

34

1

6

12

17

32

1

3

36

30

24

12

2

1

13

27 25

35

43

22

12

44

32

8

2

2

9

1

75

81

104

106

2

10

2

12

22

30

21

15

11

2

12

45

40

46

69

57

14

28

40

13

24

25

52

15

11

1

9

25

37

1

12

24

40

37

38

42

44

16

2

6

2

1

11

15

27

5

8

61

38

57

2

55

1

41

9

1

1

8

11

1718

19

15

11

2

10

2 10

16

2

11

15

14

26

53

67
66

39
27

1

11

1

18

30

54

42

15

11

2

15

1

12

27

2526

24

12a

15

21 11

3

4

CRO
FT

BYRON
DR

22

26

20

18

1

3

11

15

23

25

19
21

25

10
8

E
B

S
A

Y
D

R
IV

E

LI
N

D
LE

Y
R

O
AD

BARMBY

CLOSE

Haverah

Court

GREYSTOKE ROAD

E
M

B
LE

TO
N

D
R

IV
E

C
O

LE
D

A
L E

C
LO

S
E

22

6

12

7

12
10

2

1

12
14

3

11
15

17

19

6

2

1

3

4

7

18

15

21

1

2

14

12

8

18

21

29

26

20

28

31

LIN
DLE

Y
ROAD

1

11

15

14

24

2

14

11

1

25

39

29

124

116

114

NORTHOLME DRIVE

SHELLEY GROVE

Rawcliffe
Grange

24

14

2 30

36

15

SHIPTON
ROAD

ALW
YNE

DRIV
E

136

1

1

6

4434

36

134

ALW
YNE

GROVE

33

1

7

32

38

31

13

26

LOWESWATER ROAD

11

5

1

152

150

2

6

9

SCAFELL
CLOSE

W
ESTHOLM

E
DRIV

E

2

1

5

1

2

24

14

2

11

17

23

28

41

31

21

19

50

48

1

El Sub Sta

WASDALE CLOSE

PATTER
DALE

D
RIVE

18

16

2

16

7

9

1

5

BUTTERMERE
DRIVE

12

19

11

1

11

7

10

7

EASTHOLME
DRIVE

63

17

13

2

36

61

51

FURNESS DRIVE

F U
R

N
E

S
S

D
R

I V
E

BOWNESS DRIVE

12

2

99

19

18

116

102

81

79

27

77

2 221

90

Rawcliffe Infant and
Nursery School

GARBURN

G
R

O
V

E

G
R

E
Y

S
TO

K
E

R
O

A
D

79

1

17

15

3

2

8
18

11

KENTMERE

DRIV
E

1

52

54

4

2

19

21

30

SUMMER GARDENS

1

Produced from the 1993 Ordnance Survey 1:1250 mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office

SCALE DRAWN BY DATE

Drawing Number

© Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

CLIFTON WARD (A)

PSL1:2500

N

S

EW

CLIFWRD1

Established Public Footpath

Paths already on central
Highways register

Paths under investigation

9, St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET  Telephone: 01904 551550

City of York Council  LA 1000 20818

25/02/2010

123 NEW NUMBER

123 OLD NUMBER

1491

1488

147
7

145
12

146
13

11
144

141

9

18
143

10

142

141
9

2

14
139

140

138
3

138
3

3138

16

136

17
137

Page 47



Page 48

This page is intentionally left blank



Bur Dike

LITTLE AVENUE

SUTTO
N

W
AY

El Sub Sta

Church

Hall

Church of
St Joseph

Presbytery

BURTON GREEN

BURTON GREEN

INGRAM
AVENUE

ASHTON
AVENUE

W
AVENEY GROVE

BURRILL AVENUE

CRICHTON
AVENUE

CROMBIE
AVENUE

W
IL

BE
RF

O
RC

E
AV

EN
U

E

BE
DE

AV
EN

UE

EV
EL

YN
CR

ES
CEN

T

CR
OM

BI
E

AV
EN

UE

KI
NG

SW
AY

NO
RT

H

KI
NG

SW
AY

NO
RT

H

10
3

72
70

155

167

152

140

128

95

10
7

11
7

12
9

13
9

14
1

88

86

74

9
13

15 17

23 25

20

12

2

1

6

12

1

13

25

35

45

57

69

42

32

22

10

2

1

5

10

11
12

1

13

23

35

15

36

28

20

10

1

11

19

29

40

28

14

2

8

2

68

58

48

36

26

14

5

2

10

1

11
11a

15

18

12

2

9

21

31

84

74

64

52

40

89

95
97

10
9

11
9

129

140

146

141

33

39

39
a

41

49

154b154a

154

148

132

120

110

98

88

19

14

11

138

Marjorie Waite Court

La
dy

M
ill

G
ar

th

Community

Centre

1t
o3

0

18to43

7

73

36

46

BLATCHFORD
COURT

Blatchford Mews

1

8

4

28

25

21

18

4

3

26

24

23

13

9

1

2

5

7

1

2

5to
10

20

19

11
to

17
(no

13
)

Imperial Court

CRICHTON
AVENUE

24
1

2

8

24
3

244

256

25
3

INTAKE AVENUE

9

23

22

10

1 2

3 4

1

13

23

6

18

61

35

37

268

278

26
5

27
7

35

47

44

34

43

33

52

40

30

64

74

86

El Sub Sta

B U
R

TO
N

S T
O

N
E

LA
N

E

11

290

292

28
9

29
9

LU
C

A
S

A V
EN

U
E

LINK AVENUE

PO

El Sub Sta

5149

6361

56

58

70

65

55

57

R
O

W
N

TR
EE

AV
EN

UE

69

56 54

104

102

80 78

W
IG

G
IN

TO
N

R
O

AD

Works

ASHTON AVENUE

INGRAM
AVENUE

42

54

45

41

1

31
1

32
3

304

316

77

89

90

80

79

89

99

132
130

156
154

D
ra

i n

BURTON GREEN

BURTON

GREEN

46

60

34
5

33
5

342
340

338

328

220

216

11
1 112

99

100

204

182

11
1

1 78

1 80

192

Dra
in

53

50

El Sub Sta

Shelter

Shelter

Theatre

HALEY'S TERRACE

SOMERSET ROAD

MONTROSE
AVENUE

El
Sub Sta

Brooklands

1
to

4

The Lodge

H
U

N
TI

N
G

TO
N

R
O

AD

Yearsley
Baths

H
AX

BY
R

O
AD

El
Sub
Sta

El
Sub
Sta

Rive
r F

os
s

No 2 Lodge

Yearsley Bridge Centre

El Sub Sta

PO

Bridge Inn
(PH)

Pavilion

20
7

19
7

19
1

to
19

5

18
5

208

196

17
5

16
3

15
9

15
5

15
1

14
7

190

180

170

17

23

32

20

18

14

1

7

1

24a

23

24
25

2

4

5
6

7

11

16

17

5

1 to 4

El
Sub Sta

Works

1

13
21

4

BOWLING GREEN

CO
UR

T

10

2

26

10

2

18

BO
W

LI
N

G
G

R
E E

N
C

R
O

FT

1

36

28
20

7

9

19

13

El
Sub
Sta

Works

HAMBLETON TERRACE

KITCHENER STREET

SOMERSET ROAD

FOSSWAY

Y E
A R

SL
EY

C
R

E S
C

E N
T

ASHVILLE STREET

Hotel

ROSE STREET

Vicarage

Hall

H
ax

by
R

oa
d

P
rim

ar
y

S
ch

oo
l OAKVILLE STREET

R
iv

er
Fo

ss

H
UN

TIN
G

TO
N

R
O

AD

ARRAN PLACE

A R
R

AN
PLA

C
E

El Sub
Sta

WHITE CROSS ROAD

PO

H
AX

BY
R

O
AD

VYNER STREET

FOUNTAYNE STREET

Bank

Shelter

WALPOLE STREET

W
A R

W
IC

K
STR

EE T

STANLEY STREET

Stanley House

1

6

11
18

36 26

14

2

1

13

2533

15
5

15
9

16
7

16
9

17
1

to
17

5

17
9

to
18

1

75

90

76
66

54
42

30
16

2

1
13

25
37

61

71

2
12

24
36

48

1
11

23
33

2
12

24

3
15

75
b

77
91

93
10

5
10

7
1 1

9

121

1 2
3

13
1

14
3 166

154

142

132

120
1 18

106

96

42

1a
1

13
25

37
5 1

24

14

6
6a

9
10

1
15

12

1 92 0

2122

3132

44

24

14

4

3

13
21

20
10

2

3
11

19

1 0
5

11
5

1 2
7

1

1 2
9

14
3

2

14
5

15
3

144

132

130
124

108

78
74

70
72

64

62

58

1

13

23

37

34

24

12

2

106

1a 2 14
30

44

4535
2523131

2
109

1

22

30

2

12

1

75

75

1a1

NELSON

STREET

68

Drain

Works

SC
A I

F E
G

A
R

D
E N

S

34

40

32

14

1210

11

24

Peppermill Court

El Sub Sta

RAMSAY CLOSE

94

Baldwin House

ST
M

ary s
Hous e

006
106
206

005
105
205

49

White
Cross

Court

26
18

12

1 3
11

9

11

15

2

4

8

20

10

15
to

27

8 5
to

97

14

17

43
to

55
57

to
69

75
c

1 to
6

Oakville Court

El Sub Sta

39
to

49
51

to
55

17 15
11

7

1

1
3

7MAPLEHURST AVENUE

WHITECROSS GARDENS

HUNTINGTON MEWS

W
es tward

H
o use

1
to

7

Winteringham House
1 to 18

22

36

37 31
2123

33

2830

8
to

15

40

28

El Sub Sta

BU
RT

O
N

ST
O

NE
LA

N
E

Sh
el

te
r

CRICHTON AVENUE CRICHTON AVENUE

HAMBLETON TERRACE

ROSE STREET

W
IG

G
I N

TO
N

TE
R

R
AC

E

H
AU

G
HT

O
N

RO
AD

TE
NN

YS
O

N
AV

EN
UE

FIELD VIEW

MURROUGH
W

ILS
ON

PL
AC

E

BELGRAVE STREET

Clarendon
Court

N
EW

B Y
TE

R
R

A C
E

VYNER STREET

W
IG

G
IN

TO
N

R
O

A D

FEVERSHAM CRESCENT

AL
LA

N
ST

RE
ET

HILLSBOROUGH TERRACE

HA
UG

HT
O

N
RO

AD

CR
ES

CE
NT

RATCLIFFE STREET

FOUNTAYNE STREET

SC
AI

FE
S

TR
EE

T

B
R

IG
G

S
ST

R
EE

T

FI
LE

Y
TE

RR
AC

E

UP
PE

R
NE

W
BO

R
O

UG
H

ST
R

EE
T

El
Sub
Sta

BA
KE

R
ST

RE
ET

HUDSON STREET

SHIPTON STREET

Sh
ip

to
n

St
re

et
In

fa
nt

s
Sc

ho
o l

NE
W

BO
RO

UG
H

ST
RE

ET

SC
AR

BO
R

O
UG

H
TE

RR
AC

E

The York
District Hospital

Club

103

2329

8
6

5
1

31
45

45
a4749

1
7

8a
8

15

51
59

1
11

12a
15

19

61

22
34

44
56

68
70

21
29

79

65

51

37

25

30

44

58

70

82

6
3

2
1

3 3

27

1
to

26

71

1
9 75 67 57

55 51 49a 49 47a
47 37

4052647688100

11
23 45 39 33 26

20

14

50
42

2

1

15

4

18

29

1

7

37
35

3133

29

27

21 19

25 23

22

20

18
16

12

14

10

2

16

30
29

1

7

15

1

8

2

220

232

242

23
9

22
9

21
9

5

19

33

47

2

14

53

65
63

59

61

57

15

14

1

2

30

16

2

3

15

29

1

41

47

61

75

30

62

50

38

26

14
12a

12

8

47

30

42

83

73

61

49

37

4

10

12

24

36

50

62

74

63

51

39

27

13

1

2

14

28

40

52

64

24

21

14

7

1
1a

42

96

95

5
1

77 80

36

31

66

65

57

47 52

24

5

FA
LS

GRAV
E

SCAIFE GARDENS

2

6

Hotel
and

Squash
Courts

1
9

46
44

El Sub Sta

HANSO
M

PLACE

67
to

72

73

7 8

64

1

6

10

El Sub
Sta

Works

7

13
17

1

2

3

7
8

6
5

4

SCAIFE

M
EW

S

79
to

92

20
to

63

76

El Sub Sta

3

1
2

Charlaine
Court

Clarence
Court

11

16

67

4
to

7

1

4
23

3

5

13

21
22 to 27

28

57

56
55

51 to 54

50

27

13

LUMLEY ROAD

75
77

1

79

2

8

2

10

Gr
an

d
St

an
d

2

1

121

7

SHIPTON STREET

Shipton StreetInfants School

BA
KE

R
ST

RE
ET

14

2

17

19

24

ST LU
KE'S

GROVE

12

24

1

13

23

St
Lu

ke
's

Ch
ur

ch

Hall

BU
RT

ON
ST

ON
E

LA
NE

BURTON AVENUE

136

148

93

10
7

1

Ba
ck

W
es

t V
ie

w

PE
M

BR
O

KE
ST

R
EE

T

GLENCOE STREET

11

2

14

28

40

52

25

35

47

1

13

27

49

8

2

160

LA
DY

RO
AD

WHARTON AVENUE

11

1

49

2

4

14

8

6

1

7

12

18

15
5

16
1

3

15

27

37

2

14

24

34

1

13

FA
LS

GRAV
E

CRES
CEN

T

PH

22

26

1

11

23

33

43

162

174

184

196

16
9

17
5

17
7

17
9

18
1

18
3

CR
O

M
BI

E
AV

EN
UE

91

58

46

34

49

CROMER STREET

51

61

71

81

48

60

70

80

46

7 SURTEES STREET

W
IL

BE
RF

O
RC

E
AV

EN
UE

27

39

2

14

28

40

39

27

13

32

44

92
90

68
66

GARTH TERRACE

RATCLIFFE STREET

The Anchorage

208

2

1

210

216

19
1

1

20

8

19
3

19
9

20
1

20
3

20
1a

20
3a 20

520
5a

1

13

23

33

14

2

20
7

21
5

82

61

73

85

92

60

70

EV
EL

YN
CR

ES
CE

NT

2

12

22

32

HORNER STREET

43

55 44

56

40
38

59
57

63
61

22

28

32
30

36
34

60

5864
62

34
36

El Sub Sta

BE
DE

AV
EN

UE

34

24

9

21

31

40

28

14

31

17Marjorie
Waite
Court

18
to

43

10
to

17

1

5

8

9

58

82a

Duncombe
Barracks

10to14

Club

1

33

30

2

4

6

8 10

12 14

16

1

2

5

4

3

PR
IM

RO
SE

VI
LL

AS

2

12

1
3

NORTH PARADE

BOOTHAM

2

77

67

110

108

90

84

11

1

68 to 58

The
Grange

2

Ingram
House

QUE
EN

AN
NE

'S
ROAD

56 to 46

65

Pavilion

Bootham
School

Lodge

24

1

18

14

17

CLIFTON

2a

2

10

9

4

15

16

12 10

7

1

13
11

8
6

26

13

Su
rg

er
y

2

6

20

ST
PE

TE
R'

S
GRO

VE

ST
OLA

VE
'S

ROAD

6.
5

1 to 817

18

5

7

4

Sykes
Close

Linton Lodge
(Old Peoples Home)

BOOTH
AM

CRES
CEN

T

11

28

16

23

33

39

41

45
43

37
35

38

50

19

26

32

GR
OS

VE
NO

R
TE

RR
AC

E

Vicarage

Club

41

31

27

15

22

26

38

El Sub Sta

Redholme

50

42

11

13

7

St
Pe

te
r's

Co
ur

t

GROSVENOR ROAD

Ryburndene

Ryburn
House

53

43

31

27

19

66

54

42

12

61

47

45

39

74

Burton
Lane
Club

62

AVENUE ROAD

The Thomas Fothergill

Home

Bu
rto

n
Co

ur
t

35

30

1
to

6

51
53

49

1

7
to

11

Burton
Croft

69

G
ra

nd
St

an
d

NE
W

BO
RO

UG
H

ST
RE

ETG
ra

nd
St

an
d

35

23

13

1

12

2

16

De
Gr

ey
Te

rra
ce

1

5

6

7

8

11

5

Duncombe
Barracks

Welham
House Welwyn

House

15a

BU
RT

O
N

ST
ON

E
LA

NE

29a
29b

29c

The Coach Yard

The Coach
House

37

41

Grosvenor House

1
to

24

8

9

22

13
17

Grosvenor Park

1

7

1

2

3
to

8

9
to

14

W
hit

e Hou
se

Cou
rt

CLAREMONT TERRACE

6

11

16

17

24

32

34

19

DE GREY TERRACE

The Villa

LORD MAYOR'SWALK

G
ILLYG

ATE

1

77
81

1
1a

1b

58
56

DE
 G

RE
Y

ST
RE

ET

The College of
York St John

Pavilion

CL
AR

EN
CE

ST
RE

ET

BROOK STREET

Al
db

or
ou

gh
Ho

us
e

to
46

32

21
1619

18
20

17

7
54

6
8 9

10
11

3
2
1

12
to

15

GARDEN STREET

CO
LE

ST
R

EE
T

DE
L

PY
KE

Thornaby House

Castleton House

Ay
to

n Ho
us

e

Bu
rn

es
ton

Hou
se

1 to 6

7 to 12

12

1

7

6

2
1

4
3

13
14

16 15

11 12

1 2

5
to

8

9
to

12

Pavilion

Bootham Park

Hospital

Chapel(Private)

UN
IO

N
TE

RR
AC

E

80

87

94

1 
to

8

83

73

69

67
to

73

51
to

57

49

PH

Th
irs

k Hou
se

Club

PO

BA
CK

HO
U

SE
ST

RE
ET

87
to

93

85

81

77
to

79

75

44

52

72

62

48
to

50

62
84

4
3

13
14

16 15
9

to12

5
to

8
2

1

Mansfield House

Munster House

Selby House

Be
da

le
Ho

us
e

LOWTHER STREET

ST THOMAS' PLACE
TOWNEND STREET

PI
LG

RI
M

ST
RE

ET

161

151

16

3

5

14
13

1
to

9

1 to 6

1 to 6

7 to 12

15
to

19

1

8

9

G
RO

SV
EN

O
R

TE
RR

AC
E

Bridge Lane

El Sub Sta

93

98

33
to

40

Court

72to79

99

95

167

1

84

Clarence Club
and Institute

HAXBY ROAD

MARKHAM CRESCENT

PH

Surgery

22

1

18

2

10

20

4

12

114

110

124 126128 130

120 122

116 118

St
Th

om
as

'
C

hu
rc

h

2

5

SC
AR

BO
RO

UG
H 

TE
R

RA
CE

45
43

46

34

24

22

15

8

1

NE
W

BO
RO

UG
H

ST
RE

ET

The York
District

Hospital

PC

W
IG

G
IN

TO
N

R
O

AD

Pavilion

MARKHAM STREET

40

36

34

1

5 6
7 8

44

3

4

Bootham
Park

71

75

81

79
77

41 to 47

48 to 55

56
to

63

64
to

71

8to16

17
to

24

25
to

32

Park
House

101TO105

92

19

Union
Court

1 to 7

El Sub Sta

Fo
ss

Bu
ild

ing

Skell

Building

Fountains Learning Centre

1a

St Antonys

House

30

PCs

El Sub Sta

GARDEN
STREET

ST
JO

HN
ST

REE
T

Gro
ve

Hou
se

The College of

Ann
Harrison's

Almshouses

8

1

21

17

68

58

49

53

FE
RN

STR
EET

Penley's
Court

29

21

1

6

1

9

36

10

15

1

2
to

1

ST
JO

HN'S
CRESC

EN
T

11

AB
BO

T
STR

EE
T

M
ARCH

ST
REE

TDE
L

PY
KE

TOWNEND
STREET

Be
mpt

on
Ho

us
e

Th
e

Mag
pie

In
n

(P
H)

Patr
ing

ton
Hou

se

Ho
nle

y Ho
us

e

Ar
ds

ley
Ho

us
e

Horbury House

Helmsley House

Th
e

Rein
de

er
(P

H)

11
121

2

7
85

6

5
4

8
1

7
6

12
1

5
4

8
1

4
3

6
1

Rudston house

1 to 10

10 to
6

5 to 1

Ware
ho

us
e

43

1 to 10

1 to 10

Pickering

House

Kilburn

House

Willerby House

Aberford House

Be
da

le
Ho

us
e

53

3992

104

72

70

60

133

10
to

15

7to12

1to6

1
2

3

10
9
8 67

45

BR
O

W
NL

O
W

ST
RE

ET

DUDLEY STREET

32

1

20

2

78

66

3

15

27

84

Youth Club 16

Park Grove

44

34

18

10

17

2

25

23

27

27

4

14

24

21

PARK GROVE

H
UN

TI
NG

TO
N

R
O

AD

1

64

40

52

25

22

GLADSTONE STREET

MARKHAM CRESCENT

MARKHAM STREET

71

27

37

49

6

16

26

36

46

63

57

34

24

11

19

29

EL
DO

N
ST

RE
ET

NEVILLE TERRACESt
Th

om
as

'
Pa

ris
h

Ro
om

73

2

12

22

65

21

3

1

102

94

86

82

39

49

61

54

44

34

13

EARLE
STREET

121

11

1

7

1

48

76

62

32

42

23

27

51

39

29

EMERALD STREET

G
RO

VE
TE

RR
AC

E
LA

NE

2

11

24

14

9

37

23

2

34

12

24

92

80

66

4

37

49

51
51

a
53

53
a

55

HAX
BY

ROAD

NEVILLE STREET

Newton House

5

2

12

22

29

15

3

1a
1

50

46

5

15

54
52

W
AR

W
IC

K
S TR

E ET

NELSON STREETSTANLEY STREET

ELDON
TERRACE

Works

24

28

2

6

19

31

83
81

32

42

41

108

2

12

22110 1

15

3

15

25

37

AM
BER

STREET

El

Sub Sta

29

1

33

11

23

2

20

10

DIAMOND STREET

73

63

23

33

43

53

48

36

R
iver

Foss

114

9

2

5

46

90

68
62

37a

9

3to7

1

5

DUDLEY MEWS

22

Cruse
House

Lang House

Muir
House

House
Welch

Robinson House
House
Boyle

Baldwin House

1

4

1

5

9

1

4

8

1

4

1

5

8

8

5

1

101

201

001
002

102
202

005
105
205

006
106
206

2

2A

8

Primary School

RAMSAY CLOSE

48

52

84

3

35a
35

York St John

1

11

12

2

34

45

31

36

42

52

College

ST JO
HN

ST
REET

GARDEN ST
El S

ub
Sta

WAVERLEY STREET

Groves
Court

12
to
11

10
to

9

4
to

3

2
to 1

PORTLAND STREET8

15

28

22

2 to
7

12

41
to

51

53

5986

78

70

75

35

SA Citadel

1

The College of
York St John

CLAREMONT
TERRACE

8
to

11

NO
RT

H
PA

RA
DE

35

23

19

9

20

32

28

Hote
l

1a

1b

1

42

Hall

El Sub Sta

82

Bootham School

Lodge

River Foss

Drain

Works

Pond HA
XB

Y
R

O
AD

Pavilion

El Sub Sta

Works

Mille Crux Bungalow

65

El Sub Sta

Works

Pavilion

BURTON
GREENBURTON GREEN

Burdyke County
Infants School

Bu
r D

ike

Drain

Pond

Day Centre

M
orrell House

BU
R

TO
N

ST
O

N
E

LA
N

E

W
IG

G
IN

TO
N

R
O

AD

D
rain

D
r a

in

Wks

Pond

64

77

85

93

101
103

107

390408

388

348

366

368

386

346

212 210

1

to

to

to

Bur
Dike

20

Produced from the 1993 Ordnance Survey 1:1250 mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office

SCALE DRAWN BY DATE

Drawing Number

© Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

CLIFTON WARD (B)

PSL1:2500

CLIFWRD2

N

S

EW

Established Public Footpath

Paths already on central
Highways register

9, St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET  Telephone: 01904 551550

Paths under investigation

25/02/2010

City of York Council  LA1000 20818

123 NEW NUMBER

123 OLD NUMBER

150
6

6

151

20

151

20
154
5

154
5

5
154

19

152

See Clifto
n

General File

Page 49



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Clifton Ward 
 

Schedule 1 
 

 

Ward:  Clifton 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 136 (Clifton)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath commencing on northern side of River Ouse, approx 250m west of Clifton Bridge, at 
location known as Clifton Scalp, on Clifton Ings and running in a generally north westerly 
direction for approx 250m around the Clifton Ings sluice gates to the Clifton Without parish 
boundary. 
 
Approximate length 
250 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 5876 5291 SE 5869 5297 Hot rolled tarmac 
 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 5876 5291 SE 5869 5297 Minimum 1.5m 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   
   

 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans  �  1852, 1965  
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence �   1 user evidence form 
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric  �   
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water  �   
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
Make Definitive Map Modification Order 

Page 51



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Clifton Ward 
 

Schedule 2 
 

 

Ward:  Clifton 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 137 (Clifton)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath commencing on northern side of River Ouse, approx 250m west of Clifton Bridge, at 
location known as Clifton Scalp, on Clifton Ings and running along the bank of the River Ouse 
to the Ward Boundary. 
 
Approximate length 
600 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 5876 5291 SE 5836 5261 Compacted earth 
 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 5876 5291 SE 5836 5261 Less than 1m 
   

 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   

 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans  �  1850, 1891. 1929, 1958  1982 
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence     
User Evidence �   2 User Evidence forms 
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas �    
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric �    
NTL Network Services �    
Torch Telecom �    
Yorkshire Water �    
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
Make Definitive Map Modification Order 

Page 52



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Clifton Ward 
 

Schedule 3 
 

 

Ward:  Clifton 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 138 (Clifton)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath commencing at end of Marygate, near Scarborough Bridge, on the northern side of 
the River Ouse; then following the river bank, out of the City, and under Clifton Bridge, to a 
point 250m past the bridge to the junction with footpaths York 136 & 137, at Clifton Ings. 
 
Approximate length 
1300 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
SE 5962 5208 SE 5877 5291 Hot rolled tarmac with stone 

chips 
 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
SE 5962 5208 SE 5877 5291 Minimum 2m 

 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
Gates and barriers SE 5895 5290 Y138b 

Cattle grid and steel kissing 
gate 

SE 5877 5290 Y138a 

 
 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if applicable) 
Other Information 

OS Plans      
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence     
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric  �   
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water  �   
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
No further action at this time 
 

Page 53



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Clifton Ward 
 

Schedule 4 
 

 

Ward:  Clifton 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 139 (Clifton)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath commencing at the end of Westminster Road and running in a south easterly 
direction between St Peter’s School and Queen Anne’s School terminating on North Parade. 
 
Approximate length 
305 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 5934 5260 SE 5958 5244 Tarmac 
 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 5934 5260 SE 5958 5244 1.5m or greater 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   

Metal cycle barriers SE 5958 5244 Y139a 
 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans  �  1852,1989  
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence �   Part adopted 
User Evidence �   30 user evidence forms 
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric  �   
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water  �   
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
Make Definitive Map Modification Order 
 

Page 54



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Clifton Ward 
 

Schedule 5 
 

 

Ward:  Clifton 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 140 (Clifton)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath commencing at the end of Westminster Road and running north easterly along the 
side of 55 Westminster Road to its junction with the footpath running along the rear of 49 – 55 
Westminster Road. 
 
Approximate length 
30 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 5934 5260 SE 5936 5262 Broken tarmac and crushed 
stone 

 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 5934 5260 SE 5936 5262 Approx 1.5m 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   

 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans  �  1989  
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence     
User Evidence �   2 User evidence forms 
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas �    
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric  �   
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water �    
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
Make Definitive Map Modification Order 
 

Page 55



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Clifton Ward 
 

Schedule 6 
 

 

Ward:  Clifton 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 141 (Clifton)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath commencing between 88 and 90 Clifton and running in a north easterly direction to 
Clifton Green School;  then continuing in the same direction, across playing fields at Lumley 
Road to terminate on Lady Road. 
 
Approximate length 
460 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
SE 5945 5290 SE 5975 5324 Tarmac 

 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 5945 5290 SE 5960 5309 1.5 to 2m 
SE 5960 5309 SE 5975 5324 1.9 to 2.5m 

 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
Vehicle barrier SE 5966 5314 Y141b 
Vehicle barrier SE 5975 5324  

 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans      
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence �   Correspondence re: 

proposed closure of path User Evidence    
Photographs    
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric  �   
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water  �   
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
Make Definitive Map Modification Order 

Page 56



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Clifton Ward 
 

Schedule 7 
 

 

Ward:  Clifton 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 142 (Clifton)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath commencing at Kingsway North Health Centre; and running in a south easterly 
direction along the south-western boundary of Clifton Green School to its junction with 
footpath York 141.  
 
Approximate length 
135 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 5951 5317 SE 5960 5310 Tarmac 
 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 5951 5317 SE 5960 5310 1.9 to 2.8m 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   

Bollard SE 5951 5317 Y142b 
 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans  �  1852, 1891 1989 
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence     
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless �    
Northern Electric �    
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water �    
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
Make Definitive Map Modification Order 
 

Page 57



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Clifton Ward 
 

Schedule 8 
 

 

Ward:  Clifton 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 143 (Clifton)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath commencing at side of 13 Crombie Avenue and running in a south westerly 
direction, and terminates at Kingsway North Health Centre. 
 
Approximate length 
85 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 5957 5323 SE 5951 5318 Tarmac 
 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 5956 5323 SE 5951 5318 1.5m 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   

Concrete bollard 5951 5318 Y143a 
 
 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans      
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence �   Public Path Order 
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric  �   
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water  �   
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
Make Definitive Map Modification Order 
 

Page 58



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Clifton Ward 
 

Schedule 9 
 

 

Ward:  Clifton 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 144 (Clifton)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath commencing between 64 & 66 Kingsway North and running between the said 
properties to Crombie Avenue, between 63 & 65 Crombie Avenue. 
 
Approximate length 
60 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 5960 5344 SE 5965 5341 Paved 
 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 5960 5344 SE 5965 5341 1.6m 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   

Cycle barrier SE 5965 5341 Y144b 
 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans  �  1960  
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence     
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric �    
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water  �   
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
Make Definitive Map Modification Order 
 

Page 59



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Clifton Ward 
 

Schedule 10 
 

 

Ward:  Clifton 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 145 (Clifton)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath commencing between 110 & 112 Kingsway North and running between the said 
properties to Crombie Avenue, between 107 & 109 Crombie Avenue. 
 
Approximate length 
60 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 5968 5359 SE 5973 5356 Paved 
 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 5968 5359 SE 5973 5356 1.6m 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   

Cycle barrier SE 5968 5359 Y145b 
 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans  �  1986  
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence     
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric �    
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water  �   
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
Make Definitive Map Modification Order 
 

Page 60



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Clifton Ward 
 

Schedule 11 
 

 

Ward:  Clifton 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 146 (Clifton)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath commencing between 111 & 113 Kingsway North and running between the said 
properties to Spalding Avenue, between 128 & 130 Spalding Avenue. 
 
Approximate length 
60 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 5967 5364 SE 5963 5367 Paved 
 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 5967 5364 SE 5963 5367 1.6m 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   

Cycle barrier SE 5967 5364 Y146b 
Cycle barrier SE 5963 5367 Y146a 

 
 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans  �  1986  
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence     
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless �    
Northern Electric �    
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water  �   
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
Make Definitive Map Modification Order 

Page 61



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Clifton Ward 
 

Schedule 12 
 

 

Ward:  Clifton 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 147 (Clifton)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath commencing on Burton Stone Lane and running between 289 and 291 Burton Stone 
Lane then through the park in south westerly direction; between 15 and 17 Burrill Avenue to 
terminate on Burrill Avenue.   
 
Approximate length 
65 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 6006 5374 SE 5997 5371 Tarmac 
SE 5997 5371 SE 5994 5369 Paved 

 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 6006 5374 SE 5994 5369 1.6m 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
Cycle barrier SE 5997 5317 Y147b 

 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans  �  1960.1978  
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence     
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric �    
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water �    
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
Make Definitive Map Modification Order 

Page 62



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Clifton Ward 
 

Schedule 13 
 

 

Ward:  Clifton 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 148 (Clifton)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath commencing at the rear of 289 and 291 Burton Stone Lane and running through the 
park in a north westerly direction, then turning north east to run between 11 & 13 Ingram 
Avenue to terminate on Ingram Avenue.   
 
Approximate length 
65 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
SE 6003 5375 SE 5999 5378 Tarmac 
SE 5999 5378 SE 6000 5379 Paved 

 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 6003 5375 SE 6000 5379 1.6m 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
Cycle barrier  SE 5999 5378 Y148b 

 
 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans  �  1960  
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence     
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric �    
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water  �   
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
Make Definitive Map Modification Order 

Page 63



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Clifton Ward 
 

Schedule 14 
 

 

Ward:  Clifton 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 149 (Clifton)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath commencing on Burton Green, and running between 48 and 50 Burton Green, in a 
south easterly direction, before turning south to run between 43 and 45 Ashton Avenue; to 
terminate on Ashton Avenue. 
 
Approximate length 
65 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 6000 5395 SE 6002 5389 Paved  
 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 6000 5395 SE 6002 5389 1.6m 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   

Cycle barrier SE 6000 5395 Y149a 
Cycle barrier SE 6002 5389 Y149b 

 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans      
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence     
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric  �   
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water  �   
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
No further action at this time 

Page 64



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Clifton Ward 
 

Schedule 15 
 

 

Ward:  Clifton 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 150 (Clifton)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath commences on Huntington Road near to junction with Haley’s Terrace and running 
in a northerly direction, following the western bank of the River Foss to the Ward boundary. 
 
Approximate length 
550 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 6085 5354 SE 6082 5357 Stone paving 
SE 6082 5357 SE 6098 5394 Grass 

 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
SE 6085 5354 SE 6093 5394 Min 1.2m 

 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
Steps SE 6085 5354  

 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans      
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence �   2 User Evidence forms 
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric  �   
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water  �   
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
Make Definitive Map Modification Order 

Page 65



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Clifton Ward 
 

Schedule 16 
 

 

Ward:  Clifton 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 151 (Clifton)  
 
Description of route 
Commencing on Huntington Road, at Yearsley Bridge running south along the western bank 
of the River Foss under Foss Way Bridge and back onto the Huntington Road to the north of 
the old railway bridge near 94 Huntington Road. 
 
Approximate length 
395 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 6087 5354 SE 6088 5319 Natural 
 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 6087 5354 SE 6088 5319 1m 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   

Steps SE 6087 5354 Y151a 
 
 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans      
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence     
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric  �   
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water  �   
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
No further action at this time 

Page 66



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Clifton Ward 
 

Schedule 17 
 

 

Ward:  Clifton 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 152 (Clifton)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath commencing at Newby Terrace, opposite 4 Newby Terrace, running in a south 
westerly direction alongside some allotments to Wigginton Road. 
 
Approximate length 
35 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 6034 5331 SE 6031 5329 Tarmac 
 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 6034 5331 SE 6031 5329  
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   

 
 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans  �  1984  
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence     
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric  �   
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water  �   
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
Make Definitive Map Modification Order 

Page 67



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Clifton Ward 
 

Schedule 18 
 

 

Ward:  Clifton 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 153 (Clifton)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath commencing on Wigginton Road, opposite Newby Terrace, and running in a 
northerly direction parallel to the Wigginton Road, to link into the cycle track. 
 
Approximate length 
105 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 6030 5330 SE 6029 5341 Tarmac 
 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 6030 5330 SE 6029 5341 1.6m 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   

Vehicle Bollards SE 6029 5341 Y153b 
 
 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans  �  1995  
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence     
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas �    
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric  �   
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water  �   
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
No further action at this time 

Page 68



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Clifton Ward 
 

Schedule 19 
 

 

Ward:  Clifton 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 154 (Clifton)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath commencing on Wigginton Road at the junction with footpath York 153 and running 
in an easterly direction under Haxby Road Bridge to terminate at the Ward boundary. 
 
Approximate length 
710 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 6029 5343 SE 6088 5316 Tarmac 
 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 6029 5343 SE 6088 5316 Min 3m 
   

 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
 
 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans      
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence     
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric  �   
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water  �   
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
No further action at this time 

Page 69



Page 70

This page is intentionally left blank



Ouse
River

Paddling

Und

Pool

CR

Ward Bdy

FB

CG

Clifton Scalp

Homestead Park

Playground
Paddling

Playground

458700.000000

458700.000000

458800.000000

458800.000000

4
5
2
8
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
8
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
9
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
9
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:1,250Scale Drawn By:JHC Date: 12/04/10

York Footpath No.136
(Clifton Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 71



Page 72

This page is intentionally left blank



458000.000000

458000.000000

459000.000000

459000.000000

4
5
2
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:10,000Scale Drawn By:JHC Date: 12/04/10

York Footpath No.137
(Clifton Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 73



Page 74

This page is intentionally left blank



459000.000000

459000.000000

460000.000000

460000.000000

4
5
2
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:10,000Scale Drawn By: JHC Date:12/04/10

York Footpath No.138
(Clifton Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 75



Page 76

This page is intentionally left blank



River O
use

School
St Peter's

ChurchClift
on

Methodist
Sunday

Hotel

ROMAN BURIAL GROUND

C
ha

pe
l

House

Posts

Tennis

Club

8.2m

15.8m

14.6m

14.3m

14.0m

13.1m

12.5m

11.0m

15.2m

Welham

CR

The Esplanade(Path)

Bowling Green

Pavilion

PH

Pa
th

Wentworth

St Olaves School

Q
U

EE
N

 A
N

N
E'

S 
R

O
AD

N
O

R
TH

 P
AR

AD
E

SYCAMORE PLACE

GROVE VIEW

Su
rg

er
y

W
ar

d 
B

dy

Burton

7

50

2

13

47

1 
to

 4

1 to 1043

7 
6

24

33

1 to 7

20

19

21

31

14

Lodge

15

8

35 29

3

23

11

44 42

2a

66

17

36

18

78

28

22

56

6

55
41

4

32

27

12

78a

54

44

1

49

LB

TCBs

A
ssem

bly H
ouse

FB

FS

Th
e 

Rise

1

22

50

6

1

2

55

8.2m

14

15

Hotel

1

2

11

Club

14

15

St Peter's

35

12

2
2

23

1 to 7

22
1

459300.000000

459300.000000

459400.000000

459400.000000

459500.000000

459500.000000

459600.000000

459600.000000

459700.000000

459700.000000

4
5
2
3
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
3
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
4
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
4
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
5
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
5
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
6
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
6
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
7
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
7
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
8
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
8
0
0

.0
00

00
0

±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:2,500Scale Drawn By: JHC Date:12/04/10

York Footpath No.139
(Clifton Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 77



Page 78

This page is intentionally left blank



St Peter's

Swimming Bath

House

Posts

Tennis

12.5m

14.0m

11.0m

Path

Wentworth

St Olaves School

THE A
VENUE

50

47

13

1 to 7

15

35

66

78

55

14

78a

54

49

Tank

Centenary House

Pa
th

Pa
th

459300.000000

459300.000000

459400.000000

459400.000000

4
5
2
5
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
5
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
6
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
6
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
7
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
7
0
0

.0
00

00
0

±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:1,250Scale Drawn By: JHC Date:12/04/10

York Footpath No.140
(Clifton Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 79



Page 80

This page is intentionally left blank



Li
m

e 
Tr

ee
 C

ou
rt

Gro
sv

en
or

 C
ou

rt

Guardian

Playground

Th
e 

Rise

Court

Redholme

Club

Duncombe

9.8m

9.4m

13.1m

11.6m

12.5m

12.8m

12.2m

1 to 5

Barracks

Grosvenor Park

Ryburn

The Coach Yard

St
 P

et
er

's

SK
EL

TO
N

 C
O

U
R

T

W
ESTERDALE

 C
OURT

BU
R

TO
N

 S
TO

N
E 

LA
N

E

ROSSLYN STREET

CROMER STREET

Old Grey Mare

W
ATER

 LAN
E

ABBEY S
TREET

PETERSW
AY

LA
D

Y 
R

O
AD

View

MC House

29c

Vicarage

Jacobs Court

5
10

7

Posts

38

27

4

84

18

42

11

76

64

17

1 to
 9

39

65a 15

1 
to

 4

42 to 47

14

46

5 
to

 1
2

47 49

8

30

61

31a

56

41

80

43 45

90

79

29

96

25

23

33

13

118

116

1

81

15
a

12

10
6

6

9

29a

49

24
51

93

122

3

16

87

65

110

11
a

60

50

26

34

70

48

37

71

2

68

31
22

El Sub Sta

K
IN

G
S

W
A

Y
 N

O
R

TH

Grosvenor Cottages

House

W
HARTON AVENUE

PO
PC

S
P

A
LD

IN
G

 A
V

E
N

U
E

Ryburndene

C
R

O
M

B
IE

 A
V

E
N

U
E49

7

24

70

46

6

1

14

7

23

1

K
IN

G
S

W
A

Y
 N

O
R

TH

38

14

2

4

46

1

7

3

4

12

26

80

11

10

2
12

39
8

1

51

13

1

22

1

1

49

6

7

15

2

11

8

11.6m
70

7

1

3

18

1

14

56

459400.000000

459400.000000

459500.000000

459500.000000

459600.000000

459600.000000

459700.000000

459700.000000

459800.000000

459800.000000

4
5
2
8
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
8
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
9
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
9
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
1
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
1
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
2
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
2
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
3
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
3
0
0

.0
00

00
0±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:2,500Scale Drawn By: JHC Date:12/04/10

York Footpath No.141
(Clifton Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 81



Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank



Home
The Thomas Fothergill

12.8m

13.7m

Health

Corner

The

Nor
th

 G
ra

ng
e 

Cou
rt

C
O

U
R

T

LUMLEY ROAD

7

8

6
5

Posts

4

1

16

22 to 27

40 30

14

57

2
55

52

42

47

41

56

53
a

51 to 54

21

28

27

56
b

55
a

46

58

53

49

35

24

29

60

50

59

34

13

11

9

3

Sub Sta

K
IN

G
S

W
A

Y
 N

O
R

TH

Fe
rn

 H
ou

se

El

ABBEY S
TREET

2

El

North Grange Court

1

2

Home

2

Sub Sta

8

42

41

46

Posts

2

2

5

459500.000000

459500.000000

459600.000000

459600.000000

4
5
3
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
1
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
1
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
2
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
2
0
0

.0
00

00
0

±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:1,250Scale Drawn By: JHC Date:12/04/10

York Footpath No.142
(Clifton Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 83



Page 84

This page is intentionally left blank



Primary School

Playground

9.4m

13.7m

13.1m

Kingswater
Health

Corner

The W
illows

Centre

The

C
O

U
R

T

PIN
FO

LD

ABBEY S
TREET

7

8

6
5

Posts

12

38

39

4

59

58

46

14

2
55

10 52

42

61

47

56

53
a

1

25

15

27

56
b

55
a

3426

53

24

50

13

23

9

60

3

Sub Sta

K
IN

G
S

W
A

Y
 N

O
R

TH

El

Health

Sub Sta

46

2

8
46

2

Posts

1

1

459500.000000

459500.000000

459600.000000

459600.000000

4
5
3
1
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
1
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
2
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
2
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
3
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
3
0
0

.0
00

00
0

±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:1,250Scale Drawn By: JHC Date:12/04/10

York Footpath No.143
(Clifton Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 85



Page 86

This page is intentionally left blank



1 to 5

Court

Marjorie

K
IN

G
S

W
A

Y
 N

O
R

TH

C
R

O
M

B
IE

 A
V

E
N

U
E

MC House

64

51

Posts

9
8

95

91

38

82

60

65

39

70

88 18to43

14

46

7

85

98

97

92

83

10 to 17

25

80

89

48

49

81

58

61

82a

3426

2

55
37

87

12

71

73

W
HARTON AVENUE

70

K
IN

G
S

W
A

Y
 N

O
R

TH
70

85

C
R

O
M

BI
E 

AV
EN

U
E

82

58

71

459600.000000

459600.000000

459700.000000

459700.000000

4
5
3
3
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
3
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
4
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
4
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
5
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
5
0
0

.0
00

00
0

±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:1,250Scale Drawn By: JHC Date:12/04/10

York Footpath No.144
(Clifton Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 87



Page 88

This page is intentionally left blank



Court

Marjorie

N
O

R
TH

EV
EL

YN
 C

R
ES

C
EN

T

KI
N

G
SW

AY
 N

O
R

TH

C
R

O
M

BI
E 

AV
EN

U
E

KI
N

G
SW

AY

5

1

8 9

59

95
82

32

70

88 18to43

11
6

12
9

12
0

15
4b

98

14
0

12
8

36

97

18
 to

 4
3

1t
o3

0

41
83

10 to 17

40

13
7

63

10
7

34

10
3

15
4

89

11
7

14
6

13
2

11
9

14
8

13
8

85

91

49

73

Centre

LB

Marjorie Waite Court

La
dy

 M
ill 

G
ar

th

Community

70

129

95

14
0

459600.000000

459600.000000

459700.000000

459700.000000

459800.000000

459800.000000

4
5
3
5
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
5
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
6
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
6
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
7
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
7
0
0

.0
00

00
0±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:1,250Scale Drawn By: JHC Date:12/04/10

York Footpath No.145
(Clifton Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 89



Page 90

This page is intentionally left blank



13.7m

N
O

R
TH

BURDYKE AVENUE

SP
AL

D
IN

G
 A

VE
N

U
E

KI
N

G
SW

AY
 N

O
R

TH

C
R

O
M

BI
E 

AV
EN

U
E

KI
N

G
SW

AY

95

86
127

74

60

79
141

11
6

39

12
9

12
0

167

98

14
0

97

1t
o3

0

83

77

10
7

10
3

15
4

11
0

11
7

13
9

70

82

143

94

64

10
4

15
2

13
2

10
9

11
9

145

155

88

13
8

14
8

72

91

75

La
dy

 M
ill 

G
ar

th

95

13.7m

14
1

459600.000000

459600.000000

459700.000000

459700.000000

4
5
3
6
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
6
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
7
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
7
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
8
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
8
0
0

.0
00

00
0

±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:1,250Scale Drawn By: JHC Date:12/04/10

York Footpath No.146
(Clifton Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 91



Page 92

This page is intentionally left blank



Playground

B
U

R
T

O
N

 S
T

O
N

E
 L

A
N

E

BURTON G
REEN

20

11

13

27
8

21

48

27
7

29
0

42

28

36

29
2

12

14

37

29

2

30
4

28
9

19

40

23

1

26
8

31
6

10

29
9

31
1

26
5

15

BURRILL AVENUE

INGRAM
 AVENUE

ASHTON A
VENUE

35

23

ASHTON A
VENUE

1

36

1

11

28

10

459900.000000

459900.000000

460000.000000

460000.000000

460100.000000

460100.000000

4
5
3
6
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
6
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
7
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
7
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
8
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
8
0
0

.0
00

00
0

±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:1,250Scale Drawn By: JHC Date:12/04/10

York Footpath No.147
(Clifton Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 93



Page 94

This page is intentionally left blank



Playground
B

U
R

T
O

N
 S

T
O

N
E

 L
A

N
E

Play Area

ASHTON A
VENUE

20

11

13

22

27
8

48

27
7

29
0

42

28
32

3

32
8

36

29
2

14

37

29

54

30
4

28
9

19

32

41

40

23

45

47

1

26
8

31
6

10

29
9

35

31
1

26
5

15

El Sub Sta

BURRILL AVENUE

INGRAM
 AVENUE

1

19

ASHTON A
VENUE

1

35
Play Area

28

35

El Sub Sta

460000.000000

460000.000000

460100.000000

460100.000000

4
5
3
7
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
7
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
8
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
8
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
9
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
9
0
0

.0
00

00
0±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:1,250Scale Drawn By: JHC Date:12/04/10

York Footpath No.148
(Clifton Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 95



Page 96

This page is intentionally left blank



13.7m

B
U

R
T

O
N

 S
T

O
N

E
 L

A
N

E

ASHTON A
VENUE

20

11

13

33
8

22

34
5

33
5

34
0

42

34
6

85

60

32
3

57

32
8

36

93

54

30
4

34
2

19

32

46

28

77

23

69

64

45

1

31
6

29
9

35

31
1

15

House

BURTON

INGRAM
 AVENUE

BURTON G
REEN

13.7m45

42

BURTON G
REEN

BURTON GREEN

460000.000000

460000.000000

460100.000000

460100.000000

4
5
3
8
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
8
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
9
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
9
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
4
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
4
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:1,250Scale Drawn By: JHC Date:12/04/10

York Footpath No.149
(Clifton Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 97



Page 98

This page is intentionally left blank



Baths

Theatre

Hospital

Yearsley

Sports Ground

Playground

R
iv

er
 F

os
s

10.1m

13.4m

13.1m

12.2m

White Cross

Yearsley House

P
at

h 
(u

m
)

Path

Boro Const Bdy

COURT

S
IR

O
C

C
O

 C
O

U
R

T

H
U

N
TI

N
G

TO
N

 R
O

AD

REDG
RAVE

M
O

N
T

R
O

S
E

 A
V

E
N

U
E

KIR
KHAM A

VENUE

MISTRAL

H
A

X
B

Y
 R

O
A

D

W
ar

d 
B

dy

Def

Bo
ro

 C
on

st
 &

 W
ar

d 
Bd

y

50

14

1 to 9
43

23
6

16
6

24

18

4
23

8

29

23
0

22
0

23

25
1

21
7

10 to
 21

23
5

25
0

3
1

48

25

21

13
14

3

11

26

10

25
6

57

12
55

6

31

5

8

32
22

5
22

16

24
7

23
2

17

7

15

44

30

2

Co Const & Ward Bdy

Shelter

Stone

Sub Sta

SubSta

Und

Pavilion

SOMERSET ROAD

TCB

FF

C
R

19

28

9

El

1

4

12

13

Sub

El

5

2

16

26

15

Shelter

1

15

30

TCB

2El

7
13.4m

2

13

1
48

13.1mBoro Const Bdy

4
2

11 2

4

1

25

6
122

1

15

24

460700.000000

460700.000000

460800.000000

460800.000000

460900.000000

460900.000000

461000.000000

461000.000000

461100.000000

461100.000000

4
5
3
5
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
5
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
6
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
6
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
7
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
7
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
8
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
8
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
9
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
9
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
4
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
4
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:2,500Scale Drawn By: JHC Date:12/04/10

York Footpath No.150
(Clifton Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 99



Page 100

This page is intentionally left blank



P
rim

ar
y 

S
ch

oo
l

Theatre

Hospital

Yearsley

Court

9.8m

9.4m

11.3m

12.5m

13.1m

10.1m

Post

White Cross

Reserve

Yearsley House

Lock

Weir

Path

O
akville C

ourt

COURT

CLOSE

S
IR

O
C

C
O

 C
O

U
R

T

KITCHENER STREET

WHITECROSS GARDENS

H
U

N
TIN

G
T

O
N

 R
O

A
D

STURDEE GROVE

D
O

D
S

W
O

R
T

H
 A

V
E

N
U

E

HUNTINGTON MEWS

ASHVILLE STREET

MAPLEHURST AVENUE

HALEY'S TERRACE
M

O
N

T
R

O
S

E
 A

V
E

N
U

E

P
O

T
T

E
R

Y
 LA

N
E

SAXON PLACE

MISTRAL

Playground

Posts

7

Brooklands

31

14

1 to 9

1

1 to
 6

53
85 to 97

13
1

1 to 18

57 to 69

13
5

85

18

15 to 27

1 to 4

1 to 7

26

15
 to

 2
9

13
2

10
4

24a

118

12

33

13
7

14
0

25

106

36 24

10
7

30

15
9

10
5

19
0

34

10 to
 21

109

13

18
0

19

2

15

76

40

11
9

100

11
6

14
7

15
0

97

121

79

14
3

11

75b
61

21

48

37

16

17
0

93

51

90

6

29

8

5

3

32

15
5

22

15
1

17

66

12
3

23

12
0

20

10

92

49
71

54

4

28

12
8

110

to

83

Sub

The Lodge

Cycle Path

El Sub Sta

FB

ARRAN PLACE

TCB

W
estw

ard H
ouse

Winteringham House

C
R

OldShop

Shelter

15
1

11

5

10.1m

1

22

28

4

3

11

21

8

15

3
24

1

24

12

2

11

A
R

R
A

N
 P

LA
C

E

1

Playground

24

17

4
10

28

Playground

23

19

10
5

14

Post

22

18

1

12
3

Playground

1 
to

 4

2

1

13

32
7

4921

1

P
at

h

4

8

Shelter

16

11

12

32

2

12
0

11

1

4

14

15

11

5

20

Posts

93

23

12

23

23

6

3

13

2

12

34

15

32

1

13
2

24

2

20

460700.000000

460700.000000

460800.000000

460800.000000

460900.000000

460900.000000

461000.000000

461000.000000

461100.000000

461100.000000

4
5
3
1
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
1
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
2
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
2
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
3
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
3
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
4
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
4
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
5
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
5
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
6
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
6
0
0

.0
00

00
0±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:2,500Scale Drawn By: JHC Date:12/04/10

York Footpath No.151
(Clifton Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 101



Page 102

This page is intentionally left blank



13.1m

12.2m

15.2m

17.1m

Clarendon

Gardens

Allotment Gardens

Allotment

ROSE STREET

FEVERSHAM CRESCENT

N
E

W
B

Y
 T

E
R

R
A

C
E

HAMBLETON TERRACE

W
IG

G
IN

T
O

N
 T

E
R

R
A

C
E

BELGRAVE STREET

FOUNTAYNE STREET

VYNER STREET

W
IG

G
IN

T
O

N
 R

O
A

D

Posts

45

79

1 to 21

49

9

100

1 
to

 2
6

59

2

57

1

39

47

33

65

82

58

27

13
70

11

14

4

67

29

44

16

23

3
5

12a

a

75

21

68

88

18

61

19

42
50

56

7

76

55

15

6

Feversham Gate

LB

Post

El Sub Sta

51

51

1

70

1

15

45

Gardens

1

2
3

1

33

7

15

460300.000000

460300.000000

460400.000000

460400.000000

4
5
3
2
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
2
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
3
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
3
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
4
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
4
0
0

.0
00

00
0

±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:1,250Scale Drawn By: JHC Date:12/04/10

York Footpath No.152
(Clifton Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 103



Page 104

This page is intentionally left blank



Posts

15.2m

18.6m

17.1m

13.1m

15.5m

Clarendon

Gardens

Allotment Gardens

Allotment

Tr
ac

k

Cycle Path

FEVERSHAM CRESCENT

N
E

W
B

Y
 T

E
R

R
A

C
E

W
IG

G
IN

T
O

N
 T

E
R

R
A

C
E

BELGRAVE STREET

VYNER STREET

ROSE STREET

Works

45

15

51

79

1 to 21

9
100

2

57

39

1

65

58

82

27

13
70

11

4

14
67

33

29

23

5
3

75

88

18

50
42

7

76
6

Feversham Gate

HAMBLETON TERRACE

El Sub Sta

M
URRO

UG
H W

IL
SO

N P
LA

CE

W
IG

G
IN

T
O

N
 R

O
A

D1

Allotment Gardens

Allotment Gardens

1

1

3
2

29

7

460300.000000

460300.000000

460400.000000

460400.000000

4
5
3
3
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
3
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
4
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
4
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
5
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
5
0
0

.0
00

00
0±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:1,250Scale Drawn By: JHC Date:12/04/10

York Footpath No.153
(Clifton Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 105



Page 106

This page is intentionally left blank



460000.000000

460000.000000

461000.000000

461000.000000

4
5
3
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
4
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
4
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:10,000Scale Drawn By: JHC Date:12/04/10

York Footpath No.154
(Clifton Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 107



Page 108

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Annex 2 

 
 
 
 
Public Rights of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981, 
Preparation of Definitive Map for Former County Borough  
 
Heworth Ward 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Index 
 
Location Plan 
 
Schedules & Path Plans 
Path Nos 155, 158-159, 163-165, 167-174, 178-182 
 
 
Summary of Recommendations 
 
DMMO Recommended Path Nos 
158, 159, 164, 170, 171, 172, 173, 174, 178, 181, 182 
 
No Further Action At This Time Recommended Path Nos 
155, 163, 165, 167, 168, 169, 179, 180,   

Page 109



Page 110

This page is intentionally left blank



Produced from the 1993 Ordnance Survey 1:1250 mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office

SCALE DRAWN BY DATE

Drawing Number

© Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

HEWORTH WARD

PSL1:2600

HEWTHWRD

Works

H
A

X
B

Y
R

O
A

D

Pavilion

Mille Crux Bungalow

El Sub Sta

328

1
7

13

20
21

21b

21c

1
5

WHENBY GROVE

YEARSLEY GROVE

H
UN

TI
NG

TO
N

R
O

AD

Works

Yearsley Grove
(PH)

44
39

34

28

22 2

Yearsley Grove
PrimarySchool

Wray'sCottages

WRAY'S AVENUE

58605149

256

266

278

4

1

6

2

5

1

300

292

290

280

25
1

26
1

27
1

27
9

27
9a

28
1

28
5

3

1

4

9

FOSS COURT

12

14

18

21a

26

22

31
1

30
9

30
7

30
1

29
5

28
7

1

5

7to15

14

10

8

2
4

11
1517

19

23
2527

14

12

18

16

1

7

2

26

2

1014

12

DIS
RAELI C

L

NIGHTINGALE CL

VIC
TO

R
IA

W
A

Y

ElSub
Sta

6
4

WATERDALE PARK

31
3

31
5

31
5a

2

30
36

42

2

10

1

1a

2

3a

4

12

18
20

53
51

43

STEPHENSON
CLOSE

35

41

33

23 57

19

21

13

33
29

2
3

7

Birch Park

13

7
9

302

310

1 to 6

7 to 12

13 to 18

7
to

12

1
to

6

312

318

DAR
W

IN
CLO

SE

ELGAR
CLOSE

2

10

320

322

7
to

12

1
to

6

7
to

12

1
to

6

4

Danube House

1

2

8

8

11

G
od

wi
n

Hou
se

Es
se

x
Ho

us
e

Ch
es

te
r H

ou
se

12

22

BIRCH PARK

BIRCH PARK

M
O

N
K

TO
N

R
O

A
D

South Beck

102

1

12
3

12
1

Social
Centre

5

9
to

12

13 to 16

17 to 24

1
t o

8

45
to

52

C
LO

SE

41
to

44

33
to

40

29
to

32

25
to

28

MORRITT

46
36

39

ANDREW

7

12

22

1

2

DRIVE

W
AY

27

8

36

35

19

15
11

10

FER
G

U
S

O
N

Yearsley Grove

PrimarySchooI

4

9

15

16

17

11

7

S
K

E W
S

B
Y

G
R

O
V

E

DALBY MEAD

2

Willow House

27

16

6

G
E

LD
O

F
R

O
A

D

15

9

28

2

1

11

NEW
LANE

6

1

7

17

1

7

8

14

11

7

2

1

36

GROVEWHENBY

26

38

15

30

2

45

Pp Ho

S outh
Be ck

9

THERESA CLOSE

C
A

R
R

N
O

C
K

C
O

U
R

T

54

62

2 4
12

107

1

64

72

2

85
75

65

53

2

8

10 12

26 28

Su
rg

er
y

4
6

8

18

7

1

8

4

7
9

78
80

74

5

12

8

6

HO
M

ESTEAD
CLO

SE

D
IC

KE
N

S
C

L

VICTORIA WAY

26
4

26
2

26
6

26
8

9200

0002 1800

Thornfield

Farm

El S
ub Sta's

NEW
LANE

Pond

Chow Dene

Garage

A 103
6

3900

227

223

219

225

229

219a

MAL
TO

N
RO

AD

Garage
Drain

Pond

Pond

272

270

266

262

6000

Pond

8000

1030

0026

3920

Pond

Pond

Pond

Pond

AVEN
U

E
G

ALTRES

221

290

300

STOCKTON LANE

Pond

PASTUR
E

LANE

Pond

Pond

8

6

Pond

14

2

1

W
O

O
D

LAND
S

G
R

O
VE

60

58

58a
56a

56

59

53

1a

1b
1c

54

52
50

2a

2

1

El Sub Sta

1

13

12

14

16ELMPARK WAY

ELMPARK VALE

ELM
PAR

K
VALE

34

2

1

41
40

11

21

31

36
34

21 19

GREEN SWARD

9

17
8

2

20

1

5

18

46

41

27

15

15a

11

2

15

23

14

ELMPARK VIEW

ELM
PARK

VIEW

33

26

34

Drain

34

24

Pavilion

Pavilion

194

192MALTON ROAD

NEW
LANE

Barfield Villa

Drain

Pond

Bramble Cottage

16

STRAYLANDS

GROVE

38

STRAYLANDS
GRO

VE

Drai
n

Drai
n

1

E
LM

LAN
D

S

G
R

O
VE

STRAYLANDS GROVE

13

25

10

39

44

12

14

42

5

Pond

Garage

11

1

MALTON
ROAD

Drai
n

2

Rookdale

H igh Lea
Elmgarth

HealeyGrange

AV
EN

U
E

LILLING

9

10

TH
O

RN
NO

O
K

12

41

El
Sub Sta

13
to

16

ELM
FIELD

AVENUE

34

32

22

12

21

31

2

84

LABURNUM
GARTH

The Poplars

Fie ld House

Ho lmleigh

12

5

1

2a

3

Drai
n

L inwoodCroft

RuheElm
LeaAshvil le

Ashbourne

Fa irfieldHigh field

12
13

20
21

73

75

77
79

70
68

82
80

84

55

66

58

1

1

47

3
2

22

49

52

1

50

18

FOSTON GROVE

HEALEY GROVE

25 to
28

1

5

12

1 5

8

16

Thorn Nook
Orchard

THORNFIELD
AVENUE

SEFTON
AVENUE

44

17

27

1

4

34

32

20

105

107

10
9

MONKTON
ROAD

Sou
th Bec

k

11
9

86

58

100

2

7

BARFIELD ROAD

M
O

R
R

I T
T

C
LO

SE13

19

12

22

11

32

31

41

22

3

7

7

6

5a

3

1

1to3

11

8
2

13

ALB
ERT

CL

VICTORIA
WAY

18

19

14

2

S
IR

O
C

C
O

C
O

U
R

T

MISTRAL
COURT

Yearsley House

32

14

2

12

17
16
15 12

11

10 9
8 7

34
to
48

1918

22

5

15

2

14

76

88

F R
I A

R
'S

W
A

L K

89

1

101

2

103
8

100

5

2

3 1

11

3

4
2

6

ABBO
TSW

AY

THORN NOOK

TEMPLEMEAD

58

73

77

1

2

79

1 to 6 7
to

10

74

25

BYLAND
AVENUE

Abbey Court

16 2523

21

67

65
61

57
59

53
55

11

6

52

56

TH
E

C
R

O
S

S
W

A
Y

21

50

54

2927

75

71
73

14

69

19

15

12

1

60

62

30

44

2

55

43

29

15

1

KIRKHAM
AVENUE

26

38

50

37

49

63

48

58

77

89
70

1 to
10

11

Bell View Court
South Beck

21

31

43

30

MONKTON ROAD

22

56

44

2 0
14

79

20

24
22

Rectory

St Paulinus
RC Church

18

226

230 2

12

24

1

13

16

25

14

26

38

57

63

55
53

BELLFARM
AVENUE

65

2

22 32

49

17
3
1

15
13

M
ID

D
LE

H
A

M
A

V
E

N
U

E
MIDDLEHAM AVENUE

12

59

69
54

42

67

55

LILLING
AVENUE

24
7

23
5

22
5

252

2

234
232

250
248

238
236

3
1

HU
NT

IN
G

TO
N

R
O

AD

45 54

35

25

1

12
2

31
29

ROCHE AVENUE
R

O
C

H
E

A
V

E
N

U
E

13

42

32

22

29

39

Bellf
arm

Birch Park

57
50

THE CROSSWAY

67

17

69

El Sub Sta

El Sub Sta

Soc
ial

Club

5

22

23

25

1

29

12

24

PIN
SENT

C
O

U
R

T

REDGRAVE

CLOSE

9

7

15

105 1072

10

26

30

28

HALEY'S
TERRACE

SOMERSET ROAD

M
ONTROSE

AVENUE

El
Sub Sta

Brooklands

1
t o

4

The Lodge

H
U

N
TI

N
G

T O
N

R
O

A
D

Rive
r Fos

s

No 2 Lodge

Yearsley Bridge Centre

El Sub Sta

PO

Bridge Inn
(PH)

Pavilion

21
7

20
7

19
7

19
1 to

19
5

18
5

220

208

196

48

50

17
5

16
3

15
9

15
5

15
1

14
7

190

180

170

17

23

32

20

18 14

34
to

48

15
to

29
13

11

1

9

12

7

1

24a

23

24
25

2

4

5
6

7

11

16

S
IR

O
C

C
O

C
O

U
R

T5

1 to 4

1

13
21

4

BOWLING GREEN

C
O

UR
T

10

26

10

2

18

B
O

W
L I

N
G

G
R

E
E

N
C

R
O

FT

1

36

28
20

7

9

19

13

SOMERSET ROAD

FOSSWAY

M
O

N
TR

O
S

E
AV

EN
U

E

Y
E

A
R

S
L E

Y
C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

ASHVILLE STREET

OAKVILLE STREET

R
iv

er
Fo

ss

H
U

N
TIN

G
TO

N
R

O
AD

ARRAN PLACE

A
R

R
A

N
PLAC

E

El Sub Sta

30
16

2

1
13

25
37

2
12

24
36

1
11

23
33

2
12

24

3
15

75
b

7 7
9 1

9 3
1 0

5
1 0

7
1 1

9

121

1 2
3

13
1

14
3 166

154

142

132

120
1 18

10 6

96

42

1a
1

13
25

37
51

24

14

6
6a

9
1 0

1
15

10
8

93
10

5

12

1920

2122

3132

4344

75

75

El Sub Sta

RAMSAY CLOSE

94

S
T

M
arys

H
o use

006
106
206

005
105
205

White
Cross

Court

12

1 3
11

15
to

27

85
to

97

43
to

55
57

to
69

75
c

1 to
6

O
akville

Court

1
3

7

WHITECROSS GARDENS

W
es tw

ar d
H

ouse

1
to

7

Winteringham House
1 to 18

8
to

15

67

55

45

2

8

86

76

68

83

71

59

47

66

54

42 Drain

104

9 2

85

SAXON PLACE1
3

97

10
9

79

90

78

100

12
3

128

116

13
5

12
3

D
O

D
S

W
O

R
T

H
A

V
E

N
U

E

P
O

TT
E

R
Y

LA
N

E

1 10
120

132

144

Drain

D
rain

15
1

1 3
7

20

34

150

140

15
9

14
7

168 60to70

15to18 11to14

46
to
36

58
to
48

156

72to82

5to10

1to4
124to130

116

122

90
to
84

102
to
92

114
to

104

FOSSWAY

ST WULSTAN CLOSE

Pond

138

132

140

142

144to150

158

152

16
0

to
16

6

181
to

191
193

to
203

168to174

178
176

Drain

Pond Drain

1

11 13
15

21
23 29

31

2

2

11

21
23

49
51

12

2 1
4 3

M
IS

TR
A

L
C

O
U

R
T

STURDEE GROVE

6
4

53

67

44

1

85 to 91

83

77

FOSSW
AY

St Wulstan's

Church

57

131117

109 to 115

107

101

93

99

42

32

43

123 125

133 to 139

141

143

147

145
157

159

22

MUNCASTERGATE

29

149 to 155

9

16
1

to
16

7

169 to 175

179
177

810112

15

El Sub Sta

Pond

Pond

ARRAN

PLACE

D
r ain

Drain

9

11
13

15

5
7

2 4 8

10
16

18

7

R
E

D
G

R
A

V
E

C
L O

S
E

3

68

76

1

1

El Sub Sta

3

4

6

78

94

96

11

C
HESTNU

T
AVENU

E

LIM
E

AVEN
U

E

STOCKTON LANE

C
H

A
R

LE
S

M
O

O
R

O
A

KLAN
D

AV
EN

U
E

H
ER

B
ER

TS
W

A
Y

102

116

118

3

9

2

1

2

16

120

18

16
15

16

1
to

4

10

M
onk

St ray
H

ouse

9

2

25

39

D
r a

in

M
A

LT
O

N
R

O
A

D

21

24

2
6

1

24

Swiss
Cottage

M
O

N
K

AV
E

N
U

E

STRAY GARTH

Beechcroft

West

Winds

3

Pond

Strines

23WAY

MEADOW

Drain

18

9

Pond

Pond

W
ES

TLAN
D

S
G

R
O

VE

1

33

45

34

30

18

15

2

4

3

MUNCASTERGATE

Muncaster House

(Club House)

Dra
in W

ILLOW
GROVE

4

1

11

5

ELM
FIE

LD
TERRACE

LANDS
GROVE

1

5

2

4

57

6

52

42

27

37

32

38

E
LM

LAN
D

S
G

R
O

VE

7

to13

3

9

5

Bethel

15
16

17

14

12
a

12

STRAY

11

10

6

7

18

7

25

14

9

23

10

3

O
A

KLAN
D

AV
EN

U
E

OAKLAND DRIVE

22
24

16

24

21

2

41

43

1 11

14

26

HEMPLAND DRIVE

26

38

25

24

49

37

56

62

43

57

122

132

142

LA
N

E

H
EM

PL
A

N
D

71

154

6

5

13

1

160

40
23

4

14

15

3

2

1

9

15

19

12

6

WHITBY DRIVE

CAEDM
O

N
C

LO
S

E

14

19

11

7

WESTLANDS GROVE

1

11

11
a

9a

9

7

73

85

168

172

176

STOCKTON LANE

Hotel

97

182

192

204

7

14

E
LM

LAN
D

S
G

R
O

VE

5

1

10

12

2

6 2

15

25

W
O

O
D

LAN
D

S
G

R
O

VE
26

18

93a

109

125

121

216

24

47

35

44

28

1 8

32

31

27

14

11

15

9

2

16

2

1

7

GREEN MEADOWS

LAWNWAY

PARK DRIVE

GREENFIELD

4

14

5

13

109a

3a 3

ELMPARK VALE

GREENFIELD PARK

DRIVE

1
1a

23b

23

17

Medical
Centre

8

20

16

23

17

21

GREENFIELD PARK DRIVE

37

41

52

48

54

45

16

WHITBY AVENUE

Hempland
Primary School

66

74

78

61

22

51

29

APPLEC
R

O
FT

R
O

AD

86

2

12

13

2

1

9

1

11

HA
ZE

L
G

AR
TH

12

20

21

3

10

22

21

13

13

Pump
House

35

38

28

AS
H

LE
Y

PA
R

K
C

R
E

SC
EN

T

1

12

9

33

2

ASH CLOSE

1

9

17

16

2

23

1

ALGARTH
ROAD

37

23

22

32

2

25

44

49

58

48

32

63

14

1

13

16

12

5

SANDSTOCK ROAD

ALGARTH RISE

4

10

11

49

AS
H

LE
Y

PAR
K

R
O

A
D

1

11

12

2

1

11

CEDAR GROVE

37

34

40

42

48

SPRINGFIELD WAY

21
22

18

16

68

23

48

1

127

2

226

2

G
REEN

FIELD
PAR

K
D

RIVE

220

4

228

71

61

1

64
62

60
58

56

HIGH OAKS

12

50

1

11

12

2

THE GLADE

2

21
22

26

23
33

38
G

A
LT

R
E

S
A

V
E

N
U

E

Christ Church

6

STOCKTON
LANE

187

232
230

7
5

286

282

24

22

15

17

9
11

189

260
258

23
25

1
3

21
19

244
242

2

14

13

1

5

7

R
YDAL

AVENU
E

Club

85

3

5

7

16

6

8

87

4

14

99

111

1

3

10

2

144

140

M
EADLAN

DS

Galtres

School

RIBSTONE GROVE

WORCESTER

1

2

5

7

3

7

AVENUE

LANGDALE

22

32

42

3

15

18
20

BURNHOLME AVENUE

24

34
37

27

64

54

123

125 127

129

141

94 7

84

74

BAD BARGAIN LANE

146

155a18

155

153

1

19

31

55

12
11

43

STRAY
RO

AD

HILBECK GROVE

2

1

17

15

11

81

32

67

KINGS
ACRE

20

1

7

1

2

9

11

8

Tang Hall Beck

27

1

11

15

2

28

11

12

1

7

12

14

BRAMLEY
GARTH

Hempland
Primary School

APPLEC
R

O
FT

R
O

AD

16

26

36

15

2

ASHLEY PARK CRESCENT

1

23

9

17

1

6

2

14

39

24

Community
Centre

Burnholme

Court

HAZEL GARTH

HEWORTH HALL DRIVE

13

23

42

36 33

32

20

1
27

25

W
O

OD
SID

E
AV

EN
UE

13

28

14

2

20

14

1

PO

GERARD AVENUE

LE
YLA

ND
RO

AD

17

27

13

4

16

15

3

Burnholme
Social Club

6

2

67

75

83

13

23

M
U

LW
ITH

CLOSE

60

62

66

68

7270

74

76

61
47

3

1

33

35

68a

56

44W
ALN

EY
ROAD

35

47

35

25

BU
R

N
H

O
LM

E
D

R
IVE

Cottage Mews

27

42

29

1

3

4

5

3

28

34 1

9

28

11

15

20

32

33

18

14

22

BURNHOLME AVENUE

R
YDAL

AVENU
E

HEWORTH

73

63

61

Walnut Tree
(PH)

66

Garage

72

58

97

91
87

82

85

83

81

78

68

80

98

2
1

8
7

GLAISBY

C
O

U
R

T

119

113

Ta
ng

Ha
ll

Bec
k

101
103

105
to

111

50

42

8

14

KIRKSTO
NE

DRIVE

THIRLMERE
DRIVE

21

27

1

7

12

18

24

17

O
AK

LA
N

D
A

VE
N

U
E

16

19

9

44

54

53

37

7

HEMPLAND
AVENUE

H
EM

P
LA

N
D

LA
N

E

47

38

87

99

99a

12 3

O
A

KLAN
D

AV
EN

U
E

1 2

26

34

42

12

35

10

25

28

2

26 45

61
73

1

30

42 48

Drain

PW

BAD BARGAIN LANE

OAKLAND DRIVE

81a

99

75 77
79

89

80

90

B
U

LL
L A

N
E

EASTER
N

TERR
AC

E

PO

100

110

112

2

10

20

24

1

13

23

45

SE
C

O
N

D
A

VE
N

U
E

2

12

24

47

1

13

23

49

51 53

F IR
ST

A
VE

N
U

E

MAIN AVENUE

Vicarage

40

2
2a

2b

142

4

13

27

Heworth
House

Heworth
Church

Hall

M
E

LR
O

S
E

G
A

TE

18

32

14

7

1

CORNBOROUGH AVENUE

101

25
to

31

19

105 107
111

115

127

EAST PARADE

74
76

80

84

157
153

147

137

126

128

134

Holy Trinity

Church

75

21
13

51

12
2

2

1

5

1
5

Heworth

Methodist

Chapel

HEWORTH

83

HEWORTH HALL DRIVE

49
29

16

30 56

17

31

55

106

112

HEWORTH GREEN

31

41

28

38

42

3 52

HEWORTH ROAD

H
E

W
O

R
TH

P
LAC

E

PH

56

26 27

15

51

55

64

Heworth
C of E

Primary
School

62

59

67

34

11
11a

51

1

7

1
13

27

1

D
A

LE
'S

LA
N

E

HARRISON STREET

Clark's Terrace

94

82

70

95

85

77

57

55
c

55a
55b

OAKLAND AVENUE

93

99

2

21

22

14

10

12

1

STOCKTO
N

LA
NE

6

GROVE
SEYMOUR

24

2

14

3

FOREST GROVE

1

26

41

38
a

38

52

FO
REST

W
AY

31

33
37

43

30

34

35

20 18

25

37

HEMPLAND AVENUE

M
A

LT
O

N
R

O
A

D

Herdsman's Cottage

PCs

30

64

1

11

12

2

62

34 32

36

C
H

ESTN
UT

AVENU
E

21

4

14

24

36

9

21

12

3

15

25

18

22

24

24
a

26

28

28
a

LIM
E

AVENU
E

Greenlay

House

PAR
ADE

C
O

U
RT

30a

Vicarage

28
b

Bank

28a

1

3

123

1

21

73

77

81

79

4

5

24

29

1

9

16

17 18

23

2

5

10
11

13

19

20

LIM
E

S
C

O
U

R
T

17

Depot

15

26

Surgery

14

26

36

31

M
ILL

LA
N

E

6 1

3

25

21

15

1

20
1816

Hyrst
Mews

Garage

EAST PARADE

2

37

49

61

71

Shelter

PC

PO

Heworth
Croft Hostel

(St John's College)

1

7

20

35

37

45

VILLA
G

R
O

VE

36

1

49a

51

44

1

3

11

2

Heworth
Court

Surgery

Surgery

HEWORTH GREEN

54

9
to
1

64

1

Heworth

Hyrst

Hotel

CIN
DER

LAN
E

JOHN STREET

WOOD STREET

EASTER
N

TER
RAC

E

Eastern Court

1 to 15

21 to 31

2
to

8

2to4

6to12

30to36

10
to

16

1

3

1
to

7

9
to

15

17

19

GLADSTONE STREET

Garage

R
i ver

Foss

D
EN

N
I S

O
N

S
TR

E
E

T

14 8

HYRST

GROVE

2

10

4

53

8

1

El Sub Sta

Beverley G
ardens

65

70

66

81

79

100

96

94

82

Drain

W
ar

eh
ou

s e

1

1

DO
DSW

OR
TH

AVEN
UE

24

14

14

12

4to10

2

1

13

16
to

22

17

11

25

16

28

9

3

IRWIN
AVENUE

48

38

10

4

89

56

50

64

M
ALTO

N
AVEN

UE

41

31

21

62

52

42

32

41

31

21

11

38

26

PO
TTER

Y
LAN

E

11

18

12

IR
W

IN
AV

EN
UE

70
71

59

49

39

Drain

22to28

1

51a

Redhouse

7

68

1a
to

1d

Gymnasium

Langley

House

to

5

4

20

Blencathra

16

Susan

Court 1

3

HEW
ORTH

MEW
S7 to

14

GREEN
LA

NE
G

EO
R

G
E

C
O

U
R

T

PARK CRESCENT

26

32

7

12

8

4 12

18

19

20

21

1

7

1
3

1 to 4

9

M
ar

ke
n

Ho
us

e

1

9

1

8

11 13

DALG
UISE

G
RO

VE

HEWORTH GREEN

W
yk

eh
am

Ho
us

e
76

12
1

2525
.5

G
R

O
VE

S
LA

NE

1

21

13

17

17

Rive
r

Foss

22

30

Minster
Engineering

Works

Heworth
Croft Hostel

(St John's College)

44

34

27

4

14

24

21

11

PARK GROVE

H
U

N
TI

N
G

TO
N

R
O

A
D

1

64

40

52

38

25

22

2

GLADSTONE STREET

DENNISON STREET

EAR
LE

STREET

121

11

1

7

1

48

EMERALD STREET

GR
O

VE
TE

RR
AC

E
LA

NE

2

24

14

9

37

23

2

34

12

24

92

80

66

4

37

49

51
51

a
53

53
a

55

3

W
ar

eh
ou

se

DIAMOND STREET

73

63

23

33

43

53

48

36

R
iver

Foss

32a

2

5

37a

9

Cruse House

Robinson House
House
Boyle

1

4

1

5

9

1

4

4

8

5

1

005
105
205

006
106
206

Mon
k Brid

ge
Cou

rt

2

4

LO
W

TH
ER

C
O

UR
T

RAMSAY CLOSE

3

Lowther

Court

1
to

4

13 to 16
9 to 12

Foss House

Keldy House

1 to 4

1 to 4

PH

Supermarket

AGAR
STREET

Rive
r Fo

ss
Fos

s Nav
iga

tio
n

FO
SS

BANK

Works

LA
YERTHORPE

St Cuthbert's

Church

PEASH
OLM

E
GREEN

FOSS
ISLANDS

ROAD

MANSFIE
LD

STREET

Forge

54to5843

39

17
to

27

14

11

6

1

72

84

75

65

63

61

1

59

57

Garage

Garage

Garage

El S
ub

Sta

The
Old

Fruit

Ware
ho

us
e

1 t
o 4

15

El Sub Sta

Ebor

Incinerator

El
Sub Sta

Works

Store

Works

Garage

Works

REDENESS
STR

EET

Works

T H
E

ROPEW
ALK

HALLFIELD
ROAD

RICHMOND
STREET

LITTLE HALLFIELD ROAD

Works

BOWES AVENUE

FOURTH AVENUE

Glenside Flats

F IFTH
A

V
E

N
U

E

SCROPE AVENUE

FA
B

E
R

S
T R

E
E

T

Works

Works

PH

LA
YERTHORPE

H
A

W
TH

O
R

N
S

TR
EE

T

G
LE

N
AV

EN
U

E

FLEMING AVENUE

SIXTH AVENUE

Glen
Lo

dg
e

EM
M

E
R

S
O

N
S

TR
E

ET

ClubM
i ll ga rth

H
A

R
C

O
U

R
T

S
TR

E
E

T

GLEN ROAD

E l Sub
S ta

HAWTHORN GROVE

Garage

Gas Holder

Depot

10
12

14

17

7

2

14

28

35

25

13

1

2

12

2

12

20

29
19

9

1

2

14

26

38

58

72

1

5

9

11

15

17

21

23

29

31
35

22

20

16

47

45
14

43
33

21
9

47

51

53

2

2

6
12

18

12

8

98

90

101

93

83

13

7

1

81

71

61

2 14 24

1 to 67to1112to1617 to 22
91

31

23

11

7

1

21

1 1

10

6

1

27
25

23 a
23

9

18

2

16

13

1

20

22

12

4

2

15

1

7

1

1412
10

8

2

28

6

1a

10

24

9

1

14

16

14

22

31

19

9

3

1

129

119

87

Garage

15

EAST PARADE

Ban
k

3

18

27

51

10

5

Industrial Estate

7

19

4

6

8

41

39

60

3 3

131 to
145

14
a

17
18

12

9
7

6

4

1

124
130

64

62

7

1

2

4

Millennium Court

HEW
ORTH

MEW
S

1to
6

15 to
20

El S
ub Sta

1

3

5

5a

1

2
Merchants Court

100

102

70 73

105

113

115

123

102

116

32 31

133
135

130

144

FIFTH AVENUE

74

149

71
83

30

44

156

7

3

6

2

187

193

STARKEY CRESCENT

28 32

38
48

58

39

49
61

44

2

12
22

1
11

21

C
A

R
TE

R
A

V
E

N
U

E

46

60

46
60

49
59

62

El Sub Sta

2

16

EI
G

H
TH

AV
EN

UE

20

23

9

COSMO AVENUE

31

37

34

S
I X

TH
A

V
E

N
U

E

33
47

36

61

72

69

63

67

39

15

S
E

V
E

N
TH

A
V

E
N

U
E

FOURTH AVENUE

71 75 77

1

48

61 1

79

58

89

84

M
E

LR
O

S
E

G
A

TE

10

4

105 111

92
106

School
Primary

619
25

Tang Hall

15
29

20

34

31

4038a3836

16

1 7

2 7

14

24

THIRD AVENUE

47

34
44

54

2

NINTH AVENUE

47 21

11

3

W
O

LF
E

AV
ENU

E

Tang Hall Beck

B
U

LL
LA

N
E

1

2

2

1

Glen Lodge

El Sub Sta

Glenfield

15

43

14

26

26

36

MAIN AVENUE

29

36

28

29

31

16

35

1

6

SE
C

O
N

D
A

VE
N

U
E

EASTBOURNE GROVE

25

11

8

20

32

29

31

1

2

33

5

1a 17

15

19

7

19

12

24

CO
RN

BO
RO

U
GH

AV
EN

UE

TANG HALL LANE

CORNBOROUGH

AVENUE

MELROSE

CLOSE

73

1
2

3
7

8
9

14
15

16
20

21
22

456 101112

171819 232425

Poplar Tree

Gardens

Library

W
OO

DHO
USE

G
RO

VE

FIFTH AVENUE

APPLEBY
PLACE

STERNE AVENUE

R
O

C
KI

N
G

H
A

M
AV

EN
UE

COSMO AVENUE

ST
AR

KE
Y

C
RE

SC
EN

T

TANG
HALL

LANE

PLUMER
AVENUE

INGLETON WALK

PEN
Y

G
H

E
NT

AV
EN

U
E

W
H

ER
N

SIDE
AV

EN
U

E

ASQUITH
AVENUE

FOURTH
AVENUE

Tang
Hall
(PH)

M
E

LR
O

SE
C

LO
SE

W
OLFE

AVE

El Sub Sta

BAD BARGAIN LANE

BAD BARGAIN
LANE

BU
RN

H O
LM

E
G

R
O

VE

B
urnholm

e

C
om

m
unity

C
ollege

El
Sub Sta

GERARD AVENUE

LE
YL

AND
RD

GILES AVENUE

HO
LR

O
YD

AV
EN

UE

Park Court

HallTa
ng

H
al

l B
ec

k

W
A

LN
E

Y
R

O
A

D

23

25

31

2

16

1

9

1

9

15

1

5

1

7

14

20

26

6

2

17

27

39

51

1

11

23

2a

8

2a

53

63

66
64

1

13

25
26

14

2

62

52

1

13

25

37

51

63

76

64

52

40

28

16

2

50

40

1

15

27

39

53

65

79

56

54

14

7

1

52

42

40

30

22

24

14

2

1

11

23

20

10

2

38

28

158

142

141

147

26

14

441

47

55

63

81

89

97

1

9

19

20

12

2

99

113

127

1

5

10

275

285

295

305

307

300
298

296

292

12

290

273

261

2472229

211
197

10

22

34

46

56

68

134

140

68

82

55

43

29

15

1

14

24

24

18

13

7

1

26

38

48

84

98

11
0

12
2

27

29

48

58

66

139

131

14

12

3
1

119115

110

122

132

51

39

27

2

14

5

1

25

11

Health Services

Centre

BURNHO
LM

E

DRIVE

65

79

17

2to
5

6 to 11

PO

2

4

G
ILLA

M
O

O
R

AVEN
UE

ENNERDALE
AVENUE

FIFTH AVENUE

302

1

6

10

16

304

306

2

10

18

Liby

MALHAM GROVE

1

308

9

1

13

14

2

EL Sub Sta

PEN
YG

H
EN

T

AV
EN

U
E

73

79

315

325

333

320

St Aelred's RC
Primary School

27

R
U

S S
ET

D
RI

V
E

28

1

Burnholme Community College

14

9

11

15

2

WORCESTER DR

2a

Pond

10

9

5

1

DARNBRO
O

K
W

ALK

2

Galtres

School

Library

13

23

35

1

15

29

28

34

1

3

4

9

14

20

AM
BLESIDE

AVENUE

1

7

11

16

CONISTON DRIVE

1

7

11

16

GRASMERE DRIVE

2

36

44

52

67

55

43

34

M
O

ORE
AVENUE

13

17

41

TEMPLE AVENUE

IN
G

LEBO
R

O
U

G
H

AVEN
U

E

LANG AVENUE

10

18

26

2

12

20

26

12

2

1

7

Tem
ple

Villas

17
8

18
2

18

17

BURNISTON GROVE

El Sub Sta

187
189

1
3

29

31

33
35

41

51

61

71

Osbaldwick Beck

1

11

21

31

32

22

12

2

49

55

30

26

16

17

3
2

PH

1

Campbell
Court

18

19

24

25

33 31

62

Sub StaOSBALDWICK
LANE

M
O

O
RE

AVENU
E

70

56

TUKE AVENUE

42

22

12

2

47

1

11

4

1

18
6

19
0

127

117

118

57

L ILAC
AVENUE

MILLFIELD LANE

TANG

El

1 59

1 55

Westminster House
Nursing Home

6

2 M
E

A
D

O
W

B
E

C
K

C
LO

S
E

1

Vicarage

OLD SCHOOL

58
60

St Hilda's

9

1

5

8

18

13

19

24

Church

ST HILDA'S MEWS

25

37

49

60

62

1

13

25

Osbaldwick Beck

FLAXMAN
AVENUE

37

75

MILLFIELD LANE

87

101 105
103 107

111

112
114

5

48

58

68

43

47

1

63

1

13

14

2

65

75

28

74

64

82

85

33

6

1

92

8 7

ALCUIN AVENUE

ALLEN CLOSE

3

49

61

21
22

23

30

37

102

Pond

11

16

BURNISTON

GROVE

49

59

71

80

4038

3634

48
46

44
42

54
56

52
50

64
62

60
58

72
70

68
66

12

2

HEWLEY AVENUE

BU
RLI

NG
TO

N
AV

EN
UE

HEW
LEY

AVENUE

83

92

104

25

37

26

23

37

95

38

50

49

21
22 7

8

WELBORN CLOSE

El
Sub Sta

112

122

71

105

113

123

125

95

72

62

36
2

1

Hall

73
75

14
4

15
0124

138Shelter

20

30

42

15

27

7

10

93

62

114

124

64

39

51

52

61

76 88

75

63

CONSTANTINE AVENUE

87

99

100

112

73
85

111

139

14
2

14
0

126

153

147

145

143

141

2

6

TANG
H

ALL
LANE

LANG AVENUE

Presbytery

222

Cherry Tree

House

AVENUEFIFTH

234 246

258

270

280

13
8

12
4

282

286 W
O

O
DH

O
U

SE
G

R
O

VE

2

6

11

131

1

9

Health

Centre
Services

St Hilda's

Church

ST HILDA'S
MEWS

D
r a

in

Tel Ex

Beck

Osbaldwick

El Sub Sta

2 0
6

19
6

2

1

16

12

17 19

6

ALCUIN AVENUE

21

62

50

1

11

24

14

2

65

HARINGTON AVENUE

233

221

17
2

18
2

19
4

21

36

1

44

30

13

25

37

77
81

79
83

5147

4945

209

BURLINGTON AVENUE

91

77

16
2

88

76

103

115

127

16
0

RAWDON AVENUE

Shelter

187

199

5

11

19
15

13
17

22
18

20
24

30
26

28
32

2

16

16

M
EL

R
O

S
EG

AT
E

HEW
LE

Y
AVE

NUE

HEWLEY AVENUE

14
6

1

11

1

6

CONSTANTINE AVENUE

DE
R

W
EN

T
AV

ENU
E

Tang Hall Beck

1 to 4
5 to 8

7
t o

1 2
1

to
6

170 to
176

168
162

Arden House

C
o r

b r
i d

g e
H

o u
se

FIFTH AVENUE

St
A e

lre
d'

s
C

h u
rc

h

Tang Hall
Community

Centre

28
to

31

32to35

1
t o

2 1

24 to 27

23
22

S
T

A
E

LR
E

D
S

C
LO

S
E

BECKSIDE

GARDENS

,

A
le

x
Ly

on
H

ou
se

Huby Court

ST MARGARET'S TERRACE

6to1

26
to

34

1 to 6

7 to 13

10
to
13

4to9

1
to
3

36
to

46

15

Depot

J A
M

E
S

S
TR

E
E

T

ELVINGTON TERRACE

5

Warehouse4

6

42

55

36

41

Raylor  Centre

39

38

14
16

18
to

28

7
to

12

17
to

22

25
to

23

FO
S S

ISLAN
D

S
R

O
A

D

RO
SEM

AR
Y

C
T

R
O

SEM
AR

Y
PL A

CE

13
to

16

Warehouse 18to20
17 16

24

ALEXANDRA COURT

21

Depot

NAVIGATION ROAD

156
to
168

144

154
to

Works

Warehouse

1 2

3
5

6

9

Garage

D
r a

in

Depot

Incinerator

Tang Hall Beck

Ebor Industrial Estate

13
14

16
15

19
20

30b

34

6 a

1 2

HAZEL COURT

Raylor  Centre

BRUNSWICK PLACE

Water

FOSS
ISLANDS

ROAD

Depot

Garage

River Foss

Foss Navigation
El Sub Sta

ROSEMARY PLACE

R
O

SEM
AR

Y

COURT

N
AV

IG
ATIO

N
R

O
AD

Bus Depot

Wormald's Cut

Garage

Hotham's
Court

G
EO

RG
E

ST
RE

ET

H
U

R
S

T '
S

Y
A R

D

Garage

PH

M
AR

G
AR

ET
ST

RE
ET

P
AV

ER
LA

N
E

PERCY'S LANE

Hall

St Margaret's

Church

Building

Bretgate

ST MARGARET'S

TERRACE

48
to

58

7

9

15 17

1924

23
22

8to11

7
5

6

1
2 21 23

29 31

116

77

75

73

69
6765

1a

1

3

5
to

7

17

9

18

10

2

2a

63
61

57

51

5
1

7
3

8
4

2
4

6 11

9

3
1

66
68

70
72

74

84
86

88 to 96

98

102

114

1

132to142

104
to

114

118

2to12

116

120to130

5 to 17

3

1

88
to

98

102 33

100 31

1 to 6

76
to

86

64
to

74

62
60

26to291

7

to118

2

1
3

110to112

101
2

3

4to13

Robinson Court

59

5

1 to 61

Navigation Wharf

Thistleton
Court 19

to
21

22
to

24

34
to

36
25

to
27

3

Tr
en

t H
ou

se

Ca
lde

r H
ou

se

85
7

6

1
to

7

8
to

13

14
to

20

31
33

19
21

17

7 HOPE
STREET

52

46

33

3144

CHAPEL ROW

PEEL STREET

G
EO

R
G

E
STR

EET

Presby

St George's

Catholic
Church

23

M
AR

G
AR

ET
ST

RE
ET Sh

an
no

n
Ho

us
e

Thames House

Avon House

1 to 7

1
to

6

7
to

12

13
to19

1

4

8

5

12
1

11
2

WALMGATE

Bretgate

Medway House

21
20 5

1

136

120
122 126

124

128 130
132

12to15

12
5

to
13

5

13
7

to
14

7

54
to

64

113to123

47
to

57

109

95

1

8

111

El

Sub
Sta

PO

8 to 13

16to19

7to9

85to93Thistleton
Court

1
to

3

4
to

6

7
to9

13
to

15

St Edmund's House

Willow
House

PH

PH

13

17

23

3
t o

7

18

12

PH

1 LE
A

K
E

ST
RE

ET

PH

Club

27

29 31

35

39

35

1

41

Garage

31

1
6

33

2015

Club

Walmgate

FO
S

S
IS

L A
N

D
S

R
O

AD

7
to

16

3938

23to25

17to22

4140

26
to
37

N
A

V
IG

A
TI

O
N

R
O

A
D

149to159

Huby
Court

13
8

3
2a

11

BRINKWORTH TERRACE

Warehouse

Warehouse

JA
M

E
S

S
TR

E
E

T

3

4

20

11

22

15
12

1

1
4

Works

CHAUCER STREET

HERBERT STREET

ARTHUR STREET

LA
N

S
D

O
W

N
E

T
E

R
R

A
C

E

N
IC

H
O

LA
S

S
TR

E
E

T

16
21

26

10 6 2 1b 1

32
28

21
1611

10 5 1 27
22

1510

17
24

37

33

8
4

EMILY MEWS

12 13

11

1

1

46

3938

A
BB

O
TS

FO
R

D
R

O
A

D

2

3

24
0

267

17

21
16

11

7
14

20
26 25a

26a
27

33
40

37

7 to 12

M
IL

T
O

N
S

TR
E

E
T

STREET

BU
LL

LA
N

E

34
41

6

21.5

102
101

6
to
3

31
to

36

133

37
25

15

16

28
32

34

M
E

L R
O

S
E

G
A

TE

22
8

22
4

22
6

Osbaldwick Beck

65

21

18
13

7
12

Matmer

Court

23
8a

1 to 6

Berkeley

House

Juno House

Neptune

House

OLYMPIAN COURT

127
Tradewinds

1 to 8

1 to 37

Liber house

1 to 12

P
avilion

Osbaldwick

El
Sub Sta

MILLFIELD AVENUE

7

19

29

37
37a

39

51

65 102

106

1

5

10

W
AY

NEFLEET
G

RO
VE

98

84

7268

54

40

38

26

14

15

29

12

M
ILSO

N
G

R
O

VE

13

27

21

MILLFIELD LANE

52

40

28

1

31
29

26

2818

Beck

24

12b
14

24

59

55

45

33

54

Ri
ve

r F
os

s

4400

Drain

22
24

1

Pump House

R
ive

rF
o s

s

19

W
H

ITBY
AV

EN
UE

25

10

156

11

22

Lang House

8

1

59

B
U

LL
LA

N
E

1
2

53

CHARLOTTE STREET

El
Sub Sta

Works 48

6

8to10

2
1

7
14

30
29

6

TH
O

M
A

S
STR

E
E

T

HILDA STREET

G
R

A
N

V
ILLE

TE
R

R
A

C
E

114

3 7
9C

O
U

R
T

1C
A

TH
E

R
IN

E

ARTHUR

27

42

N

S

EW

Established Public Footpath

Paths already on central
Highways register

9, St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET  Telephone: 01904 551550

Paths under investigation

25/02/2010

City of York Council  LA 1000 20818

123 NEW NUMBER

123 OLD NUMBER

157 28

158
29

18
159

20

162

156
13

155
14

160 19

161
21

10
177

17
10

177
176

9175

175

8
174

7178

15
173

172
2

1701

16
171

168

26
27

169
12155

25
16712155

24
166

155
12

23

165

164
6

181 5

1804

3 182

179 11

155

12

22
163

13
156

14

155

3

2

Page 111



Page 112

This page is intentionally left blank



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Heworth Ward 
 

Schedule 1 
 

 

Ward:  Heworth 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 155 (Heworth)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath commencing at the ward boundary on the old railway bridge over Huntington Road 
and continuing south-east along the old railway line under Heworth Green bridge then 
heading south before curving east behind James Street travellers site and continuing to the 
Osbaldwick parish boundary just beyond the Ambleside Avenue. 
 
Approximate length 
2770 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
SE 6089 5316 SE 6272 5201 Tarmac 

 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
SE 6089 5316 SE 6272 5201 2.5-2.8m 

 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
Bridge SE 6089 5316 Y155a 

 
 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans  �  1990  
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence     
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric  �   
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water  �   
York Waterworks �    
 
Recommendation:  
No further action at this time 
 

Page 113



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Heworth Ward 
 

Schedule 2 
 

 

Ward:  Heworth 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 158 (Heworth)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath starting next to 16 Thornfield Avenue and running north-west to Healey Grove 
between nos 11 & 12. 
 
Approximate length 
70 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 6176 5387 SE 6171 5390 Paved 
 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 6176 5387 SE 6171 5390 1.2m 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   
   

 
 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans  �  1978  
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence     
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas � �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric � �   
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water  �   
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
Make Definitive Map Modification Order 

Page 114



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Heworth Ward 
 

Schedule 3 
 

 

 Ward:  Heworth 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 159 (Heworth)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath starting next to Linwood Croft, Malton Road and running north-west  to Sefton 
Avenue, between nos. 30 & 32. 
 
Approximate length 
153 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 6194 5373 SE 6186 5385 Natural 
 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 6194 5373 SE 6186 5385 1m 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   
   

 
 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans  �  1978  
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence    Correspondence 
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric �    
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water  �   
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
Make Definitive Map Modification Order 

Page 115



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Heworth Ward 
 

Schedule 4 
 

 

Ward:  Heworth 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 160 (Heworth)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath starting at corner of Straylands Grove and Woodlands Grove and running north 
westerly between houses to cross Monk Stray to a gate on Malton Road opposite Laburnum 
Garth. 
 
Approximate length 
130 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
SE 6201 5358 SE 6198 5362                      Tarmac 
SE 6198 5362 SE 6192 5368                      Natural 

 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 6201 5358 SE 6198 5362 1.2m 
SE 6198 5362 SE 6192 5368 1m 

 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
Cycle barrier SE 6201 5358 Y160a 

Cycle barrier (end of tarmac) SE 6198 5362 Y160b 
Gate (Malton Road) SE 6192 5368 Y160d 

 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans  �  1966 & 1978 
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence     
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric �    
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water  �   
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
Make Definitive Map Modification Order 

Page 116



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Heworth Ward 
 

Schedule 5 
 

 

Ward:  Heworth 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 161 (Heworth)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath starting at junction with York 160 and running to Elmpark View, between nos. 27 & 
25. 
 
Approximate length 
35 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 6200 5360 SE 6202 5362 Concrete 
 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 6200 5360 SE 6202 5362 1m 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   
   

 
 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans  �  1966  
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence     
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric  �   
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water  �   
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
Make Definitive Map Modification Order 
 

Page 117



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Heworth Ward 
 

Schedule 6 
 

 

Ward:  Heworth 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 162 (Heworth)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath starting opposite 18 Elmfield Terrace and crossing Monk Stray to Malton Road. 
 
Approximate length 
48 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 6167 5337 SE 6162 5336 Natural 
 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 6167 5337 SE 6162 5336 undefined 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   

Gate (Elmfield Terr) SE 6167 5337 Y162b 
Gate (Malton Road) SE 6162 5336 Y162a 

 
 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans      
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence     
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric  �   
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water  �   
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
No further action at this time 
 

Page 118



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Heworth Ward 
 

Schedule 7 
 

 

Ward:  Heworth 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 163 (Heworth)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath starting on Heworth Green, next to Heworth Court, and running down into the former 
railway cutting to meet York 155. 
 
Approximate length 
66 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 6122 5264 SE 6124 5258 Tarmac 
 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 6122 5264 SE 6124 5258 1 – 1.5m 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   

Cycle barrier SE 6122 5264 Y163a 
 
 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans      
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence     
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric  �   
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water  �   
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
No further action at this time 
 

Page 119



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Heworth Ward 
 

Schedule 8 
 

 

Ward:  Heworth 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 164 (Heworth)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath commencing at Heworth Green opposite Dalguise Road continuing in a southerly 
direction before emerging onto Layerthorpe. 
 
Approximate length 
245 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 6099 5254 SE 6109 5232 Tarmac 
         
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 6099 5254 SE 6109 5232 1.8m 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   
   

 
 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans  �  1852, 1891  
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence    Part Adopted & 

correspondence re history 
of route 

User Evidence    
Photographs    
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric �    
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water  �   
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
Make Definitive Map Modification Orders 
 

Page 120



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Heworth Ward 
 

Schedule 9 
 

 

Ward:  Heworth 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 165 (Heworth)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath starting next to 124 Layerthorpe and running down into former railway cutting to 
meet York 155. 
 
Approximate length 
45 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 6118 5238 SE 6117 5234 Tarmac 
 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 6118 5238 SE 6117 5234 1m 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   

Cycle barrier 6118 5238  
 
 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans      
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence     
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric  �   
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water  �   
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
No further action at this time 
 

Page 121



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Heworth Ward 
 

Schedule 10 
 

 

Ward:  Heworth 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 166 (Heworth)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath starting next to 90 Fifth Avenue and running south to meet York 155. 
 
Approximate length 
97 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 6146 5204 SE 6148 5196 Tarmac 
 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 6146 5204 SE 6148 5196 2m 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   

Cycle barrier & gate SE 6146 5203 Y166b 
 
 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans      
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence     
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric  �   
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water  �   
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
No further action at this time 
 
 

Page 122



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Heworth Ward 
 

Schedule 11 
 

 

Ward:  Heworth 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 167 (Heworth)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath starting next to St. Aelred’s Church on the corner of Melrosegate and Fifth Avenue 
and running south to meet York 155 and 186. 
 
Approximate length 
61 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 6196 5197 SE 6196 5191 Tarmac 
 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 6196 5197 SE 6196 5191 1.5m 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   

Cycle Barrier SE 6196 5191 Y167a 
 
 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans      
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence     
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric  �   
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water  �   
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
No further action at this time 
 

Page 123



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Heworth Ward 
 

Schedule 12 
 

 

Ward:  Heworth 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 168 (Heworth)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath starting next to 280 Fifth Avenue, near to junction with Tang Hall Lane, and running 
south to meet York 155. 
 
Approximate length 
53 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 6230 5198 SE 6230 5193 Tarmac 
 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 6230 5198 SE 6230 5193 2m 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   

Gate SE 6230 5198 Y168a 
 
 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans      
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence     
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric  �   
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water  �   
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
No further action at this time 
 

Page 124



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Heworth Ward 
 

Schedule 13 
 

 

Ward:  Heworth 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 169 (Heworth)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath starting on Fifth Avenue opposite Whernside Avenue and running south past Health 
Clinic and Library to meet York 155. 
 
Approximate length 
94 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 6246 5204 SE 6250 5196 Tarmac 
 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 6246 5204 SE 6250 5196 1.5m 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   

Cycle barrier SE 6250 5197 Y169a 
 
 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans      
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence     
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric  �   
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water  �   
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
No further action at this time 
 

Page 125



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Heworth Ward 
 

Schedule 14 
 

 

Ward:  Heworth 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 170 (Heworth)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath commencing between 253 & 255 Fifth Avenue and running north to emerge 
between 14 & 15 Sterne Avenue. 
 
Approximate length 
50 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 6224 5199 SE 6223 5204 Tarmac 
 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 6224 5199 SE 6223 5204 1.5m 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   

Cycle barrier SE 6224 5199 Y170a 
 
 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans  �  1960  
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence     
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric �    
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water  �   
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
Make Definitive Map Modification Order 
 

Page 126



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Heworth Ward 
 

Schedule 15 
 

 

Ward:  Heworth 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 171 (Heworth)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath starting between 10 & 11 Sterne Avenue and running north-east to Tang Hall Lane 
(between nos 112 & 114). 
 
Approximate length 
50 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 6224 5205 SE 6228 5208 Tarmac 
 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 6224 5205 SE 6228 5208 1.5m 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   
   

 
 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans  �  1960  
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence     
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric  �   
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water  �   
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
Make Definitive Map Modification Order 
 

Page 127



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Heworth Ward 
 

Schedule 16 
 

 

Ward:  Heworth 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 172 (Heworth)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath commencing between 106 & 108 Fourth Avenue and running south to between 20 & 
23 Cosmo Avenue. 
 
Approximate length 
51 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 6199 5221 SE 6198 5217 Paved 
 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 6199 5221 SE 6198 5217 0.8m 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   
   

 
 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans  �  1978  
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence     
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric �    
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water  �   
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
Make Definitive Map Modification Order 
 

Page 128



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Heworth Ward 
 

Schedule 17 
 

 

Ward:  Heworth 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 173 (Heworth)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath starting from north-east corner of Melrosegate and Fourth Avenue and running 
north-east through woodland to emerge on Tang Hall Lane near junction with Bad Bargain 
Lane. 
 
Approximate length 
208 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 6190 5223 SE 6203 5237 Natural 
 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 6190 5223 SE 6203 5237 0.5-1m 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   

Kissing gate SE 6190 5223 Y173a 
Kissing gate SE 6203 5237 Y173b 

 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans  �  1960 & 1978 
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence     
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric �    
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water �    
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
Make Definitive Map Modification Order 

Page 129



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Heworth Ward 
 

Schedule 18 
 

 

Ward:  Heworth 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 174 (Heworth)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath starts at Bad Bargain Lane near junction with Tang Hall Lane  and runs through 
Heworth Holme north to two exits on Burnholme Lane. 
 
Approximate length 
415 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
SE 6207 5237 SE 6208 5240 Natural 
SE 6208 5240 SE 6209 5242 Crushed stone 
SE 6209 5242 SE 6212 5247 Natural 
SE 6216 5247 SE 6219 5262 Woodchip 
SE 6219 5262 SE 6228 5272 Natural 

 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
SE 6207 5237 SE 6228 5272 1 – 1.2m 

 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
Cycle barrier SE 6207 5237 Y174a 

Steps SE 6228 5272 Y174c 
Cycle barrier SE 6228 5272 Y174d 
Kissing gate SE 6229 5271  

 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans  �  1850 , 1960  
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence     
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric �    
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water �    
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
Make Definitive Map Modification Order 

Page 130



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Heworth Ward 
 

Schedule 19 
 

 

Ward:  Heworth 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 175 (Heworth)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath starting on Burnholme Drive and running   north easterly alongside Tang Hall Beck, 
past the allotments and south easterly, to the bridge over Tang Hall Beck at the boundary with 
Heworth Without parish. 
 
Approximate length 
398 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 6225 5274 SE 6241 5287 Tarmac 
SE 6236 5285 SE 6255 5278 Crushed stone 

 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 6225 5274 SE 6241 5287 3m 
SE 6241 5287 SE 6255 5278 2m 

 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   
   
   

 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans      
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans    Statement of express 

dedication by landowners Other Evidence    
User Evidence    
Photographs    
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric  �   
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water  �   
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
Make Definitive Map Modification Order 

Page 131



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Heworth Ward 
 

Schedule 20 
 

 

Ward:  Heworth 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 176 (Heworth) ALREADY ON DEF MAP 
 
Description of route 
Footpath running south from York Footpath 177 (Heworth) along  the eastern edge of the 
allotments to York Footpath 175 (Heworth)  
 
Approximate length 
62 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 6238 5293 SE 6241 5287 Natural 
   

 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 6238 5293 SE 6241 5287 1m 
  1.5m 

 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   

Gate SE 6240 5280  
 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans      
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence    Statement of express 

dedication by landowners User Evidence    
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric  �   
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water  �   
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
Make Definitive Map Modification Order 

Page 132



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Heworth Ward 
 

Schedule 21 
 

 

Ward:  Heworth 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 177 (Heworth)   ALREADY ON DEF MAP 
 
Description of route 
Footpath starting between 99 & 99a Hempland Lane and running north-east to allotments. 
Then through the allotments before turning left and following boundary between allotments 
and gardens of Whitby Avenue, then turning right along a track to finish on Whitby Avenue. 
 
Approximate length 
406 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
SE 521 528 SE 622 528 Crushed stone 
SE 622 528 SE 623 529 Natural 
SE 623 529 SE 623 530 Crushed stone 

 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
SE 621 528 SE 622 528 1m 
SE 622 528 SE 623 529 1.5 
SE 623 529 SE 623 530 0.5-1m 
SE 623 530 SE 623 530 2m 

 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
Gate SE 623 530  

 
 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans      
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence    Already on Definitive Map 
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric  �   
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water  �   
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
No further action at this time 

Page 133



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Heworth Ward 
 

Schedule 22 
 

 

Ward:  Heworth 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 178 (Heworth)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath starting between 30 & 56 Heworth Village and running south easterly to finishing 
between 31 & 33 Heworth Hall Drive  
 
Approximate length 
83 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 6198 5267 SE 6199 5263 Tarmac/gravel 
SE 6199 5263 SE 6201 5260 Paved 

 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 6198 5267 SE 6199 5263 2.5m 
SE 6199 5263 SE 6201 5260 1.2m 

 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   
   

 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans  �  1960  
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence     
User Evidence    21 User Evidence Forms 
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric  �   
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water  �   
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
Make Definitive Map Modification Order 

Page 134



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Heworth Ward 
 

Schedule 23 
 

 

Ward:  Heworth 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 179 (Heworth)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath starting between Heworth Methodist Chapel and 13 Heworth and running north to 
12 Harrison Street. 
 
Approximate length 
30 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 6187 5267 SE 6186 5270 Cobbled 
 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 6187 5267 SE 6186 5270 1.3m 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   
   

 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans      
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence     
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric  �   
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water  �   
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
No further action at this time 
 

Page 135



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Heworth Ward 
 

Schedule 24 
 

 

Ward:  Heworth 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 180 (Heworth)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath commencing between 20 & 24 Second Avenue and running westwards to terminate 
next to Glenfield on Bull Lane. 
 
Approximate length 
135 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 6167 5251 SE 6155 5248 Natural 
 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 6167 5251 SE 6155 5248 1m 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   
   

 
 
 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if applicable) 
Other Information 

OS Plans  �  1852, 1891 1960 
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans    Correspondence on files 

suggests possible 
objections – path should 
be removed from current 
process and its status 
investigated further 
before any decision is 
made 

Other Evidence    
User Evidence    
Photographs    
    
Utility Companies Affected    
British Gas  �  
BT  �  
Cable & Wireless  �  
Northern Electric  �  
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water  �   
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
No further action at this time 
Ward:  Heworth 

Page 136



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Heworth Ward 
 

Schedule 25 
 

 

Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 181 (Heworth)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath commencing on Bull Lane and running west round the back of Glen Gardens to 
Glen Road. 
 
Approximate length 
170 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 6153 5248 SE 6139 5244 Tarmac  
 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 6153 5248 SE 6139 5244 1.7m 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   

Cycle barrier SE 6146 5244 Y181b 
 
 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans  �  1852, 1891 1970 
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence     
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric �    
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water  �   
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
Make Definitive Map Modification Order 
Ward:  Heworth 

Page 137



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Heworth Ward 
 

Schedule 26 
 

 

Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 182 (Heworth)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath commencing at the end of Ninth Avenue running west between 27 & 29. 
Seventh Avenue  
 
Approximate length 
35 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 6177 5230 SE 6174 5230 Concrete 
 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 6177 5230 SE 6174 5230 0.8m 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   
   

 
 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans  �  1978  
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence     
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric �    
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water  �   
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
Make Definitive Map Modification Order 

Page 138



462000.000000

462000.000000

463000.000000

463000.000000

4
5
2
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:10,000Scale Drawn By: JHC Date:12/04/10

York Footpath No.155 (Eastern Section)
(Heworth Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 139



Page 140

This page is intentionally left blank



461000.000000

461000.000000

462000.000000

462000.000000

4
5
2
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:10,000Scale Drawn By: JHC Date:12/04/10

York Footpath No.155 (Western Section)
(Heworth Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 141



Page 142

This page is intentionally left blank



Thorn Nook

M
O

R
R

IT
T 

C
LO

S
E

BARFIELD ROAD

ELM
FIELD AVENUE

SEFTON A
VENUE

M
O

N
K

T
O

N
 R

O
A

D

3

32

12

13

1 
to

 8

45
 to

 5
2

12
1

4 8

41
 to

 4
4

41

50

47

52

25
 to

 28

10
0

18

14

20

17

11
9

12
3

19

31

11

22

34

1

7

5

2

Sub Sta

HEALE
Y G

ROVE

THORNFIE
LD A

VENUE

2

22

31

7

3

1

8

12

341

32

1

5

461700.000000

461700.000000

461800.000000

461800.000000

4
5
3
8
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
8
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
9
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
9
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
4
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
4
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:1,250Scale Drawn By:JHC Date:13/04/10

York Footpath No.158
(Heworth Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 143



Page 144

This page is intentionally left blank



14.6m

14.3m

Drain

LABURNUM
 G

ARTH
SEFTON A

VENUE
Ward Bdy

Boro C
onst 

Bdy

Boro Const & W
ard Bdy

2

441

14

17

20

34

19

32

22

41

5

27

Co C
onst 

& W
ard B

dy

Co Const Bdy

Healey

1.52m
 RH

Field House

THORNFIE
LD A

VENUE

Elm
garth

High Lea

Rookdale

Holm
leigh

The Poplars

CR

RH

Grange
12

Path (um
)

1

1

Co Const Bdy

CR

461800.000000

461800.000000

461900.000000

461900.000000

462000.000000

462000.000000

4
5
3
7
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
7
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
8
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
8
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
9
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
9
0
0

.0
00

00
0±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:1,250Scale Drawn By:JHC Date:13/04/10

York Footpath No.159
(Heworth Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 145



Page 146

This page is intentionally left blank



HEWORTH GREEN
Beverley G

ardens

Garage

12.5m

13.7m

Hotel

Heworth
Court

HEW
ORTH

HEW
ORTH M

EW
S

H
YR

ST

M
ILL LA

N
E

ROMAN ROAD

MEW
S

Surgery

3

6

10

9

14

53

1 to 6

7 t
o 1

4

35

4

1 to 3
65

51a

15 to 20

28

44

36

54

26

31

2

20

7

37

11

45

8

49a

64

1

to

51

LB

El Sub Sta

M
illgarth

Th
e 

O
ld

 B
ak

er
y

Blencathra

JOHN STREET

1

26

8

31

1

Surgery

2

36

1

2

8

Surgery

14

1

1

461200.000000

461200.000000

461300.000000

461300.000000

4
5
2
5
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
5
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
6
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
6
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
7
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
7
0
0

.0
00

00
0

±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:1,250Scale Drawn By:JHC Date:13/04/10

York Footpath No.163
(Heworth Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 147



Page 148

This page is intentionally left blank



LA
YERTHORPE

Gas Holder

Naples

House

Rome

9.1m

12.8m

10.7m

11.0m

HEWORTH GREEN

9

Bollards

1 to 32

12
9

131 to
 145

15

11
9

11 13
17

10
2

1

Bollard

D
A

LG
U

IS
E

 G
R

O
V

E

1 to 32

House

1 to 32

House

Bollard

461000.000000

461000.000000

461100.000000

461100.000000

4
5
2
3
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
3
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
4
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
4
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
5
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
5
0
0

.0
00

00
0

±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:1,250Scale Drawn By:JHC Date:13/04/10

York Footpath No.164
(Heworth Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 149



Page 150

This page is intentionally left blank



LA
YERTHORPE

Gas Holder
Builder's

14.3m

12.8m

13.4m

Windsor

Garage

Merchants Court

Mast

HALLFIELD ROAD

H
A

W
T

H
O

R
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

HEW
ORTH M

EW
S

F
A

B
E

R
 S

T
R

E
E

T

HAW
THORN G

ROVE

2

9

1 to 6

12
9

29
35

15 to 20

131 to
 145

1 
to

 1
2

39

14a

13

3

11
9

21

33
25

10
0

41
43

12

31

20

19

27

22

16

5a

47

130
124

10
2

14

45

28

18

1

5

C
yc

le
 P

at
h

E
l S

ub S
ta

G
LE

N
 A

V
E

N
U

E

HEW
ORTH

El S
ub

 S
ta

3

1

1

12

1

33

2

14

2

2

9

20

19

22

14

35

1

3

12

14

31

31

2

29

18

1

461100.000000

461100.000000

461200.000000

461200.000000

4
5
2
3
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
3
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
4
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
4
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
5
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
5
0
0

.0
00

00
0

±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:1,250Scale Drawn By:JHC Date:13/04/10

York Footpath No.165
(Heworth Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 151



Page 152

This page is intentionally left blank



Cherry Tree
HouseS

t A
el

re
d'

s

14.0m

12.5m

13.7m

11.6m

13.1m

Community

Tang Hall

ETL

Presbytery

CONSTANTINE AVENUE

AV
EN

U
E

FIFTH AVENUE

SM

2

7
10

58

20

60

27

66

127

23

24 to 27

32
 to

 3
5

11

28
 to

 3
1

1a

14
6

16
0

1

15

64

193
211

187

28

16

197

68

70
72

30

62

6

Sub Sta

Playground

STARKEY CRESCENT

D
E

R
W

E
N

T

El Sub Sta

2

SM

10

1

SM

6

461900.000000

461900.000000

462000.000000

462000.000000

4
5
1
8
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
8
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
9
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
9
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:1,250Scale Drawn By:JHC Date:13/04/10

York Footpath No.167
(Heworth Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 153



Page 154

This page is intentionally left blank



Dismantled Railway

14.6m

13.1m

13.4m

14.3m

CONSTANTINE

Ward Bdy

127

100

63

124

131

110

88

280

295

285

258

111

13

261

275

133b

75

247
290

282

273

73

138

18

99

270

122

286

61

112

87

76

85

7
2

1
LB

Cycle Path

TCBs

TCB

FIFTH AVENUE

13.4m

462200.000000

462200.000000

462300.000000

462300.000000

462400.000000

462400.000000

4
5
1
8
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
9
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
9
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:1,250Scale Drawn By:JHC Date:13/04/10

York Footpath No.168
(Heworth Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 155



Page 156

This page is intentionally left blank



14.3m

13.1m

13.4m

ETL

EN
N

ER
D

ALE AVEN
U

E

TAN
G

 H
A

LL LA
N

E

LANG AVENUE

FIFTH AVENUE

Ward Bdy

Health Services

6

13

35

296

141

131

73
295

18

306

308

10

111

133a

23

56

292

304

307

14

290

65

76

26

1

305

325

286

315
2

302

79

54

16

129TCBs

El Sub Sta

G
ILLA

M
O

O
R

 A
V

E
N

U
E

A
V

E
N

U
E

House

W
O

O
D

H
O

U
S

E
 G

R
O

V
E

INGLETON WALK P
E

N
Y

G
H

E
N

T

W
old View

CC

Lang

IN
G

LEB
O

R
O

U
G

H
 AVEN

U
E

13.4m

2

1

1

1

9

1

FIFTH AVENUE

10

6

2

79

10

18

2 1

1

LANG AVENUE

6

2

12

462400.000000

462400.000000

462500.000000

462500.000000

462600.000000

462600.000000

4
5
1
9
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
9
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
1
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
1
0
0

.0
00

00
0

±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:1,250Scale Drawn By:JHC Date:13/04/10

York Footpath No.169
(Heworth Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 157



Page 158

This page is intentionally left blank



Dismantled Railway

13.7m

13.4m

13.1m

ETL

R
O

C
K

IN
G

H
A

M

APPLEBY PLA
C

E

AVENUE

Ward Bdy

48

5

127

26

63

124
10

110

84

280

258

13

261

275

246

43

98

75

247

234

2

38

99

113

273

24
138

18

14

270

122

29

87

1

7

LB

Cycle Path

TCB

STERNE AVENUE

24

2

99

13.4m

1

462200.000000

462200.000000

462300.000000

462300.000000

4
5
1
9
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
9
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
1
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
1
0
0

.0
00

00
0

±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:1,250Scale Drawn By:JHC Date:13/04/10

York Footpath No.170
(Heworth Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 159



Page 160

This page is intentionally left blank



14.0m

13.1m

13.4m

14.6m

13.7m

ETL

H
ALL LAN

E

APPLEBY PLA
C

E

Ward Bdy

48

5

1

127

97

26

124

10

84

280

285

258

82

13

261

275

246

89

43

98

7

247

55

12

2

38

282

99

9

113

273

24

138

18

270

122

20

LB

Cycle Path

AVENUE

TCB

STERNE AVENUE

PLUMER
TANG HALL

13.1m

7

1

13.4m

1

24

AV
EN

U
E

462200.000000

462200.000000

462300.000000

462300.000000

4
5
2
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
1
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
1
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
2
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
2
0
0

.0
00

00
0

±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:1,250Scale Drawn By:JHC Date:13/04/10

York Footpath No.171
(Heworth Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 161



Page 162

This page is intentionally left blank



Tang Hall B
eck

C
R

ES
C

EN
T

HORNBY COURT

ST
AR

KE
Y

W
O

LF
E 

AV
EN

U
E

3

58

10

23

5

27

61

92

12 131

25
a

110

111

11

34

17

39

22

105

46

115 119

122

48

139

132

14

25

51

2

8

7

4

1

9

LB

Path (um)

COSMO AVENUE

STARKEY CRESCENT

M
E

LR
O

S
E

 C
LO

S
E

12.5m

2

3

COSMO AVENUE

14

1

10
12

1

3

51

Pat
h 

(u
m

)

461900.000000

461900.000000

462000.000000

462000.000000

462100.000000

462100.000000

4
5
2
1
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
1
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
2
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
2
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
3
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
3
0
0

.0
00

00
0±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:1,250Scale Drawn By:JHC Date:13/04/10

York Footpath No.172
(Heworth Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 163



Page 164

This page is intentionally left blank



Ta
ng

 H
al

l B
ec

k

Tang Hall Bridge

12.2m

10.4m

HORNBY COURT

M
E

LR
O

S
E

 G
A

TE

AVE

19

106

20

61

21

92

12

24

131

31

110

39

25

122

48

33

23

2

5
8

58

47

89

W
OLF

E

W
A

LN
E

Y
 R

O
A

D

23

2

2

461900.000000

461900.000000

462000.000000

462000.000000

4
5
2
2
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
2
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
3
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
3
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
4
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
4
0
0

.0
00

00
0

±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:1,250Scale Drawn By:JHC Date:13/04/10

York Footpath No.173
(Heworth Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 165



Page 166

This page is intentionally left blank



Burnholme

Walnut Tree

Tang Hall Bridge

Garage

10.4m

13.1m

13.4m

14.3m

11.9m

12.2m

12.5m

P
at

h 
(u

m
)

Cottage Mews

HEWORTH

HORNBY COURT

B
U

R
N

H
O

LM
E

 D
R

IV
E

LE
YL

AN
D R

O
AD

O
AK

LA
N

D

ASQUITH

AVENUE

W
A

LN
E

Y
 R

O
A

D

BAD BARGAIN LANE

55c

AVE

9

4

60

53

54

19

2a

61

6

49

11

28

22

24

47

21

81a

36

98
34

101

12

65a

113

55a
29

62
68a

72 70

15
91

14
7

10

142

57

17

97

51

31

14

70

141

27

119

20

48 55

26

139

15
8

66

13

50

30

63

23

99a

80

58

77

1

87
2

4274

25
40

58

72

52

33

35

16

32

56

73 85

3
LB

D
rain

FB

D
R

IV
E

W
OLF

E

HEW
ORTH HALL DRIVE

Field Court

M
E

LR
O

S
E

 C
LO

S
E

PW

KIRKSTO
NE DRIVE

B
U

R
N

H
O

LM
E

99
3

31

58

10

63

13

4

1

42

17

23

53

11.9m

28

3

62

2

3

2

27

28

2

20

55

4

1

1

42

1

1

4 1

13

3

85

2

1

1

2

16

24

5

16

8

47

8

14

66

15

9

50

12.2m

27

66

2363

21

15

1

2a

33

462000.000000

462000.000000

462100.000000

462100.000000

462200.000000

462200.000000

462300.000000

462300.000000

462400.000000

462400.000000

4
5
2
3
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
3
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
4
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
4
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
5
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
5
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
6
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
6
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
7
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
7
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
8
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
8
0
0

.0
00

00
0

±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:2,500Scale Drawn By:JHC Date:13/04/10

York Footpath No.174
(Heworth Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 167



Page 168

This page is intentionally left blank



Walnut Tree

14.0m

14.3m

CORNBOROUGH AVENUE

OAKLAND AVENUE

W
ALN

EY R
OAD

55c

3

44

61

49

81

42

29

81a

36

47

55a

68a

72 70

1

20

57

94

1615
76

1a

83

55

95

68

66

17

13

30

78

7

80

77

87

14

18

82

74

55b

23

33
35

32

73 85

LB

HEW
ORTH HALL DRIVE

CLOSE

M
U

LW
ITH

13.1m

HEWORTH
61

82

1

16

17
33

85

68

32
HEWORTH HALL DRIVE

462000.000000

462000.000000

±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:1,250Scale Drawn By:JHC Date:13/04/10

York Footpath No.178
(Heworth Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 169



Page 170

This page is intentionally left blank



Holy Trinity

Methodist

House Hall

Clark's Terrace

ChurchHeworth

14.3m

14.0m

Vicarage

HEWORTH

HARRISON STREET

HEWORTH HALL DRIVE

D
A

LE
'S

 L
A

N
E

M
E

LR
O

S
E

G
A

T
E

OAKLAND AVENUE

55c

4

13

12

49

15

27

75

2a

17

2

29

11
a

16

55a

85

21

5

84

94

67

31

37

7

157

51

83

153

95

77
81

79

30

3

18

82

6

73

41

34

11

1

LB

1

14.0m

1

2

5
5

13
14.3m

4

1

13

7

2

2

14.3m

1

1

461800.000000

461800.000000

461900.000000

461900.000000

4
5
2
6
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
6
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
7
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
7
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
8
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
8
0
0

.0
00

00
0±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:1,250Scale Drawn By:JHC Date:13/04/10

York Footpath No.179
(Heworth Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 171



Page 172

This page is intentionally left blank



Greenlay

15.2m

14.0m

14.3m

Tennis Courts

B
U

LL

B
U

LL LA
N

E

S
E

C
O

N
D

 A
V

E
N

U
E

THIRD AVENUE

FIR
S

T
 A

V
E

N
U

E

EAST PARADE

MAIN AVENUE

34

2

26

45

29

79

89

100

15

13

90

126
111

8
36

19

31

110

127

28

23

1

14
7

20

101

92

35
24

47

25

115
128

123

112

105

12

80

10

6

Bank

TCBs

El Sub Sta

Gardens

Tennis

15.2m

S
E

C
O

N
D

 A
V

E
N

U
E

15

6

1

26
14.0m

2

25
29

2

1

1

1

14

2

7

10

461600.000000

461600.000000

461700.000000

461700.000000

4
5
2
4
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
4
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
5
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
5
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
6
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
6
0
0

.0
00

00
0±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:1,250Scale Drawn By:JHC Date:13/04/10

York Footpath No.180
(Heworth Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 173



Page 174

This page is intentionally left blank



16
18

Greenlay

Glen

Gardens

Glen
 Lod

ge

Susan

15.2m

14.0m13.7m
Bowling

Bowling Greens

Glenfield

B
U

LL

Glen Gardens

Playground

Mews

Poplar Tree

B
U

LL LA
N

E

Track

E
M

M
E

R
S

O
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

AVENUE

EAST PARADE

SIXTH

P
osts

1

2

17

49

79

89

14a

13
11

14

22

75 77

25
6 10 9

8
7

15
3

5
232419

4

12

20

37

80

61

71

21

Stone

a&
b

LB

TCBs

Club

FLEMING AVENUE

Tang Hall

PO

PC

Park

18

5

4

PO

20

11

4

16

2
16

21

Gardens

2

Bowling Greens

20

1

6

1

17

1

1

25

14.0m

Gardens

12

1

14.0m

2

25

14

19

1

1

22

1

2

10

Glen Lodge

3

12

461400.000000

461400.000000

461500.000000

461500.000000

4
5
2
4
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
4
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
5
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
5
0
0

.0
00

00
0

±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:1,250Scale Drawn By:JHC Date:13/04/10

York Footpath No.181
(Heworth Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 175



Page 176

This page is intentionally left blank



75 77

THIRD AVENUE

NINTH AVENUE

FOURTH AVENUE

S
E

V
E

N
T

H
 A

V
E

N
U

E

2

1

61

14

27
17

79

46

67

24

63

29

40

16

15

72

60

49

84

62

54

47

31

69

33

35

39

38a

44

38

34

32

11

58

36

48

73 89

LB

El Sub Sta

EASTBOURNE GROVE

TCB

20

2

31
1

46

47

34

36

16

36

20

461700.000000

461700.000000

461800.000000

461800.000000

4
5
2
2
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
2
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
3
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
3
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
4
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
4
0
0

.0
00

00
0

±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:1,250Scale Drawn By:JHC Date:13/04/10

York Footpath No.182
(Heworth Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 177



Page 178

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Annex 3 

 
 
 
 
Public Rights of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981, 
Preparation of Definitive Map for Former County Borough  
 
Holgate Ward 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Index 
 
Location Plan 
 
Schedules & Path Plans 
Path Nos 126-135  
   
 
Summary of Recommendations 
 
DMMO Recommended Path Nos 
126, 127, 128, 129, 130, 131, 132, 134, 135,  
 
No Further Action At This Time Recommended Path Nos  
133  

Page 179



Page 180

This page is intentionally left blank



Produced from the 1993 Ordnance Survey 1:1250 mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office

SCALE DRAWN BY DATE

Drawing Number

© Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

HOLGATE WARD

PSL1:2600

HOLGTWRD

Factory

Water

Water

W
ater

Water

Water

Works

Water

Water

Water

Clif ton
Ings Reach

River Ouse

River Ouse
Clifton Ings Reach

Drain

Pond

Pond

Pool

Paddling

50

53

Pavilion

19a

Beverley House

Hotel

19

Pond

74

80

56

62

68

79

El

Sub Sta

John Burrill
Homes

(Almshouses)

3
7

17

18

23

2

4

12
1

12
7

CLIFTON

140

134

128

126
8

7

2
1

Freemans

Court

122 6

18

30

42

1

13
11

12
14

15

ABBEY
STREET

PIN
FO

LD
CO

URT

Gros
ve

no
r C

ou
rt

52

41

29

15

11

8
9

10

4046

47

49

33

39

3

1 to 6

24 to 28
29

31
30

32

SHIPTON ROAD

13
9

1

Barl
ey

fie
lds 135

1

2

152
150

154

4

Vicarage
Lodge

CLIFTON PLACE

14

14

11

Vicarage

St Philip and St James's
Church

Guardian

Court

1 to 41

1

8

42 to 47

Health

El

Sub Sta

2
3

45
67

1 to 12

27

14

1

Rawcliffe
Holt

11

6

15

15

29

6

16

1

4

LISTER
W

AY

65

H
U

D
SO

N
C

R
ES

KI
N

G
SW

AY
NO

R
TH

W
ATER

LANE

51

46

156

68

Shelte r

40

16

2

15

Centre

Riseborough
House

74

80

56

62

68

79

El

Sub Sta

John Burrill
Homes

(Almshouses)

3
7

17

18

23

2

4

12
1

12
7

CLIFTON

140

134

128

126
8

7

2
1

Freemans

Court

122 6

18

30

42

1

13
11

12
14

15

ABBEY
STREET

PIN
FO

LD
CO

URT

Gros
ve

no
r C

ou
rt

52

41

29

15

11

8
9

10

4046

47

49

33

39

3

1 to 6

24 to 28
29

31
30

32

SHIPTON ROAD

13
9

1

Barl
ey

fie
lds 135

1

2

152
150

154

4

Vicarage
Lodge

CLIFTON PLACE

14

14

11

Vicarage

St Philip and St James's
Church

Guardian

Court

1 to 41

1

8

42 to 47

Health

El

Sub Sta

2
3

45
67

1 to 12

27

14

1

Rawcliffe
Holt

11

6

15

15

29

6

16

1

4

LISTER
W

AY

65

H
U

D
SO

N
C

R
ES

KI
N

G
SW

AY
NO

R
TH

W
ATER

LANE

51

46

156

68

Shelte r

40

16

2

15

Centre

Riseborough
House

ABBEY
STREET

41

11

47

7

42

Home
The Thomas Fothergill

16

21
22 to 27

28

57

56
55

51 to 54

50

27

46

El

Health
Centre

59

58

60

56

Kingsway
Junior School

24

13

25

2

14

26

34

58

Sub Sta

The W
illows

1

2

61

56a

56
b

53a

55

53

55a

2

12

1
3

NORTH
PARADE

Pavilion

Cha
pe

l
(P

riv
ate

)

27

St Peter's
School

Lodge

24

1

CLIFTON

50

44
42

40

36

34

29

Sunday

School

Clifto
n

Methodist

Church Su
rg

er
y

32

2

20

PH

PETERSW
AY

2

7

70

64

3

11

15 17

10

4

56 Club

1 8
14

31

27

15

22

26

AVENUE
TERRACE

7

9

49

37

27

15

11
a

11

34

24

14

12a

12

AVENUE ROAD

The Thomas Fothergill

Home40

35

30

1

DE GREY COURT

De
G

re
y

Te
rra

ce

1

5

10

6

7

8

11

2

4

5

Club

BU
R

TO
N

ST
O

NE
LA

NE

29a
29b

29c

The Coach Yard

The Coach
House

Bank

The Esplanade

River Ouse

Clifton Long Reach Boat House

78
78

a

Swimming Bath

6

The Glen
Nursery 52

50

54

66

55

49

15

47

St Peter's
School

GOVERNMENT
HOUSE

ROAD

1

9

5

4

12

26

W
ESTMINSTER

ROAD

33

22

55

35

4 3

38

13

THE
AVENUE

17

Wentworth
House

7

22

23

OUSECLIFFE GARDENS

33

31

5

2

29

27

Clifton

2123

1

11

21

19

8

14

Croft

GREENCLIFFE
DRIVE

10

10
a

8b

8a

13

23

33

25

18

COMPTON
STREET

GROVE
VIEW

ROSSLYN
STREET

39

27

13

1

1

6

12

4

32

10

8

6

4

1

11

12

18

SK
ELT

O
N

COU
RT

W
ESTERDALE

COURT

Half

Sou
th

View

The
Rise

1

31

9

1

4345

4749

2

8

7

5

51

57

1

4

1

3

76

Garage

21

The

Homestead

Ouse
Lea

38

36

40

75

77

WATER END

John Burrill Homes
(Almshouses)

30
28

1

2

7

2

12
10

1
5

1

16

12
11

11a

4
CLIF

TON
DALE

Old Grey Mare(PH)

Hotel

PC

6

2

3

1 5

1a

1b

120

118

2

9

9

CLIFTON

Fern
Cotta

ges

HIG
HCLIFFE COURTABBEY

STREET

2

65a
65

63

5

1

1

7

8

2

1

2

84

86

94

96

106

110

116

14

AVENUE

TERRACE

31a

2b
2a

PO

80
Bank

The
Mews

1

3

Clifton Holme Mews

Clifton Holme

Court

15

1to
2

14

2

3

6

8

9

10

3

Drain

Paddling

Pool

PC

The

Homestead

Haverford
(Youth Hostel)

River Ouse

Cl
i f t

o n
Sh

or
t

Re
ac

h

W
ATER

END

T he
E

s p lanade

Clifton
Long

Reach

B
AL

FO
U

R
ST

R
EE

T

SWINERTON AVENUE

ROSEBERY
STREET

LI
NC

O
LN

ST
RE

ET

FORTH STREET

SALISBURY

ROAD

35

49

63

77

91

19

20
10

2 93

40

30

18

1

15
21

33

43

55

46

60

58

46

32

18

2

27

43

59

61

38

28

58

56

50

40

8

13

The Garden
House

42

Water

Water

Drain

Water

Ing Cliffs Drain

Water

Water

Water

Water

Water

Water

Tank

Clifton
Ings

R
each

River Ouse

Water Works

Reservoir

Water

Water

Water

LANDING LANE

Clifton Short Reach

D
r ain

2

10

1

25
26

16

CAXTON AVENUE

PRIOR'S WALK

2

14

14
12

13

28

27

108

Vicarage
1

13

18
16

El
Sub
Sta

O
U

S
E

AC
R

ES

Warehouse

D
ra

in

El Sub Sta

Water

D
rai n

Factory

Water

Water

Pond

Reeds

Water

90

71

W
O

OD
LE

A
AV

EN
UE

85

90

10
2

137

147

1

149

2

14

58

74

78

69

13

GLEBE AVENUE

49

59

105a

10
5

10
7

10
7a

10
9

11
9

12
3 126

116

110

104

64

70

62

54

57

53

51

28

34

36

44

46
to

52

LI
N

D
S

EY
AV

E
N

U
E

82
to72

DANEBURY DRIVE 205

98

172

Sub Sta

El

10
0

10
4

1

109

97

12
2

11
2

1

5

8

157

48

171

WELLAND RISE

38

26

37M
AL

VE
R

N
A

VE
N

U
E

13
3

14
3

150

138

20
to

26

18

M
AN

O
R

D
R

IV
E

24

13

ALMSFORD ROAD

10

1

11

13

16

4

8

2

12
8

14
0

185

C
AR

R
LA

N
C

E

2

14

25

13

1

27

25a

25

23

162a

15
3

16
3

19

7

43

7

GARBUTT GROVE

CRANBROOK ROAD

48

38

2821

31

Ainsty
(Hotel)

197

15
4

16
0

16
4

65

BOROUGHBRIDGE ROAD

56

66

57

49

39

35

18

FireStation

CR
AN

BR
OO

K
AV

EN
UE

2

5

1 95

58

85

75

8

1

2

6
2

76

O
U

S
E

AC
R

ES

WELTON AVENUE

13

25

26

14

24
22

30

S
AN

D
AC

R
E

C
O

U
R

T

29

11

17
18

12
14

16

15

1
to

6

7
to

10

The

Hotel

164

162

21

27

47 45

37
to

43

29
to

35

25

31

40

28

16

8

15

23

W
IN

C
H

E
ST

E
R

A
VE

N
U

E

66

54

44

34

22

10

17

63

3

1

5

50

62

42

30

LINTON
STREET

AM
BERLY

STREET

Club

BE
R

K
EL

EY
TE

R
R

AC
E

27

39

45

53

125

13
5

14
5

POPPLETON
ROAD

1
3

99

3

92
94

1
96

98

13

25

12

10

2

101

11
3

108

1

11

YA
RBURGH

GROVE

OAK
STREET

St Paul's
Mission Church

132

116

CHATSW
ORTH

TERRACE 2

16

126

30

20

10

17

29

30

Hall

11

9

ASH
STR

EET

2

14

1

9

19

4

171

177

LI
N

D
S

EY
AV

EN
U

E

1

7

SELD
ON

ROAD

33

146

158

16
9

77

15
7

14

2

25

35

45

55

65

12

22

32

POPLAR
STREET

CARRINGTON
AVENUE

21

28

El

Sub Sta

9

21

16

2
BOROUGHBRIDGE

ROAD

Poppleton Road

County Primary School
76

68

31

3

15

27

LA
VEN

DER
G

RO
VE

24

14

2

1

Su
rg

er
y

32

26

51

WATER END

SB

56
58

G
A

R
N

E
T

TE
R

R
A

C
E

H
olga te

Beck

29

41

LA
ND

IN
G

LA
N

E

Water Works

Drain

Kennels

(RSPCA)

Ppg Sta

29

D
ra

in

27
a

Garage

Hote
l

33

TH
O

M
P

S
O

N
P

LA
C

E

1

6

2

6

54 to

60

59
to

65

WATER

END

SALISBURY ROAD

LI
N

C
O

LN
ST

R
EE

T

SALISBURY TERRACE

H
al

l

CARNOT STREET

BA
LF

O
U

R
ST

R
EE

T

ROSEBERYSTREET

B
IS

M
A

R
C

K
S

TR
EE

T

W
A

LW
O

R
T H

S
TR

E
E

T
N

O
R

TH

CHUDLEIGH ROAD

LI
V

IN
G

S
T

O
N

E
S

TR
E

E
T

A
LB

A
N

Y
S

TR
E

E
T

BROMLEY STREET

St Barnabas'
C of E

School

B
R

IG
H

T
S

TR
EE

T

HANOVER STREET EAST

Jubilee
(PH)

JUBILEE TERRACE St Barnabas'Church

CINDER LANE Vicarage

UPPER HANOVER STREET

G
A

R
N

ET
TER

R
A

C
E

STAMFORD STREET WEST
W

A
LW

O
R

TH
ST R

E E
T

S
O

U
T H

El Sub Sta

HANOVER STREET WEST

STAMFORD STREET EAST

Leeman
(PH)

GARFIELD TERRACE

3

K
IN

G
S

LA
N

D
TE

R
R

A
C

E

Works

LEEMAN ROAD

Works

C
A

R
LI S

LE
S

TR
E

E
T

PH

C
AR

LETO
N

S
TR

EE
T

Garage

41

29

15

1

4
1 0

2

16

28
27

13

1

1 2
1 8

18a

67

6858

57

565146

4
6

109

2

12

22

36

49

37

25

13

1

30

42

28

16

2

90
84

91
99

8810 0

1

8

79 65

51 39 27 15 1

682032
42

42a
485062

68

7082

80

85 81 77 63 49 37 25 13 1

1b

1a21426384050607282

8084

86

2

43 35 29 24

23

22

21

20
13 7 1

2
14

24

19
1 1

1

39
29

17

22

14

8

1

1

7

14

21

1

11

21

31

22

10

8

2

256

244

232

222

216

200

1

13

25

35

47

59

38

26

14

2

1

13 46

36

26

16

1

8

41

34

28

22

16

10

2
1 1

7

13
20

26

32

38

20

27

35
36 2

8

1 4
1 9

The

Primary

5

4

14

95
3

10
40

4

34

The

PO

8 12

1

5

9

48

51

13

19

1

9

14

4

43

47

39

1

7

ALDBOROUGH
WAY

BRUNEL

COURT

K
IN

G
S

LA
N

D
TE

R
R

A
C

E

9

ST
BA

R
N

AB
AS

C
LO

SE

V
IC

T O
R

IA
C

O
U

R
T

2

19
21

23

25

27

10
22

13
12

9 4

1

3

24

30

32

12

2

1
5

7
8

33

30

11

17

2

4

8

R
E

G
E

N
T

S
C

O
U

R
T

1

5

29 37
39

2
4

9

5
7

33

2

10
11

4

2 7

ST
EP

HE
N

SO
N

W
AY

1

6

2

7

11

19
20

13

15

16
18

46

54

to 60

4444a

H
A

R
D

I S
TY

M
E

W
S

20

26
14 to 19

44 to 49

56

58

Martins Court

50 to 55
35

to

43

21

LEEMAN ROAD

Garage

National
Railway Museum

Boat
House

Clifton Long Reach
River Ouse

The Esplanade

School
Queen Anne

Cinder Lane

S
T

J A
M

E
S

C
O

U
R

T

12

34

40

48

50

58

70

60

ALDBOROUGH WAY

6

10

1

2

3

El Sub Sta

CINDER LANE

51

45

41

43

5

6

10

72

80

Kensington House

1to8

Cinder Mews

El Sub Sta

27

PH
OEN

IX
BO

UL
EV

AR
D

BISHOPSFIELDS DRIVE

M
ARTINS

CO
URT

2
to

12

124

128

15
to

25

14
to 24

26

90

98

20 to 25

14 to 19

7 to 121
to

6

26
28

28

134

29to34

91

Cinder Lane

Clifton Long Reach

14 13
12

ALMERY TERRACE

Boat

46

56 55

45

7

13

House

26

1

SY
C

AM
O

RE
TE

R
RA

C
E

22

34

12

LO
NG

FI
EL

D
TE

R
R

AC
E

18
17

16
15

8

7
6

5

1

1

11

21

33

19

SYCAMORE PLACE

Pavilion

19

15

2a

11

2

Queen Anne School

NO
RT

H
PA

RA
D

E

2

14

13

1

41

31

19

9

20

44

32

4

Gymnasium

Q
U

EE
N

S
TR

EE
T

Institute

20

19

York
Station

Hotel

Sorting Office

Railway

Works

Stable Cottage
LEEMAN ROAD

National
Railway Museum

El
Sub Sta

Wagon Repair Depot

Cind
er

La
ne

Works

Signal Box

Tel

York Station

R
AILW

AY
TERRACE

WILTON RISE

ST
PAUL'S

TERRACE

C
LEVELAN

D
STR

EET

22

30

37

38

16

2

10

18

14

7

1

14

5

39 35

38

3

12

33

29

25

10

2

1

33

26

U
PPER

ST
PAU

L'S
TER

R
AC

E

Ex

National
Railway Museum

ST
PAULS

M
EW

S

41
43

to
53

33

43
44

51
to 74

PH
OEN

IX
BO

UL
EV

AR
D

40

42
to

52

54
to

64

66

78

74

75

77

78to 83

68to

73

BISHOPSFIELDS DRIVE

BISHOPSFIELDS DRIVE

67
69

79

68

35

67
63

H
A

R
D

I S
TY

M
E

W
S

57
to

62

53

47to52

46

37to42
36

26to
31

1 5

6
7

12
14

55
to65

16 to 21

25
24

22

W
IN

DMIL
L RIS

E

18

10

2

1

9

17

POPPLETON
ROAD

20

25

31

Works

ST SWITHIN'S

WALK

1

3

Works

9

HOLGATE
PARK

DRIVE
Leem

an
House

SwinsonHouse

Station
Business Park

El Sub Sta

14 to 19
12

7
1

to
6

Shelley
House

8

20

BURNSALL DRIVE

B R
A

ES
I D

E
G

AR
D

E
N

S

2 2

24

7

3

6

8

12

64

69

50
42

1

75
7 1

67

74

23

40

26

55

41

ST SWITHIN'S WALK

WINDMILL

RISE

27

9

44 36

22

Arncliffe
House

Wensley
House

Ingleton
House

Bentham
House

1 to 10

2

6

1
to

10

1

9

11
13

1 to 10

1to10

1 to 10

Settle
House

Gargrave
House

Gisburn
House

El
Sub
Sta

23

1
to

10

1
to

10

1
to

10

26
28

Slaidburn
House

BIRSTWITH DRIVE

44

54

49

59

9

G
R

AN
TH

AM
D

RI
VE

34

H
O

LG
A

TE
LO

D
G

E
D

R
IV

E

25

30

16

12

16

CHELWOOD WALK

1

2

14

7

5

7

17

BOUTHWAITE DRIVE

R
O

AD

SO
W

ER
BY

Askrigg
House

Aysgarth

House

25

11
to

10

1

5

1to10

11

18

6

52

23

13

1

13

CLOSE

H
ILL

H
O

W
E

MANTHORPE WALK

49

4

20

2

1

18

16

37

32

TISBURY ROAD

13

25

13

17

22

26

6

2

1

Water
Tower

DILYS GROVE

H
O

W
E

HILL
ROAD

10

6

1

34

44

32
43

35

25

37

6

10

RO
AD

POPPLETO
N

El Sub Sta

8

1

12

10

8

2

SEGRAVE
W

ALK

1

W
INC

HESTER
AVEN

UE

WINCHESTER GROVE

8

6

4

2

1

11

13

21

6

1

63
to

69

GARLAND
STREET

LINTON
STREET

AMBERLEY

STREET

2

4

1

9

8

2

12

22

9

5

1

11

21

4 2

20

10

33

45

55

59

32

18

CHATSW
ORTH

TERRACE

ASH
STR

EET7

21

4

2

91

97

13

1

89

85

83

78

1

88

90

68

73

4

2
86

84

8

6

Ashdown

El Sub Sta

1

4

ListerCourt

3

11

17

2

13
17

8

6

BONINGTON
COURT

RENSHAW
GARDENS

RENSHAW
GARDENS

PEPPERCORN
CLO

SE
6

1

9

15

HILLARY
GARTH

1

10

3

5

1

11

7

5

3

1

1

7

11

W
illans House

1
to

4

R
e n

s h
aw

1
to

4

4

10

2

H
ou

s e

Peppercorn
House

1to
12

5

12

18

12

5
8

DAMSON CLOSE

15

16

6

18

3

15

Surgery

13

12

2

1

13

1

H
EB

DO
N

R
IS

E

Ad
ul

t T
ra

in
in

g
C

en
tre

Regent Building

PO

6

13
12

11
10

7to9

3

4

5
6

6a

1
to

12

BAILDON CLOSE

Hotel

Oak Haven
Old People's Home

1
to

7

9
to

15

13
to

16

33 to 36

30

32

39

29
27 a

27

22

28

M
A N

O
R

D
R

I V
E

S
O

U
TH

25

25

37

18

32

4
to

10

36 to 42

28 to 34

12

18 20

2627to33

35

41

PATELY PLACE

59
69

54
44

62

89
79

81
71

97

91

52

61
51

Buckden
House

1
t o

1 0

C
A

R
R

LA
N

E

61

49
47

DODGSON TERRACE

S
E

V
E

R
U

S
A

V
E

N
U

E

12

7

1

2

14

26

25

13

1

30
28

a

42

44

47

56

37

49

SOWERBY ROAD

1 6
4

16
2

15
8

211

217

9to15

17

43

49

19

25

PH

22

12

32 to 38

24 to 30

22

193

179

201 to 195

2

12 B
O

U
TH

W
A

ITE
D

R
IVE

203

209

54

2 58

85

73

BA
R

LO
W

S
TR

E
ET

95

105

37

47

59

71

1

72

60

48

38

56

MALVERN AVENUE

68

56

71

59

7573

71
69

67

57

97

77

1 2
4

12
8

13
0

to
13

6

14
2

13
8

14
4

14
8

15
0

to
15

6

80

68

171
to

177

L I
N

D
SE

Y
AV

EN
U

E

129 to 123

113 111

137

131

169

155

139
to

145

147
to

153

Depot

Water Tower

67

1

72

INMAN TERRACE

86

133

127

123

117

115

2

8

82

90

98

73

85

M
AN

O
R

D
R

IV
E

N
O

R
TH

10
3

99

9795
9391

89

90

102

84
to

94

96 to
1 0

2

10
4

1 2
2

79

71

89

81

115

121

97

101 99

11
2

39a

41

Surgery

2a

219

213 221

215 223
225

14

12

65

30

77

21

31

11

40

K
IN

G
S

TH
O

R
P

E

KINGSWOOD GROVE

26
16

7

11

15

3

56

77

60

87

224

66

1

64 81
85

DIJON
AVENUE

106

41

75

77

37

HAROLD
COURT

53

20

18a

18

16a

16

14

10 11

9

1

8

G
REEN

LAN
E

48

36

46

M
O

O
R

G
A

TE

53

62

65

75

57

54

58

4

6

8

94

87

88

76

75

31

35

MILNER STREET

64

63

51

44

58

70

82

35

47

59

71

81

23

13

32

Club

LYNDEN
W

AY

HO
BG

AT
E

36

41

30

2

1

15

29

31

44

34

57

50

35

39

27

HOBGATE

FRONT STREET

81

71

59

50

8

3

BEACONSFIELD STREET

GLADSTONE STREET

14

26

38

11

23

35

47

52

38

26

14

25

37

SCHO
O

L
STREET

S
E

VE
R

U
S

S T
R

E
E

T

1

2

1

13

8

20

6

2

21

26

31

14

20
20 a

1

11

1

5

10

16

El Sub Sta

29
20

12

18

14

24

6

5

7

11

15

19
21

B
an k

56

52

50

2

2a

1

2

C
A

R
R

LA
N

E

YORK ROAD

1

48

32

41

51

63

65to71

2

Oakdene

Nursing

Home

B
an k

HOWE STREET

SE
VE

R
U

S
A

VE
N

U
E

30 28

26

20

17
19

29

39

9
4

1

7

Regent Building

Oak Haven
Old People's Home

1

9

ROAD

ACOMB

PoliceStation

Hotel

Te
le

ph
on

e
Ex

ch
an

ge

163

159

Surgery

Posts

Posts

Posts

Bank

Issues

K
IN

G
S

TH
O

R
P

E

HE
BD

EN
RI

SE

El Sub Sta

25

6

36

54

201

203

1
2

4

Fairfax Court

1 to 56

Surgery

1a

59

61

67

69
72

64

208 196

1

HOBGATE

4

220

5
12

33 35

31

13

17

194

HAMILTON DRIVE

C
A

R
R

IC
K

G
A R

D
EN

S

184

34

24

14

21

11

1

154164174

2

NURSERY DRIVE

Shelter

150152

Sub
El

Sta

2324

61

71

128

118

N
O

R
TH

C
O

T E
AV

EN
U

E

PCs

HILL STREET

N
E

W
LA

N
E

37

7

3
5

39

51

14

6

45

2 9
2 8

PARKSIDE CLOSE

13

1

34

2

14

15

1

31

W
E

S
T

B
A

N
K

27

14

18

1

27

35

26
25

MOORGATE

161 4

42

3230

2826
2018

2422

2

14

FIRTREE CLOSE

Dunvegan
Lodge

17
13 11 9 to 5

65

77

2

12

17

Club

H
olg ate

M
ethodis tC

hu rch

3

4

136

128

Shelley House

H
o s

te
l

H
ow

e
H

i ll

126

116

106

90
78

14

15
16

1
2

B R
A

ES
ID

E
G

AR
D

E
N

S

Su
r g

er
y

G
R

A
N

TH
A

M
D

R
IV

E

77

76

71 69

81

104

Rectory

ACOMB ROAD

50
64

96

53

WINDMILL RISE

43

70

68

27

39

Holgate
Windmill
(disused)

14

6

Church of Jesus Christ
of Latter-Day Saints

25

86
1 21 0

15

6

8

4

Pavilion

N
ur

se
ry

146

148

Acomb County Primary School

28

21

13

20

17

16

11

12
7

3

10

1

2

JA
M

E
S

B
A

C
K

H
O

U
S

E
P

LA
C

E

PO
PPLETO

N
RO

AD

Works

Sub Sta

W
IL

TO
N

RIS
E

Holgate
Methodist

Church

M
U

R
R

A
Y

S
TR

E
E

T

LI
N

D
LE

Y
S

TR
E

ET

P
A

R
K

LA
N

E

FA
LC

O
N

E
R

S
TR

E
E

T

Su
rge

ry

Fox Inn
(PH)

Shelter

Sp
ri n

gf
ie

l d
C

ou
r t

El
Sub

Sta

PO

Pavilion

HOLGATE ROAD

Melton

Club
Hotel

HILL STREET

N
O

R
TH

C
O

TE
A

VE
N

U
E

B
E

EC
H

A
V

EN
U

E H
ol

ga
te

Be
ck

BARBARA GROVE

H
A

M
IL

TO
N

D
R

IV
E

E
A

S
T

BA
RB

AR
A

GRO
VE

ROBIN GROVE

HO
LL

Y
BA

NK

ROA
D

English Martyrs RC
Primary School

BARRETT AVENUE

21

23

50

36

32

14 12 6 2 to 4

3

9

16

36

50

52

62

74

76

78

150

152

154

168

37

49

61

73

148

138

128

3

10

17

5

2

14

28

42

54

68

80

91

79

65

53

39

27

13

1

2

1 4

2 8

40

54

68

80

92

97

83

69

55

41

27

13

7

11
7

1

4

3

5

10

15

2

14

26

38

50

1

1

13

21

114
110

106

108

102

104

96

20
19

15 17
16 18

14
11 13

9

10

5

7 6

8 2

4
3

76 78

64 66

62

98

100
90

92

99

101

91

95

93

97

85

89

83

87

79
81

6769

63

65

51

53

45

35

13

1

2 1

1 4
9

2

135

1 7
1

169

167a

167

163

133

131 129

13
to

23

25
29

1

5
4

3

18

20

33

1441

1

6

10

13

1650

60

72

17

22
27

33

39

26

ACOMB ROAD

12

22

16
10

El

EN
FI

EL
D

CRESCENT

1

CAROLI
NE

C
LO

SE

48

38

36

281

4

5

8

9

10

11

12

14

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

Trenfield
Court

House

York
Education
Settlement

Hotel

10
310

5

74

4

WiltonMews

3

1

2

6

8

34

Chancery

House

Chancery Rise

1to12

1to32

Ashton House

1

3

2

4

44

11

12
12a

Love Lane

TheCottage

The
Mount School

DRIF
FI

ELD
TE

RRAC
E

3

1

15
0

117

1

109

107

103

91

85

1

2

3

4

MILL MOUNT COURT

MILL MOUNT

ALBEMARLE ROAD

Sch

Mill Mount
House

Mount

13
6

Lodge

TH
E

M
OUNT

6

12

8

3

Hollybank House

HOLGATE

B
R

ID
G

E
G

A
R

D
E

N
S

DALTON TERRACE

El Sub Sta

The

Cottage

Church
of the

English
Martyrs

21

20

18

12

6

1

Hall

3

1

Presbytery

MOUNTPARADE

SCARCROFT ROAD

Garage

13
4

12
4

11
6

11
2

10
4

96

47

126

46

122

114

127

111

97

124

106

1to7

4

98

96

PH

St Paul's

Church

1
2

HOLGATE ROAD

92

36 to 38

1

Mount
Terrace

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

STR
EET

80

68
66

52

43

19

77 67

57

6
2

5
1

8
4

7
3

C
am

bridge

M
ew

s

Stafford House

PH

1 to 6

7 to 12

1to6

7to12

Catesby House

1to6

7to12

42

50

40

38 36

34

26

24

El Sub Sta

O
XFO

RD
STREET

M
O

U
NT

EPH
RAIM

3

ENFIELD CRESCENT

S
T

P
A

U
L'

S
S

Q
U

A
R

E

19
20

37

32

38

1

40

12

6

1 1
to

6

7 to 10

12
14 16

18 20
22

71

W
AT

SO
N

ST
R

EE
T

WATSON TERRACE CE
C

IL
IA

PL
AC

E

St Paul's
C

of E

Junior and
Infants

School

St Paul's
Nursery

School

PH

Westmorland

House

21

15

10

14
16

24

1to10

LO
W

TH
ER

TERR
AC

E

Oxford

House

Winchester

House

D
orset H

ouse

Suffolk

House

Woodville

House

Talbot H
ouse

1
to

10

1to10

1 to 10

1to10

O
ffices

R
ailway

WILTON RISE

32

26

11

21

33

28

25

Hall

20

ST PAUL'S TERRACE

RAILW
AY

TERRACE

15

42

48

54

60

66

24

18

12

6

1

110

120

5

1

2

5

9

13

16

20

24

28

32

33

13

7

76

24t o34

SA

15

10
6

116

5

6

10

25

27

St C
ath

eri
ne's1 to
20

Cou
rt

Lilac Cott

Surgery

7

15

28

21

1

El Sub Sta

S
T

P
A

U
LS

M
E

W
S

29

35

36
37

40

42

50

48

1 to
11

Mou
ntC

ourt

Mount

House

SCARCROFT ROAD

MILL MOUNT

7981

77

75

74

64

9 PC

Pa
vil

ion

28

Hotel

89 89a

84

6

5

77

79

PARK
STREET

EAST MOUNT ROAD

18 19

23

8

14

20

14
10

4 66

54

15

11

70

80

82

84

86

92

75

63PH

TH
E

MOUNT

HOLGATE ROAD

62

56

58

60

SHAW'S TERRACE

PO

PH

45

47

2

14

49

55 1

11

21

49

44

59 57

61

50

2

C
R

E
S

C
E

N
T

TH
E

8
6

5

1

5a

Railway
Offices

Club

5

2

1

28 to
40

43

3

Odeon
Buildings

Odeon Cinema

Club

BLO
SSOM

STREET

39

11
10

Gymnasium

Works

17

11

Ins
titu

te

88

90

Rail
way

Upp
er

Sch
oo

l

All S
ain

ts
RC

1

9

41

12

1

3

21

21a

Hotel

MILL MOUNT

W
E

N
TW

O
R

TH
R

O
A

D

TELFORD TERRACE

El
Sub
Sta

A
LB

E
M

A
R

L E
R

O
A

D

2

14

28

38

50

60

1

11

13

53

51

39

27

15

2

1 2
1 8

28

30

10

6

1

63

49

37

25

13

1

17

to

1

3

SC
AR

C
RO

FT
HI

LL

15

49

to
54

25
to

13

30

7
12

57
55

All Saints RC
Upper School

22

1
to

21
La

ng
to

n
Co

ur
t

1
t o

4

W
H

IT
E

HO
U

SE
G

AR
D

EN
S

25
4

24
4

24
0

2 3
4

30 24

20

12

13

7

8

TA
D

CA
ST

ER
R

O
AD

ST GEORGE'S PLACE

4

21
19

13
11

5

2

10a
1214

8

22

1

23
0

El
Sub Sta

KN
AV

ESM
IR

E
R

O
AD

PC

M
O

U
NT

VALE
DRIVE

MOORGARTH AVENUE

14 2

1917

10

14

21
8

20
61

19
6a

19
6

a2

4

2

155

2

145

147
to

153

159

19
4

M
O

UN
T

VA
LE

Trentholme

Cottage

Herdsman's
Cottage

157

36
34

15

9

12

22

TR
EN

TH
O

LM
E

DR
IV

E

32
41

TOWTON AVENUE

26 24

19

11

15

ST
AUBYN'S

PLACE 2

1

18
2

137

139

1

7

17

33

23

21

ST JAMES MOUNT

17

9

1

4
2

8
6

12

16

18

4

14

10

Pond

29

22

Love Lane

DRIFFIELD TERRACE

4

7

Elm Bank Hotel

12

TH
E

M
OUN

T

129

119

A
LB

EM
AR

LE
R

O
A

D

All Saints RC
Upper School

2

Hotel

Hotel

8

19
4a

Hotel

1a

1

Tyburn

Court

22a

19
8a

19
8b

23
8

Pond

W
H

IT
E

H
O

U
S

E
D

A
LE

2

14

3

13

23

W
H

IT
E

H
O

U
S

E
D

R
IV

E

W
H

IT
E

H
O

U
S

E
R

IS
E

15

1 6

18

1

15

W
H

IT
E

H
O

U
SE

G
A

R
D

EN
S

17

27

34

46

58

4

18

30

D
r a

in 33

21

44

28
26

ST GEORGE'S PLACE

Newington
Court

1

5

37

49

6 1

7 1

68 to 74 60 to 66

27 30

27

29 30

Brackenhill

H
E A

TH
C

LO
SE

1

96

2

43

51

39
41

16

1

33

H
O

LLY
B

AN
K

G
R

O
VE

2

JENNIFER
G

ROVE

11

18

13

1

7

11

16

58
to

52

MOORGARTH AVENUE

18

40
41

21

18
20

26

34
to
28

36 to 42
44 to 50

31

30

C
O

LL
IN

G
W

O
O

D
A

V
E

N
U

E

26

3 6

25

35

48
46

32

22

HOB MOOR DRIVE

HARLOW CLOSE

23

1

9
10

2

25

31

44

42

40

50

MILDRED GROVE

HO
LL

Y
BA

NK
RO

AD

36
31

21

4

16

28

25

31

1

6

ANDERSON GROVE

10

5

1

17

23

11

1020

28

19 11

TOWTON AVENUE

27

2

951011

13

93

1

13

14

PH

HAMILTON DRIVE

H
AR

LO
W

ROAD

81

1

13

2

12

CLIVE GROVE

HAMILTON DRIVE EAST

79 77 65 55

14

26

1

11

TREVOR GROVE

NIGEL GROVE

Rosemount
Court

43

2

16

6

1

15

9

7

3

10

8
to

6

3to1

4 1

5

C
AM

P
B

E
LL

A
V

E

5

Holgate

Beck

5 9

57

Squirrel
Cottage

69

4a

Holgate Beck

35

45

Q
U

E
E

N
S

W
O

O
D

G
R

O
V

E

60

42

50

50a

52
a

52

67

57

HOB MOOR DRIVE

15

28

27

32 22

23

2

14

113

2

12

11

25

9

Club

12
14

1

C
A

M
P

B
EL

L
A

V
E

N
U

E

22

32

21

22

32

25

41

185

1

5

10

28

22

211

LA
DY

H
AM

IL
TO

N
G

AR
D

EN
S

31

HAMILTON DRIVE WEST

Eastlands Avenue

161173

1121

147149

1

M
A

T
T I

S
O

N
W

A
Y

125
137

HAMILTON DRIVE

H
A

M
I L

T O
N

W
A

Y

113

2

12

1

9

19

2

12

55

11
8

12
8

63

75

M
IDDLETON

RO
AD

36
46

56

87

51
71

61

52
62

72

109

78 72

111

113

125

91
55

49

103to107

93to99

81

79

73

1

2

1

7

20

ASCOT WAY

ASHFORD PLACE

to 63

57

65 to 71

41 to
47

11

17

16

1
to 6

Merton
Court

W
IN

D
SO

R
G

AR
TH

9

26

16

17

5

26

31

3

41

S
T

U
A

R
T

R
O

A
D

DANESFORT AVENUE

1

32
4 2

71

79 to

81
91

99 to 93

101

73

Lincoln Court

Windsor
House

22

MIDDLETON ROAD

22

13

12

2

12

1

14

24

6

5

17

29

4

6

1 8

30

2

21

31

41
5161

K
I N

G
S

W
A

Y
W

E
S

T

33to39

59 to 53

12
9

88

Holgate Beck

69

59

49

38

30

68

64

66

60
62

58

27
25

23

13
11

9

1

2

1
5

44

40

42

30

20

TUDOR ROAD

16
18

12
14

10
6

1

1 0
1

1 0
3

1 0
5

11

10
7

Acomb Hotel
(PH)

B
i rc

h
C

op
se

G
REEN

LANE

11
9

58

68

78

89

79

Q
U

EEN
SW

O
O

D
G

RO
VE

Q
U

EENSW
O

O
D

G
R

OVE

64

6

16

26

11

17

52

46

Lowfield
School

36
38

32
34

81

89

99

2

10

46

52

1
9

G
REEN

LAN
E

HAMILTON DRIVE WEST

10

2

248

238

6 5

243  245

241

229

2

230

70

68

89

228

226

4

99

1

227

225

223
221

219

215

M
O

O
R

G
A

T
E

19

Hob Moor

County Infant School

Hob Moor

County Junior School

9a

K
I N

G
S

TH
O

R
P

E

K
I N

G
S

TH
O

R
P

E

1
2

5

6

SA
N

D
O

W
N

C
LO

SE

1 to 4

54

56

20
4

20
6

21
41

3

GALE
LANE

22
0

169

84

107

117

K
IN

G
S

W
A

Y
W

E
S

T

11
2

149
to

155

1 57
to

163
16 5

to
17 1

10

El
Sub Sta

GARTH

15

17

29

31

20
19

1
t o

6

29to32

13 to 16

7
to

12

1
to

6

KEMPTON

PO

159

157a

155
157

13
2

146

58
72

73
85

S
TU

A
R

T
R

O
A D

MIDDLETON ROAD

95

76
88

10
0

1 35

129

147

1

13

2to8

7t o1

15
to9

17

23

A
SC

O
T

W
AY

WOODFORD PLACE

Adelphi House

9

2
4

6

12

18

2

41

53

17

1to6

7to12

25
to

31
3 3

to
39

Beverley
Court

27

7
to

12

1
to

6

1 to 4

5
to

10

11
to

16

El Sub Sta

Our Lady's

RC Primary School

Trough

59

49

W
HI

TE
HO

U
SE

R
IS

E

PULLEYN DRIVE

4
2

16
14

12

25

37

24 22

W
H

IT
E

H
O

U
SE

G
AR

D
E

N
S

1

9

13

8

62

31

6a

6 4

1

3

11

W
HI

TE
HO

US
E

DR
IV

E

69

48

59

TA
D

C
A

ST
ER

R
O

A
D

PULLEYN DRIVE

28
6

2

6

2

W
H

IT
E

H
O

US
E

G
AR

D
EN

S

25
6

22

Odsal H
ouse

Bank

73

1a

1

22
8

1to6

Aston House

24
to
19

23
to

28

17
to

22

CL
O

SE

As
to

n
H

ou
se

Merton
Court

28
4

26
0

N

S

EW

Established Public Footpath

Paths already on central
Highways register

9, St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET  Telephone: 01904 551550

Paths under investigation

25/02/2010

City of York Council  LA1000 20818

123 NEW NUMBER

123 OLD NUMBER

134

1357

2

133
1

132
9

8
131

8
131

130
10

132 M1

3
129

128
4

5127

6
126

Page 181



Page 182

This page is intentionally left blank



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Holgate Ward 
 

Schedule 1 
 

 

Ward:  Holgate 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 126 (Holgate)  
Description of Route: 
 
Footpath commencing on Sowerby Road, to the rear of 2 Burnsall Drive, and running south-
west to the junction of Pately Place and Baildon Close. 
 
Approximate length 
120 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 5800 5166 SE 5791 5160 Tarmac 
 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 5800 5166 SE 5791 5160 1.7m 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   

Removable bollard SE 5800 5166 Y126a 
 
 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans  �  1992  
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence     
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric �    
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water �    
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
Make Definitive Map Modification Order 
 

Page 183



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Holgate Ward 
 

Schedule 2 
 

 

Ward:  Holgate 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 127 (Holgate)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath running from Windmill Roundabout, Windmill Rise (nos 39 & 43)onto Acomb Road 
between 68 & 70 and continuing parallel to Acomb Road down a slope to join the pavement. 
 
Approximate length 
95 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 5842 5140 SE 5847 5142 Tarmac 
 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 5842 5140 SE 5842 5141 1.5m 
SE 5842 5141 SE 5847 5142 3m 

 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   

Cycle barrier SE 5847 5142 Y127b 
 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans   �   
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence    Enforcement history and 

correspondence on file User Evidence    
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric  �   
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water  �   
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
Make Definitive Map Modification Order 
 

Page 184



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Holgate Ward 
 

Schedule 3 
 

 

Ward:  Holgate 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 128 (Holgate)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath running from Collingwood Avenue between 2 & 4 Collingwood Avenue and 3 & 5 
Campbell Avenue to Campbell Avenue 
 
Approximate length 
50 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 5850 5095 SE 5853 5095 Concrete 
SE 5853 5095 SE 5855 5094 Paving 

 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 5850 5095 SE 5855 5094 0.9m 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   
   

 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans  �  1967  
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence     
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric  �   
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water  �   
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
Make Definitive Map Modification Order 
 

Page 185



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Holgate Ward 
 

Schedule 4 
 

 

Ward:  Holgate 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 129 (Holgate)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath running onto Hob Moor between 2 Holly Bank Road and 39 Hob Moor Drive 
 
Approximate length 
35 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 5864 5077 SE 5861 5075 Tarmac 
 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 5864 5077 SE 5861 5075 0.9m 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   

Kissing gate SE 5861 5075 Y129a 
 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans  �  1960  
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence     
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric  �   
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water  �   
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
Make Definitive Map Modification Order 
 
 

Page 186



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Holgate Ward 
 

Schedule 5 
 

 

Ward:  Holgate 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 130 (Holgate)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath running east from Wilton Rise along the southern boundary of 73 Wilton Rise then 
turning north east and running between 8 and 9 Enfield Crescent to terminate on Enfield 
Crescent. 
 
Approximate length 
80 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 5889 5133 SE 5891 5132 Concrete 
SE 5891 5132 SE 5895 5133 Natural 

 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 5889 5133 SE 5895 5133 1m 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   
   

 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans  �  1961  
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence     
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas �    
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric  �   
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water �    
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
Make Definitive Map Modification Order 

Page 187



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Holgate Ward 
 

Schedule 6 
 

 

Ward:  Holgate 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 131 (Holgate)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath running from Leeman Road car park at rear of the railway station and following the 
boundary wall south-west then over the footbridge to the corner of Railway Terrace and 
Wilton Rise. 
 
Approximate length 
485 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 5947 5185 SE 5913 5155 Tarmac 
 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 5947 5185 SE 5913 5155 2.5m 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   

Footbridge SE 5916 5157 Y131c 
 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans  �  1852, 1891 1961 & 1987 
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence     
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric �    
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water �    
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
Make a Definitive Map Modification Order 
 

Page 188



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Holgate Ward 
 

Schedule 7 
 

 

Ward:  Holgate 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 132 (Holgate)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath running from ward boundary near Scarborough Bridge south to Leeman Road (by 
Marble Arch bridge) down the side of the Royal Mail sorting office. 
 
Approximate length 
145 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 5962 5194 SE 5963 5192 Tarmac 
 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 5962 5194 SE 5963 5192 1.5m 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   

bollard SE 5963 5192 Y132a 
 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans  �  1891 1960 & 1988 
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence     
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT �    
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric �    
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water �    
York Waterworks �    
 
Recommendation:  
Make Definitive Map Modification Order 
 
 

Page 189



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Holgate Ward 
 

Schedule 8 
 

 

Ward:  Holgate 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 133 (Holgate)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath running from Scarborough Bridge west along cycle path to Cinder Lane 
 
Approximate length 
684 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 5960 5203 SE 5902 5230 Tarmac 
 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 5960 5203 SE 5902 5230 3m 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   

Cycle barrier SE 5902 5230  
 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans  �  1852, 1891 1982 
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence    Some user evidence and 

correspondence User Evidence    
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric �    
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water �    
York Waterworks �    
 
Recommendation:  
No further action at this time 
 
 

Page 190



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Holgate Ward 
 

Schedule 9 
 

 

Ward:  Holgate 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 134 (Holgate)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath running from the western end of Forth Street and running west to Water End. 
 
Approximate length 
40 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 5872 5261 SE 5869 5262 Tarmac 
 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 5872 5261 SE 5869 5262 1.5m 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   

Cycle barrier SE 5872 5262 Y134a 
Steps SE 5869 5262 Y134b 

 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans  �  1985  
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence     
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric �    
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water  �   
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
Make Definitive Map Modification Order 
 

Page 191



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York - Holgate Ward 
 

Schedule 10 
 

 

Ward:  Holgate 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 135 (Holgate)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath running from the northern end of Lincoln Street across to Clifton Bridge. 
 
Approximate length 
172 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 5878 5262 SE 5884 5274 Tarmac 
 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 5878 5262 SE 5884 5274 1.5 – 2.5m 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   

Gate SE 5878 5262 Y135b 
Steps SE 5884 5274 Y135a 

 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans  �  1985  
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence     
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas �    
BT �    
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric  �   
NTL Network Services �    
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water  �   
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
Make Definitive Map Modification Order 
 

Page 192



Old People's Home

Oak Haven

House
Her

ita
ge

 H
ou

se

Hotel

S
he

lle
y 

H
ou

se

Buckden

Askrigg

Wensley

Aysgarth

MONUM
ENT CLOSE

D
R

IVE

R
O

A
D

SO
W

ER
BY

SOWERBY ROAD

B
O

U
T

H
W

A
IT

E

5

2

to

69

54

17

18

11

6

79

91

1 
to

 7

7 to 9

28 to 34

36 to 42

4 
to

 1
0

41

89

12

33 to 36

9 
to

 1
5

20

1 to 6

24 to 30

20
3

32 to 38

1 t
o 1

9

13
 to

 1
6

19
3

1 to 10

21
7

22

21
5

22
3

21
3

22
1

6a

26

19
5

35

20
9

49

43

59

1

4

8

61
51

LB

Hebdon Court

El Sub Sta

PATELY PLACE

BAILDON CLOSE

BOUTHW
AITE DRIVE

Hebdon Rise

H
E

B
D

O
N

 R
IS

E

Ingleton

BURNSALL

1 to 10

1

12

1 to 10

1 to 10

Hotel

22

5

1 to 10

11

6

1 to 10

1

457900.000000

457900.000000

458000.000000

458000.000000

4
5
1
5
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
5
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
6
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
6
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
7
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
7
0
0

.0
00

00
0

±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:1,250Scale Drawn By:JHC Date:13/04/10

York Footpath No.126
(Holgate Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 193



Page 194

This page is intentionally left blank



HOLGATE

Club

Methodist

15.2m

17.4m18.9m

Gardens

H
ol

ga
te

 M
et

ho
di

st
 C

hu
rc

h

WINDMILL RISE

M
U

R
R

A
Y

 S
T

R
E

E
T

77

17

12

23

28

39

21

2

43

22

10

41

36

9

70

14

50

27

18

6
4

8

65

Holgate
Windmill

TCB

WIN
DMILL

53

13.4m

44

50

W
IN

DM
IL

L 
RIS

E

27

27

17

2

44

458400.000000

458400.000000

458500.000000

458500.000000

4
5
1
3
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
3
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
4
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
4
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
5
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
5
0
0

.0
00

00
0

±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:1,250Scale Drawn By:JHC Date:13/04/10

York Footpath No.127
(Holgate Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 195



Page 196

This page is intentionally left blank



10.1m

12.8m

Beech Court

HARLOW CLOSE

H
AR

LO
W

C
O

LL
IN

G
W

O
O

D
 A

V
E

N
U

E

DRIVE

C
A

M
P

B
E

LL
 A

V
E

N
U

E

HOB MOOR

HAMILTON DRIVE

C
A

M
P

B
E

LL
 A

V
E

H
A

M
IL

T
O

N
 W

A
Y

1

5

71

13

8

12
41

91

11 83

108

97
99

19

24
32

31

18

4

3102

15

79

100118
36

17

81

106

48

7

92

44

110

25

104

85

35

20

93

89

16

95

46

9

128

61

87

10

22

90114

101

23

26

14

2

LB

42

BARRETT AVENUE

21

2

95

21

12

12

4

1

19

2

2

12

10
1

10.1m

1
3

25

93

22

13

2
13

1

32

25

1

1

23

2

458500.000000

458500.000000

458600.000000

458600.0000004
5
0
8
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
0
8
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
0
9
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
0
9
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:1,250Scale Drawn By:JHC Date:13/04/10

York Footpath No.128
(Holgate Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 197



Page 198

This page is intentionally left blank



Micklegate Stray

D
ra

in

Holgate

Path
 (u

m)

S
D

CS

Hob Moor

HARLOW CLOSE

H
AR

LO
W

JENNIFER G
R

O
VE

H
O

LLY
 B

A
N

K

DRIVE

ROAD

HOB MOOR

C
O

LL
IN

G
W

O
O

D
 A

V
E

N
U

E

B
or

o 
C

on
st

 B
dy

6
1

9

40

10

22

11

23
48

44

21

32

25

35

16

42

41

18

30

46

28

43

36

26

13

33

14

31

50

2

C
o 

C
on

st
 &

 W
ar

d 
B

dy

Sub Sta

H
E

A
T

H
 C

LO
S

E

51

44 33

Path (um
)

2

9

25
1

1

21

1

31

458600.000000

458600.000000

458700.000000

458700.000000

4
5
0
7
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
0
7
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
0
8
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
0
8
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
0
9
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
0
9
0
0

.0
00

00
0

±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:1,250Scale Drawn By:JHC Date:13/04/10

York Footpath No.129
(Holgate Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 199



Page 200

This page is intentionally left blank



B
ec

k

Settlement

York

House

Club

14.3m

10.7m

17.7m

18.6m

11.9m

15.2m

16.5m

11.6m

Hotel

Mews

Wilton

CRESCENT

EN
FI

E
LD

W
IL

TO
N R

IS
E

PO

HOLGATE ROAD

Chancery
Chancery Rise

2

3 1

17

40

129

1 to 32

76

37

1 to 12

52

50

126

154

19

150

127

148

128

74

78

10

131

49

138
46

152

133

61

62

36

4

20

33
Sub Sta

LB

ENFIELD CRESCENT

TCB

Hollybank House

Bridge

3

Hotel

1

LB

458900.000000

458900.000000

459000.000000

459000.000000

4
5
1
2
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
2
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
3
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
3
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
4
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
4
0
0

.0
00

00
0

±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:1,250Scale Drawn By:JHC Date:13/04/10

York Footpath No.130
(Holgate Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 201



Page 202

This page is intentionally left blank



Works WheelYorkshire

North Junction

9.4m
14.6m

11.6m

16.8m

18.6m

15.8m

Car Park

ST PAU
L'S TER

R
AC

E

DRIVE

LEEMAN ROAD

R
AILW

AY TER
R

AC
E

ST PAU
LS M

EW
S

17.1m

L Twr

2

28

26

26 to

20

16 to 21

10

14

50

43
44

48

66

55
 to

 6
5

37 to 42

12

51 to 74

16

1

42
4037

3539

5

60

2422

613

69

15

29

25

33

18
9

Chy
Sub Sta

Stable Cottage

FB

16.8m

14

24

33

Car Park

15

1

35
Car Park

29

459100.000000

459100.000000

459200.000000

459200.000000

459300.000000

459300.000000

459400.000000

459400.000000

459500.000000

459500.0000004
5
1
4
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
4
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
5
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
5
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
6
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
6
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
7
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
7
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
8
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
8
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
9
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
9
0
0

.0
00

00
0±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:2,500Scale Drawn By:JHC Date:13/04/10

York Footpath No.131
(Holgate Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 203



Page 204

This page is intentionally left blank



YORK

River Ouse

Clifton Long Reach
Bridge

Scarborough

Sorting Office

9.8m

7.6m

9.4m 10.7m

Sloping

Sloping masonry

CR

Pond

C
P

Car Park

Marygate Landing

Marble

W
ar

d 
B

dy

LEEMAN ROAD

SM

15 18

Signal Gantry

Chy

Cinder Lane(Path)

S
L

The Esplanade(Path)

U
nd

Fn

FB

Westgate Apartments

C
P

7.6m

Car Park

Ward Bdy

CR

CR Ward Bdy

Ward Bdy

459600.000000

459600.000000

459700.000000

459700.0000004
5
1
8
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
8
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
9
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
9
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:1,250Scale Drawn By:JHC Date:13/04/10

York Footpath No.132
(Holgate Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 205



Page 206

This page is intentionally left blank



459000.000000

459000.000000

460000.000000

460000.000000

4
5
1
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
3
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:10,000Scale Drawn By:JHC Date:13/04/10

York Footpath No.133
(Holgate Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 207



Page 208

This page is intentionally left blank



C
lif

to
n 

S
ho

rt

9.8m

9.4m

Bowling Green

Playground
Path

LI
N

C
O

LN
 S

TR
EE

T

STREET

FORTH

ROSEBERY

CARNOT STREET

W
ATER E

ND

SWINERTON AVENUE

G
as

 G
ov

er
no

r

63

Posts
91

10

59

32

22

58

35

28

61

26

31

38

20

40

77

21

47

30

56

2

27

55

93

33

43

60

9

14

46

49

1

58

Bowling Green

46

59

38

Posts

10
35 Posts

40

43

458600.000000

458600.000000

458700.000000

458700.000000

458800.000000

458800.000000

4
5
2
5
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
5
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
6
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
6
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
7
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
7
0
0

.0
00

00
0

±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:1,250Scale Drawn By:JHC Date:13/04/10

York Footpath No.134
(Holgate Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 209



Page 210

This page is intentionally left blank



9.8m

STREET

FORTH

W
ATER E

ND

SWINERTON AVENUE

Clifton Bridge

Posts

46
91

1020

40

77

30

18

2

55

93

33

43

9 1

40

458800.000000

458800.000000

458900.000000

458900.000000

4
5
2
6
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
6
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
7
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
7
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
8
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
8
0
0

.0
00

00
0±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:1,250Scale Drawn By:JHC Date:13/04/10

York Footpath No.135
(Holgate Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 211



Page 212

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Annex 4 

 
 
 
 
Public Rights of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981, 
Preparation of Definitive Map for Former County Borough  
 
Hull Road Ward 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Index 
 
Location Plan 
 
Schedules & Path Plans 
Path Nos 183-193 
   
 
Summary of Recommendations 
 
DMMO Recommended Path Nos 
183, 185, 187, 188, 189, 191, 192, 193 
 
No Further Action At This Time Recommended Path Nos 
184, 186, 190,  

Page 213



Page 214

This page is intentionally left blank



E
l S

ub
 S

ta

Eb
or

THEROPEWALK

HALL
FI

ELD
ROAD

RIC
HMO

ND
STR

EET

LI
TT

LE
H

A
LL

F
IE

LD
R

O
A

D

W
or

ks

BOW
ES

AVENUE

FO
U

R
T

H
A

V
E

N
U

E

G
le

ns
id

e
Fl

at
s

FIFTH AVENUES
C

R
O

P
E

A
V

E
N

U
E

FABERSTREET

HAWTHORN STREET

GLEN AVENUE

FL
EM

IN
G

A
VE

N
U

E

S
IX

TH
A

VE
N

U
E

Glen
Lo

dg
e

EMMERSON STREET

C
lu

b

Millgarth

HARCOURT STREET

G
LE

N
R

O
AD

El Sub Sta

HAW
TH

O
RN

GROVE

G
ar

ag
e

G
as

 H
ol

de
r

7

2

14

28

35

25

13

1

2

12

2

12

20

29
19

9

1

2

14

26

38

58

72

1

5

9

11

15

17

21

23

29

31
3522

20

16

47

45 14

43 33 21 9

47

51

53

2

2

612

18

12

8

98

90

10
1

93

83

13

7

1

81

71

61

2
14

24

1 
to

 6
7t

o1
1

12
to

16
17

to
22

9
1

31

23

1 1

7

1

21

11

10

6

1

2725

23a
23

9

18

2

16

13

1

20

22

12

4

2

15

1

7

1

14
12

10
8

2

28

6

1a

10

24

9

1

14

16

14

22

31

19

9

3

1

12
9

G
ar

ag
e

EA
ST

PA
R

AD
E

Ban
k

3

18

27

51

10

5

In
du

st
ria

l E
st

at
e

7

19

4

6

8

41

39

33

13
1to

14
5

14a

1718

12

97

6

4

1

124
130

7

1

2

4

M
ill

en
ni

um
C

ou
rt

HEW
ORTH

MEWS 1to6

15 to
20

ElSubSta

3

5

5a

1

2

Mer
ch

an
ts

Cour
t

102

70

73

10
5

1 1
3

11
5

1 2
3

102

116

32

31

1 3
3

13
5

130

144

FI
FT

H
A

V
E

N
U

E

74

1 4
9

71
83

30

44

156

7

3

6

2

18
7

1 9
3

ST
AR

KE
Y

C
RE

SC
EN

T

28
32

38 48
58

39

49 61

44 2

12 22

1 11 21

CARTERAVENUE

46

60

46
60

49 59

62

E
l S

ub
 S

ta

2

16

EIGHTHAVENUE

20

23

9

CO
SM

O
AV

EN
U

E

31

37

34

SIXTH AVENUE

33

47

36

61

72

69

63

67

39

15

SEVENTHAVENUE

FO
U

R
T

H
A

V
E

N
U

E

71
75

77

1

48

61

1

79

58

89

84

MELROSE GATE

10 4

10
5

11
1

92
106

Sc
ho

ol
Pr

im
ar

y

6

19 25

Ta
ng

 H
al

l

15
29

20

34

31

40
38a

38
36

16

17

27

14

24

TH
IR

D
A

V
E

N
U

E

47

34 44

54

2

N
IN

TH
A

V
E

N
U

E

47
21

11

3

WOLFEAVENUE

Ta
ng

Ha
ll

Be
ck

BULL LANE

1

2

2 1

G
le

n 
Lo

dg
e

E
l S

ub
 S

ta

G
le

nf
ie

ld

15

43

14

26

26

36

M
A

IN
A

V
EN

U
E

29

36

28

29

31

16

35

1

6

SECOND AVENUE

EA
ST

BO
U

R
N

E
G

R
O

V
E

25

11

8

20

32

29

31

1

2

33

5

1a

17

15

19

7

19

12

24

CORNBOROUGHAVENUE

TA
N

G
H

A
LL

LA
N

E

CORNBOROUGH

AVENUE

M
EL

RO
SE

C
LO

SE

73

1 2 37 8 9

14 15 1620 21 22

4
5

6
10

11
12

17
18

19
23

24
25P

op
la

r T
re

e
G

ar
de

ns

Library

WOODHOUSE GROVE

FI
FT

H
AV

EN
U

E

APPLEBY PLACE

ST
ER

N
E

AV
EN

UE

ROCKINGHAM
AVENUE

CO
SM

O
AV

EN
U

E

STARKEY
CRESCENT

TANG
HALL LANE

PL
UM

ER
AV

EN
U

E

IN
G

LE
TO

N
W

AL
K

PENYGHENT
AVENUE

WHERNSIDE AVENUE

ASQ
UIT

H
AV

EN
U

E

FO
UR

TH
AV

EN
UE

Ta
ng

H
al

l
(P

H
)

MELROSE CLOSE

WOLFE
AVE

E
l S

ub
 S

ta

B
A

D
B

A
R

G
A

IN
LA

N
E

BA
D

BA
R

G
AI

N
LA

NE

BURNHOLME
GROVE

Burnholme

Community College

E
l

S
ub

 S
ta

G
ER

AR
D

AV
EN

U
E

LEYLANDRD

G
IL

ES
AV

EN
U

E

HOLROYD
AVENUE

Pa
rk

C
ou

rt

H
al

l

TangHallBeck

WALNEYROAD

23

25

31

2

16

1

9

1

9

15

1

5

1

7

14

20

26

6

2

17

27

39

51

1

11

23

2a

8

2a

53

63

66
64

1

13

25
26

14

2

62

52

1

13

25

37

51

63

76

64

52

40

28

16

2

50

40

1

15

27

39

53

65

79

56

54

14

7

1

52

42

40

30

22

24

14

2

1

11

23

20

10

2

38

28

158
142

14
1

14
7

26

14

4

41

47

55

63

81

89

97

1

9

19

20

12

2

99

113

127

1

510

27
5

28
5

29
5

30
5

30
7

300
298

296

292

12

290

27
3

26
1

24
7

2

22
9

2 1
1

19
7

10

22

34

46

56

68

134

140

68

82

55

43

29

15

1

14

24

24

18

13

7

1

26

38

48

84

98

110

122

27

29

48

58

66

13
9

13
1

14

12

3
1 11

9
11

5

110

122

132

51

39

27

2

14

5

1

25

11

H
ea

lth
Se

rv
ic

es

C
en

tre

BURNHOLME

DRIVE

65

79

17

2
to

5

6
to

11

P
O

2

4

GILLAMOOR AVENUE

ENNERDALE AVENUE

FI
FT

H
AV

E
NU

E

302

1

6

10

16

304

306

2

10

18

Li
by

M
AL

HAM
GRO

VE

1

308

9

1

13

14

2

EL
Su

b
St

a

PENYGHENT

AVENUE

73

79

31
5

32
5

320

St
 A

el
re

d'
s 

R
C

Pr
im

ar
y 

Sc
ho

ol

27

M
E

AD
LA

N
D

S

RUSSETDRIVE

28

5

1

30

38

Bu
rn

ho
lm

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 C
ol

le
ge

9

11

15

9

8

2
6

W
OR

CE
ST

ER
DR

W
O

RC
ES

TE
R

D
R

IV
E

CHERRY

GARTH

17 14

12

1

2

25

33

2a

10

9

5

1
DARNBROOK WALK

2

G
al

tre
s

Sc
ho

ol

18

28

30

13

15

23

25

1

2

1

2

6

BROUGHTON
WAY

E
LW

IC
K

G
R

O
VE

W
H

IT
TO

N
PL

AC
E

39

47

57

64

10

7

12
8

B
R

O
U

G
H

TO
N

W
AY

82

43

1 9
42

HEATHERBANK

60

37

32

9

13

14

8

TH
E

 L
E

Y
E

S

27

26a

7

15

18

2
6

24

40

8

THIRKLEBY WAY

FA
R

N
D

A
LE

A
V

E
N

U
E

GIVENDALE GROVE

32

41

8

3

5

2

10

11

1

9

8

S
E

AT
O

N
C

LO
SE

1

11

1

O
sb

al
dw

ic
k 

C
 o

f E
 P

rim
ar

y 
Sc

ho
ol

5

12

49

56

TH
E

LEYES

C
om

m
un

ity
C

en
tre 11

12
a

14
15

21

26

1a
1

9

22

16

1

13

14

2

14

23

ST
M

AR
Y'

S
G

R
O

VE

80

84

20

17

87

95
a

V
ic

ar
ag

e

95

97

10
7

1

5

10

86
88

1

8

M
oo

rla
nd

s
C

lo
se

HAMBLETON AVENUE

10

C
lu

b

124

11

11a

12

4
4a

2

6

1

7

9

1

138

ST
TH

O
M

AS
'S

C
LO

SE

THIRKLEBY WAY

CH
U

RC
H

RO
AD

2

3

3

11
7

12
7

13
7

H
al

l

Hall

E
l

S
ub S
ta

2
12

3 4

4

2

13
9

14
9

1

6

O
S

B
A

LD
W

IC
K

 L
A

N
E

M
O

A
T

F I
E

LD

22

144

140

17
7

181183

46

G
ar

ag
e

S
t T

ho
m

as
's

C
hu

rc
h

17
1

17
3

17
5

44

54

15

26

1111a

16

Th
e 

D
er

w
en

t
A

rm
s

(P
H

)

METCALFE
LANE

MOAT

FI
ELD

OSB
ALD

W
IC

K
V

IL
LA

G
E

O
sb

al
dw

ic
k

Be
ck

36

28

41
45

47

YEW TREE MEWS

5 1

1

9

73

67

5 7

M
U

R
TO

N
W

A
Y

GALLIGAP
LANE

4 2

63

65

1

7

12

14

18

VICARAGE
GARDENS

57

16
9

16
9a

16
1

15
5

50

42

37

43

34
50

22
40

34
37

86
36

55
31

32
33

02
32

P
on

d

La
ng

to
n 

H
ou

se
45

28

10
24

22
21

30
22

OUTGANG LANE

P
on

d

Th
e 

P
in

es

P
on

d

2

8

18
00

YEW TREE

09
00

E
l S

ub
 S

ta

G
rid

C
ot

ta
ge

66
10

W
or

ks

Osb
ald

wick
Be

ck

D
ep

ot

METCALFE LANE

MEWS

MEADLANDS

Ea
st

er
n 

H
ou

se

53

3

1

8to9

Yo
rv

ik
H

ou
se

H
an

dl
ey

Pa
rk

2

7

47

55

16

6

20

1

11

1

2

P
O

HAZELWOOD AVENUE

10
8

12

9

19

9

13

712

B
A

Y
S

D
A

LE
A

V
E

N
U

E

HIG
H FIELD

43 12

14

31

29

54

44

42

19
21

22

20

43

27

40

24

55

32

44

56

Drain

33

39

11

25

17

10

18

5

20

1

22

28

53

68

55

27

32

FA
R

N
D

AL
E

AV
E

N
U

E

66

34
36

10

33
35

11a
15

27

29

10

BEDALE AVENUE

20

18

2

16

25

23

1

35

WYDALE ROAD

W
EN

SL
EY

DA
LE

DR
IV

E

66

45

7

4

1

7

9

1

2

12

8

ALVIS
GROVE

BROOKLANDS

6

22

67

79

22

80

TRANBY AVENUE

7
9

1

15

2

14

2

1

8

2

KIRKDALE ROAD

11

11

19

11

30

E
l

S
ub

 S
ta

Drain

11

15

23

2

1 2

S
t T

ho
m

as
's

C
hu

rc
h

CH
UR

CH
RO

AD

94

106

3 1

8183

14

16

37

27

28

41
40

18

71

3
5

P
on

d

O
sb

al
dw

ic
k

C
 o

f E
P

rim
ar

y 
S

ch
oo

l

O
ak

w
oo

d 
N

oo
k

B
re

nt
w

oo
d

9

15

19

29

D
ra

in

O
sb

al
dw

ic
k

B
ec

k

M
U

R
TO

N
W

A
Y

OUTGANG
LANE

11
a

Br
oo

k

No
ok

P
pg

 S
ta

O
rc

ha
rd

 H
ou

se

Li
by

THIRKLEBY WAY

Drain

OSBALDWICK LINK ROAD

15

1c

1a

12a

D
ep

ot

Drain

Drain

Drain

Be
nt

le
y

P
ar

k

Drain

Link Busin
ess Park

1

2

3

4

5

6

2

8

19
19

4

13

2

6

6

45

7

21

RE
DBA

RN

D
RI

VE

M
O

IN
S

C
O

U
R

T

M
E

AM
C

LO
SE

14

1

11

3

Drain

8

12

LI
NK

RO
AD

C
O

UR
T

Li
br

ar
y 13

23

35

1

15

29

28

34

1

3

4

9

14

20

AMBLESIDE AVENUE

1

7 11

16

CO
NI

ST
ON

DR
IV

E

1

7

11

16GRA
SM

ER
E

DR
IV

E

2

36

44

52

67

55

43

34

MOORE AVENUE

13

17

41

TE
M

P
LE

A
V

E
N

U
E

INGLEBOROUGH AVENUE

LA
NG

AV
EN

UE

10

18

26

2

12

20

26

12

2

1

7

Temple Villas

178

182

18

17

BU
RN

IS
TO

N
G

R
O

VE

E
l S

ub
 S

ta 187
189

1
3

29

31

33
35

41

51

61

71

O
sb

al
dw

ic
k

Be
ck

1

11

21

31
32

22

12

2

49

55

30

26

16

17

3
2

P
H

1

C
am

pb
el

l
C

ou
rt

18

19

24

25

33
31

59

63

65

65
a

67

75

83

78

66

62

S
ub

 S
ta

O
SB

AL
D

W
IC

K
LA

N
E

MOORE AVENUE

70

56

TU
KE

AV
EN

U
E

42

22

12

2

191

205

1

13

25

35

47

1

11

48

38

26

14

2

HALL LANE

4

1

186

Surgery

190

12
7

11
7

118

57

LILAC AVENUE

M
IL

LF
IE

LD
LA

NE

S
t G

eo
rg

e'
s

M
et

ho
di

st
 C

hu
rc

h

P
O

194

207

221

17

29

41

53

65

W
YC

LI
FF

E
AV

EN
U

E

18

28

38

D
er

w
en

t J
un

io
r a

nd
 In

fa
nt

s 
Sc

ho
ol

202

TANG

74

E
l

159

155

2

6

BROUGHTON WAY

W
es

tm
in

st
e r

H
o u

s e
N

ur
si

n g
H

o m
e

6

2

MEADOWBECK CLOSE

1

V
ic

ar
ag

e

O
LD

SC
HO

O
L

C
LO

SE

58
60

1

2
3

S
tH

ild
a'

s

9

1

5

8

18

13

19

24

C
hu

rc
h

ST
H

IL
DA

'S
M

EW
S

25

37

49

60

62

1

13

25

O
sb

al
dw

ick
Be

ck

FL
AX

M
AN

AV
EN

U
E

37

75

M
IL

LF
IE

LD
LA

N
E

87

10
1

10
5

10
3

10
7

11
1

112
1145

48

58

68

43

47

1

63

1

13

14

2

65

75

28

74

64

82

85

33

6

1

92

8
7

AL
CU

IN
AV

EN
U

E

A
L L

E
N

C
LO

S
E

3

49

61

2122

23

30

37

102

P
on

d

11

16

BU
RN

IS
TO

N

G
R

O
VE

49

59

71

80

40
38

36
34

48
46

44
42

5456

52
50

64
62

60
58

72
70

68
66

12

2

H
E

W
LE

Y
AV

EN
U

E

BURLINGTONAVENUE

HEW
LE

Y
AVENUE

83

92

104

25

37

26

23

37

95

38

50

49

21 22
7 8

W
E

LB
O

R
N

C
L O

S
E

E
l

S
ub

 S
ta

112

122

71

10
5

11
3

12
3

12
5

95

72

62

3

6 2

1

Ha
ll

73
75

144

150

124

138

Sh
el

te
r

20

30

42

15

27

7

10

93

62

114

124

6 4

39

51

52

61

7 6
88

75

63

C
O

N
S

TA
N

TI
N

E
A

V
E

N
U

E

87

9 9

100

112

73
85

11
1

13
9

142
140

126

153

147

145

143

141

2

6

TANG HALL LANE

LA
N

G
AV

EN
UE

P
re

sb
yt

er
y

222

C
he

rry
 T

re
e

H
ou

se

A
V

E
N

U
E

FI
FT

H

234
246

2 58

270

280

138

124

282

286

WOODHOUSE GROVE

2

6

11

131

1

9

H
ea

lth

C
en

tre

S
er

vi
ce

s

S
t H

ild
a'

s

C
hu

rc
h

ST
HIL

DA
'S

M
EW

S

BULLLANE

12

Drain

Te
l E

x

B
e c

k

Osb
ald

wick

E
l S

ub
 S

ta

206196

2

1

16

12

17
19

6

A
LC

U
IN

A
V

E
N

U
E

21

62

50

1

11

24

14

2

53

65

H
AR

IN
G

TO
N

A
V

EN
U

E

233

221

172

182

194

21

36

1

44

30

13

25

37

77
81

79
83

51
47

49
45

209

BU
R

LI
N

G
TO

N
AV

EN
UE

91

77

162

88

76

10
3

11
5

12
7

160

RA
W

D
ON

AV
EN

U
E

S
he

lte
r

187

199

5

11

19
15

13 17

22
18

20
24

30
26

28 32

2

16

16

MELROSEGATE

HEWLEY
AVENUE

HEW
LE

Y
AVENUE

146

1

11

1

6

C
O

N
ST

AN
TI

N
E

A
VE

N
U

E

DERWENTAVENUE

T a
ng

H
al

l B
e c

k

1
to

4
5

to
8

7to121to6

170
to

176

168
162

A
rd

en
H

ou
se

CorbridgeHouse

FI
FT

H
A

V
E

N
U

E

StAelred's Church

T a
n g

H
a l

l
C

o m
m

un
ity

C
e n

t re

28 to 31

32 to 35

1to21

2 4
to

27

2 3 2 2

STAELREDSCLOSE

BECKSID
E

G
ARD

EN
S

,

AlexLyonHouse

15

D
ep

ot

JAMES STREET

E
LV

IN
G

T
O

N
TE

R
R

A
C

E
C

H
A

R
LO

TT
E

S
TR

E
E

T

5

W
ar

eh
ou

se

4

E
l

S
ub

 S
ta

6

W
or

ks

4842

55

3641 R
ay

lo
r  

C
en

tre

39 38

W
ar

eh
ou

se

18
t o

20

1 7
1 6

2 4

A
LE

X
A

N
D

R
A

C
O

U
R

T

21

D
ep

ot

W
or

ks

W
ar

eh
ou

se

1
2

3

5

6

9

Drain

Ta
ng

Ha
ll

Be
ck

E
bo

r I
nd

us
tri

al
 E

st
at

e

13
14

16 15

19 20

6

30
b

34

6a

12

H
A

ZE
L

C
O

U
R

T

R
ay

lo
r  

C
en

tre

BELLE VUE STREET

APOLLO STREET

W
or

ks

A
P

O
LL

O
C

O
U

R
T

40

52

51
5 1a

53

65

75

1
1a 2

7
12

9
13

9
15

47

4 0

P
O

9 7

87
77

2 3
3a

4

7

42

35

BELLE VUE TERRACE

H
E

SL
IN

G
TO

N
R

O
A

D

Th
e 

R
is

e

Fa
irf

ax
 H

ou
se

9 9

103

12
0

1 1
0

1 0
0

90

La
m

el
 B

ee
ch

es

1 05

24

29

34

40

52a

52

58

25

15

3
1a

1

64

59

2

12

22

32

W
EL

LI
NG

TO
N

ST
R

EE
T

WOLSLEYSTREET

18

13

46

51

42

36

27

29
31

41
43

45to61

6365
6769

76

D
A

Y
S

F O
O

T
C

O
U

R
T

Co
tta

ge

W
el

lin
gt

on

ElSubSta

57

69

66

54

2 8

15

1

C
 o

f E

Pr
im

ar
y 

Sc
ho

ol

St
 L

aw
re

nc
e'

s

19

REGENTSTREET

LawrenceLane

30

34

24

28

18

22

12

16

10

8

S
t L

aw
r e

nc
e

C
hu

r c
h

FARRARSTREET

C
ha

pe
l

S
t J

os
ep

h'
s 

C
on

ve
nt

of
 P

oo
r C

la
re

s 
C

ol
le

tin
es

13
25

35
45

42

28
16

13

(P
riv

at
e)

P
on

d

D
ep

ot

P
H

P
H

13

23

3to7

6

1

30

18

12
8

to
10

P
H

1

LEAKESTREET

O
ld

 C
hu

rc
h

To
w

er

H
al

l

P
H

C
lu

b

27

29
3 1

35

39

62

4 6

EllenWilson Hospital

LA
W

R
EN

C
E

S
T R

E
ET

61
69

71
77

35

1

86
80

78
70

2

1

4

1

41

G
ar

ag
e

31

79
89

97

110

106

104
102

16

33

20
15

13 8
3 2a 2

1

11

B
R

IN
K

W
O

R
TH

T E
R

R
A

C
E

W
ar

eh
ou

se

W
ar

eh
ou

se

JAMES STREET

3

4

714

20

30

11

22
29

15 12

6

1

1
4

THOMAS STREET

H
IL

D
A

S
TR

E
E

T

GRANVILLE TERRACE

W
or

ks

C
H

A
U

C
E

R
S

TR
E

E
T

H
E

R
B

E
R

T
S

TR
E

E
T

A
R

TH
U

R
S

TR
E

E
T

LANSDOWNE TERRACE

NICHOLAS STREET

16 21 26

10
6

2
1b

1

3228

21
16

1110
5

1

2722

1
5

10

11
17

24

37

33

1a
3

7

BA
R

BI
CA

N
M

EW
S25

27
26

28

29

30

31

32

37

39

38

44

45

4

3
7

9

COURT

1c

1b

l7

l8

23
2l22

24

12
a

8
4

1

E
M

IL
Y

M
E

W
S

1d

12
13

11

CornettoCourt

1to11

CATHERINE

11
11a

20

24

25to27
12 to 10

7 9

Th
e 

R
et

re
at

LA
NE

4 6

1 3

17
13

2

E l
S u

b
S

ta

2119

47 49
51

57

24

26

2

E
gl

es
fie

ld

G
ar

ro
w

 W
ay

R
os

ab
an

k
Th

e 
C

re
st

TH
IE

F
LA

N
E

UNIVERSITYROAD

30

1 6

1
11

23

8

24
12

2

N
E

W
LA

N
D

 P
A

R
K

 D
R

IV
E

BLAKENEY PLACE

13

AR
N

S I
D

E
P

LA
C

E

KE
XB

Y
A

V
EN

U
E

W
hi

te

C
ot

ta
ge

29

21 19 17 11

12

10

5

1

42

32

2239
49

59

GREENDYKESLANE

7

2

17

29

65

1816

BARSTOW

A
V

E
N

U
E

77

9135

23

40

28

14

E
l S

ub
 S

ta

ST NICHOLAS PLACE

Warehouse

13 2

D
E V

O
N

P
LA

C
E

12 1

6

24
22

10
to

18

D
ai

ry

8

4

32

1 5

1

30

42

52

62

13

1

1

46

10
1

10
7

11
5

12
539

38

LA
W

R
EN

C
E

S
TR

EE
T

R
O

M
A

N
R

O
AD

134

136
148

12
9

13
1

1 4
5

15
1

ABBOTSFORDROAD

2

3

11
13

15

19

16 t o 18

H
U

LL
R

O
A

D

C
lu

b

M
at

m
e r

H
o u

se

240

267 277 27
29

1
3

4 5
6

8

MILLFIELD

AVENUE

39
41

6

12

1
5

17

21 16 11

7142026

25a 26a 27 33 40

37

7
to

1 2

MILTONSTREET

S
TR

E
E

T
A

R
T

H
U

R

BULL LANE

27
34

41

621
.5

1 0
2

1 0
1

6to3

31 to 36

1 3
3

37
25 15

16

283234

MELROSEGATE

228224
226

O
sb

al
dw

ic
k

Be
ck

6

5

2

1

18 13

7 12

M
at

m
er

C
ou

rt

H
E

S
L I

N
G

T
O

N

E
l S

ub
 S

ta

91 93

90

92

89
84

81 83

80 82

7977

74 76

73 75

72
67

64 66

63 65

60

62

59

61

585653

55

52

54
5150

47

49

46

48

454441

43

40

42

1 71 9

21

25

N
IC

H
O

LA
S

 G
A

R
D

E
N

S28 26
30

29 27
35

39 37
3133

3234

3638

238a

182 0

42

C
on

st
ab

le
 C

ou
rt

1 
to

 8

134 a

1 
to

 6

B
er

ke
le

y

H
ou

se

Ju
pi

te
r H

ou
se

Ju
no

 H
ou

se

N
ep

tu
ne

H
ou

se

O
LY

M
P

IA
N

C
O

U
R

T

12
7

12
7

Tr
ad

ew
in

ds

1 
to

 1
2

1 
to

 8

1 
to

 3
7

Li
be

r h
ou

se

1 
to

 1
2

Pavilion

O
sb

al
dw

ick

E
l

S
ub

 S
ta

M
IL

LF
IE

LD
A

V
E

N
U

E

7

19

29

37
37

a

39

51

65

10 2

10 6

1 5

10

WAYNEFLEET GROVE

98

84

72
68

54

40

38

26

14

2

10
7

11
9

12
7

13
9

1

15

29

12

6

LILAC AVENUE

MILSON GROVE

1

13

27

21

13

3

89
95

99

10
5

H
U

LL
R

O
A

D

OWSTON AVENUE

M
IL

LF
IE

LD
LA

N
E

52

40

28 1

6

31
29

26

14

2

87
79 81

67
57

2

12

16

11

HEA
TH

FI
EL

D
RO

AD

28
18

4 5

55P
H

64
78

2 4

51

39

B
AR

S
TO

W
A

V
E

N
U

E

44

52
60

6

16

11
1

10
3

95

GARROW HILL AVENUE

27

13

E
l

S
ub S
ta

1

80

4
12 14

26

38

50

SIWARD STREET

51

39

27

15

3

90
100

2
12

24

LAMEL STREET

21

25

34

TH
IE

F
LA

NE

13
9

15
3

21
22

12

2

118
122

CYCLE STREET126

3

13

140

1

13

27

NORMAN STREET

22

12

2

142
148

160

E
lS

ub
St

a

114 130

113

112

104

94

82

7 0

58

46

34

1

4 6

NEWLANDPARKCLOSE

7

25
37

49

61

73

85

97

105

120

110

98

86

N
EW

LA
N

D
PA

R
K

D
R

IV
E

74

62

50
38

26

9

E
l

S
ub

 S
ta

8 8

11
3

11
5

83
77

Bec
k

S
ur

ge
ry

W
oo

dl
an

ds

24

17
1

17
5

18
1

16
3

16
7

15
5

16
1

27

35

WINDMILL LANE

13

25

P
av

ili
on

Ar
ch

bi
sh

op
 H

ol
ga

te
's

Sc
ho

ol

14
7

15
1

S
he

lte
r

P
av

ilio
n

1

178

H
U

LL
R

O
A

D

B
la

ck
 B

ul
l H

ot
el

190

14
3

15
3

1 2b
14

24

17
1

17
1a

252

240

15
3a

16
5a

243

TANG HALL LANE

16
3

17
3

18
7

265

253

2

14

13

W
O

O
LN

O
U

G
H

A
V

E
N

U
E

25

37

26

3 8

50

19
9

21
1

15

9

2 2
3

23
5

W
oo

ln
ou

gh

H
ou

se

LILAC
AVENUE

59

55

45

33

34

44

54

13

1

225

233

206

216

228

241

WYCLIFFE AVENUE

H
AD

R
IA

N
A

V
EN

U
E

1

11

12

2

14

2

13

14

1

25

35

36

26

D
ra

ke
 H

ou
se

1
to

10

39

41

17

27

32

20

H
ou

se
Fr

ob
is

he
r

CARLTON AVENUE

1
to

10

16
5c

16
5b

19

15

W
O

LV
IS

TO
N

AV
E

Woodlands

15
3b

E
l S

ub
 S

taBEAUFORT CLOSE

QUANT MEWS

S
AI

LS
D

R
IV

E

25a 25b

25c

27a
27b

1 2

1

3

11

15

22

24

20

10

4

8

17
19

27

48 44

46

32

2

3

5

11

15

24

4

6

10

14

3

7

8
2

1

Te
nn

is
 C

en
tre

1a

46

34

37

1

9

27

10

25

1

FE
R

N
W

A
Y

D
E

R
A

M
O

R
E

D
R

IV
E

W
E

ST

15

1

38

26

17

5

1

9

PINEWOOD HILL

D
E

R
AM

O
R

E
D

R
IV

E

22

32

2

4

17

11

9

Ar
ch

bi
sh

op
H

ol
ga

te
's

Sc
ho

ol

CROSSWAYS

2

14

24

13

1

2

1

7

1

2

14

KI
M

BE
R

LO
W

S
W

O
O

D
H

IL
L

VANBRUGH DRIVE

50

62

27
24

14

7

10

2

2

1

11

19

1 6

8

6

Y
A

R
B

U
R

G
H

W
A

Y

35
21

23
25

18

30

1a

15

40

4 7
4 7

a

51

1
to

8

Ba
dg

er
C

ou
rt

18

10

2

1

3

23
7

2

24

CARLTON AVENUE

25
1

25
5

26
1

11

1

2

26
3

36

H
U

LL
R

O
A

D

NURSERY GARDENS

29

46

27
3

28
1

20

H
U

LL
R

O
A

D

29
9

29
1

28
3

21

18

24

17

S
ur

ge
ry

29
32

40

23
21

9

3

32

WOLVISTON
AVENUE

10

35 44

2

1

46

23

B
R

O
U

G
H

TO
N

W
AY

SADBERGE COURT

50

12

24

14

33
38

HEATHER BANK

26

4

2

9

1

11

10

2

8

2

21

13

19

1

7

1

5

SHALLOWDALE GROVE

E
SK

D
A

LE
A

VE
N

U
E

PINELANDS WAY

42

7

1

2

4

3

15

10

12

1 2

14

9

1

2

8

44

46

LY
N

D
A

LE
A

VE
N

U
E

GIVENDALE GROVE
BRACKEN HILL

17
9

24

22

12

DERAMORE
DRIVE

7

11

1

34
46

29

56

BADGER WOOD WALK

39

1

27

8

2

73

77

21

68

71

67

1

13

2 YARBURGH WAY

FO
XT

H
O

R
N

PA
D

DO
CK

LOWMILLCLOSE

FIELDLANE

15

2

1

1to8

7

14

H
ES

KE
TH

BA
N

K

Badger Court

31

23

24

14

H
U

LL
R

O
A

D

CANHAM
GROVE

THIRKLEBY WAY

H
U

LL
R

O
A

D

30
5

31
11

3

54
52

67a

69

5

12

30
7

D
ra

in

2
8

7

1

32
3

31
5

2

31
5a

C
A

V
EN

D
IS

H
G

R
O

V
E

E
lS

ub
St

a

9

13

12 2 33
5

33
7

33
3

17

TRANBYAVENUE

LY
N

D
A

LE
AV

EN
U

E

THIRKLEBY

WAY

59

10

61

67

17

20

4
2

24

6

10

18

10

2

37

25

13

BR
A

N
D

SD
AL

E
C

R
ES

C
EN

T

1

25

19

34
24

28

BEDALE

AVENUE

31
3

3 1
7

H
U

LL
R

O
AD

E
l S

ub
 S

ta

33

35

REDBARNDRIVE

32

38

28

16

40

34

47
to

63
odd

27

18

Drain

57

FIE
LD

LANE

69

81

B
AD

G
E

R
W

O
O

D
W

AL
K

23

15

Dr
ai

n

12

SUSSEX ROAD

22

32

2

9

1

19

13

1

2

FI
E

LD
LA

N
E

14

17

26

38

85

91

2

80

11

1

7

14

1

83

63

73

CL
O

SE

SU
SSE

X

C
R

O
SS

W
A

YS

EASTFIELD COURT

13

19

25

19

21

1

6

11

16

56

53

43

31

EA
ST

FI
E

LD
C

R
ES

C
E

NT

68

48

WOOD WALK

BADGER

30

40

39

37

In
fa

nt
s 

Sc
ho

ol
Ba

dg
er

 H
ill 

C
ou

nt
y

51

72

1

11

12

2

70

60

50

BISHOPSWAY

CRESCENT

BR
EN

TW
O

O
D

41

49

1

7

31

77

65

80

92

8

DE
RA

M
O

RE
 D

RI
VE

 W
ES

T

2

12

La
ng

w
ith

 C
ol

le
ge

D
er

w
en

t
H

ou
seUNIV

ERSIT
Y

ROAD

Is
su

es

Drai
n

H
es

lin
gt

on

C
hu

rc
h

FI
EL

D
LA

N
E

C
he

m
is

try
La

bo
ra

to
rie

s

Th
e 

U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 o

f Y
or

k

WINDMILL LANE

E
l

S
ub

 S
ta

P
on

d

M
ill

 H
ou

se

63

Drain

39

51

Al
cu

in

C
ol

le
ge

U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 S

ci
en

ce
 P

ar
k

Derwent College

In
no

va
tio

n 
C

en
tre

6

1 to 5

20

E
l S

ub
 S

ta

ElS
ub

Sta

INNOVATION WAY

IN
N

O
VA

T
IO

N
C

LO
S

E

1

2

3

5

6

A
LC

U
IN

W
A

Y

E
lS

ub
St

a

Te
nn

is
 C

en
tre

E
l S

ub
 S

ta

La
ke

G
oo

dr
ic

ke
 C

ol
le

ge

C
en

tra
l

H
al

l

La
ke

Spring Lane

12

11
9

10

La
ke

La
ng

w
ith

C
ol

le
geS
ub

 S
taE
l

Bi
ol

og
y 

La
bo

ra
to

rie
s

Si
r J

ac
k 

Ly
on

s

C
on

ce
rt 

H
al

l

Th
e

U
ni

ve
rs

ity
of

 Y
or

k

Va
nb

ru
gh

C
ol

le
ge

13

V
an

br
ug

h

M
or

re
ll 

Li
br

ar
y

U
N

IV
ER

SI
TY

R
O

A
D

Al
cu

in
C

ol
le

ge

NEWLAND PARK CLOSE

20
19

11

Si
w

ar
d'

s 
H

ow
W

at
er

 T
ow

er

P
ro

vo
st

s 
H

ou
se

La
ng

ua
ge

C
en

tre

H
AR

EW
O

O
D

W
AY

WENTWORTHWAY

VANBRUGH
W

AY

S
W

A
R

D
S

W
AY El

Su
b

S
ta

M
ar

ke
t

S
qu

ar
e

MORRELLWAY

Th
e 

U
ni

ve
rs

ity
of

 Y
or

k

Drain

La
ke

P
av

ili
on

22

2

7

15

8

14

Bl
ea

ch
fie

ld

Th
e 

R
et

re
at

111

UNIVERSITY
ROAD

113

HESLINGTON
ROAD

R
et

re
at

N
ur

se
s'

 H
om

e

109

H
ig

hf
ie

ld
Th

e 
R

id
ge

G
ar

ro
w

 B
an

k

G
A

R
R

O
W

H
IL

L

H
ill

cr
of

t

14 16

B
io

lo
gy

La
bo

ra
to

rie
s

E
l S

ub
 S

ta

51

53
59

66

56
48

76

19

25

32

3 7
3 3

A
LN

E
T

E
R

R
A

C
E

APOLLO
STREET

38

10

8
1 2 1 0

2 4

22

6 5

24

19

14

2 1

BELLE VUE TERRACE

BELLE VUE STREET

25

29

33

1

4

9
11

13
15

Be
lle

V
ue

C
ot

ta
ge

s

WILLIAM PLOWS AVENUE

Th
e

B
un

ga
lo

w

1
2

4
3

12
11

1Fa
irf

ax
H

ou
se

D
ow

er
C

ou
rt

2 
to

 3
7

La
m

el
 H

ill
B

at
te

ry
(s

ite
 o

f)

La
m

el
B

ee
ch

es

2 6
to

48

16

c 
C

ro
w

n 
C

op
yr

ig
ht

. U
na

ut
ho

ris
ed

 re
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

in
fri

ng
es

 C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
 a

nd
 m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 p
ro

se
cu

tio
n 

or
 c

iv
il 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
s.

P
ro

du
ce

d 
fro

m
 th

e 
19

93
 O

rd
na

nc
e 

S
ur

ve
y 

1:
12

50
 m

ap
pi

ng
 w

ith
 th

e 
pe

rm
is

si
on

 o
f t

he
 C

on
tro

lle
r o

f H
er

 M
aj

es
ty

's
 S

ta
tio

ne
ry

 O
ffi

ce

SC
AL

E
D

R
AW

N
 B

Y
D

AT
E

D
ra

w
in

g 
N

um
be

r

H
U

LL
 R

O
AD

 W
AR

D

1:
25

00
PS

L

H
U

LL
R

D
W

D

33
3

14

P
on

d

17

N S

E
W

E
st

ab
lis

he
d 

P
ub

lic
 F

oo
tp

at
h

P
at

hs
 a

lr
ea

dy
 o

n 
ce

nt
ra

l
H

ig
hw

ay
s 

re
gi

st
er

9,
 S

t. 
Le

on
ar

ds
 P

la
ce

, Y
or

k,
 Y

O
1 

2E
T 

 T
el

ep
ho

ne
: 0

19
04

 5
51

55
0

P
at

hs
 u

nd
er

 in
ve

st
ig

at
io

n

25
/0

2/
20

10 C
ity

 o
f Y

or
k 

C
ou

nc
il 

 L
A1

00
0 

20
81

8

12
3

N
E

W
 N

U
M

B
E

R

12
3

O
LD

 N
U

M
B

E
R

19
3 6

5
19

2

19
1

1

19
0

9

18
9

3

2
18

8

7
18

7

18
6

10

4
18

5

18
4

8

18
3

G
 H

al
l 3

Page 215



Page 216

This page is intentionally left blank



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York – Hull Road Ward 
 

Schedule 1 
 

 

Ward:  Hull Road 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 183 (Hull Road)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath commencing at end of Bull Lane and running in a north easterly direction past St 
Nicholas Fields nature reserve to Rawdon Avenue. 
 
Approximate length 
165 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
 SE  

SE 6158 5156 SE 6170 5163 Tarmac  
 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 6158 5156 SE 6170 5163 2.5m 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   

 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans  �  1852 1961 
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence     
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric �    
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water �    
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
Make Definitive Map Modification Order 

Page 217



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York – Hull Road Ward 
 

Schedule 2 
 

 

Ward:  Hull Road 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 184 (Hull Road)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath commencing at junction with York 183 south of St. Nicholas Fields car park and 
running alongside Osbaldwick Beck to emerge at the corner of Beckside Gardens and 
Melrosegate. 
 
Approximate length 
240 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 6164 5163 SE 6183 5150 Crushed stone 
 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 6164 5163 SE 6183 5150 1.2m 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   

Bridge SE 6174 5157 Y184b 
Steps SE 6183 5150 Y184c 

 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans      
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence    Council owned land 
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas �    
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric  �   
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water �    
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
No further action at this time 

Page 218



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York – Hull Road Ward 
 

Schedule 3 
 

 

Ward:  Hull Road 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 185 (Hull Road)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath commencing on Melrosegate and running west along north side of Osbaldwick Beck 
to St. Nicholas Fields car park at end of Rawdon Avenue. 
 
Approximate length 
186 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 6184 5156 SE 6168 5163 Crushed stone 
 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 6184 5156 SE 6168 5163 1.2m 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   

Cycle barrier SE 6184 5156 Y185b 
 
 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans  �  1852 1961 
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence     
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric  �   
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water �    
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
Make Definitive Map Modification Order 

Page 219



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York – Hull Road Ward 
 

Schedule 4 
 

 

Ward:  Hull Road  
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 186 (Hull Road)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath starting on Derwent Avenue, opposite 4 Derwent Avenue, and running north, then 
north west to link with footpath York 155 & 167. 
 
Approximate length 
31 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 6197 5189 SE 6196 5190 Tarmac 
 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 6197 5189 SE 6196 5190 1.5m 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   

Cycle barrier SE 6197 5189 Y186a 
 
 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans      
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence     
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric  �   
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water  �   
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
No further action at this time 

Page 220



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York – Hull Road Ward 
 

Schedule 5 
 

 

Ward:  Hull Road 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 187 (Hull Road)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath commencing between 187 Melrosegate and 2 Constantine Avenue and running 
between houses to Hewley Avenue. 
 
Approximate length 
50 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 6193 5178 SE 6197 5174 Tarmac 
 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 6193 5178 SE 6195 5176 1.3m 
SE 6195 5176 SE 6197 5174 2.7m (last 19m at Hewley Ave 

end) 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
Cycle barrier SE 6193 5178 Y187a 
Cycle barrier SE 6195 5176 Y187a 

 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans  �  1961  
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence     
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas �    
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric �    
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water  �   
York Waterworks �    
 
Recommendation:  
Make Definitive Map Modification Order 

Page 221



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York – Hull Road Ward 
 

Schedule 6 
 

 

Ward:  Hull Road 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 188 (Hull Road)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath commencing between 66 & 64 Burlington Avenue and emerging between 7 & 9 Etty 
Avenue. 
 
Approximate length 
80 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 6204 5167 SE 6211 5166 Tarmac 
 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 6204 5167 SE 6211 5166 1.5m 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   
   

 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans  �  1961  
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence     
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric �    
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water  �   
York Waterworks �    
 
Recommendation:  
Make Definitive Map Modification Order 
 

Page 222



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York – Hull Road Ward 
 

Schedule 7 
 

 

Ward:  Hull Road 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 189 (Hull Road)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath commencing near 21 Allen Close and running in a generally southerly direction 31 & 
33 Flaxman Avenue to terminate on Flaxman Avenue. 
 
Approximate length 
35 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 6230 5161 SE 6230 5158 Tarmac 
 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 6230 5161 SE 6230 5158 1.2m 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   
   

 
 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans  �  1978  
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence    Correspondence re past 

attempts at closure User Evidence    
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric  �   
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water �    
York Waterworks �    
 
Recommendation:  
Make Definitive Map Modification Order 

Page 223



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York – Hull Road Ward 
 

Schedule 8 
 

 

Ward:  Hull Road 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 190 (Hull Road)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath starting opposite 131 Tang Hall Lane and running west to join York 155. 
 
Approximate length 
42 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 6239 5191 SE 6235 5193 Tarmac 
 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 6239 5191 SE 6235 5193 1.5m 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   

Cycle barrier SE 6239 5191 Y190b 
 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans      
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence     
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric  �   
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water  �   
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
No further action at this time 
 
 

Page 224



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York – Hull Road Ward 
 

Schedule 9 
 

 

Ward:  Hull Road 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 191 (Hull Road)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath commencing on Tang Hall Lane opposite entrance to Hull Road Park and running 
north east over a bridge and then alongside Osbaldwick Beck to emerge on Moore Avenue. 
 
Approximate length 
200 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 6253 5169 SE 6271 5176 Rough Tarmac 
 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 6253 5169 SE 6271 5176 1.8m 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
Gate SE 6253 5169 Y191a 
Bridge SE 6253 5169 Y191b 
Gates SE 6271 5176 Y191d 

 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans  �  1961  
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence     
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric �    
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water  �   
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
Make Definitive Map Modification Order 
 

Page 225



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York – Hull Road Ward 
 

Schedule 10 
 

 

Ward:  Hull Road 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 192 (Hull Road)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath commencing outside 34 Broughton Way and running west terminate outside 40 
Wolviston Avenue. 
 
Approximate length 
46 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 6306 5147 SE 6302 5145 Brick Paving 
 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 6306 5147 SE 6302 5145 3m 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   

Concrete bollards x3 SE 6305 5146 Y192a 
Concrete bollards x3 SE 6303 5145 Y192b 

 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans  �  1962  
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence     
User Evidence     
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas �    
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric �    
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water �    
York Waterworks �    
 
Recommendation:  
Make Definitive Map Modification Order 
 

Page 226



Public Rights Of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981   
Preparation of Definitive Map Former County Borough of York – Hull Road Ward 
 

Schedule 11 
 

 

Ward:  Hull Road 
Status:  Public Footpath 
Path No: 193 (Hull Road)  
 
Description of route 
Footpath commencing next to 8 Badgerwood Walk and running south-west to the  turning 
area at top end of the southern section of Badgerwood Walk. 
 
Approximate length 
95 Metres  
 
Nature of Surface: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Surface Type 
   

SE 6350 5097 SE 6345 5089 Tarmac 
 
Approximate Width: 
 

Start Grid Reference End Grid Reference Width 
   

SE 6350 5097 SE 6345 5089 1.5m 
 
Structures: (Stiles, Gates and Bridges etc) 
 

Structure Grid Reference Structure Reference 
   

Concrete bollard at either end SE 6350 5097, SE 6345 5089 Y193a, Y193b 
    
 
 
Evidence Summary etc 
 
Documentary Evidence etc Yes No Date  

(if 
applicable) 

Other Information 

OS Plans  �  undated  
Inclosure     
Tithe     
1910 Finance Act     
Rights of Way Act 1932     
Railway/Canal Plans     
Other Evidence    Correspondence re history 

of path User Evidence    
Photographs     
     
Utility Companies Affected     
British Gas  �   
BT  �   
Cable & Wireless  �   
Northern Electric �    
NTL Network Services  �   
Torch Telecom  �   
Yorkshire Water �    
York Waterworks  �   
 
Recommendation:  
Make Definitive Map Modification Order 

Page 227



Page 228

This page is intentionally left blank



Osbaldwick

Tel Ex

Romulus

House

Janus House

Bacchus House

Saturn House

B
U

LL

Environmental
Community Centre

VestaVulcan

Minerva

York

OLYMPIAN COURT

Play Area

1

6
3

77

101

1 to 29

1 to 12

1 to 19

7 to 12

25
a

102

1 to 18

14

18

19 to 35
41

53

37

27

2

50

65

Wd Gen

FW

CF

1

CF

1 to 29

Vesta

House

House

1 to 12

2

461600.000000

461600.000000

461700.000000

461700.000000

4
5
1
5
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
5
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
6
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
6
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
7
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
7
0
0

.0
00

00
0±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:1,250Scale Drawn By:JHC Date:13/04/10

York Footpath No.183
(Hull Road Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 229



Page 230

This page is intentionally left blank



House

Janus House

10.7m

A
po

llo
 H

ou
se

Neptune

Environmental

Vesta

HARINGTON AVENUE

York

OLYMPIAN COURT

1

25

77

1 to 29

1 to 37

1 to 12

62

14

19 to 35

22
4

53

22
8

22
6

37

2

32

19
4

18
2

28

50

11

65

21

34

Wd Gen

LB

FW

TCB

CF

1

House 10.7m

House

1 to 12

461700.000000

461700.000000

461800.000000

461800.000000

4
5
1
5
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
5
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
6
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
6
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
7
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
7
0
0

.0
00

00
0

±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:1,250Scale Drawn By:JHC Date:13/04/10

York Footpath No.184
(Hull Road Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 231



Page 232

This page is intentionally left blank



Tel Ex

House

Janus House

10.7m

Bacchus House
Vesta BECKSIDE

FIELDSIDE PLACE

RAWDON AVENUE

OLYMPIAN COURT

Play Area

1

2

25

77

1 to 19

1 to 29

62

8

1 to 18

76

18

19 to 35

17
2

22
4

53

91

22
6

37

10

32

19
4

18
2

28

11

50

65

34

FW

TCB

CF

Wd Gen

Romulus El Sub Sta

Community Centre

Vesta

1

1

House

10.7m

1

461700.000000

461700.000000

461800.000000

461800.000000

4
5
1
5
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
5
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
6
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
6
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
7
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
7
0
0

.0
00

00
0±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:1,250Scale Drawn By:JHC Date:13/04/10

York Footpath No.185
(Hull Road Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 233



Page 234

This page is intentionally left blank



Cherry Tree
HouseS

t A
el

re
d'

s

13.7m

12.5m11.6m

14.0m

13.1m

Community

Tang Hall

ETL

Presbytery

CONSTANTINE AVENUE

HEWLEY AVENUE

AV
EN

U
E

FIFTH AVENUE

SM

2

7
10

58
60

30

27

66

127

32

32
 to

 3
5

11

20

28
 to

 3
1

26

1a

14
6

16
0

71

1

42

64

15

18
7

193
211

16

197

222

68

52
50

70
72

62

6

Sub Sta

Playground

D
E

R
W

E
N

T

SM

20

SM

SM

30

1

6

2

187

Playground

461900.000000

461900.000000

462000.000000

462000.000000

4
5
1
8
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
8
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
9
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
9
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:1,250Scale Drawn By:JHC Date:13/04/10

York Footpath No.186
(Hull Road Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 235



Page 236

This page is intentionally left blank



13.7m

11.9m

11.0m

El Sub Sta

ETL

CONSTANTINE AVENUE

HEW
LEY AVENUE

M
E

LR
O

S
E

G
A

TE

AV
EN

U
E

5

7
10

83

34

58

20
9

49

30

27

60

51

13

66

127

38

32

19
9

45

20

26

1a

14
6

17
2

16
0

16

23
3

25

22
1

59

48

15

64

16
2

11

79

56

43

2

68

19
4

18
2

115

36

50
52

37

12

70
72

42
88

47

40

81
62

46

44

6

1

Shelter

Sub Sta

D
E

R
W

E
N

T

E
l S

ub S
ta

1

49

HEW
LEY AVENUE

47

HEW
LE

Y A
VENUE

44

30

58

11

16

48

HEWLEY AVENUE

AVENUE

68

1

461900.000000

461900.000000

462000.000000

462000.000000

4
5
1
7
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
7
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
8
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
8
0
0

.0
00

00
0

±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:1,250Scale Drawn By:JHC Date:13/04/10

York Footpath No.187
(Hull Road Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 237



Page 238

This page is intentionally left blank



Bowling Green

Playground

BU
RLI

NG
TO

N A
VE

NUE

HEW
LEY AVENUE

5

17

63

83

34

58

30
60

21

38

19

32

80

20

47

37

49

26

16

71

22

14

13

48

59

64

24

11

28

62

79

10
4

56
43

65

92

25

36

52
50

12

70

42

72

40

81

46

1

44

68

2

Sub Sta

E
l S

ub S
ta

37

HEWLEY AVENUE

2

48

37

64

49

1

83

1

HEW
LE

Y A
VENUE

60

62

26

HEW
LEY AVENUE

58

25

44

±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:1,250Scale Drawn By:JHC Date:13/04/10

York Footpath No.188
(Hull Road Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 239



Page 240

This page is intentionally left blank



Osbaldwick Beck

Hull Road Park

WELBORN CLOSE

ALLEN CLOSE

ALCUIN AVENUE

AVENUE

FLAXMAN

8

87

33

75

113

92

22

13

122

82

85
23

74

3

71

65

84

95

124

51

10
2

105

37a

25

21

6

61

73

37

112

39

49

30

1

7

Weir

TCB

8

37

75

22
21

37

1

23

37

7

462200.000000

462200.000000

462300.000000

462300.000000

462400.000000

462400.000000

4
5
1
5
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
5
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
6
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
6
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
7
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
7
0
0

.0
00

00
0

±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:1,250Scale Drawn By:JHC Date:13/04/10

York Footpath No.189
(Hull Road Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 241



Page 242

This page is intentionally left blank



Dismantled Railway

13.1m

13.4m

14.3m

13.7m

14.6m

TAN
G

 H
A

LL LA
N

E

LANG AVENUE

FIFTH AVENUE

Health Services

1
2

127

100

12

147

124

296

141

131

88

280

295

139

285

62

126

111

143

261

275

6

142

133a

292

95

290

282

273

73

138

140

99

270

122

305

286

61

153

50

112

87

11

85

LB

Cycle Path

TCBs

TCB

House

W
O

O
D

H
O

U
S

E
 G

R
O

V
E

W
old View

ST HILDA'S M
EWS

Church

13.1m

2 1

1

2

13.4m

1

2

462300.000000

462300.000000

462400.000000

462400.000000

4
5
1
8
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
8
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
9
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
9
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
2
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:1,250Scale Drawn By:JHC Date:13/04/10

York Footpath No.190
(Hull Road Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 243



Page 244

This page is intentionally left blank



Tem
ple V

illas

14.9m

11.6m

Osbaldwick Beck

Surgery
H

ALL LAN
E

TUKE AVENUE

TEMPLE AVENUEST HILDA'S MEWS

TAN
G

3

21

12

13

205

8

5

187

25

35

18

178

17

26

11

20

32a

43

34

186
42

189

191

71

32

41

31

19

24

182

29

70

22

28

2

1

El Sub Sta

M
O

O
R

E AVEN
U

E

Vicarage

34

1

12

26

2

13

18

13

1

1

462600.000000

462600.000000

462700.000000

462700.000000

4
5
1
6
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
6
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
7
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
7
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
8
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
8
0
0

.0
00

00
0

±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:1,250Scale Drawn By:JHC Date:13/04/10

York Footpath No.191
(Hull Road Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 245



Page 246

This page is intentionally left blank



House

B
R

O
U

G
H

TO
N

S
A

D
B

E
R

G
E

 C
O

U
R

T

BROUGHTON WAY

AVENUE

W
O

LV
ISTO

N

B
oro C

onst and W
ard B

dy

1

6

24

13

40

2017

25

18

3

28

21

35

8

17a

39

10

29

2

19

46

22

32

44

30

23

12

15

7

9

C
o C

onst B
dy

Und

GROVE

PLACE

ELWICK

WHITTON

C
A

R
LTO

N
 A

V
E

N
U

E

C
H

Derwent Infant and Junior School
2

1

C
A

R
LTO

N
 A

V
E

N
U

E

23

2

12

2

9

18

9

24

10

15

32

32

1

10

15

9

463000.000000

463000.000000

463100.000000

463100.000000

4
5
1
4
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
4
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
5
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
5
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
6
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
6
0
0

.0
00

00
0

±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:1,250Scale Drawn By:JHC Date:13/04/10

York Footpath No.192
(Hull Road Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 247



Page 248

This page is intentionally left blank



FIELD LANE

17.1m

16.6m

Playground

B
A

D
G

E
R

DERAMORE DRIVE

Def

Bor
o 

Con
st

 a
nd

 W
ar

d 
Bdy

4

34

1

39

8

11

23

22

2

37

48

32

56

69

40

46

57

30

7

9

Co 
Con

st
 B

dy

Post

BADGER WOOD WALK

15

FF

El

Playground 11

B
A

D
G

E
R

 W
O

O
D

 W
A

LK

Def

1

FF

463400.000000

463400.000000

463500.000000

463500.000000

4
5
0
8
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
0
8
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
0
9
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
0
9
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

4
5
1
0
0
0

.0
00

00
0

±

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of York Council 100020818

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

1:1,250Scale Drawn By:JHC Date:13/04/10

York Footpath No.193
(Hull Road Ward)

Drawing No.Public Rights of Way Reference:

Page 249



Page 250

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Annex 5 

 
 
 
 
Public Rights of Way – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981, 
Preparation of Definitive Map for Former County Borough  
 
 
Decision Making Guidance 

Page 251



Page 252

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Public Rights of Way 
Guidance on Decision Making for Definitive Map Modification Orders (DMMOs): to 
add a route to the Definitive Map under s53(3)(c)(i). 
 

A DMMO is the legal procedure (Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, s53(3)) used to make 
a change to the Definitive Map and Statement (DM) which is the legally conclusive record 
of all known public rights of way in an authority’s area.  A DMMO is used to: 
 

Add rights of way to the DM that are not presently recorded: s53(3)(b) and s53(3)(c)(i). 
Delete rights of way already recorded, which have been added in error: s53(3)9c)(iii). 
Upgrade/downgrade rights of way already recorded but their recorded status is incorrect, 
eg recorded as footpath but should be recorded as a bridleway: s53(3)(c )(ii). 
Change details of a right of way already recorded eg reflect the authority’s authorisation 
of a stile or gate for stock control purposes: s53(3)(c )(iii). 
 

The DMMO process requires the council to investigate the application, to consult and in 
light of its investigations and consultations, apply the relevant tests and decide whether to 
make the order. Whether this process provides new opportunities for users or creates 
difficulties for landowners (or ourselves) is irrelevant and must not be taken into account. 
 

This differs from Public Path Orders (PPO’s) (diversions, creations, extinguishments), 
where the council can exercise a certain amount of discretion to make changes to the 
rights of way network, to perhaps improve it for users or, reduce problems for landowners. 
 

The Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 relates to amending the DM on the basis of evidence 
(user and/or documentary) alone.  The evidence alone therefore, will determine the course 
of the application and, factors such as safety, desirability, current land use, personalities 
involved, Authority policy and security cannot be taken into consideration within the 
decision process.   
 

The DMMO procedure is laid out in legislation and if not followed correctly and with proper 
justification can cause the council to be challenged in High Court, or possibly further.  
When determining a DMMO the Council is acting in a “quasi judicial capacity” and must 
reach a decision based on all the evidence presented in the report.  The evidence is 
considered against the test of “subsists or is reasonably alleged to subsist over land 
(53)(3)(c)(i)”.   If a decision is made which is clearly outside of the legislative framework 
the council can be open to Judicial Review.    
  
In writing the report Officers will have considered the evidence against the relevant 
legislative tests and have made a recommendation based on their appraisal.  The Exec 
Member must consider the evidence and be informed by, and follow the relevant 
legislation in reaching their own conclusion.  It is likely that there will be evidence both in 
support and rebuttal, the Exec Member is not required to resolve conflicts in the evidence.  
This has been clarified by case law (see R. v. S.o.S. for Wales, ex p. Emery).  The Exec 
Member should consider the evidence and if a right of way can, from the evidence, 
reasonably be alleged to exist the authority must make the order.  If a DMMO is made 
anyone has the opportunity to object to it.  If this occurs the matter would then be  
determined by the Secretary of State.  
 

If it is determined not to make a DMMO then the applicant (if there is one) has a right of 
appeal to the Secretary of State.  If the SoS determines that ‘a reasonable person, having 
considered all the relevant evidence, could reasonably allege a right of way to subsist’ the 
council will be instructed to make the Order.  
 
 
 

Page 253



Page 254

This page is intentionally left blank



 

  
 

   

 
Decision Session 
 – Executive Member for City Strategy 

11th May 2010 

 
Report of the Director of City Strategy 
 

Blossom Street Multi Modal Scheme – Consultation Results; 
Analysis of Network Implications; and Option Selection 
 

Report Summary 

1. The purpose of this report is to: 

• Inform the Executive Member of the results of the citywide public 
consultation undertaken on the proposed improvements to the 
Blossom Street area;  

• Advise of the road network implications of any alterations made to 
Blossom Street and it’s junction with Queen Street, Micklegate, and 
Nunnery Lane, following further detailed analysis; 

• Present potential options and a preferred option for altering the 
layout of Blossom Street to improve the safety for all users. 

Recommendations 

2. That the Executive Member for City Strategy is recommended to:  

i. Note the results of the public consultation;  

ii. Note the results of micro-simulation computer modelling undertaken 
to ascertain the road network impact of making various alterations to 
Blossom Street; 

iii. Consider potential options for improving the safety of the Blossom 
Street area; 

iv. Approve the implementation of the preferred option detailed in 
Annex ‘E’, in order that further consultation can be undertaken 
locally to develop detailed design, resulting in works being tendered 
and construction commencing in the autumn of 2010. 

Reason: The proposals will provide facilities to enhance the accessibility and 
safety for all users of this road, with significant improvements for the more 
vulnerable users: pedestrians and cyclists.  In addition, the streetscape and 
approach along Blossom Street towards the historic Micklegate Bar will be 
significantly improved, particularly by removing unnecessary street furniture.  

Agenda Item 6Page 255



The proposed measures would also make a significant contribution towards 
the aims of the Council as a Cycling City. 

Background 

Previous report 

3. On 1 September 2009, a report entitled ‘Blossom Street Multi Modal 
Study: Option Selection’ was presented to a meeting of the Decision 
Session – Executive Member for City Strategy.  This report assessed 
the existing operation of Blossom Street and it’s junctions, issues faced 
by all road users and also summarised the results of preliminary 
computer modelling undertaken on some provisional options.  Details of 
the issues affecting the area, background information and relevant data 
were included in this report and its Annexes. 

 
4. At the meeting, the Executive Member authorised further development 

of the scheme so that its potential impact on the wider road network 
could be evaluated.  In addition, it was also instructed that a citywide 
consultation be undertaken to capture wider public opinion on making 
any alterations to this junction. 

 
Context of any proposed alterations 
 
5. The key issues and difficulties identified at Blossom Street, and which 

Officers would seek to improve in any proposed alterations include the 
following:- 

 
§ High accident rate: 25 casualties in the last three years, 11 of which 

were cyclists and 8 of which were pedestrians. 
 

§ Large number of pedestrians cross Blossom Street at an 
undesignated crossing outside the Bar Convent, crossing five lanes 
of traffic.  Other inadvisable pedestrian crossing movements are also 
made during the ‘red man’ phase on Queen Street. 

 

§ No provision of cycle facilities on Blossom Street, which is a serious 
gap in the otherwise unbroken cycle facilities for the full length of the 
A1036 between York College and the Inner Ring Road.   

 

§ Blossom Street has large inbound and outbound cycle flows during 
the peak hours.  Also, cyclists travelling out of the city on Micklegate 
cannot pass vehicles queuing under the City Wall arches. 

 

§ A large number of bus services use Blossom Street, including the 
articulated ftr and Park & Ride.  Furthermore, articulated vehicles 
experience difficulties turning left from Blossom Street into Queen 
Street, sometimes encroaching onto the footway and/or overhanging 
the refuge on Queen Street.   

 

§ In attempting to avoid this, articulated vehicles sometimes straddle 
both the left and middle lanes prior to making the manoeuvre.  
Where there is a green light for left-turning traffic, these vehicles 
effectively block any left filtering traffic until the other lanes turn 
green.  

Page 256



 

§ There is a considerable amount of road signage inbound on 
Blossom Street which can present a confusing array of information 
to drivers.  This, combined with the collection of street furniture in the 
vicinity of bus stops can impede the free movement of pedestrians. 

 

§ The highway network is at capacity and experiences congestion at 
peak hours. 

 

 
6. One of the core elements of City of York’s Local Transport Plan 2006-

2011 (LTP2), which the council is committed to when making transport-
related decisions and in implementing transport measures, such as any 
alteration to the layout of Blossom Street, is the ‘Hierarchy of Transport 
Users’ which prioritises pedestrians, cyclists, and public transport users 
before car users. 

 
7. Furthermore, LTP2 refers to the council’s duties under the Traffic 

Management Act 2004, to effectively manage the highway network in 
order to avoid, reduce or minimise congestion or disruption on the 
highway network for all road users. 

8. In addition, at the end of 2008, a citywide Cycling City questionnaire 
identified Blossom Street as both the highest ranking location 
respondents thought was a danger to cyclists and the highest ranking 
location for the provision of on-road cycle lanes. 

Public Consultation 

9. A consultation questionnaire entitled “Blossom Street Improvements: We 
want your views” was distributed to all households within York 
(approximately 88,000 homes) with February’s edition of Your Local 
Link.  Within the document, three options illustrating potential alterations 
which could be made to Blossom Street within the available carriageway 
space, were presented, with a further ‘do nothing’ option available. 

10. A Media Briefing was held on 21 January 2010 with subsequent press  
releases published in the local media, and repeated over several 
successive weeks, briefing readers on the consultation and reminding 
them to return their surveys.  Additionally, on the 25 and 26 February 
2010, a public exhibition was held in Nunnery Lane car park to give 
residents a further opportunity to comment.   

11. In total, 5,252 questionnaires were returned by the deadline of 26 March 
2010, either through the post, or completed online.  

Results 

12. Of those who expressed a particular preference as to which option they 
favoured:   38% chose Option 1 (‘do minimum’);  16% chose Option 2 
(‘do something’);  19% chose Option 3 (‘do maximum’);  with the 
remaining 27% expressing their wish that no changes be made to the 
junction (Option 4 - ‘do nothing’). 

Page 257



13. The vast majority of respondents supported proposals for a new 
pedestrian and cycle route from Holgate Road to York Station, via 
Lowther Terrace and the station car park, with 87% in favour and only 
13% opposed. 

14. A large majority, 71%, would support giving cyclists several seconds 
'advanced green light' as part of the traffic light sequence outbound from 
Queen Street.  29% were opposed to the proposal. 

15. There was less support for the idea of banning vehicles from exiting the 
city centre through Micklegate Bar on to the junction at peak times, with 
40% in favour and 60% opposed to making this ban. 

16. With the opportunity to tick more than one box for mode of transport, the 
majority - 61% of respondents - regarded themselves as car drivers; 
37% walked; 36% used the bus; 28% were cyclists; 12% were 
passengers in cars; and 2% classed themselves as ‘other’.  12% of 
respondents said that they did not use Blossom Street regularly. 

17. Respondents were given the opportunity to provide open comments on 
the proposals, to which 2,856 individuals commented. The main 
comment referred to individuals being happy with the junction at present 
and believing no changes should be made (22%).   

18. 14% of comments asked for the council not to make the same ‘mistakes’ 
as it did with the Clifton Green scheme.  A further 13% of comments 
highlighted the problems with articulated buses on Blossom Street.  This 
included the issues of bendy-buses using two lanes to turn left and also 
suggesting removal of them altogether.   

19. 12% of comments were concerning the anticipated congestion that the 
removal of an inbound lane would cause.  And 11% of comments 
referred to cyclists not respecting the laws of the road, including not 
using cycle lanes and not wearing high-visibility clothing. 

Conclusions 

20. Of those who expressed a particular preference as to which option they 
favoured, it is apparent that the majority of respondents were in favour of 
‘doing something’ to improve the junction, with 73% choosing either 
Options 1, 2, or 3, and only 27% expressing their opposition to any 
alterations by choosing Option 4. 

21. Of those respondents who voted for improvements to be made to the 
junction, 52% - the majority - were in favour of Option 1.  The remaining 
were split quite evenly between Options 2 and 3 (22% and 26% 
respectively). 

22. It is also apparent that the majority of respondents are not in favour of 
reducing the number of traffic lanes, as illustrated by the lower number 
of respondents who were in favour of Options 2 and 3, in addition to the 
large number of comments received regarding this matter.  However, it 
should be noted that despite receiving lower support than other Options, 

Page 258



there is still a great deal of public support for improved facilities for 
cyclists, and this should not be ignored. 

23. Based on the results of the consultation, the vast majority of 
respondents were in favour of providing cyclist and pedestrian access to 
the station, via Lowther Terrace; in addition to providing an ‘advanced 
green light’ for cyclists outbound from Queen Street.  The majority were 
not in favour of any access restrictions on Micklegate. 

Micro Simulation Modelling 

24. Halcrow were commissioned to produce micro-simulation models of the 
Blossom Street area in order to assess a series of improvement options 
for Blossom Street.  The purpose of the modelling exercise was to 
understand the impact of any alterations made to Blossom Street on 
general traffic and the wider road network.   

25. Models were produced for each of the three potential Options which had 
been featured within the public consultation.  In addition, some other 
permutations to each of the Options were modelled to evaluate the 
specific impact of adding or removing particular infrastructure.  Table 1 
below presents details of the Options and plans are shown within   
Annex ‘A’. 

Option A B C D E F 

Option within Consultation Document 
Comparison 

Case    
‘Status Quo’ 

Option 1 Option 2 Option 3 

Convert The Mount bus gate to merge ü Included in all as shown to be 
beneficial 

Markings under Micklegate Bar to keep the arch clear 
of traffic 

 

û ü ü ü ü ü 

Introduce straight ped crossing at top of Blossom St 
(outside Convent) & set back stop line on Blossom St. û ü ü ü ü û 

Straighten ped crossings at Reel Cinema and   
Holgate Rd û û ü û û û 

Remove one inbound traffic lane at Blossom St 
junction & introduce a cycle lane û û û ü ü û 

Remove one inbound traffic lane on Blossom St to 
south of cinema & introduce a cycle lane û û û û ü ü 

Remove one inbound traffic lane at Blossom St 
junction & introduce two cycle lanes û û û û û ü 

Remove one outbound traffic lane on Blossom St & 
introduce a cycle lane by separately phasing the two 
outbound Queen St lanes 

û û û û û ü 

Introduce staggered ped crossing at top of Blossom St 
(outside Convent) & set back stop line on Blossom St û û û û û ü 

 

Table 1 – The Options modelled (what infrastructure was included / omitted) 

Page 259



26. The models produced are representative of traffic conditions in 2011, the 
planned scheme opening year.  These took into account future planned 
works such as Access York Phase 1, including the new Park & Ride 
service operating on the A59 corridor, as well as any proposed nearby 
developments such as the increase in traffic generated by the Terry’s 
site development.   

27. Even with a ‘do nothing’ base model, overall peak hour traffic at the 
Blossom Street / Queen Street / Micklegate / Nunnery Lane junction was 
shown predicted to increase by between 4 to 5% between 2009 and 
2011, leading to increases in journey times, particularly on the A59 and 
A1036 arms. 

28. Bus journey times were minimally affected due to bus priority measures 
currently existing (or proposed for the A59) on these routes.  In fact, with 
any of the potential options, bus journey times did not vary to a great 
extent, and therefore patronage of the Park & Ride would not be 
affected. 

Re-routing of traffic 

29. With any significant alterations to a key junction such as Blossom Street, 
motorists will always try to re-route if they consider another route as a 
quicker or more accessible option for their journey.  Therefore any 
measures which increase delays will also increase the number of 
vehicles re-routing via other roads.  It should be noted that this would 
occur in a ‘do nothing’ scenario anyway, should the expected 4 to 5% 
increase (as discussed in paragraph 27) occur by 2011. 

30. To put this into perspective with this scheme, modelling shows that (as 
expected) most re-routed journeys would involve motorists using 
Knavesmire Road, Scarcroft Road and Bishopthorpe Road, leading to 
increased peak hour traffic on these particular routes.  Option A (the 
‘status quo’) predictably incurs negligible re-routing;  Options B and C 
however incur 7 to 8% re-routing;  Options D and E incur 11 to 13% re-
routing;  and Option F incurs below 5% re-routing.   

31. Looking at what this could potentially mean (using Scarcroft Road in the 
AM peak hour as the example), an extra 40 vehicles would be using this 
road for Options B and C.  For Options D and E, this increases to an 
extra 61 vehicles.  And Option F results in an extra 38 vehicles using 
this road. 

Queue lengths & journey times 

32. Initially, modelling was undertaken to assess the operation of the bus-
gate on The Mount, and whether removing the signals and converting it 
into a merge (Option A – the ‘status quo’) would help it to operate more 
efficiently.  Results show that this could prove to be beneficial for car 
users, with a reduction in inbound car journey times on Tadcaster Road 
of around 2 minutes in the AM peak, without any apparent negative 
effect on buses.  Therefore this conversion was assumed in all further 
Options. 

Page 260



33. Using the levels of re-routing that each Option may incur in estimating 
these figures, car and bus journey times on the approaches to the 
Blossom Street junction are presented for each of the scheme Options 
in Table 2 and Table 3 below.  Furthermore, indicative inbound queue 
length drawings for both peaks have been produced by taking a 
snapshot of the modelled network conditions 15 minutes before the end 
of the modelled peak period (08:45 and 17:45), and are illustrated as 
Annex ‘B’. 

 

Table 2 – AM peak journey time results for each Option (minutes) for each arm 
of the Blossom Street / Queen Street / Micklegate / Nunnery Lane junction 

 

Table 3 – PM peak journey time results for each Option (minutes) for each arm 
of the Blossom Street / Queen Street / Micklegate / Nunnery Lane junction 

Option A 

33. Option A is merely a comparison case to the base model and acts as the 
‘status quo’.  The only change here is the conversion of the bus-gate 
from signalised to a merge.  As discussed, this does show some 
apparent benefit to car users of this corridor and therefore acts as the 
‘do minimum’ case against which each of the other Options are 
compared. 

Options B & C 

34. Option B (which was Option 1 in the public consultation) includes a new 
signalised one-stage pedestrian crossing between the Bar Convent and 
the Windmill PH, much to the benefit of pedestrians.  In addition, the 
inbound Blossom Street stop-line is set further back so that larger 
vehicles can make an easier left turn into Queen Street.  Furthermore, 
an extended cycle feeder-lane is introduced under Micklegate Bar 
outbound so that outbound cyclists can travel to the front of stationary 

Page 261



traffic to access the ASL, unhindered by vehicles queuing and blocking 
the archway.   

35. Option C is the same, other than that the two other ‘staggered’ (two-
stage) pedestrian crossings, at Holgate Road and outside the cinema, 
are straightened into one-stage so that pedestrians can cross in one 
movement. 

36. In these two Options, the signal timings at the Blossom Street / Queen 
Street junction are modified with longer inter-greens due to the set back 
stop-lines and improved pedestrian crossings.  The impact is a reduction 
in capacity at this junction which leads to re-routing of vehicles.   

37. This, coupled with the better linking of the cinema pedestrian crossing 
with the Holgate Road and Queen Street signals leads to an apparent 
overall reduction in journey times on the A59 and A1036 approaches in 
both peaks in Option B.  The queue length diagrams confirm this, with 
slight reductions in queue lengths observed between these Options and 
Option A. 

38. In Option C, the results show that this leads to an increase in inbound 
journey times due to the reduction in capacity caused by longer 
pedestrian green time required for this type of junction as opposed to a 
staggered crossing. 

Options D & E 

39. Option D is the same as Option B (with similar benefits), except this time  
one inbound traffic lane on Blossom Street is removed (three lanes 
reduced to two) so that room is made to introduce a new inbound cycle 
lane.  This has the benefit that cyclists now have a facility inbound.  In 
addition, inbound traffic lanes would be significantly wider than the 
narrow ones which are currently present.  With wider traffic lanes and 
with already being displaced further from the kerb by the new cycle lane, 
left-turning vehicles would no longer need to straddle both lanes and 
could easily make the manoeuvre. 

40. Option E (which was Option 2 in the public consultation) is the same, 
other than that the flare from one to two traffic lanes occurs later 
inbound, after the cinema crossing.  This means that the inbound cycle 
lane can be continuous from Holgate Road to the Micklegate junction. 

41. Both of these Options involve a considerable reduction in capacity as a 
traffic lane is removed to create a cycle lane.  As a result, there is 
considerable amount of re-routing.   

42. In an attempt to offset the reduction in capacity on Blossom Street, the 
green time on this arm of the junction was increased at the expense of 
Queen Street and Nunnery Lane.  This leads to the observed increase in 
journey times and queue lengths on these arms with queues actually 
extending beyond the model area (onto Leeman Road and Prices Lane 
gyratories) which would cause additional congestion elsewhere.  These 

Page 262



areas would simply not be capable of taking the extra queues if the 
effective operation of the Inner Ring Road was to continue. 

43. This attempt to offset the reduction in capacity, coupled with the re-
routing of traffic deceivingly leads to an overall reduction in journey 
times on the A59 and A1036 approaches.  However, the fact that the 
queues on Queen Street and Nunnery Lane extended beyond the model 
area masks the full extent of the approach times on these arms.  If it was 
chosen to maintain current traffic flow conditions from Queen Street and 
Nunnery Lane and not offset the capacity reduction, journey times and 
queue lengths on the other approaches would be significantly increased. 

44. Options D & E are similar apart from the conversion from two lanes to 
one lane of the section south of the cinema pedestrian crossing in 
Option E.  This further reduces capacity and stacking space for queuing 
vehicles.  The queues from the cinema pedestrian crossing block the 
Holgate Road / The Mount junction much more frequently. 

Option F 

45. Option F (which was Option 3 in the public consultation) includes a new 
staggered two-stage pedestrian crossing outside the Bar Convent and 
also on the Queen Street arm, to improve capacity of this junction.  In 
addition, although similarly inbound to Option E for cyclists, a further 
cycle lane is introduced, as well as an outbound cycle lane.  As a result, 
outbound traffic lanes are reduced from two to one, and consequently 
the two outbound Queen Street lanes must be separately phased. 

46. This Option incorporates staggered pedestrian crossings which improve 
the efficiency of the junction and increases the total green time 
available.  However, because of the reduced space available for two 
outbound lanes on Blossom Street and the right-turn from Queen Street 
being separately phased, this removes some of the efficiency benefits 
generated by the staggered crossings. 

47. Overall, Option F performs similarly to Option E in terms of total journey 
time on the approaches to the junction.  However in this option the 
queues are on the A1036 and A59 rather than Queen Street and 
Nunnery Lane.  However, as discussed above, modification of the signal 
timings can transfer the queues from one arm to another, but not 
remove them. 

Air Quality 

48. Air quality has been a consideration in this consultation and modelling of 
each of the Options gave basic emissions data to enable a simple 
estimate of the likely level of change in local air quality in the Blossom 
Street Air Quality Management Area (AQMA).  Table 4 contains the AM 
peak comparison of the emission outputs between each Option and the 
comparison ‘status quo’ case (Option A).  Table 5 contains a similar 
comparison for the PM peak. 

 

Page 263



 

Table 4 – Emissions at AM peak 

 

Table 5 – Emissions at PM peak 

49. It should be noted that whilst most of the Options lead to improvements 
to local air quality in the Blossom Street AQMA, the re-routing of traffic 
and increased delays away from Blossom Street could, as a 
consequence, lead to a worsening of local air quality elsewhere in the 
city, potentially causing other areas to become AQMAs. 

Further permutations to the Options 

50. In addition to the six Options described and tested above, a further two 
tests were undertaken.  These consisted of permutations in design 
which could be applied to any of the existing Options as follows: 

• Peak time outbound Micklegate closure:  This would involve the 
closure of Micklegate Bar to outbound traffic during the peak periods 
which would free up time from this signal stage to be added to the 
Blossom Street arm to offset the reduced capacity. 

• Cycle pre-signals on Queen Street:  Cycle advanced pre-signals on 
the Queen Street outbound arm would give a green to cyclists 5 
seconds prior to general traffic on this arm to allow them to clear the 
junction more safely.  This reduces the green time for general traffic 
on Queen Street (although as previously stated, this could be taken 
from any arm of the junction). 

 

51. These two permutations were tested within the ‘status quo’ Option A 
(AM peak) model to give an idea their respective impact.  The journey 
time results for general traffic are presented within Table 6 below. 

 

Page 264



 

Table 6 – AM journey time results (minutes) for each arm of the Blossom 
Street / Queen Street / Micklegate / Nunnery Lane junction 

 

52. Examination of the results shows that if Micklegate were shut in the 
outbound direction during the peak periods, very little impact on inbound 
journey times is seen.  This is due to the Micklegate arm only running for 
several seconds, so no significant additional green time is made 
available.  However, the assumed re-routing of outbound Micklegate 
traffic via Nunnery Lane and Queen Street slightly increases journey 
times on the Nunnery Lane arm. 

53. The introduction of cycle pre-signals on the Queen Street approach 
increases the average journey time on this arm, as the green time for 
general traffic has been reduced by five seconds to allow for the pre-
signals.  However, as discussed, the loss of time could be spread out 
among the other arms. 

Conclusions 

54. The initial Option of converting the bus gate on The Mount to a merge 
(removing the signals) was found to be potentially beneficial in terms of 
reduced inbound car journey times on the A1036, at least within the 
‘virtual world’ of the model.  However, the exact operation of the merge 
would need to be considered along with potential enforcement issues, 
as cars ‘jumping the queue’ and merging early may negatively effect bus 
prioritisation and journey times. As a series of bus lanes ending in 
merges are to be introduced on the Fulford Road corridor, it may be 
worth waiting until the completion of that scheme to observe the exact 
operation of this arrangement in York. 

55. The remaining five Options, with increasing levels of cycling and walking 
improvements, were all found to lead to the re-routing of traffic 
elsewhere in the city due to each of the Options reducing the capacity of 
the Blossom Street junction. 

56. In addition, the Options with the higher level of cycling and walking 
provision - those which involve the removal of a traffic lane on Blossom 
Street - also lead to an increase in journey times on the approaches to 
the Blossom Street junction despite fewer vehicles passing through the 
junction.  The results have demonstrated that additional queues and 
journey times on the approaches to this junction will be caused but the 
exact arm(s) on which they appear is flexible and based on the signal 
timings assumed. 

Page 265



57. The permutation of introducing cycle pre-signals outbound from Queen 
Street, although detrimental to vehicular traffic queue lengths, is 
particularly beneficial to the safety of cyclists.  Consideration of using 
these signals (using a green cycle filter light on the primary signals) 
should be strongly considered and is endorsed by the council’s 
Transport Planning and Network Management teams.  However, it 
would not benefit the scheme to impose peak time bans on outbound 
traffic to egress through Micklegate Bar. 

58. All Options lead to improved local air quality in the Blossom Street 
AQMA, although the transfer of traffic elsewhere in the network may 
reduce local air quality in these areas. 

59. Any alteration to Blossom Street is forecasted to have little impact on the 
patronage of the Park & Ride services on the A59 and the A1036, which 
are part of the Access York Phase 1 scheme. 

Alternative Routes for Cyclists (and Pedestrians) 

60. Through examining cycle movements on Blossom Street during the AM 
peak, it was observed that inbound, 41% turned left onto Queen Street 
towards the Station; 50% travelled straight on through Micklegate Bar 
towards the city centre; and 9% turned right onto Nunnery Lane.  As a 
very heavily cycled road, it was recognised that it may be beneficial to 
reduce the need for some of these cyclists to use Blossom Street and to 
offer safer off-road alternatives.   

61. As Blossom Street is being used as a main cycle route into the city 
centre and subsequently requiring cyclists to cross the River Ouse at 
some point on their journey, the decision (conscious or otherwise) as to 
which bridge to use will depend on the cyclist’s starting point and 
destination.  Cyclists heading to Clifford’s Tower or the Hull Road area 
would probably select Skeldergate Bridge, via Scarcroft Road and 
Bishopgate.  Cyclists heading for the northern area of the city currently 
have no option but to use the Blossom Street junction, then proceed 
towards Lendal Bridge or Scarborough Bridge.  In addition, cyclists 
heading for the city centre proper will use Ouse Bridge, also via Blossom 
Street.  The latter two of these movements are the ones which the 
council can possibly target.  

62. On investigation, it was established that for these movements, it was 
feasible to offer alternative routes for cyclists to reach their required 
destinations.  Although with half of cyclists currently continuing straight 
on from Blossom Street onto Micklegate, presumably as the shortest 
and quickest route into the city centre, recognition must also be made 
that cyclist demand on Blossom Street is still going to be high and 
should be a significant factor in planning road safety improvements for 
this area.  Notwithstanding this, the two alternative routes proposed are 
detailed below. 

 

 

Page 266



Station Access 

63. From the public consultation, it is apparent that this route is highly 
desired by the public and would be a greatly used asset.  The proposal 
is to provide a new route for cyclists (and pedestrians) directing them 
from Holgate Road, along Lowther Terrace and down a newly built 
access ramp into the southern end of the station’s long-stay car park, 
and then through the car park to the station and beyond.  In addition, 
another access point and ramp will be provided at the northern end of 
the station’s short-stay car park, into “Post Office Lane” and the 
Riverside. 

64. Consequently it should be possible to cycle from The Mount/Holgate 
Road to the station completely off the main carriageways, thus 
completely avoiding the busy Blossom Street/Queen Street junction, as 
well as the congested station access on Station Road (and Tea Room 
Square).  It will also be possible for people leaving the station to travel in 
the opposite direction, towards the river crossings (at Scarborough 
Bridge and Lendal Bridge) - This is illustrated within Annex ‘C’.   

65. Work is currently progressing with East Coast Rail, who will be 
delivering this scheme in partnership with, and part funded by the 
council, due to the ramps being wholly sited upon their land.  There is 
high confidence that this scheme can be delivered, with East Coast 
engineers estimating delivery during summer 2010. 

Off-Road / Quiet Route to East of Blossom Street 

66. A current off-road / quiet route currently exists to the east of Blossom 
Street, almost running parallel to it, between Knavesmire Road and 
Nunnery Lane, then finally to Ouse Bridge - illustrated within Annex ‘D’.  
This ‘alternative route’ (AR) is not widely known but does offer the 
advantage of cyclists only encountering one set of traffic signals (a 
signalled pedestrian crossing), as opposed to the route using Mount 
Vale, The Mount, Blossom Street and Micklegate, which has five sets of 
traffic signals. 

67. Despite the AR being 33% longer in distance than the ‘main road’ route 
(MR), it is undoubtedly much quieter and safer.  However distance, or 
indeed safety, is probably not the key factor in a cyclist’s route strategy.  
The time (or perceived time) taken is probably the uppermost 
consideration for a commuting cyclist.  Nevertheless, what cyclists may 
not account for is the time lost at traffic signals. 

68. With this in mind, a total of 22 timed runs were carried out during 
morning and afternoon peak times to compare the AR and the MR.  
Every effort was made to eliminate as many variables as possible, with 
the same cyclist, bicycle, pace etc used to conduct and time the runs, 
which were ridden in both directions.  The average time for the AR (7 
mins 11 secs) is only 18 seconds (4%) longer than the average MR time 
(6 mins 53 secs), despite the far greater distance (33%).  The wider 
range of times for the MR is noteworthy, with the slowest time of 9 mins 

Page 267



20 secs being significantly greater than the slowest timed AR run of 7 
mins 30 secs. 

69. The various sections that comprise the AR already constitute a more 
attractive alternative to the MR, particularly for less confident cyclists or 
for school children.  These sections have been examined and potential 
improvements that would further enhance the route have been identified.  
It is proposed that every effort is made to signpost, promote and 
publicise this alternative route as a safer and potentially quicker route 
than using Blossom Street.  Should this route start to attract a large 
number of cyclists, consideration should be made to implementing some 
of these improvements.    

Preferred Option for Blossom Street 

70. After considering the conclusions reached from the results of the public 
consultation and the micro-simulation modelling, it became clear that a 
solution was required which, as well as improving safety for all users, 
would maximise benefits for cyclists and pedestrians where possible.  It 
would also need to retain an effective bus route (maintaining P&R as an 
attractive alternative to private vehicle use), but also would need to 
retain the ‘function’ of the Inner Ring Road, by minimising additional 
delays for car drivers if possible.  Therefore it was concluded that 
strategically, a preferred option would need to incorporate facilities for 
the more vulnerable users - cyclists and pedestrians – but also retain all 
current inbound and outbound traffic lanes on Blossom Street to 
maintain capacity. 

71. Consideration was also given to whether the space currently occupied 
by the cobbles on the eastern side of Blossom Street could be utilised 
more effectively.  However, previous objections had been raised by 
conservation groups and local residents to any prospect of the removal 
of the cobbles.  This was coupled with the fact that there is a high 
abundance of utilities aligned beneath these cobbles, requiring 
potentially expensive diversionary works.  Therefore Officers worked on 
the basis that any scheme should be kept as much within the existing 
carriageway boundaries as possible. 

72. Subsequently, a revised option which is now presented as the Preferred 
Option was developed, as shown in Annex ‘E’.  This Option most closely 
resembles Option ‘C’ of the modelled options in it’s functionality, but also 
has additional improvements incorporated into its design.  The estimated 
cost of construction and completion of this scheme is £420,000 (which 
includes a large contingency).  The benefits of this scheme, compared 
with the Options previously discussed, are as follows: 

• Provides a new single-stage pedestrian (puffin) crossing at the head 
of Blossom Street, between the Bar Convent and Windmill PH.  The 
addition of this crossing also means that all pedestrian crossings at 
this junction will operate together, resulting in an ‘all-red’ traffic 
phase. 

Page 268



• ‘Straightens out’ the current staggered (two-stage) pedestrian 
(pelican) crossings on Blossom Street, converting them into single-
stage pedestrian (puffin) crossings, thus reducing delay to 
pedestrians and traffic. 

• Due to the above, this means that it is possible to remove the 
pedestrian refuge islands (which had been required for a two-stage 
crossing), along with the associated street-clutter such as guardrails 
and additional signal equipment, improving the vista of Blossom 
Street and the general approach to Micklegate Bar. 

• Includes both inbound and outbound cycle feeder-lane into 
advanced stop-line arrangements, to aid cyclists in getting to the 
front of queuing traffic.  The provision of these facilities would close 
one of the obvious ‘gaps‘ in the cycle network in this area of York. 

• Provides a green advanced pre-signal to give outbound cyclists from 
Queen Street several seconds ‘head start’ and time to clear the 
junction before the vehicular traffic behind them receives a green 
signal.  This would greatly reduce the risk for cyclists at this busy 
junction, which is currently an accident black-spot for cyclists. 

• Includes an extended cycle feeder-lane outbound under Micklegate 
Bar, aiding cyclists to access the advanced stop line at the front of 
the traffic queue and dissuading motorists from queuing underneath 
the Bar.  (See paragraphs 79 and 80.) 

• Provides a yellow box junction at Holgate Road / Lowther Terrace.  
This helps cyclists turning in and out of Lowther Terrace (travelling to 
or from the new station access). 

• Benefits articulated vehicles making left turns from Blossom Street 
due to the three existing traffic lanes being repositioned a metre 
further out from the kerb by the introduction of the new cycle feeder 
lane, as well as the setting back of the stop line.  This mean that the 
straddling of lanes should no longer be required. 

• Removes all of the small islands upon which some signal heads and 
bollards are currently located and which pedestrians sometimes 
inadvisably use as pedestrian refuges when crossing the road, 
despite these being far too small and sometimes being overhung by 
the front end of buses. 

• The removal of the island on Queen Street particularly benefits the 
left turn manoeuvre of articulated vehicles from Blossom Street, in 
addition to the other measures mentioned above.  

• Retains bus prioritisation measures along the A1036 corridor. 

• No anticipated impact upon predicted bus journey times (or 
patronage) on the Access York Park & Ride along the A59 and 
A1036. 

Page 269



• Extends the bus lay-by outside the cinema and provides other 
general improvements for public transport users such as a new 
shelter on the bus-border outside 29 Blossom Street. 

• Retains all inbound and outbound traffic lanes. 

• Little impact on vehicle journey times and queue lengths, compared 
to present. 

• Little impact on re-routing of vehicles throughout the road network. 

• Rationalises and improves general road signage, thus the 
streetscape of the area. 

• Subject to further investigation and a Traffic Regulation Order being 
made, includes a daytime loading ban for Blossom Street, thus 
removing the congestion and build-up of traffic which deliveries on 
Blossom Street usually cause. 

Limitations and Other Options Considered 

73. A number of factors should be highlighted at this point in the report, so 
that the Executive Member can make a fully informed decision.  
Primarily that any alterations made to Blossom Street that causes any 
increased queues on Queen Street (and back onto Station Road) may 
have implications on the ongoing works to identify improvements to the 
station access and any proposals for Tea Room Square.  Other issues 
were identified (and subsequently resolved by Officers) within a stage 1 
Road Safety Audit (RSA) which has been undertaken on the preferred 
option. 

74. The RSA identified that to provide a single-stage pedestrian crossing at 
the top of Blossom Street (between the Windmill PH and the Bar 
Convent) the crossing distance, at 17 metres, is slightly above the 
recommended design guidelines as outlined in LTN2/95 (the 
recommended maximum crossing distance is 15.0 metres for safety and 
capacity reasons).  However, the distance is well within the operating 
parameters of a puffin crossing, with any ‘late’ pedestrian crossers being 
detected by radar, thus extending the green-man phase of the signals.  
Radar detection will be doubled on this crossing to ensure safety. 

75. One alternative would be not providing any sort of signalised pedestrian 
crossing at this location.  However, Officers are in agreement that the 
crossing discussed in paragraph 75 above would be a far safer option 
for all users than providing no formal crossing whatsoever.  

76. A second alternative would be the introduction of a pedestrian island 
and a two-stage crossing (as shown in ‘Alternative Option A’ within 
Annex ‘E’).  Again, Officers considered this alternative more dangerous 
for several reasons: traffic lane widths would have to be reduced below 
what is recommended; the pedestrian island’s width would be sub-
standard with the island’s pedestrian capacity insufficient to cater for the 
heavy foot-fall at peak times of the day; and due to the sub-standard 

Page 270



width of the island, the guard-rails would have to be flush to the kerb, 
with a high chance of vehicles accidentally striking them. 

77. By the removal of the pedestrian refuge islands on Blossom Street, the 
Preferred Option leads to a loss of the current box for outbound Blossom 
Street vehicles turning right into The Crescent.  However, Officer 
observations of this movement does not lead to any particular concerns 
as currently, inbound traffic usually slows down on approach to The 
Crescent to allow the vehicle indicating a right turn, to make that 
movement.  The preferred option still includes a smaller right-turn box 
for cyclists wanting to make the same manoeuvre. 

78. Much discussion has been undertaken regarding the provision of road 
markings (or signs) under (or in close proximity to) the grade 1 listed 
Micklegate Bar.  As the carriageway passing underneath the Bar is 
public highway the council, as the local highway authority, can provide 
any road markings it sees necessary.  Scheduled monument consent is 
not required as nothing is actually touching/attached to the Bar itself.  
However, Officers should be conscious of the sensitive nature of this 
historic area when considering road markings under the Bar. 

79. Yellow box junctions or Keep Clear markings would not be appropriate 
under Micklegate Bar, as they are only prescribed to be used (in DfT 
regulations) to keep stationary traffic from obstructing access to side 
roads or private residences. Consequently, the Preferred Option 
includes an extended cycle feeder-lane outbound, with painted white 
lines under Micklegate Bar, to the advanced stop line at the main 
Blossom Street junction.  Officers feel that this is a good solution to give 
cyclists some priority under the archway and which will dissuade 
motorists from queuing underneath if they perceive that there is 
insufficient space for a cyclist to get past. 

80. With the Preferred Option, there would not be significant improvements 
in air quality than at present, as minimal traffic is re-routed.  However, 
with other Options, the air quality problem is not removed, it is merely 
moved from the Blossom Street area to another location(s) in the road 
network. 

Cycling Scheme Evaluation Tool Score 

81. The cycle scheme evaluation tool is a means of scoring schemes which 
improve facilities for cyclists on a range of criteria so that schemes may 
be ranked and compared against each other.  It was approved at the 
City Strategy Decision Session on 20 October 2009.  The proposed 
improvements featured in the Preferred Option have been evaluated 
using this tool and receive a score of +22.  This compares favourably 
with other cycle schemes, as shown in Table 7 below. 

 

 

 

Page 271



Scheme Score 

Beckfield Lane (Boroughbridge Road to Ostman Road) – section completed +16 

Crichton Avenue – section mostly completed +21 

Blossom Street multi-modal scheme – under consideration +22 

Orbital Route (Clifton Green to Crichton Ave) – scheme approved in principle +22 

Wigginton Road – scheme approved in principle +25 

 
 Table 7: Cycling scheme evaluation tool scores 

Consultation 

82. A range of consultation work had been undertaken previously regarding 
this same scheme between May and October 2009 (as detailed within 
the previous report).  Since then, a number of progress meetings have 
been undertaken with the consultants Halcrow, including representatives 
from Transport Planning and Network Management.  Furthermore, 
internal Officer meetings have been undertaken to discuss the results of 
the stage 1 RSA, which subsequently led to a series of amendments, 
concluding with the Preferred Option proposal the Executive Member is 
presented with in this report. 

83. Externally, Officers addressed the public Micklegate Ward meeting on 
11 February 2010, where comments and questions were taken from 
residents, specifically concerning the levels of re-routing (through South 
Bank) which some of the Options may have led to. 

84. As detailed in paragraphs 9 to 23, a full city-wide public consultation was 
undertaken, with the opportunity for residents of York to comment, 
including a two day public exhibition. 

Comments from the CYC Conservation Team 

85. Janine Riley, Conservation Architect provided a response to the 
proposal’s impact on the Central Historic Core conservation area and 
the listed buildings in the area.  Overall Conservation were supportive of 
the scheme, as there would be improvements where central islands, 
guard rails, and associated street-clutter was being removed.  
Additionally, there is general support for the cycle feeder lane markings, 
although there is a wish that the green colour be slightly muted as 
elsewhere in the conservation area.   

86. The further loss of the 13 metre long wedge of cobbles adjacent to the 
bus bay outside the grade 1 listed Bar Convent is regrettable.  However 
the area is small in relation to this zone.  The new shelter outside no. 29 
Blossom Street should match the one outside the convent and notices 
should be integrated with it.  Additionally it was asked whether the take-
up of additional cobbles would have to be so wide, as Conservation 
believed that this should be reduced as people are unlikely to stand 
close to the road.  The addition of the small area of new cobbling by            
St. Mary’s Court was welcome.  It was stressed that the area as a whole 

Page 272



should be repaired and cobbles reinstated where they have become 
loose. 

87. There was concern expressed regarding any painted markings under 
the grade 1 listed Micklegate Bar which is also a scheduled ancient 
monument.  It would be potentially harmful to the monument if queuing 
motorists suddenly dashed through the archway to make up space 
rather than idled under it.  In their view, painted road markings would 
also spoil the appearance of the Bar.  However, Transport Officers 
consider the extended cycle feeder-lanes proposed within the Preferred 
Option to be unobtrusive, merely consisting of a number of painted white 
lines. 

88. Harvey Lowson, Arboricultural Officer would like to re-instate a number 
of small street trees along the frontage cobbles from Nunnery Lane to 
South Parade.  It is his view that the environment of Blossom Street has 
deteriorated since the loss of trees and cobbled margins. The 
reintroduction of trees would greatly enhance the environment for 
pedestrians and cyclists, and he also stresses the social and 
environmental benefits of having trees in future.  Ward Councillors have 
also expressed their wish to see this.  Officers will investigate whether 
this is feasible, as there is a large quantity of utilities located beneath the 
cobbles in this location.  It was observed that trees could replace some 
of the existing anti-parking bollards. 

 Cycling City York - Major Infrastructure Group 

89. Previous comments received via the public consultation.  No further 
comments received regarding the Preferred Option to date. 

York Blind & Partially Sighted Society 

90. YBPSS invited Officers to discuss the proposals at a meeting held on 26 
March 2010.  Comments received from the Society included that the 
group were pleased to note that the cycle facilities would be provided 
within the road space and not on the pavements which would have been 
particularly hazardous in such a busy pedestrian area.  Also, that the 
group had noted that the pedestrian crossing outside the Bar Convent 
was planned to be wider than the DfT recommended width, and 
members wanted re-assurance that the pedestrian phase of the lights 
would allow sufficient time for those people with mobility problem to 
cross the road (Officers response - see paragraph 75).  In addition, any 
improvements to the bus stops would be welcomed by the Society. 

York Private Hire Association 

91. A letter has been received on behalf of YPHA, voicing members’ 
objection to any scheme which may increase traffic congestion on this 
main route and which strongly opposes any plans to reduce Blossom 
Street inbound traffic lanes from three to two.  However, the Association 
commend the proposed cycle link to the station, via Lowther Terrace. 

 

Page 273



North Yorkshire Police 

92. The Police have been asked for their comments on the Preferred 
Option, but a response has not yet been received.  However, a NYP 
representative was involved in producing the stage 1 Road Safety Audit 
for the Preferred Option, along with Engineering Consultancy (Transport 
and Safety).  A NYP representative will also be involved in the detailed 
design of this scheme. 

Corporate Strategy 

93. Implementing alterations to Blossom Street and its associated junctions 
to improve accessibility and safety for all road users, particularly 
pedestrians; cyclists; and public transport users, will contribute to the 
delivery of the Corporate Strategy, specifically through the following 
themes and commitments: 

• Sustainable City 

The Council is committed to improve the quality of the local 
environment and the condition of York’s streets and public spaces. 

The Council is committed to transform York into a ‘Cycle City’ by 
investing our successful £3.7 million bid in cycling infrastructure, 
increasing cycling opportunities and improving cycle availability to all. 

• Healthy City 

Investing in cycling infrastructure and improved pedestrian routes will 
encourage more people to choose these options and improve 
general health and wellbeing. 

94. Local Transport Plan 2006-2011 (LTP2): The scheme would contribute 
to several of the aims of LTP2, namely: 

• To reduce the levels of actual and perceived safety problems; 
• To enhance opportunities for all community members, including 

disadvantaged groups, to play an active part in society; 
• To improve the health of those who live or work in, or visit, York, and 
• To reduce the impact of traffic and travel on the environment, 

including air quality, noise and the use of non-renewable resources. 

 
Implications 

95. This report has the following implications: 

• Financial – If the preferred Option is pursued, the likely cost of 
construction of the Blossom Street multi-modal scheme is estimated 
to be approximately £420,000. 

As agreed by the Executive Member in the City Strategy Capital 
Programme, the level of funding currently available is £500,000.  This 

Page 274



is broken down into £350,000 from LTP, £50,000 from ‘Section 106’ 
monies, and the remainder of the cost of the scheme being met by 
Cycling City funding (£100,000). 

Any over-spend on this scheme may have the consequences of 
reducing the budgets available for other LTP and specific cycle-
related schemes, causing delays in implementing the Programme in 
future years. 

• Human Resources (HR) – There are no HR implications for the 
council. 

• Equalities – The improvements to reach opportunities and facilities 
within York using wider range of more sustainable transport that 
would have otherwise been unattractive.  The improvements will 
remove some of the barriers to using public transport and walking and 
cycling experienced by people: 

• Removal of street clutter will improve the street environment 
for blind and partially sighted people and those with luggage 
or wheelchairs. 

• Improved waiting and boarding facilities at bus stops will 
improve the experience for bus passengers. 

• Improved cycle facilities will encourage less confident cyclists 
to travel along the corridor, which they may have been 
discouraged from doing so in the past. 

• Legal – Any works considered at Micklegate Bar may require 
Scheduled Monument Consent.  

• Crime and Disorder – There are no implications at present. 

• Information Technology (IT) – There are no IT implications at 
present. 

• Property – There are no property implications at present. 

• Sustainability – Implementation of the preferred option will 
encourage the accessibility of York city centre through more 
sustainable transport modes. 

• Other – As a ‘Cycling City’, York needs to be seen actively improving 
provision for cyclists, even in areas with limited capacity for new 
cycling infrastructure.   

Risk Management 

96. In compliance with the councils risk management strategy the main risks 
that have been identified in this report are those which could lead to the 
inability to meet elements of it’s ‘Sustainable City ‘ and ‘Healthy City’ 
elements of its corporate strategy.  In addition, the ability to deliver Local 

Page 275



Transport Plan projects could also be adversely affected, ultimately 
leading to financial loss due to the inability to utilise Cycling City funding 
if a design option is approved which does not provide sufficient benefit to 
cyclists.  In addition there is a significant reputation risk to the council if, 
as a ‘cycling city’, inadequate cycling provision is made.   

97. On this basis the risks associated with approving an Option that does 
not provide adequate provision for pedestrians and cyclists will result in 
a high risk score.  However, the risk score for the Preferred Option is 
low. 

98. If the Preferred Option is approved, there is a small risk that congestion, 
and the associated adverse impacts such as poor air quality and public 
transport journey times becoming more unreliable, will ensue.  
Measured in terms of impact and likelihood, the risk score for all risks 
has been assessed at less than 16.  This means that at this point the 
risks need only to be monitored as they do not provide a real threat to 
the achievement of the objectives of this report. 

Ward Member comments 

99. Ward Members have been involved throughout the consultation period 
and have received briefings from Officers regarding the results of  the 
micro-simulation modelling, as well as the proposed Preferred Option.  
No further comments have been received following the drafting of this 
report. 

100. Previously, Councillor Merrett had highlighted that a secondary stop line 
and signals at the junction of Holgate Road and Lowther Terrace would 
assist cyclists going to / from the new station access, as well as 
preventing cyclists being blocked or becoming trapped against the kerb 
by larger vehicles at the narrow corner of Holgate Road.  However, 
Officers have considered this proposal in detail and have concluded that 
this is not a workable option.  A yellow box junction at Lowther Terrace 
has been included within the Preferred Option instead. 

101. Councillor Merrett would also like to see longer ASLs so that waiting 
cyclists do not block others attempting to make other movements.  
Correct positioning for cyclists making specific turns should be 
highlighted by arrows.  Officers had previously highlighted the same 
issue and therefore the Preferred Option at Annex ‘E’ incorporates this 
measure. 

Non Ruling Group Spokespersons' comments 

Green Party 

102. Councillor D’Agorne, who is also the council’s Cycling Champion, 
thought it commendable that Officers had proposed a solution that 
provided some cycle feeder lanes, in spite of the largest proportion of 
responses favouring no reduction in lanes of traffic.  Councillor Taylor 
also supports the scheme, with the exception that he doesn’t like any 
road markings under the Micklegate Bar.  Councillor D’Agorne suggests 

Page 276



a short section of cycle lane extending beyond a traffic stop-line on the 
main carriageway approach from the city centre.   

103. The Greens also strongly support the proposal for a cycle pre-signal on 
the Queen Street approach, to improve safety on account of conflicting 
movements at  the offset junction, with cyclists moving quite slowly on 
the uphill gradient from a standing start. 

104. In terms of the overall scheme design, the additional pedestrian 
crossings and safer configuration on the corner of the Windmill Pub 
were welcome.  However it would be preferable to use some of the very 
wide pavement on the west side to provide the cycle feeder lane rather 
than reduce traffic lane widths, although this could significantly increase 
the cost of the scheme.  Suggestions are to move lighting to the back of 
the footway (or put the lamps onto buildings) when they are replaced, to 
make it easier to adjust the kerbline in future if desired.  

105. The Greens did not support Alternative Option A, where the new 
crossing of Blossom Street was in two stages (potentially resulting on 
crowds waiting on the small central island).  Removal of the islands on 
Queen Street may leave cyclists in the right-hand ASL vulnerable to 
HGV's and buses turning in from Blossom Street (although the ASL has 
since been reduced to part-width to increase the safety of cyclists at this 
point).  Similarly, a central bollard in Holgate Road at the junction of 
Lowther Terrace would give some protection for right-turning cyclists 
waiting in the centre of the road to access the new facility to the station 
when there is oncoming traffic from the A59. 

106. In terms of lane widths, if the left-turn lane has been re-configured to 
allow a bus to stay within the left lane, this lane must be wide enough to 
allow the bus to reach the junction when there is standing traffic.  From 
the point of view of safety of cyclists on the inbound section, the 
combined width of the cycle lane plus left lane must either be (1) too 
narrow for a bus to pass a moving cycle, or (2) the lane should be wide 
enough for the bus to comfortably pass in safety. A width between the 
two would be the most dangerous.  

Conservative Group  

107. Councillor Gillies considered painted road markings underneath the 
iconic Micklegate Bar to be wholly inappropriate to the location and 
should not be included in the scheme.  He also questioned the necessity 
of a cycle pre-signal for right-turning cyclists from Queen Street, as the 
new station access via Lowther Terrace would mean less cyclists 
making this manoeuvre. 

108. The Conservatives also suggested that the bus stop adjacent to the car 
park on Nunnery Lane be repositioned further away from the Blossom 
Street junction, as traffic often backs up to block the junction when 
buses are loading/unloading passengers.  Officers agree that this could 
benefit the operation of the Blossom Street junction and therefore will be 
incorporated into the final design. 

Page 277



Labour Group 

109. No comments received to date. 

Contact Details 
 
Author: 

 
 
Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 

 

Richard Holland  
Transport Planning – Strategy 
Tel No. 01904 551401 
 

 

Richard Wood 
Assistant Director (City Development & Transport) 
Directorate of City Strategy 
 

 Report Approved ü Date 26 April 2010 

     
 
 
Specialist Implications Officer(s)   
 
 
 
Wards Affected:   
 

Micklegate  
 

All  

  
For further information please contact the author of the report 

 

Background Papers 
 
‘Blossom Street Multi Modal Study – Option Selection’ presented to Decision 
Session – Executive Member for City Strategy on 1 September 2009. 

‘Blossom Street Multi Modal Scheme (Design Options)’ July 2009 - Halcrow 
Group Ltd 

‘Blossom Street Multi Modal Study – Feasibility report’ presented to Executive 
Member and Advisory Panel (City Strategy) on 20 October 2008. 

‘Blossom Street Multi Modal Study’ September 2008 - Halcrow Group Ltd 

‘Blossom Street Multi Modal Study, Consultation of Local Residents and 
Businesses Technical Note’ September 2008 - Halcrow Group Ltd  

Annexes 

Annex A – Options A to F 

Annex B – Typical morning and evening peak hour queues 2011 

Annex C – Proposed new cycle route 

Annex D – Blossom Street comparison of routes 

Annex E – Preferred and alternative scheme options 

Page 278



A
p

p
en

d
ix

 B

Page 279



Page 280

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

P
age 281



P
age 282

T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

P
age 283



P
age 284

T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

P
age 285



P
age 286

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 287



Page 288

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 289



Page 290

This page is intentionally left blank



 

  

 

   

 

Decision Session 
 - Executive Member for City Strategy   

11 May 2010 

 
Report of the Director of City Strategy 
 
 
BUS CORRIDOR WORKS ON A59 BOROUGHBRIDGE ROAD AND 
B1363 WIGGINTON ROAD 
 
 Summary 
 
1. This report provides background information about the various elements of 

proposed works to be constructed on the public highway as part of the Access 
York Phase 1 project that have not been considered for approval within the 
planning application process. It provides information about the timescale for 
construction. 

 
2. The report also examines the consultation process requirements, with 

proposals for this to be conducted in a coordinated way across the whole 
project.  It outlines the draft proposals for the bus corridor works that will form 
the basis of consultation and it also provides information about the integration of 
the proposed cycling improvements and the resurfacing works and timescale for 
construction. 

 
 Recommendation 
 
3. The Executive Member for City Strategy is recommended to approve: 
 

(i) the consultation proposals; set out in paragraphs 12 to 14 
(ii) the timescale for producing detailed reports to this Decision Session in 

September 2010 for further consideration; set out in paragraph 9 
 

Reason: To ensure that the Access York Phase 1 project continues to progress 
satisfactorily and to make sure that any approval of works within the public 
highway receives appropriate consultation. 

 
 Background 
 
4. The Access York Phase 1 scheme incorporates the construction of new Park & 

Ride facilities at Askham Bar, Poppleton Bar and Clifton Moor.  It also includes 
a major upgrade of the A59/A1237 roundabout near Poppleton as well as 
improvements to assist the passage of buses along the routes from the Park & 
Ride sites into and out of the city centre. 

 

Agenda Item 7Page 291



5. Planning permission for the Park & Ride sites at Askham Bar and Poppleton 
Bar have been approved.  The planning application for the Clifton Moor site will 
have been considered by the Planning Committee on 29 April 2010 but the 
outcome is unknown at the time of writing this report. 

 
6. Funding for the overall scheme will mainly come from the Government as a 

result of a Major Scheme Bid application which has now obtained Programme 
Entry status.  This means that work can proceed with the possibility of up to 
£22.9 million being available subject to various ongoing conditions being 
satisfied. 

 
7. Halcrow has been appointed as the consultant to carry out the detailed design 

works on all aspects of the scheme other than the bus corridor works, which are 
being designed in-house by the Engineering Consultancy. 

 
8. The detailed design and the appointment of contractors will take place in the 

period up to May 2011 at which time it is intended to commence construction.  
The construction period is expected to last 12 months.  Running parallel with 
this is the appointment of the bus operator. 

 
9. The timescale is challenging and to remain on target it is preferable that a 

number of reports, seeking approvals to carry out works on the public highway, 
are brought to this Decision Session in September 2010.  These reports will 
cover work outside the scope of the planning submissions and include : 

 
• Detailed Design of the appropriate means of access and egress to the Park 

& Ride sites  
• Detailed Design of the A59/A1237 roundabout upgrade  
• Detailed Design of Bus Corridor works  

 
10. The A59 Boroughbridge Road has a number of scheme proposals that need to 

be coordinated to ensure that the works are correctly phased and to minimise 
disruption.  Works, in addition to those for the bus corridor improvements, 
include the Orbital Cycle Route scheme at Water End and two carriageway 
resurfacing schemes either side of the Carr Lane junction, that in total run the 
full length from Shirley Avenue to Seldon Road. 

  
11. Consultation on all these proposals is going to be very important to ensure that 

the detailed designs meet as many needs as possible.  Consultation has been 
carried out as part of the pre-application planning process on the outline design 
for the access and egress arrangements for the Park & ride sites as well as the 
A59/A1237 roundabout upgrade. Some initial consultation has already taken 
place with the two Ward Committees affected by the bus corridor works along 
the A59.  However, further consultation is still required. 

 
 Consultation Proposals 
 
12. Joint consultations will be carried out whenever possible to avoid duplication.  

Halcrow and the CYC project team staff, involved with the bus corridor and 
associated works, will be working together on this.  The approach to 
consultation is that it will involve the relevant Ward Committees and residents of 

Page 292



adjacent or near-by properties as well as an opportunity to view and comment 
on the proposals online. 
  

13. In addition to this, and to ensure that equalities aspects are fully considered, an 
evening  exhibition and meeting is proposed for residents, user groups and 
Social Inclusion Working Group (SWIG) representatives.  This meeting can be 
used to exhibit all works included within the Access York Phase 1 project.   

 
14. The proposed consultation timetable is as follows: 
 

Consultation 
Opportunity 

Date Extent of consultation  

Leaflet deliveries to 
properties adjacent or 
close to the bus corridor 
works and the 
A59/A1237 roundabout 

Early July 2010 A59 and B1363 bus corridors 
and the A59/A1237 
roundabout upgrade 

On-line consultation July 2010 All aspects of the project 
Haxby & Wigginton 
Ward Committee 
Meeting 

5 July 2010 Clifton Moor bus corridor 

Huntington & New 
Earswick Ward Meeting  

7 July 2010 Clifton Moor bus corridor 

Acomb Ward Meeting 12 July 2010 A59 bus corridor 
Clifton Ward Meeting  14 July 2010 Clifton Moor bus corridor 
Skelton Rawcliffe & 
Clifton Without Ward 
Meeting 

15 July 2010 Clifton Moor bus corridor 

Guildhall Ward Meeting  19 July 2010 Clifton Moor bus corridor 
Holgate Ward Meeting  20 July 2010 A59 bus corridor 
Rural West York Ward 
Meeting 

21 July 2010 Askham Bar and Poppleton 
Bar access/egress proposals, 
plus A59/A1237 roundabout 
upgrade 

Evening exhibition and 
meeting 

Late July/early 
August 2010 

All aspects of the project  

 
 Bus Corridor Works 
 
15. The Park & Ride service only works effectively if the buses can travel into and 

out of the city centre with a minimum delay.  To achieve this, and in common 
with other existing Park & Rides across the city, it is proposed to carry out 
improvements to the A59 Boroughbridge Road and the B1363 Wigginton Road.  
This will involve the introduction of bus lanes to effectively relocate buses to the 
front of a queue of traffic and to then give them priority at traffic signalled 
controlled junctions as they make their way along the route into the city.  The 
Park & Ride buses will have a small number of intermediate bus stops to keep 
journey times to a minimum. 

 
16. The journey time saving for buses, when the sites could become operational, is 

4.1 minutes for the A59 Poppleton Bar Park & Ride and 2.25 minutes for the 

Page 293



Clifton Moor Park & Ride.  These times have been calculated using the 
SATURN traffic model which formed part of the Major Scheme Bid. 

 
17. Whilst the benefits of Park & Ride can be measured in the journey time savings, 

the other key benefits are convenience and cost savings for users as well as 
the positive environmental aspects of reduced numbers of cars and less 
exhaust emissions.  Some compromises may need to be made when the street 
scene is being altered, and the retention of trees or if possible an increase in 
trees, is an important consideration to provide the most attractive streetscape 
possible.  Options are being investigated and these will be presented in the 
detailed design report for consideration. 

 
18. The proposals for works on the A59 Boroughbridge Road and B1363 Wigginton 

Road are still at the design stage but in their current form these proposed works 
are now outlined in this report and will provide the basis for consultation.  To 
ensure continuity of design, the same CYC ‘lead designer’ will be responsible 
for coordinating all the A59 bus corridor and associated works.  This will also 
mean that any advance works will be coordinated to cover all the design 
requirements of the scheme proposals. 

 
 A59 Boroughbridge Road  
 
19. The Access York Phase 1 project includes the construction of the bus corridor 

works and, subject to Final Approval being obtained from the Department for 
Transport (DfT), the advance works for the construction could start from May 
2011 onwards.  This has to tie in with the Orbital Cycle Route scheme and the 
Communities and Neighbourhoods resurfacing schemes. 

 
 Orbital Cycle Route Scheme at the A59 
 
20. The Orbital Cycle Route (OCR) concept is to create a high quality cycle route 

around the city, between the inner and outer ring roads and away from busy 
radial roads. Where the OCR crosses a radial road, enhanced facilities such as 
traffic control signals or Toucan crossings will be provided. Cyclists are not 
expected to ride the whole of the OCR for leisure but to use sections of it as the 
main leg of their journeys to wider destinations.   

 
21. The OCR has been made possible by CYC's successful bid to become a 

Cycling City and thereby winning enhanced funding from Cycling England.  A 
key commitment of that bid was to construct the OCR before March 2011. 

  
22. Much of the OCR is already complete but there are three sections outstanding 

for construction in 2010/11; the relevant one in this instance being Water End to 
Hob Moor.  

 
23. Although the alignment of the Water End to Hob Moor section is at the 

feasibility stage, it is certain to cross Boroughbridge Road. In keeping with the 
principles of the OCR, that crossing will be supported by traffic signals and 
therefore can only be placed at the Water End or Carr Lane junctions if it is to 
integrate with the bus corridor works. 

 

Page 294



24. The feasibility of the Water End to Hob Moor section is currently being 
progressed, with a view to seeking support in principle for the scheme at the 
July 2010 Decision Session - Executive Member for City Strategy. Thereafter, it 
will be developed and move to consultation in August, with final approval for all 
three being sought at the Decision Session in September. 

 
 A59 Bus Corridor Works 
 
25. A brief description of the proposed A59 Bus Corridor work is as follows but in 

general terms existing traffic lanes are retained and the bus lane is constructed 
by either making use of wide sections of existing carriageway or the grass 
verge. 

 
 Bus Lane inbound from Plantation Drive - finishing opposite Cranbrook Drive 
 
26. The proposed works on the A59 bus corridor starts at Plantation Drive and is 

predominantly on the inbound verge. This section involves the construction of a 
4m wide shared bus/cycle lane through to the Princess Drive development, 
along Boroughbridge Road. The bus lane is 200m long and ends in a bus 
priority gate just prior to the existing traffic lights.  As part of the proposal the 
existing footway is moved further back but a strip of verge 3.0m to 3.5m wide 
would still exist between property boundaries and the rear of the footway. 

 
 Bus Lane inbound from Renshaw Gardens to Acomb Road junction 
 
27. A 4m wide bus/cycle lane is proposed to be constructed on Poppleton Road, 

from 70m beyond Renshaw Gardens to just prior to the traffic lights of the 
Holgate Park Drive/Poppleton Road/Tisbury Road Junction. All works to create 
this 52m length of bus lane can take place within the existing carriageway.   

 
28. The proposed bus lane is then continued from the other side of the traffic lights 

through to the Acomb Road Junction near the Fox Public House. This main 
section of bus lane would be up to 405m long. 

 
29. From opposite St Swithin's Walk to the Acomb Road junction the space for the 

bus lane is obtained from the existing verge.  The cycle path is on road and the 
space for this is provided by increasing the bus lane width.  The footway is 
mainly adjacent to the carriageway edge.  A reduced verge, with a minimum 
width of 3.0m, is provided for trees. 

 
30. One of the issues to be addressed is the impact on trees.  This section requires 

some landscaping and tree transplanting works, which may affect the overall 
avenue effect for Poppleton Road.  The draft proposal requires the 10-year-old 
avenue of trees to be set back 1.5m to 1.8m.  In reality this will mean replacing 
17 existing trees with new semi-mature trees.  Options to provide a better 
alternative to this are being sought but there may not be a viable alternative 
solution. 

 
31. Up-graded bus stop facilities and a new controlled pedestrian crossing are 

proposed to be incorporated into the works on this section of Poppleton Road.    
 

Page 295



 Carr Lane to Water End 
 
32. Along the section of Boroughbridge Road between Carr Lane and Water End, it 

is proposed to widen the carriageway on the southern (outbound) verge, with 
the loss of most of the patches of grass and two trees.  This is to facilitate the 
introduction of improved cycling facilities on both sides of the road to provide 
the cycling links between Carr Lane and the Water End, as agreed with Cycling 
England.  At present this cycling facility is only partially available.  The Water 
End junction would have localised widening and additional works done to the 
existing traffic islands, and the proposal is to construct a dedicated left turn lane 
from Boroughbridge Road inbound on to Water End, which will ease congestion 
at this busy junction. Some movement and upgrading of Traffic lights would 
take place to facilitate Toucans being constructed for the Orbital cycle route to 
cross this busy area. It is proposed to retain the two existing pedestrian 
crossing refuges. 

 
 Traffic Signals 
 
33. Traffic signals both existing and those installed for bus gate purposes along 

these lengths of road would be improved to register the approach of buses in 
both directions and provide optimum green time. 

 
34. The proposed bus route from the Poppleton Park & Ride site is: 
 

 
Park & Ride site 
A59 Boroughbridge Road 
A59 Poppleton Road 
A59 Holgate Road 
Blossom Street 
Queen Street 
Station Road 
Station Avenue 
Rougier Street/George Hudson 
Street 
Micklegate 
Skeldergate 
 

 
Bishopgate Street 
Tower Street/Clifford Street 
Low Ousegate 
Micklegate 
Rougier St./George Hudson Street 
Station Road 
Queen Street 
Blossom Street 
A59 Holgate Road 
A59 Poppleton Road 
A59 Boroughbridge Road 
Park & Ride site 

 
As an alternative to traveling along Holgate Road to Blossom Street, the option 
of using Dalton Terrace and The Mount is under consideration. 

  
 Bus stops are expected to be located at: 
 

Holgate Park 
Blossom Street Stop B (or a new stop) 
Rail Station Stop A 
Rougier Street Stop B 
Rail Station Stop F 
Blossom Street Stop C 

 

Page 296



 A59 Resurfacing Schemes 
 
35. Two resurfacing schemes are already approved and the timing of the works has 

been altered to ensure that it is linked to the bus corridor works in such a way 
as to add a positive impact to the finished product.  The resurfacing will 
therefore form part of the overall A59 Bus Corridor scheme and will be carried 
out after all proposed widening and other works affecting the carriageway have 
been completed.  The full carriageway width from Shirley Avenue to Seldon 
Place will be resurfaced. 

 
36. Whilst the bus corridor works will cause a delay to the originally intended 

timescale for carrying out the resurfacing schemes, the carriageway surface will 
be kept in a safe condition, and if necessary, temporary patching works will be 
carried out. 

 
 A59 Proposed Works Programme 
 
37. The proposed phasing of works is shown below: 
 

Scheme Extent of works 
on A59 

Proposed 
construction 
period 

Comment 

Orbital 
Cycle Route 

Water End 
junction  

January to 
February 2011 

Due to other 
constraints it is 
unlikely that these 
works could start 
earlier than this.  The 
deadline for 
completion is late 
February to obtain 
Cycling City funding. 

Utility 
diversions 
and 
alterations 
in advance 
of the Bus 
Corridor 
works 

Plantation Drive to 
Princess Road  
+ 
Holgate Park 
Drive to Acomb 
Road 

May to July 
2011 

The full extent of the 
work is unknown at 
this stage.   

Bus 
Corridor 
works 

Bus lane from 
Plantation Drive to 
Princess Road  
+ 
Bus lane from 
Holgate Park 
Drive to Acomb 
Road 
+ 
Traffic signal 
improvements 
between 

August to 
December 
2011 

The construction 
period could be 
altered to provide the 
‘best fit’ with the 
utility works and the 
contractor’s 
programme for the 
Poppleton Bar P&R 
site and the 
A59/A1237 
roundabout upgrade. 

Page 297



Scheme Extent of works 
on A59 

Proposed 
construction 
period 

Comment 

Plantation Drive 
and Acomb Road 
+ 
Full width 
carriageway 
resurfacing 
between Shirley 
Avenue and 
Seldon Road 
 

 
 B1363 Wigginton Road  
 
 Bus Corridor Works  
 
38. To have the least impact on the railway level crossing and to avoid complex and 

costly issues arising with Network Rail, any bus corridor works would need to 
be undertaken at least 150m from it.  This, therefore, has been used as the 
proposed point for the end of the new bus gate, inbound on Wigginton Road.  
This point coincides with the location where a Public Footpath/Right of Way 
crosses the road and as the bus gate is constructed by making use of traffic 
islands, these will also act as pedestrian refuges allowing people to cross the 
road.  The proposed dedicated bus lane will then extend 250m north from this 
point, an optimum length that traffic modelling shows to be of the greatest 
effect.  Construction, to increase the overall carriageway width would be 
obtained by a 2m wide haunch, widening on each side of the existing 
carriageway.  Both verges are bounded by drainage ditches, and this form of 
construction will have the least effect on the verges. 

 
39. The proposed creation of the bus lane will relocate the inbound queues of traffic 

that are present at peak times.  This queue relocation allows the bus to travel to 
the front of the queue and to then have the best possible approach to the traffic 
signals at Crichton Avenue.  These traffic signals, along with all others that are 
suitable along the route, would be improved to register the approach of buses in 
both directions and provide optimum green time. 

 
40. Bus stop facilities would be provided at both the proposed development site at 

Nestle South and adjacent to York Hospital.   There could also be a bus stop on 
Clarence Street and there would be one close to Monk Bar, either on Lord 
Mayors Walk or Monkgate.   

 
41. Further into the city, minor alterations to the kerb alignment may be required to 

assist with manoeuvres from Clarence Street to Lord Mayor’s Walk, along with 
works to re-sequence the traffic light signals. 

 
42. This proposed bus corridor scheme envisages no environmental changes or 

impact on the green environment other than the change of 4m of verge to 
highway. 

Page 298



43. The proposed bus route from the Clifton Moor Park & Ride site is: 
 

• Park & Ride site 
• Wigginton Road 
• Clarence Street 
• Lord Mayors Walk 
• Monkgate (and return) 
 

44. A number of variations to extend this route through to Stonebow are under 
consideration. 

 
45. It is also proposed to provide a bus service, with appropriately located bus 

stops, around the Clifton Moor Industrial Estate, in the same way as that 
already in operation at the Monks Cross Park & Ride.  This service would leave 
the Park & Ride site via the bus exit onto Stirling Road and take the following 
route: 

 
• Stirling Road 
• Clifton Moorgate 
• Kettlestring Lane 
• Audax Rd 
• Stirling Road 

 
 B1363 Proposed Works Programme 
 
46. The proposed phasing of works is as shown: 
 

Scheme 

Extent of 
works on 
Wigginton 
Road 

Proposed 
construction 
period 

Comment 

Utility diversions 
and alterations 
in advance of 
the Bus Corridor 
works 

Extends from 
150 m to 400m 
from the level 
crossing near 
the Nestle 
entrance 

May to June 
2011 

The full extent 
of the work is 
unknown at this 
stage.   

Bus Corridor 
works 

Bus lane 
construction  
+ 
Traffic signal 
improvements 
along the bus 
route 
+ 
Minor kerb line 
alterations at 
the Clarence 
St./Lord Mayors 
Walk junction 

July to 
September 
2011 

The 
construction 
period could be 
altered to 
provide the 
‘best fit’ with the 
utility works and 
the contractor’s 
programme for 
the Clifton Moor 
P&R site. 

 

Page 299



 Corporate Priorities 
  
47. This project assists in meeting the following Corporate Priorities: 
 
48. Thriving City – the scheme will improve the sustainable transport network along 

the bus corridors and will assist the economy by reducing the impact of 
congestion. 

 
49. Sustainable City - this scheme will reduce the number of vehicles travelling into 

and out of the city centre with the consequent overall improvement in air quality 
 
50. Healthy City – the scheme will encourage walking and cycling through the 

provision of additional footways, cycleways and crossing facilities.  
 
51. Inclusive City – the scheme helps people to access services and facilities 
 
 Implications  

 Financial 

52. The budget to develop the Access York Phase 1 scheme is in place and a 
report covering this was approved at the Executive on 13 April 2010.  As a 
result, development costs are being shared on an equal basis with the 
Department for Transport.  The budget for the Orbital Cycle Route works is 
available until the end of March 2011.  Budgets for the two resurfacing schemes 
are able to be transferred into 2011/12 through alterations to the Resurfacing 
and Reconstruction scheme programme and this will be identified through the 
monitoring reports within the Communities and Neighbourhoods Directorate. 
 

 Human Resources (HR)  
 
53. There are no HR implications.  

 
 Legal  

 
54. There are no legal implications.  
 
 Crime and Disorder 
 
55. There are no crime and disorder issues. 
 
 Information Technology (IT) 
 
56. There are no IT implications.   
 
 Property  
 
57. The construction of the bus corridor works will increase the council’s assets and 

these assets will then require ongoing maintenance.   
  

 

Page 300



Sustainability 
 
58. The assets proposed will increase the Park & Ride offer and will assist in 

reducing car journeys which also help to improve air quality.  In addition there 
will be improved cycling facilities along Boroughbridge Road. 
 

 Other 
 
59. There are no other implications. 
 
 Risk Management 

  

60. The Access York Phase 1 Project has a risk register which is regularly 
reviewed.  Any severe risks have been identified and in some cases escalated 
to the Project Board. There is no further change in the risk profile of the project 
and risks are being mitigated as the project progresses.  

 
61. In compliance with the Council’s risk management strategy the main risks have 

been identified.  Measured in terms of impact and likelihood, the score for the 
remaining risks after mitigation measures have been implemented has been 
assessed at less than 16.  This means that at this point the risks need only to 
be monitored, as they do not provide a real threat to the achievement of the 
objectives of this report.  

 Ward Member Comments 
 
62. Ward Members have been contacted in connection with the consultation 

proposals.  Those that commented were either in support of the proposals or, in 
one case, suggested that a further Ward Committee Meeting should be visited 
and this has been accommodated in this report.  

 
Contact Details  

  
Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 
Paul Thackray 
Project Manager (Access York) 
Tel (01904) 551574 
 

Richard Wood 
Assistant Director  
(City Development & Transport) 
 
Report Approved ü

ü 
Date  26 April 2010 

    

Specialist Implications Officer 
 

There are no specialist implications. 
 
Wards Affected:    All 

 
For further information please contact the author of the report. 
 
Background Papers: 
 
Access York Phase 1 Park & Ride Development – Update Report Following 
Programme Entry – to the Executive 13 April 2010 

Page 301



Page 302

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

  
 

   

 
Decision Session 
 – Executive Member for City Strategy 

11 May 2010 

 
Report of the Director of City Strategy 
 

OPERATION OF CITY OF YORK COUNCIL’S DIAL & RIDE SERVICE 

Summary 

1. This report sets out the arrangements for the day-to-day operation of the 
Council’s Dial & Ride service, which is currently delivered by the charity York 
Wheels. 

2. Dial & Ride is a Council service for York residents who cannot use other local 
bus services either because they cannot get to a bus stop or need extra 
assistance at either end of their journey.  Most passengers are older people 
with a range of disabilities.  For this reason, it is essential that the Council 
ensures that all staff who come in contact with passengers – both booking and 
scheduling and driving staff – are fully aware of passengers’ needs and take 
these into account, offering the appropriate level of assistance in each instance. 

3. This report examines the implications for continuing with the current 
arrangement, procuring the service or bringing the operation in-house. 

Recommendations 

4. The Executive Member is asked to consider instructing officers to tender the 
day-to-day operation of Dial & Ride externally, including vehicle maintenance 
(as set out as Option 2 in this report). 

Reason: To ensure that the Council continues to operate a high quality Dial & 
Ride service whilst ensuring that it is getting the best value for money across 
all aspects of the operation.  To ensure that the service operates efficiently. 

Background 

5. Dial & Ride is a Council service for York residents who cannot use other local 
bus services either because they cannot get to a bus stop or need extra 
assistance at either end of their journey.  It uses three Council-owned 
minibuses with wheelchair lifts to provide journeys from all parts of the city to 
the city centre, edge-of-town shopping destinations and to Dolphins swimming 
sessions at Energise.  The service also provides home-to-school journeys for 
students with special educational needs.  In 2009/10, Dial & Ride provided a 

Agenda Item 8Page 303



 

total of 15,658 passenger journeys and this usage level has remained stable 
over several years. 

6. York Wheels is a registered charity and a company limited by guarantee.  It 
provides transport for medical and social needs to people who have difficulty 
using public transport and taxis. In 2009/10, York Wheels provided 
approximately 27,500 passenger journeys through its voluntary car scheme. 

7. The Best Value Review of Transport Procurement carried out in 2000 identified 
that transport services for the elderly in York were uncoordinated.  At that time, 
Tees East and North Yorkshire Ambulance Service was operating Dial & Ride 
with no involvement from York Wheels.  The review then recommended that the 
Council should provide management support to assist York Wheels to develop 
and to be able to integrate the booking of Dial & Ride services with its own 
operation. 

8. In 2003, the Council transferred the day-to-day operation of its Dial & Ride 
service from the Ambulance Service to York Wheels.  The reasons for this were 
set out in the Report to the meeting of Executive Member for Planning & 
Transport and Advisory Panel on 17 June 2003, which followed on from the 
Best Value Review and set out how the Council should implement the 
recommendations.  The key points from the Report are summarised below: 

a. The Council wished to support and develop the role of the voluntary 
sector in providing transport.  York Wheels is the primary voluntary 
sector provider of transport services in York.  The Council expected 
that greater use could be made of the Dial & Ride vehicles outside of 
the core hours of operation for services that would directly benefit the 
local community. 

b. The Council wished to see better integration of community transport 
services.  The client group for Dial & Ride and York Wheels are similar 
– they are both for residents who need extra assistance in booking and 
travelling and tend to be older people – but there is little duplication 
between the two services.  The report recommended that there could 
be efficiency savings by combining the booking and operation of these 
two services and the expectation was that this could be achieved in 
the medium term by transferring the day-to-day operation of Dial & 
Ride from Council offices into York Wheels’ office at York Hospital. 

c. Tees East and North Yorkshire Ambulance Service no longer wished 
to operate the service. 

9. Following the decision by the Executive Member in 2003, the Council 
negotiated and agreed a service level agreement with York Wheels that was 
signed off on 7 March 2005.  The key points of this agreement for each party 
were as follows: 

a. York Wheels would provide all driving and administrative staff to 
operate the service, which included co-ordinating both the journeys 
and other items such as vehicle maintenance. 

Page 304



 

b. The Council would pay York Wheels an hourly rate for staff based on 
actual hours worked, excluding staff leave. 

c. The Council would provide the working capital for the service, 
including the vehicles, booking software and office accommodation.  
The Council would allow York Wheels, with prior agreement, 
reasonable use of the Dial & Ride vehicles outside of the core hours of 
operation of Dial & Ride. 

d. The Council would ensure that arrangements were in place and pay 
for all non-staff operating costs. 

e. The Council would continue to plan the service structure of the Dial & 
Ride service, including the destinations served and the timetable in 
consultation with York Wheels. 

10. The Council signed a second service level agreement with York Wheels in April 
2009 that ran for one year.  This document updated some of the minor details 
from the original agreement but did not change any of the points made in 
paragraph 9 above. The Council has just extended this service level agreement 
(by obtaining a waiver as per the Council’s financial regulations) until 31 March 
2011 to enable this important service for vulnerable users to continue and 
provide sufficient time for the next steps to be agreed and implemented. 

11. The Council continues to provide office accommodation for the booking service 
in its St Leonard’s Place offices.  York Wheels has not been able to combine 
the two offices due to limited space at York Hospital.  Therefore, there are still 
two separate booking systems and telephone numbers for passengers – one 
for Dial & Ride (01904 551441) and one for York Wheels (01904 630080). 

12. In 2009, the Council secured funding from Yorkshire Forward, the Region’s 
Development Agency, through its Rural Access to Opportunities Programme for 
the York Peak Rural Bus Service project.  This project will trial a peak rural bus 
service using Dial & Ride vehicles outside of their core hours of operation.  The 
Council plans to start this service in autumn 2010, which the Council will 
procure either as part of the Dial & Ride service or separately, depending on 
the outcome of this Decision Session.  The Programme will also jointly fund the 
purchase of two new Dial & Ride vehicles to improve the quality and reliability 
of the aging fleet, with the additional funding allocated from the Council’s Local 
Transport Plan Capital Programme. 

Financial considerations 

13. The financial value of the service to York Wheels in 2009/10 was £74,983.  
Because of the financial cost to the Council of operating the service over the 
year, the Council’s financial regulations state that procurement of services of 
this value should be subject to competition.  The value over three years would 
also reach the threshold requirement to advertise in the Official Journal of the 
European Union, which is currently £156,442. 

Page 305



 

14. The total net cost to the Council of operating the Dial & Ride service in 2009/10 
was £110,000 (net of £32,000 fare and contract income), based on estimated 
outturn figures at 29 March 2010. 

15. Dial & Ride drivers provide more passenger assistance than drivers do on local 
bus services.  For example, they may assist passengers from their front door to 
their seat on the bus, help with loading shopping onto and off the bus and load, 
unload and restrain wheelchairs on the vehicles.  Because of this, a direct 
comparison to local bus services (for example, using financial subsidy per 
passenger) is not appropriate. 

Consultation  

16. Councillor Gillies has suggested that there might be scope to work in 
partnership with Little Red Bus (Harrogate District Community Transport).  If the 
Council tenders the operation of Dial & Ride, as set out in Option 2, all 
operators, including Harrogate District Community Transport, would have the 
opportunity to bid for the contract.  There is also scope for Harrogate District 
Community Transport to work in partnership with York Wheels, the local 
community transport provider.  Councillor Healey has asked the following 
questions, which are listed below with officer comments: 

a. How long will the next contract period be and will it include any 
breaks?  Local bus service contracts can be up to five years and, 
normally, the Council would try to bring the contract for Dial & Ride into 
line with this.  If Option 2 is pursued, the Council may issue a shorter 
contract with a potential extension based on performance during the 
initial period. 

b. What is the passenger satisfaction with the current service?  The 
Council has not carried out any specific passenger satisfaction 
surveys.  However, it is currently undertaking a survey about proposed 
changes to the timetable, which is likely to generate other comments 
(as did a previous survey in 2008).  In general, the service is very 
much appreciated by passengers and staff receive plenty of praise. 

c. What is the capacity for York Wheels to be ‘scaled up’?  York Wheels 
is a voluntary sector transport provider and there is scope for it to 
expand its services if it chose to do so.  Its main limitation is its office 
at York Hospital, which is very small. 

17. The non-ruling groups’ spokespersons have been consulted over the options 
presented in this report.  No other responses had been received at the time that 
this report was published. 

18. York Wheels has been consulted over the options presented in this report.  No 
response had been received at the time that this report was published. 

Options 

Page 306



 

19. Option 1.  Instruct officers to renegotiate a service level agreement with York 
Wheels for the day-to-day operation of Dial & Ride.  This option will include 
setting and reviewing strategic targets on an annual basis to ensure the 
continuing improvement of assisted travel services for York residents. 

20. Option 2.  Instruct officers to tender the day-to-day operation of Dial & Ride 
externally, including vehicle maintenance. 

21. Option 3.  Instruct officers to bring all aspects of the operation of Dial & Ride in-
house. 

Analysis 

22. A full analysis of each option is included in Annex A of this report. 

23. Option 1 will ensure the greatest level of support for the voluntary sector.  It 
also gives the opportunity to support other voluntary-sector transport services, 
primarily York Wheels’ volunteer car scheme.  In the longer term, efficiencies 
might be gained, for example by combining the booking facility of Dial & Ride 
and York Wheels’ own services.  The Council is a signatory to the York 
Compact, which is a high level agreement setting out how the public and 
voluntary sectors will work together in the city.  Continuing support to York 
Wheels will demonstrate the Council’s commitment to this.  It will also indirectly 
affect the delivery of the Local Area Agreement, ensuring that target NI7 – 
Environment for a thriving third sector – is met.  For the Council, it will also 
ensure that staff-related costs remain relatively stable.  However, by staying 
with the same supplier, this service will not be subject to competition and 
therefore potential savings and efficiencies through subjecting this service to 
market forces will not be realised.  It will also add complexity to the joint 
operation of the trial peak rural bus service. 

24. Option 2.  This option simplifies the operation of the service and will establish 
Dial & Ride as an externally provided service in the same way as other 
contracted local bus services.  The Council’s role after a contract is agreed will 
be better focussed on contract management and monitoring.  By establishing a 
formal contract, the Council will be able to better control price rises throughout 
the period of the contract.  The contract could also have in place clauses that 
give incentives to the supplier to drive out inefficiencies.  It is uncertain whether 
York Wheels would bid for a contract on this basis or whether it would be 
successful.  This option offers little benefit for the voluntary sector.  There is a 
risk that a successful bidder may not offer the same level of passenger 
assistance than is currently provided by York Wheels.  However, the Council 
can reduce the likelihood of this by the inclusion of quality-testing elements 
within the procurement process and relevant clauses in the contract.  Similarly, 
the service provided by the administrative staff goes beyond the recording of 
journey requests.  Some people who use the service need more support, for 
example, they may forget to book a journey or make a mistake when booking 
due to medical reasons.  With a small number of administrative staff that 
understands their individual clients’ needs, passengers receive a high quality 
service. 

Page 307



 

25. Option 3.  This option simplifies the operation of the service.  This option also 
allows the Council to plan its budgets more effectively, although the total cost 
may be higher than at present.  The Council would also be responsible for 
ensuring that there are sufficient numbers of trained staff available to provide 
cover during periods of leave.  However, this option will not subject the service 
to competition and therefore potential savings and efficiencies through 
subjecting this service to market forces will not be realised.  As per option 1, it 
will also add complexity to the joint operation of the trial peak rural bus service. 

Corporate Objectives 

26. This service meets the following Corporate Objectives: 

a. Thriving City.  The York Peak Rural Bus Service will connect rural 
residents to employment. 

b. Sustainable City.  The York Peak Rural Bus Service will encourage 
modal shift away from private car journeys.  The new vehicles that 
have already been secured will meet the Euro V emission rating. 

c. Safer City.  Dial & Ride provides a safe mode of travel for older and 
disabled residents. 

d. Inclusive City.  Dial & Ride provides travel for people who could not 
access other local bus services.  It allows people to maintain their 
independence and live in their own homes for longer. 

Implications 

• Financial 

27. There is currently a net budget for the Dial & Ride service totalling £118,000 
(excluding capital charges).  The tendering exercise could result in a reduced 
net cost of providing the service to the Council.  The procurement costs can be 
contained within current budgets. 

• Human Resources (HR) 

28. There are no human resource implications as a direct result of this report.  
Option 3 would have human resource implications for the Council and this 
would need to be investigated if this option is chosen.  Under Option 2, any 
procurement exercise would need to specify that there was already an operator 
providing this service and that Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of 
Employment) Regulations would apply. 

• Equalities 

29. There are no equalities implications as a result of this report as there are no 
changes to the service proposed. 

 

Page 308



 

• Legal 

30. This report contains comments from Procurement Officers where appropriate. 

• Crime and Disorder 

31. There are no crime and disorder implications. 

• Information Technology (IT) 

32. Option 2 would require the Council to pass its passenger database, including 
the contact details of all existing passengers, to a successful external bidder.  
Advice has been sought from Audit & Risk Management.  In this situation, the 
contractor would be a data processor working for the Council, which remains 
the data controller in the context of the Data Protection Act.  The contract would 
specify that the contractor could process the data for the purpose of fulfilling the 
contract and no other purpose. 

33. There are no other information technology implications. 

• Property 

34. There are no property implications. 

• Other 

35. There are no other implications. 

Risk Management 

36. In compliance with the Council’s risk management strategy, no significant risks 
have been identified arising from the recommendations. 

Contact Details 

 
Author: 

 
Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 

Paul Brand  
Transport Planner (Strategy) 
Transport Planning 
Tel No. 01904 551413 
 

Richard Wood 
Assistant Director (City Development & 
Transport) 
City Strategy 
 

 Report Approved ü Date 26 April 2010 

 
Specialist Implications Officer(s) 
Financial 
Patrick Looker 
Finance Manager, City Strategy 
Tel No.01904 551633 
 
Wards Affected:  List wards or tick box to indicate all All ü 

 
 

Page 309



 

For further information please contact the author of the report 
 
Background Papers: 

Report: “Transfer of Dial and Ride to York Wheels”, to meeting of Executive Member 
For Planning & Transport and Advisory Panel (17 June 2003). 

Annexes 

Annex A – Analysis of Options 

Page 310



 

Annex A – Analysis of Options 

Option 1 2 3 

Summary Renegotiate service level 
agreement Complete external tendering Bring the service wholly in-house 

 

Financial (to 
the Council) 

Positive Cost is known and likely to 
remain stable. 

Cost is more certain during the 
period of the contract. 

 

Negative There is no market testing to 
ensure that the Council receives 
value for money. 

At present, inflationary uplift is 
agreed on an annual basis and is 
not directly linked to any price 
index. 

Cost is uncertain and could vary 
at each re-tender.  Staff costs 
represent approximately 55% of 
total service costs. 

Staff costs are likely to be higher 
than at present and the Council 
would have to provide cover for 
periods of planned and 
unplanned staff leave. 

Staff costs would be brought into 
line with Council pay structures 
but this may not represent the 
best value for money.  There 
would be less scope for 
efficiencies than there might be 
with a commercial transport 
provider. 

Reputation Positive This option offers support to the 
voluntary sector provider whilst 
giving the service flexibility to 
develop to meet changing needs. 

  

P
age 311



 

Option 1 2 3 

Summary Renegotiate service level 
agreement Complete external tendering Bring the service wholly in-house 

 

Negative This option may be perceived as 
giving an unfair advantage to the 
voluntary sector over private 
sector operators. 

Depending on the outcome of the 
tendering exercise, a transfer of 
operation to a private sector 
provider could cause concern to 
service users. 

 

Support for 
the 
voluntary 
sector 

Positive This option provides guaranteed 
support to the voluntary sector 
and the flexibility for it to adapt 
services to best serve the local 
communities. 

This option could act as a 
catalyst to increased financial 
sustainability for the voluntary 
sector, increasing its ability and 
success at securing contract 
income to support its core 
services. 

 

Negative  York Wheels would lose a 
significant amount of its annual 
income if it is unsuccessful or 
decides not to bid. 

This option provides no benefit 
for York Wheels or the voluntary 
sector as a whole. 

Passenger 
service 

Positive Passengers would continue to 
benefit from the high level of 
service they receive from York 
Wheels’ staff. 

 This option continues the high 
level of service. 

P
age 312



 

Option 1 2 3 

Summary Renegotiate service level 
agreement Complete external tendering Bring the service wholly in-house 

 

Negative  This option could result in a 
poorer quality service, which 
could in turn lead to a loss of 
confidence for some passengers 
in making bookings and 
travelling. 

 

Ease of 
operation 

Positive There would be no disruption to 
the Dial & Ride service. 

This option offers the easiest 
operation, with one provider 
responsible for all aspects of the 
operation, with Council 
involvement reduced to service 
planning and contract 
management. 

This option offers the easiest 
operation of the Dial & Ride 
service on its own. 

Negative With the introduction of the peak 
rural bus service, York Wheels is 
unlikely to take on the delivery of 
this service, which will mean an 
additional external provider will 
need to be involved.  This will 
add complexity to overnight 
vehicle parking and handover 
arrangements between the two 
sets of drivers. 

 With the introduction of the peak 
rural bus service, the Council is 
unlikely to be able to take on the 
delivery of this service, which will 
mean an external provider will 
need to be involved.  This will 
add complexity to overnight 
vehicle parking and handover 
arrangements between the two 
sets of drivers. 

P
age 313



 

 

P
age 314



 

 

  
 

   

 
Decision Session – Executive Member for 
City Strategy 

11 May 2010 

 
Report of the Director of City Strategy 
 

An update on the progress made toward the introduction of 
integrated bus ticketing and the ‘Yorcard’ scheme 

Summary 

1. This report gives an update on the current position concerning the introduction 
of an integrated ticket for York and regional progress on the delivery of 
‘Yorcard’. 

Recommendations 

2. The Executive Member is asked to note the contents of this report: 

1) Support the continuation of work to support the introduction of both 
integrated and smart ticketing for bus passengers in York and specifically 
through work being undertaken as part of the Yorcard scheme. 

2) Agree to surveys being conducted to identify the demand for a multi-
operator bus ticket alongside a citizens’ panel survey. 

Reason: Both integrated and smart ticketing will encourage greater bus use 
and will make bus travel more affordable. 

Integrated ticketing 

3. Approximately seventy percent of the local bus network in York is operated by 
First West and North Yorkshire with the remainder of services being operated 
by Transdev (Transdev York & Yorkshire Coastliner), Arriva Yorkshire, EYMS, 
York Pullman and a handful of smaller operators linking York to parts of North 
Yorkshire. 

4. A motion was presented to Full Council on 29 November 2007 requesting that 
officers explore the means by which an integrated cross-city bus ticket could be 
introduced for York. 

5. A report was subsequently presented to the Executive on 9 September 2008 
outlining the means by which the Council could, working in partnership with the 
bus operators, introduce a multi-operator ticket. 

6. The expectation of most proponents of an ‘integrated’ ticket is that it would be 
similar to the Leeds ‘Metrocard’ or London ‘Travel-card’; accepted on all buses 

Agenda Item 9Page 315



 
in the City. Alternatives to this option, which would be easier and cheaper to 
introduce, do exist in the form of ‘through tickets’, ‘add-ons’ or ‘inter-available 
tickets’ which would, for instance, allow a bus passenger to travel with one 
ticket to make the following journeys: 

• Broadway, Fulford to York Hospital 

• Skelton to Monks Cross 

• Wheldrake to Clifton Moor 

7. Any of the integrated tickets described above could be delivered through one of 
the following: 

a. A paper based ticketing product purchased on-bus 

b. A card/paper based ticketing product purchased off-bus 

c. A ‘smart’ card ticketing product purchased off bus and verified on-bus 

8. The cost of each of the above would vary, with a) costing the least and c) 
costing the most, both in terms of issuing and management costs. The report of 
September 2008 forecast that the estimated cost of introducing a ‘smart’ ticket 
for York would be likely to be in the region of £2.7m in year 1. 

9. In the short term, the introduction of a paper based selection of ‘add on’ tickets 
or a multi-operator ticket is thought to be the most economically viable way 
forward. 

10. The most difficult barrier to introducing any form of integrated ticketing product 
is in gaining agreement from the bus operators who fear that such a product 
might damage their revenue flow and hence potentially de-stabilise the 
commercial viability of certain routes. 

11. If introduced correctly, evidence from other parts of the UK has demonstrated 
that an integrated ticketing product has the potential to grow the overall bus 
patronage market and would make cross-city bus travel a more attractive 
option.  

12. The Executive meeting of September 2008 resolved that whilst an integrated 
ticket was not necessarily deliverable for the whole of York in the short term, 
officers were requested to pursue the idea of establishing a cross ticketing 
regime on key high usage corridors serving destinations such as the Hospital 
and the University 

Progress 

13. A review of the origin and destination data gathered by Council bus monitoring 
staff on the tendered bus network was undertaken in 2009. The analysis 
suggested that the numbers of fare paying passengers using bus services 
provided by more than one operator were low. It should be noted, however, that 
the tendered bus network accounts for little more than fifteen percent of the 
total bus mileage operated in the York area and that a more comprehensive 
understanding of the commercial bus network was required.  

Page 316



 
14. Under the banner of York’s Quality Bus Partnership, a ticketing workshop was 

held with all of York’s bus operators on 23 March 2010 to establish how an 
integrated ticketing product might be introduced and what it would look like. 

15. All of the bus operators were broadly supportive of the introduction of an 
integrated ticket. Several, however, questioned whether the Council had 
sufficient evidence to support the cost of introduction1. Bus operators therefore 
agreed at the meeting on 23 March to work with Council officers to conduct a 
more wide-reaching survey of the commercial bus services in York (80%+ of 
the total network). In addition, a survey of both bus and non-bus users will be 
conducted through the Council’s ‘Talkabout’ citizen’s panel to understand what 
‘latent’ demand for integrated ticketing there might be. It is estimated that the 
cost of the surveys will be approximately £5,000. 

16. Both surveys will be undertaken during May/June with the results being 
reported back to the Summer meeting of the Quality Bus Partnership.  A 
decision will then be taken on which form of integrated ticket (or tickets) would 
best fit demand. 

17. Given the potential cost of the introduction of an integrated ticketing product, it 
is still unlikely that such a product would be affordable for the Council, unless 
financial support from local bus operators is forthcoming. 

18. In addition to wider integrated ticketing initiatives, Council officers have been 
working with a number of bus operators to introduce inter-available ticketing 
with implications for the following services: 

a. Routes 36 (York Pullman), 195 & 196 (EYMS). Due to the relatively 
infrequent level of service from the village, officers are working with the 
two bus operators to allow passengers boarding either bus in Elvington 
to use the return portion on either bus on return.  

b. Route 10, Poppleton to Stamford Bridge (via York). This service is 
operated on a commercial basis by First Group during the daytime and 
on a commercial basis by York Pullman in the evening. Officers are 
working with bus operators to encourage the introduction of a ‘Pullman 
return’, which would be cheaper than the cost of purchasing two single 
tickets. 

Yorcard 

19. Yorcard, as a concept and brand, is the property of South and West Yorkshire 
Passenger Transport Executives (PTEs) 

20. Yorcard is a smart ticketing product, which will be designed and will operate in 
accordance with agreed national standards (known as ITSO).  All of the 
smartcards issued as part of the Yorcard scheme will be ITSO compliant and 
will be useable in other areas of the country where ITSO compliant or 
compatible smart card ticketing has been introduced. 

                                            
1 The estimated set up cost of a paper-based product is comparatively low at £187,000 but would 
require a first year overall budget of £343,000 when revenue and pilot scheme costs are taken into 
account. 

Page 317



 
21. Any ITSO-compliant smart card system requires a back-office ‘HOPS’ (Host 

Operator Processing System) system. The Yorcard HOPS is currently in the 
process of being built.  

22. There are currently no, working, ITSO compliant or compatible smart ticketing 
products available anywhere in the Yorkshire region.  All of the English National 
Concessionary Travel Scheme (ENCTS) bus passes issued since April 2008 
are to ITSO standard, however. Once Yorcard has been introduced, any bus 
with an ITSO compliant ticket machine will be able to identify the pass. 

Yorcard trial 

23. The South Yorkshire PTE undertook an initial trial of the Yorcard, commencing 
in 2008 and lasting for a year.  The trial was rolled out on seven local bus 
services in Sheffield and one rail service (Doncaster to Sheffield) with the aim 
of producing a working concept, which could then be expanded into a region-
wide, interoperable, integrated ticket.  

24. The trial was brought to an end having proven that the smart technology 
worked, but that there was still a certain amount of work to be done before the 
product was to be rolled out across either of the two PTE areas or more widely. 

25. Council officers visited the trial scheme in August 2009 to understand how the 
product worked and to express York’s interest in being a part of any further 
expansion or roll out of the scheme. A meeting was subsequently convened by 
WYPTE and SYPTE with all of the regional non-PTE authorities (including City 
of York) in November 2009 to confirm that the PTEs would be keen to launch 
Yorcard on a regional basis. 

26. SYPTE and WYPTE would assist with the technological aspects of launching 
Yorcard, allowing neighbouring authorities to ‘buy in’ to the necessary back-
office infrastructure. It would, however, be the responsibility of the local 
authority to come to agreement with bus operators as to how their buses would 
be fitted with the necessary technology. Furthermore, it would be the 
responsibility of the local authority to work with bus operators to develop any 
form of single or multi-operator bus pass for their area. 

Funding 

27. In December 2009, the Department for Transport (‘DfT’) announced that the six 
PTEs and a further three Local Authorities (Bristol, Nottingham with 
Nottinghamshire & Leicester with Leicestershire) would be able to make 
applications to receive funding from a fund of £20m to support the 
implementation of smart ticketing. A maximum sum of £4.4m to be spent in 
2009/10 and 2010/11 was made available for SYPTE and WYPTE. 

28. The funding was targeted specifically at the major urban areas to ensure that 
funding is used to provide infrastructure that can deliver the most benefit as 
quickly as possible. The DfT anticipates that by 2012, the Yorkshire and 
Humber will have a region-wide smart card and that by 2020, smart cards will 
be available nationwide. 

Page 318



 
29. The SYPTE and WYPTE application to DfT for funding splits the proposed 

delivery of Yorcard into two phases. Funding for the first phase has been 
confirmed and will deliver a back office platform to enable the following 

- ENCTS (concessionary ticketing) reimbursement 

- Multi-operator ticketing 

30. An ITSO HOPS for the Yorkshire region has been purchased and is expected 
to be available for use from Summer 2010. 

31. The budget also allows for the development of ITSO-compatible equipment 
which could be purchased by smaller bus operators across the region. 

32. As confirmed at the meeting of 24 November, the back-office HOPS will be 
made available to authorities outside the PTE areas for a fee (yet to be 
determined by SYPTE and WYPTE). 

33. In addition to the contribution City of York Council would have to make to the 
Yorcard HOPS, it would also be responsible for funding and marketing any local 
ticketing initiatives it wished to introduce. 

34. Funding for the second phase of Yorcard is pending but may be subject to a 
post-election review. The second phase of the scheme will facilitate the 
introduction of a ‘pay-as-you go’ function. 

35. In addition to the Yorcard scheme, First Group is working toward the 
introduction of a company specific back office framework. This will enable the 
company to sell First-specific smart ticketing products. 

36. The Council has been advised that First’s buses in York are likely to be fitted 
with such machines no later than 2012. 

Consultation  

37. Ongoing discussions have been held with both South and West Yorkshire PTEs 
as well as with First Group to best understand how York will become smart. 
This should start to happen no later than 2012. 

38. Progress is being made toward the introduction of one or several integrated bus 
ticketing products, which could be used on all bus services in York. 

39. The non-ruling groups’ spokespersons have been consulted over the options 
presented in this report.  No responses had been received at the time that this 
report was published. 

Corporate Objectives 

40. These proposals relate to the following Council’s corporate priorities and 
objectives: 

a. Sustainable City.  Both integrated ticketing and Yorcard will encourage 
modal shift away from private car journeys.   

Page 319



 
b. Safer City.  The introduction of smart ticketing will reduce the amounts 

of cash carried on bus and by members of the public. Further, an 
integrated ticket would reduce the length of passenger waiting time at 
bus stops as they could board the first bus that arrived rather than 
waiting for the company that they have a ticket for. 

c. Inclusive City.  Integrated ticketing enables individuals to board any 
bus rather than restricting them to the use of certain buses. The 
introduction of Yorcard will provide the travelling public with a wider 
range of ticketing possibilities. 

Implications 

41.  

• Financial – The £5,000 required to conduct surveys to establish demand 
for a multi-operator ticket has been identified from within the existing 
budget. No further commitment for funding is required at this stage. 

• Human Resources (HR) - none 

• Equalities - none     

• Legal - none 

• Crime and Disorder - none        

• Information Technology (IT)  - None at this stage and it is unlikely that 
CYC IT would be impacted by the introduction of the Yorcard scheme.  

• Property - none 

Risk Management 

42. A modest risk to the reputation of the Council has been identified should the 
Yorcard project fail. The project is set in a regional context, however, so it is 
likely that any impact would be more likely to be experienced at this, higher 
level. 

43. The above risk and any other potential risks associated with the introduction of 
the Yorcard have been measured in terms of impact and likelihood using the 
Council’s risk management system. The risk score for the recommendation is 
less than 16 and thus, in line with the risk management system, at this point the 
risks need only to be monitored, as they do not provide a real threat to the 
achievement of the objectives of this report. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 320



 
Contact Details 

Author    Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 

Andrew Bradley  
Principal Transport Planner 
(Operations) 
Transport Planning 
Tel No. 1404 
 

Richard Wood 
Assistant Director (City Development & 
Transport) 
City Strategy 
 
Report Approved ü Date 21/4/10 

    
 

Specialist Implications Officer(s)  List information for all 
Implication: Financial                              
Name: Patrick Looker 
 Title: Finance Manager                                                             
Tel No: 1633                                                        
 

Wards Affected:  List wards or tick box to indicate all All ü 
 

For further information please contact the author of the report 
 

Page 321



Page 322

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

  
 

   

 
Decision Session  
- Executive Member for City Strategy 

11th May 2010 

 
Report of the Director of City Strategy 

 

City of York’s Local Transport Plan 3 - Amended consultation / 
preparation strategy for LTP3 

Summary 

1. This report presents and seeks approval of the revised approach for 
progressing the preparation of LTP3, due to the calling-in of the Executive 
Member’s (provisional) Decision on 2nd March 2010 for undertaking the LTP3 
Stage 2 Consultation. In particular it 

• Sets out the process for engaging with stakeholders and the public for 
informing policy development within LTP3, in lieu of the Stage 2 
consultation, and 

• Sets out the modified Stage 3 consultation on the draft ‘Framework’ LTP3. 

Recommendations 

2. That the Executive Member for City Strategy is recommended to: 

i. Note the content of the report, particularly Annex A which sets-out the 
revised approach for preparing and adopting LTP3, by 31st March 2011. 

ii. Approve the revised approach at Annex A. 

Reason: To enable the effective preparation and adoption of the city’s Local 
Transport Plan 3, before the current LTP expires on 31st March 2011. 

Background 

Duty, guidance and influences for producing LTP3 

3. The duty to produce LTP3 and the guidance for preparing it were previously 
reported to Decision Session, Executive Member City Strategy (DSEMCS) on 
1st September, 2009. 

4. Some of the key points in the guidance, relevant to undertaking consultation for 
LTP3, are: 

Agenda Item 10Page 323



 

• Local authorities are accountable to their communities rather than to the 
Department for Transport (DfT) for both the quality of the transport 
strategies prepared and for ensuring effective delivery; 

• Local authorities need to have a clear view of their own strategic goals and 
their priorities for dealing with the different challenges they face, and  

• The duty, introduced in the Local Government and Public Involvement in 
Health Act 2007, to involve citizens in local decision making and service 
provision.  

 
LTP3 Consultation process and factors leading to a new approach 
 

5. At  DSEMCS on 20th October 2009, a three-stage consultation strategy 
(summarised in Table 1) for preparing the City of York’s LTP3 was approved.  

Table 1 - LTP3 Consultation Strategy (summarised) as approved at 
DSEMCS on 20 October 2009 

Consultation 
stage 

Timescale Consultation / communication methods 
and consultees 

Issues and 
priorities 

Oct. 2009 to 
Jan. 2010 

Citywide consultation leaflet / questionnaire, 
focus groups/workshops, public 
exhibitions/events and Council website. 

Options and 
consequences 

Apr. 2010 to 
May 2010 

 

Citywide consultation leaflet / questionnaire 
in April issue of ‘Your City’, focus groups / 
workshops public exhibitions/events and 
Council website 

Draft LTP3 Sep 2010 to 
Oct. 2010 

 

Reference copies of Draft LTP3 plus leaflets 
/ questionnaires available in Council offices, 
libraries and leisure centres etc., focus 
groups / workshops, ward committee 
meetings, public exhibitions/events and 
Council website 

 

6. The responses from the Stage 1 consultation, together with the proposed 
options and actions to form the basis of the Stage 2 consultation were 
contained within a report to DSEMCS, on 2 March 2010. 

7. Once this report had been made public, three Members called-in the report 
(decision). In view of this the Executive Member’s decision at DSEMCS was a 
provisional one, subject to further recommendations from the Executive 
(Calling-in) on 9th March 2010. 

8. The calling-in of the Executive Member’s decision was considered by the SMC 
(Calling-in) meeting on 8 March 2010. At this meeting Officers confirmed that 
Annex C (Evaluation of ‘Intermediate’ (10-year) Strategy options against 
strategic objectives) in the DSEMCS report would be simplified for the actual 
consultation document. Furthermore, Members questioned details of timescales 
for the availability of the traffic congestion survey, print deadlines and the timing 

Page 324



 

for distribution of the LTP3 questionnaire. Officers expressed concern at any 
lengthy delays, which could affect the March 2011 deadline for issuing LTP3. 

 
9. SMC (Calling-in) resolved the report be referred back to the Executive Member 

with a recommendation that the consultation be delayed until after the General 
Election and with the request that: 

• The final draft consultation questionnaire be sent out to members of the 
Traffic Congestion Ad Hoc Scrutiny Committee for their comments, and 

• Officers prepare a timeline of indicative dates to meet the final Strategy 
deadline of March 2011. 

 
10. The SMC (Calling-in) decision was subsequently considered at Executive 

(Calling In) on 9 March, 2010. It resolved: 

(i) That public consultation on LTP be suspended until after the General 
Election has taken place. 

(ii) That Officers report to a future Executive Member Decision Session on the 
implications for the LTP preparation timetable of the SMC’s 
recommendation. 

 
The new approach 

11. A diagrammatic representation of the revised approach to preparing and 
consulting on LTP3 is contained at Annex A, and described further below. 
 

Stage 1 – Issues and priorities 

12. The Stage 1 ‘Issues and Priorities’ consultation, undertaken in winter 2009/2010 
comprised of a citywide leaflet/questionnaire supplemented by a series of 
stakeholder workshops and other ‘informative’ meetings with various groups. 
The consultation sought to: 

• Discuss the way in which York might change over the next 20 years 
(setting the context);  

• Identify transport challenges for the future 
• Generate potential solutions (actions) 
 

13. Over 12,000 questionnaire responses were received and the workshops / other 
meetings provided more feedback. 

14. The outcomes of the stage 1 consultation have been used to inform the next 
stage (stage 2) of the plan’s preparation. 

 
Stage 2 -  Options and implications assessment (present position in preparing 
the plan) 

15. Waiting until after the General Election to undertake a citywide public 
consultation, would delay the release of a questionnaire, originally programmed 
to be distributed with the April 2010 edition of Your city, to the June edition. 

Page 325



 

Consequently, undertaking a full public consultation in summer 2010 and 
reporting-back thereon would cause the latter stages of the preparation 
process, including consultation on a draft ‘Framework’ LTP3 to be compressed 
too much to be of value. This could, ultimately, adversely affect the quality of 
the resultant LTP3. 

16. It is intended, therefore, to engage with stakeholders and the public, through a 
‘dialogue’, to contribute evidence and to inform the draft ‘Framework’ LTP3. 
This is a key ‘iterative’ stage in transforming the outcome of the consultation on 
the issues that York faces in the future (Stage 1 consultation) into a 
comprehensive evidence-based strategy, with supporting policies and actions in 
LTP3 for the short-term and into the longer term. 

17. The dialogue will consist of: 

(i) Workshops and focus groups, similar to those convened for the Stage 1 
consultation. 

(ii) An interactive web-based forum 

18. The ‘dialogue’ is due to take place over a 2-month period between May and 
June 2010, to complement the evidence gathering and policy development work 
that has been ongoing since January 2010. It is intended that the options 
presented at DSEMCS on 02 March 2010, (simplified and augmented with other 
information, and targeted questions as appropriate), will form the basis of the 
‘dialogue’. 

19. The ‘dialogue’ will provide the opportunity for stakeholders and other interested 
parties to: 
• Provide further comment on the context, challenges and potential actions 

identified in the Stage 1 consultation  
• Supplement the existing evidence base where more evidence or other 

information / view is required on any issue / topic identified through the 
Stage 1 consultation and/or subsequent evidence gathering and policy 
development work (i.e. targeted additional evidence gathering). 

• Help identify which transport measures / interventions would be most 
effective in tackling the challenges York faces. 

 
20. The outcomes of the ‘dialogue’, together with previous consultation outcomes, 

other evidence gathered, and policy development work undertaken, will be 
subsequently analysed and evaluated to shape the draft ‘Framework’ LTP3. 
Due consideration of the output from the Traffic Congestion Ad–hoc Scrutiny 
Committee’s ‘Tackling Traffic Congestion in York’ work – including the residents 
survey results - will be undertaken at this stage, either as part of the evaluation, 
or (if the results are available in time) discussed within the ‘dialogue’.  

Stage 3 - Draft ‘Framework’ LTP3 

21. The Government has already stated, through its guidance for producing LTPs 
(LTP3) (see also DSEMCS 1 September 2009) that the Department for 
Transport (DfT) will no longer formally assess LTPs. This is a departure from 

Page 326



 

the process for producing LTP2, whereby both the ‘Provisional’ and ‘Full’ plans 
were assessed, and the assessment had a material effect on funding. 

22. There is insufficient time to produce a fully detailed draft LTP3 (similar to the 
Provisional LTP2) for consultation, so it is intended to issue a draft ‘Framework’ 
LTP3 for consultation in September and October 2010.  

23. The draft ‘Framework’ LTP3 will: 

• Present an overview of the key local, regional and national policies that 
influence and are influenced by transport; 

• Present the critical evidence used to determine the vision, strategy, policies 
and actions in LTP3; 

• Contain a proposed vision and long-term (20-year) transport strategy for 
York; 

• Establish the key spatial priorities for transport (to support the Local 
Development Framework) 

• Set-out the proposed medium-term strategic approach for working towards 
realising the long-term strategy, and  

• Set-out the proposed short-to-medium-term (costed) actions, based on best 
knowledge of likely future funding, and the likely effectiveness of different 
measures for tackling the challenges York faces. 

 
24. The original consultation strategy proposed various means for consulting on the 

Draft LTP3, including via attendance at ward committees (see Table 1). 
However, due to the delay in undertaking stage 2 it will no longer be possible to 
do this in the remaining time available for undertaking the consultation on the 
draft ‘Framework’ LTP3. Instead, Officer attended exhibitions in council offices 
and at various locations in the city, using the Mobile Exhibition Unit, will be 
utilised. 

25. A form will be made available for attendees to the exhibitions to give their 
feedback on the draft framework (with a focus on the priorities, strategy and 
actions). This form will also incorporate the proposed options for extending 
20 mph speed limits in order to gauge the level of support for them. The same 
form will be distributed to residents, city-wide, for them to give their feedback 
too. 

26. Advance notification of the ‘dialogue’ and consultation on the draft ‘Framework’ 
LTP3 will be given via articles in Your City, Your Ward publications and 
messages on the Council’s web-site. 

27. The responses to the consultation on the draft ‘Framework’ LTP3 will be 
analysed by November 2010. The key messages arising from this analysis will 
be reported to DSEMCS on 7th December 2010, for agreement on what action 
should be taken to refine the framework document into a draft of the ‘Full’ LTP3. 

Stage 4 - Preparing and issuing the ‘Full’ LTP3 

28. It is intended to present the draft ‘Full’ LTP 3 to Executive in January 2011. 
Efforts will also be made to make use of any opportunity (such as at Council 
2011 Budget Consultation) to include a small number of questions, for obtaining 

Page 327



 

(and acting upon, as appropriate) residents’ feedback on the draft ‘Full’ LTP3 
before it is considered by Executive and full Council. 

29.  A period of approximately 13 weeks has been programmed from the LTP3 
being presented to Executive to allow sufficient time for incorporating any 
amendments (from Executive resolution) before subsequent adoption by full 
Council and, ultimately, its issue by 31 March 2011. 

Corporate Objectives 

30. LTP3 is a cross-cutting document that encompasses and contributes to all of 
the council’s outward facing corporate priorities. 

Implications 

31. This report has the following implications: 

• Financial – There are likely to be revenue costs in the order of £14,000 for 
undertaking the consultations as proposed in this revised approach for 
preparing LTP3. This will consist of: 
• £3,500 for the ‘dialogue’ 
• £23,000 for the draft ‘Framework’ LTP3 (inc. 11,500 for feedback) 
 
This represents a saving in the order of £3,000 in comparison to the original 
approach as set-out in the consultation strategy presented at DSEMCS on 
20th October 2009 
 

• Human Resources (HR) – The Transport Planning Unit will arrange and 
coordinate the engagement ‘dialogue’ and consultation on the Draft 
‘Framework’ LTP3 with support from Marketing and Communications.  

• Equalities – LTP3 will be subject to an Equalities Impact Assessment. 

• Legal – There are no implications at present. 

• Crime and Disorder – There are no implications at present. 

• Information Technology (IT) – An interactive website will need to be set-up 
for the on-line forum.  

• Property – There are no implications at present. 

• Sustainability – It is anticipated that LTP3 will develop and implement 
sustainable transport solutions. 

• Other – No comments. 

Risk Management 

32. In compliance with the Council’s Risk Management Strategy the main risk 
associated with preparing LTP3 is a ‘reputation’ risk due to: 

Page 328



 

• the Council not undertaking consultations on LTP3 in compliance with 
Government Guidance, and / or 

• failing to adopt and issue an LTP3 before the current LTP (LTP2) expires. 

33. This could, ultimately, undermine the validity of the LTP3 produced. 

34. Measured in terms of likelihood and impact, the likelihood is remote and the 
impact is Major. The risk score for the recommendation is, therefore, less than 
16 and thus at this point the risks need only to be monitored as they do not 
provide a real threat to the achievement of the objectives of this report. 

35. The extensive and inclusive nature of the consultations undertaken to date have 
been well received by stakeholders and government agencies. If the same 
extensive and inclusive approach is carried forward into the engagement 
‘dialogue’ for informing policy and measures within a draft ’Framework LTP3, 
and the subsequent consultation thereon, the risks will not be any greater than 
predicted. 

Ward Member comments 

36. Not appropriate at this stage. 

Non Ruling Group Spokespersons' comments 

37. Non-ruling group spokespersons have been contacted, but no responses have 
been received to date. 

Contact Details 

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 
Ian Stokes 
Principal Transport Planner 
Transport Planning Unit 
Ext. 1429 
 

Richard Wood 
Assistant Director (City Development & 
Transport) 
City Strategy 
Report Approved ü Date 26 April 2010 
 
    

Wards Affected All ü 

 
For further information please contact the author of the report 
 
Background Papers: 
 
Guidance for the publication of LTP3, DfT, July 2009 
Decisions Session, Executive Member City Strategy 1st September 2009, Item 11 
Decisions Session, Executive Member City Strategy 20th October  2009, Item 12 
Decisions Session, Executive Member City Strategy 2nd March 2010, Item 5 
Scrutiny Management Committee (Calling In) 8th March, 2010, Item 4 
Executive (Calling In) 9th March, 2010,  
 
 

Page 329



 

Annexes 
Annex A  Revised approach to preparing / consulting on LTP3 

Page 330



Annex A 

 

Revised approach to preparing/consulting on LTP3

Issue Approach Timescale

Stage 1 Consultation – ‘issues and priorities’

Nov 2009 - Jan. 2010

Identify and prioritise 
the challenges and 
the potential actions 
to tackle them

City-wide consultation -
‘2010 Budget 
Consultation’ and 
‘Towards a new Local 
Transport Plan for York’

. Stakeholder 
workshops 
(inc. Members)

Analyse and evaluate 
Responses

Report responses & present 
broad options to Executive 
Member City Strategy

Stage 2 Options and Implications Assessment

Identify broad 
strategy and options 
for further 
assessment

Other ‘informative’ meetings / 
focus groups (e.g. WoW Board, 
QBP etc.)

Feb 2010

Mar 2010
Traffic and 
Congestion Ad-hoc 
Scrutiny Committee 
‘Tackling Traffic 
Congestion in York’ 
consultation 

Feb - Mar 2010

Stakeholder 
workshops 
(inc. 
Members)

Approve approach 
EMDS 11 May 2010 
(prep report 12 Apr)

May - Jun 2010

Analysis and 
evaluation

Sifting / 
refinement of 
options

Stage 3 – Consultation on draft ‘Framework’ LTP3

Jun - Jul  2010

Present outline 
proposals and 
evidence

Hard copy and  
exhibition (Council 
Offices & Libraries)

Web 
Site

Mobile 
Exhibition 
unit

Sep  - Oct  2010

Analysis and evaluation

Present  LTP3 to Executive

Issue LTP3

Amend as 
required Present  LTP3 to Full Council

Print

EMDS 07 Dec 2010 
(prep report 08 Nov)

Feb 2011

Jan 2011

Prepare draft 
‘Framework’  
LTP3

Devise 
Options

Oct  2010

Present  Responses to Executive 
Member City Strategy

Feb – Mar 2011
Mar 2011

Prepare ‘Full’ LTP3

Issue full LTP3

Feb 2010

WE ARE HERE

Gather 
evidence

Other 
‘informative’ 
meetings / 
focus groups

Policy 
Development 

+

Mar 2010

Further Policy 
Development 

Policy 
Development

Approve draft 
Framework LTP3 

EMDS 07 Sep  2010 
(prep report 09 Aug)

Interactive 
web forum

‘THE DIALOGUE’

Prepare draft 
‘Full’  LTP3

Nov – Dec 2010

Stage 4 – Prepare ‘Full’ LTP3

Citywide 
Residents’ 
Feedback

Revised approach to preparing/consulting on LTP3

Issue Approach Timescale

Stage 1 Consultation – ‘issues and priorities’

Nov 2009 - Jan. 2010

Identify and prioritise 
the challenges and 
the potential actions 
to tackle them

City-wide consultation -
‘2010 Budget 
Consultation’ and 
‘Towards a new Local 
Transport Plan for York’

. Stakeholder 
workshops 
(inc. Members)

Analyse and evaluate 
Responses

Report responses & present 
broad options to Executive 
Member City Strategy

Stage 2 Options and Implications Assessment

Identify broad 
strategy and options 
for further 
assessment

Other ‘informative’ meetings / 
focus groups (e.g. WoW Board, 
QBP etc.)

Feb 2010

Mar 2010
Traffic and 
Congestion Ad-hoc 
Scrutiny Committee 
‘Tackling Traffic 
Congestion in York’ 
consultation 

Feb - Mar 2010

Stakeholder 
workshops 
(inc. 
Members)

Approve approach 
EMDS 11 May 2010 
(prep report 12 Apr)

May - Jun 2010

Analysis and 
evaluation

Sifting / 
refinement of 
options

Stage 3 – Consultation on draft ‘Framework’ LTP3

Jun - Jul  2010

Present outline 
proposals and 
evidence

Hard copy and  
exhibition (Council 
Offices & Libraries)

Web 
Site

Mobile 
Exhibition 
unit

Sep  - Oct  2010

Analysis and evaluation

Present  LTP3 to Executive

Issue LTP3

Amend as 
required Present  LTP3 to Full Council

Print

EMDS 07 Dec 2010 
(prep report 08 Nov)

Feb 2011

Jan 2011

Prepare draft 
‘Framework’  
LTP3

Devise 
Options

Oct  2010

Present  Responses to Executive 
Member City Strategy

Feb – Mar 2011
Mar 2011

Prepare ‘Full’ LTP3

Issue full LTP3

Feb 2010

WE ARE HERE

Gather 
evidence

Other 
‘informative’ 
meetings / 
focus groups

Policy 
Development 

+

Mar 2010

Further Policy 
Development 

Policy 
Development

Approve draft 
Framework LTP3 

EMDS 07 Sep  2010 
(prep report 09 Aug)

Interactive 
web forum

‘THE DIALOGUE’

Prepare draft 
‘Full’  LTP3

Nov – Dec 2010

Stage 4 – Prepare ‘Full’ LTP3

Citywide 
Residents’ 
Feedback

Page 331



Page 332

This page is intentionally left blank



   DECISION SESSION – EXECUTIVE MEMBER FOR CITY STRATEGY 
 

TUESDAY 11 MAY 2010 
 

Annex 1 of Additional Comments received from Members and residents since the agenda was published. 
 

Agenda Item 6  
Blossom Street Multi Modal Scheme – Consultation Results; Analysis of Network Implications and Option Selection 
(Page 255) 
 
A number of comments have been received from members of the Cycling City York Major Infrastructure Group regarding the  
Preferred Option.  These have been combined (where duplicated) and are summarised below, including an Officer’s response: 

 
 
Comment Officer’s response 

1.  Disappointing that the 
preferred scheme appears to 
confirm that car drivers are still 
top priority, despite the Hierarchy 
of Users - where pedestrians and 
cyclists etc should be considered 
first.  The scheme does not make 
a serious step towards promoting 
modal shift for a low-carbon 
transport arrangement. 
 

Significant improvements have been made for pedestrians within the 
Preferred Option.  Significant improvements (on the current layout) 
have also been made for cyclists.  However, this can not (and 
should not) be done at the complete expense of the efficient 
operation of the road network, especially at such an important 
junction. 
 
With frequent buses using this street from the proposed relocated 
and enlarged Askham Bar and new Poppleton P&R sites, we should not 
make any alterations which could potentially cause increased bus 
journey times than at present - which would potentially discourage 
people from using the service as an alternative to their own 
private vehicles. 
 
Although of course the Hierarchy needs consideration, so also does the Traffic 
Management Act 2004, which gives the council a duty to “effectively manage the highway 
network in order to avoid, reduce or minimise congestion or disruption on the highway 
network for all road users”. 
 

2.  The decision (to keep 5 traffic 
lanes) should not be based solely 
on the result of a public 
consultation.  Drivers will always 
vote in their own interests. 

The main decision to retain 5 traffic lanes in the Preferred Option was due to the results of 
the micro-simulation modelling which showed that any reduction in lanes significantly 
increased queue lengths elsewhere in the network (due to the key position of this particular 
junction) and which also caused vehicles to re-route through South Bank. 
 

A
genda A

nnex
P

age 333



3.  Wholly inadequate 
improvements for cycle-users 
considering that this is a Cycling 
City scheme. 
 

This scheme is a multi-modal safety improvement scheme for all users and is not solely for 
cyclists.  Only a fraction of the cost of implementing this scheme would be potentially 
coming from the Cycling City grant, with the majority from the Local Transport Plan. 
 

4.  Fails to address the 
intimidating environment faced by 
outbound cyclists on Blossom 
Street.  A central outbound cycle 
lane would be preferable. 
 

With the new cycle pre-signal from Queen Street, cyclists should be clear of the Queen 
Street junction and in the correct lane positioning by the time the rest of the traffic follows. 
 
The decision not to put the outbound cycle feeder lane between the two traffic lanes was 
made after considering the many comments received from the public consultation where 
the public said that they would feel intimidated cycling between two lanes of traffic.  In 
addition, a central cycle feeder lane would need to be significantly wider than 1.0 metre and 
there is insufficient scope to narrow the traffic lanes at this location to accommodate this 
measure. 
 

5.  The positioning of the inbound 
cycle (feeder) lane encourages 
cyclists to take up a dangerous 
position. 
 

Again, much of the public stated that a cycle lane between two traffic lanes would be 
intimidating and that they would prefer to be adjacent to the kerb. 
 
In addition, having the inbound cycle feeder lane in the position it is proposed means that 
the three traffic lanes are displaced 1 metre further from the kerb, meaning that large and 
articulated vehicles (including buses) would be able to make the left turn into Queen Street 
without straddling two lanes like at present. 
 

6.  1.0 metre cycle (feeder) lanes 
are sub-standard and a token 
gesture to cyclists.  These should 
be 1.5 metres as a minimum. 
 

A series of cycle infrastructure standards for York were approved by the Executive Member 
at the     20 October 2009 Decision Session.  These contained guidance that cycle feeder 
lanes could be 1.0 metre wide where these were on carriageways of limited width and 
where queuing vehicles often blocked cyclists from reaching an advanced stop line at the 
front of the traffic. 
 

7.  Space for widened cycle lanes 
should be taken from the traffic 
lanes or from the footways / 
cobbled areas. 
 

Proposed traffic lane widths throughout the scheme area are already at the minimum 
advisable, especially for a main arterial route used by large vehicles and many buses.  Any 
further reduction in these widths may compromise safety. 
 
There are large numbers of pedestrians who use the footways and also there are 
significant costs associated with moving kerbs and drainage etc.  Therefore Officers 
worked within the ‘footprint’ of the current carriageway dimensions. 
 
Conservation groups and local residents have strongly objected to any proposal to widen 
the carriageway at the expense of the cobbled areas.  Furthermore on investigation, there 
are a large number of utilities positioned beneath the cobbles which would potentially need 

P
age 334



expensive diversionary work if we included this suggestion.  
 

8.  Positive reaction to the ‘head 
start’ signal for cyclists emerging 
from Queen Street. 
 

 - 
 

9.  Support the extension of the 
feeder lane by-passing The 
Mount bus-gate, which is often 
blocked by buses. 
 

 - 
 

10.  A Keep Clear under 
Micklegate Bar will not be 
obeyed.  Traffic signals north of 
the Bar (similar arrangement to 
Monk Bar) would be the best 
solution. 
 

As set out in the report under paragraph 80, a Keep Clear at this 
location is not appropriate. 
 
The situation at Micklegate Bar is not the same as at Monk Bar (where the configuration of 
the traffic through the arches is different).  Also, with traffic emerging from Bar Lane/Toft 
Green onto Micklegate just a few metres north of the Bar, traffic signals here would be very 
problematic.  Furthermore they would require ‘scheduled monument consent’ which would 
take a long period of time.  However, if required, traffic signals could be retrofitted to this 
area at any time in the future if deemed an appropriate measure. 
 

11.  Any cycle lane should be 
bounded by kerbs on the traffic 
side, to prevent blocking by 
vehicles. 
 

This would not be advisable as it would prevent cyclists from moving out of a cycle lane, 
across traffic lanes, to correctly position themselves at junctions. 
 

12.  The Lowther Terrace 
alternative route will only benefit 
a limited number of cyclists from 
Holgate Road, but is of no use to 
cyclists travelling onto Micklegate 
and Nunnery Lane. 
 

With 87% of the public in favour of the Lowther Terrace/York Station route, it is obviously a 
popular proposal and will be well used. 
 
As set out in paragraphs 67 to 70 within the report, an alternative route already exists for 
those cyclists wishing to access Nunnery Lane and Ouse Bridge without needing to use 
Blossom Street.  This route will be well signposted and promoted.  
 

13.  Why was the following 
reported within the report, when it 
has no foundation (as neither are 
a legal requirement)?: 
“11% of comments received were 
regarding cyclists not respecting 

It is correct that there is no legal requirement for cyclists to use a cycle lane when one is 
provided, nor to wear mandatory high visibility clothing. 
 
However, this sentence (taken from paragraph 19 of the report) was merely reporting the 
outcome of the public consultation and the views expressed.  It would not be appropriate 
for Officers to selectively omit comments which many local residents had expressed. 

P
age 335



the laws of the road, including not 
using cycle lanes and not 
wearing high visibility clothing.” 
 

 

14.  Opportunity to include cycle 
lanes on Holgate Road. 
 

Carriageway widths allowing, this could certainly be considered during further detailed 
design of the scheme. 
 

15.  Cars parked on double 
yellow lines on narrow strip of 
cobbles outside KFC are a 
problem and usually stick out into 
road.  Cobbled gutter in same 
area exacerbates the problem for 
cyclists. 
 

It is acknowledged that this is an issue.  As well as increased enforcement of the parking 
restrictions, other means of preventing illegal parking in this location is currently being 
considered.  This includes the use of bollards or the planting of small street trees within the 
cobbles. 
 

 
AGENDA 
ITEM 

REPORT RECEIVED FROM COMMENTS 

6 Blossom Street Multi 
Modal Scheme – 
Consultation Results; 
Analysis of Network 
Implications and Option 
Selection (continued) 
(Page 255) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Blossom Street Multi 
Modal Scheme – 

Paul Hepworth
CTC  
North Yorkshire. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The inbound side of Blossom Street does not present major 
difficulties for experienced and confident cyclists. 
  
The outbound side is a greater dilemma, for cyclists intending to turn 
right into the A59 Holgate Road. Their correct positioning is on the 
LH side of the offside lane. But this causes them to often experience 
a "Charge of the Light Brigade" syndrome, with fast moving vehicles 
to the left and to the right.   
  
Drivers in the nearside lane will often temporarily encroach onto the 
offside lane, to overtake cyclists in the nearside lane. Also to avoid 
vehicles that are being manoeuvred to/from the cobblestone 
margins of the outbound carriageway. 
  
All this requires a high degree of awareness and confident, 
defensive cycling. 
  
If space is limited, then I prefer that priority is given to achieving a 
centre outbound cycle lane. This may well require 
expenditure whose timescale and budget is beyond the scope of the 
current Cycling City project. It could involve relocating the existing 
physical centre islands, plus some take from the wide, inbound 

P
age 336



AGENDA 
ITEM 

REPORT RECEIVED FROM COMMENTS 

Consultation Results; 
Analysis of Network 
Implications and Option 
Selection (continued) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Tony Smalley 
North Yorkshire 
Police, 
Traffic Management 
Office 
 

footpath and cobbled carriageway margins on the outbound side. 
  
Re the outbound side of Micklegate Bar. I support any practicable 
moves to help outbound cyclists reach the outbound ASL from 
Micklegate into Blossom Street. I'm not convinced that Box junction 
markings will be effective, and my thoughts tend toward a Monkbar-
style solution, with a motor vehicle stop line and traffic lights on the 
immediate approach to Micklegate Bar, serving outbound flows from 
both Micklegate and Toft Green.   
 All the above could involve underground utilities being relocated, 
plus Planning/Heritage considerations.  
  
If the present Cycling England budget cannot achieve this "gold-
plated" solution, then it may be better to use it for a feasibility study, 
with separate funding bid from e.g. LTP3. Hopefully that would still 
enable CoYC to present Cycling England with a demonstrably 
beneficial outcome. 
  
I will of course defer to the decision of Members, and through them 
the accepted Officers recommendations. 
 
Consideration should be given to the issues raised in the Stage 1 
Road Safety Audit. We are concerned that all the proposals put 
forward result in significant safety issues that are not present with 
the current road layout. They will also result in an increase in the 
perception of danger to all road users.  
 

 

P
age 337



P
age 338

T
his page is intentionally left blank



   DECISION SESSION – EXECUTIVE MEMBER FOR CITY STRATEGY 
 

TUESDAY 11 MAY 2010 
 

Annex 2 of Additional Comments received from Members and residents since the agenda was published. 
 

 
AGENDA 
ITEM 

REPORT RECEIVED FROM COMMENTS 

4 PROW – Preparation of 
Definitive Map former 
County Borough of York 
(Guildhall, Fishergate 
and Micklegate Wards) 
(Page 11) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cllr D Merrett 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Officers comments 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cllr D Merrett 
 
 

Public Right of Way Nos 24 
Further to previous exchanges, I took a walk down this path the 
other day to remind myself of the situation regarding the gating 
issue. The path doesn't go through the alloments at all, but skirts 
well behind them, as I previously indicated. You will see from the 
attached photos 141 - 142  << File: DSC00141.JPG >>  << File: 
DSC00142.JPG >> that there is a gate forming an entrance off the 
path into the back of the Law College, which I mentioned, and which 
is certainly closed at times, but in no way obstructs the railway path. 
Photos 143 - 145  << File: DSC00143.JPG >>  << File: 
DSC00144.JPG >>  << File: DSC00145.JPG >> show the south end 
of the path, where there is a full vehicle gate, but also showing that 
as far as cyclists and walkers there is a separate side access which 
is no gated and allows free access at all times as was my previous 
recollection. I hope this will now allow you to bring this path back 
with a recommendation to agree it's declaration. 
 
Many thanks for your e-mail.  I appreciate that you have taken the 
time and trouble to visit the site and photograph the route, however 
photographic evidence on its own is not sufficiently strong enough 
on which to base a decision to make an Order.  Evidence of usage 
and archival evidence such as the Enclosure Awards and OS maps 
are the primary sources, photographs can help in support of this and 
record a moment in time.  The information that you have sent to me 
has been filed and will be analysed when the later stages of the 
process commence. 
 
Do understand that, but that was the previous point I was making - 
that whilst I only use this footpath infrequently, I have done so since 
it opened in the 1980s and have never not been able to go through - 

A
genda A

nnex
P

age 339



AGENDA 
ITEM 

REPORT RECEIVED FROM COMMENTS 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cllr D Merrett 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Officers comments 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

i.e. it has been open and used as a right of way for over twenty 
years - and it was purposely provided as a cycle / walking route - 
which will be documented in the Traffic and Transportation 
committee (or one of it's sub-committee) minutes of the old York 
City Council. Also have you checked the position with Sustrans who 
built and I believe maintain this path? 
 
 
Knavesmire Wood footpaths 
I also took the opportunity to go through Knavesmire wood on the 
way home the other day to check the accuracy of your PROW 
proposals there. You will see from the attached photos 148 - 150 
and 152  << File: DSC00147.JPG >>  << File: DSC00148.JPG >>  
<< File: DSC00149.JPG >>  << File: DSC00150.JPG >>  << File: 
DSC00152.JPG >> that in fact there is a second well established 
link from path 26 into the wood, and other additional paths within the 
wood, to the east north east of footpath 28 on your map. 
Unfortunately my camera battery ran out, but there is also a specific 
path which crosses the beck via a proper footbridge into the sliver of 
land shown on your overall map that lies between the wood, 
Bracken Road and the racetrack, and thence allows access up to a 
kissing gate back on to Bracken road on the corner nearly opposite 
the end of Whin Road. That kissing gate also allows access on to 
the Knavesmire as a whole at that location. These clearly need 
picking up in your next batch of Micklegate footpaths if you could do 
that please. 
 
Many thanks for the photos and the additional information.  This is 
exactly the information that I need for the next phase by way of 
highlighting the location of other paths allegedly over which public 
rights may exist but require further investigation.  I will add these to 
the next batch for Micklegate Ward as you suggest to be researched 
thoroughly (evidential and archival evidence, unfortunately 
photographs on their own are insufficient) in due course. 
  
 
 
 

P
age 340



AGENDA 
ITEM 

REPORT RECEIVED FROM COMMENTS 

6 Blossom Street Multi 
Modal Scheme – 
Consultation Results; 
Analysis of Network 
Implications and Option 
Selection  
(Page 255) 

Cllr R Potter Happy to support the recommendation. Particularly more detailed 
consultation on the scheme. 

7 Bus Corridor Works on 
A59 Boroughbridge 
Road and B1363 
Wigginton Road 
(Page 291) 

Cllr R Potter Happy to support recommendations. 

8 Operation of City of York 
Council’s Dial and Ride 
Service 
(Page 303) 

Cllr R Potter The service has been run by York Wheels since 2003. The service 
has been efficiently run with high levels of customer satisfaction 
giving good value for money to the Council. the service is bespoke 
to the individual users. The staff employed by York Wheels are 
dedicated to working with this vulnerable customer group and 
provide a very high level of customer care. The concerns  that I 
have if the service is tendered is the ability of a small voluntary 
organisation to cope with the tendering process and the uncertainty 
for the staff and customers. I am told that customers have been 
ringing all morning following the story in the press at the weekend 
as they are worried about the loss of the service currently received. 

9 An Update on the 
Progress Made Toward 
the Introduction of 
Integrated Bus Ticketing 
and the ‘Yorcard’ 
Scheme 
(Page 315) 

Cllr R Potter I am glad that some progress has been made although wish it could 
be moved a little faster. 

10 City of York’s Local 
Transport Plan 3 – 
Amended 
consultation/preparation 
strategy for LTP 3 
(Page 323) 

Cllr R Potter Happy to support the revised approach. 

 

P
age 341



P
age 342

T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	
	2 Minutes
	4 Public Rights of Way - Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 - Preparation of Definitive Map former County Borough of York (Guildhall, Fishergate, Micklegate Wards)
	MapsDArgoneMerrett

	5 Public Rights of Way - Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 - Preparation of Definitive Map former County Borough of York (Holgate, Clifton, Heworth, Hull Wards)
	Annex 1Clifton
	CLIFWRD1PaulL
	CLIFWRD2PaulL
	Report Schedule - Clifton
	FCB136
	FCB137
	FCB138
	FCB139
	FCB140
	FCB141
	FCB142
	FCB143
	FCB144
	FCB145
	FCB146
	FCB147
	FCB148
	FCB149
	FCB150
	FCB151
	FCB152
	FCB153
	FCB154
	Annex 2 Heworth
	HEWTHWRDPaulL
	Report Schedule - Heworth
	FCB155a
	FCB155b
	FCB158
	FCB159
	FCB163
	FCB164
	FCB165
	FCB167
	FCB168
	FCB169
	FCB170
	FCB171
	FCB172
	FCB173
	FCB174
	FCB178
	FCB179
	FCB180
	FCB181
	FCB182
	Annex 3 Holgate
	HOLGTWRDPaulL
	Report Schedule - Holgate
	FCB126
	FCB127
	FCB128
	FCB129
	FCB130
	FCB131
	FCB132
	FCB133
	FCB134
	FCB135
	Annex 4 Hull Road
	HULLRDWDPaulL
	Report Schedule - Hull Road
	FCB183
	FCB184
	FCB185
	FCB186
	FCB187
	FCB188
	FCB189
	FCB190
	FCB191
	FCB192
	FCB193
	Annex 5 Decision Making Guidance
	Decision making guidance for DMMOJHCbANFeb2010

	6 Blossom Street Multi Modal Scheme - Consultation Results; Analysis of Network Implications and Option Selection
	Annex A
	Annex B (1)
	Annex B (2)
	Annex C
	Annex D
	Annex E

	7 Bus Corridor Works on A59 Boroughbridge Road and B1363 Wigginton Road
	8 Operation of City of York Council's Dial and Ride Service
	Dial & Ride Annex A

	9 An Update on the Progress Made Toward the lntroduction of Integrated Bus Ticketing and the 'Yorcard' Scheme
	10 City of York's Local Transport Plan 3 - Amended consultation/preparation strategy for LTP3
	LTP3-Annex A

	Annex of Additional Comments received (1)
	Annex of Additional Comments received (2)

